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NOTICE
The Ninety-fifth Annual General Meeting of the Members of 
The Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd., will be held on Monday, 
30th September, 2013 at 4.00 p.m. at Pracharya B. N. Vaidya 
Sabhagruha, 2nd Floor, Raja Shivaji Vidya Sankul, Patkar Guruji 
Chowk, Hindu Colony, Dadar (East), Mumbai 400 014 to transact 
the following business concerning the Bank :
1.	 To consider and approve the Annual Accounts, which 

consist of the Report of the Board of Directors, the Report 
of the Statutory Auditors, the Balance Sheet and the Profit 
and Loss Account, for the year ended 31st March, 2013.

2.	 To appropriate net profit and declare dividend as 
recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended 
31st March, 2013.

3.	 To appoint Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2013-
14 and to authorize the Board of Directors to fix their 
remuneration. The Board of Directors recommends 
M/s Kulkarni & Khanolkar, Chartered Accountants, 13/14, 
Bell Building, Sir P.M. Road, Fort, Mumbai 400 001; for 
appointment as Statutory Auditors.

4.	 To place for consideration and adoption, the Annual Report 
and Audited Accounts of Saraswat Infotech Ltd. (Bank’s 
wholly-owned subsidiary company, registered under 
Companies Act, 1956), which consists of the Report of the 
Board of Directors, the Report of the Statutory Auditors, 
the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account for the 
year ended 31st March, 2013.

5.	 To grant Leave of Absence to the members of the Bank 
other than to those whose names appear in the Attendance 
Register of this 95th  Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors

 sd/-
S. K. Banerji

Managing Director

Mumbai, 5th September, 2013

Note:

	 The printed Annual Report of the Bank consisting of the Report of the Board of Directors, the Report of the Statutory Auditors, 
the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2013 is enclosed to this Notice.

	 The printed Annual Report consisting of the Report of the Board of Directors, the Report of the Statutory Auditors, the Balance 
Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2013 of Saraswat Infotech Ltd., Bank’s wholly-owned 
subsidiary, is also enclosed to this Notice.

	 If there is no quorum for the Meeting at the appointed time, in terms of Bank’s Bye-law No. 48, the Meeting shall stand 
adjourned to 5.00 p.m., on the same day and the Agenda of the Meeting shall be transacted at the same venue irrespective of 
the Rule of Quorum.

	 Dividend, when declared, will be paid on or after 7th October, 2013 to those shareholders whose shares are fully paid as on 31st 
March, 2013 and whose names are on the record of the Bank as on 6th September, 2013. 

	 If any member desires to have information in connection with the Accounts, he/she is requested to address a letter to the 
Managing Director of the Bank, to reach his office at The Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd., Saraswat Bank Bhavan, 953, 
Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400 025, not later than 25th September, 2013 so that the required information 
may be made available at the Annual General Meeting.

TO SERVE YOU BETTER:

1.	 Shareholders are hereby requested to kindly verify their names and addresses on the Annual Report sent to them. Change in 
address, if any, may kindly be intimated by post or by e-mail to the Share Department of the Bank for updating Bank’s records. 
E-mail address of the Share Department is incharge_sharedepartment@saraswatbank.com

2.	 Shareholders are requested to avail of nomination facility by submitting prescribed Nomination Form, as required under Section 
36 of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and Bye-law No. 19.

3.	 Shareholders having Current/Savings Bank/Cash Credit accounts with the Bank and desirous of crediting their dividends to 
their accounts are once again requested to record their standing instructions with the Share Department.

4.	 Kindly dispatch Form- A on Page No. 125 requesting to send Annual Report electronically to our Share Department.

Unclaimed Dividend

Notice is hereby given that dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2010 (89th Dividend) if not drawn on or before 30th 
September, 2013, will be forfeited by the Bank and credited to Reserve Fund in terms of Bye-law No. 68A.
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

(` in crore)
Particulars  FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31-03-2013 31-03-2012 % change
Total Income 2,551.14 2,124.35 20.09
Total Expenditure 2,068.79 1,713.02 20.77
Gross Profit 482.35 411.33 17.27
Less: Provisions 329.44 71.83 358.64
Profit Before Tax and Exceptional Items 152.91 339.50 -54.96
Less: Income Tax 31.18 89.73 -65.25
Profit after Tax and before Exceptional Items 121.73 249.77 -51.26
Less: Exceptional Items 9.64 14.20 -32.11
Net Profit after Tax and Exceptional Items 112.09 235.57 -52.42

  AT THE YEAR END 
Own Funds 1,961.31 1,715.69 14.32

Share Capital 126.91 116.92 8.54
Reserves and Surplus 1,834.40 1,598.77 14.74

Deposits 21,144.33 19,252.71 9.83
Current 965.83 1,059.58 -8.85
Savings 4,416.18 4,021.80 9.81
Term 15,762.32 14,171.33 11.23

Advances 15,023.42 13,952.70 7.67
Secured 14,971.29 13,884.87 7.82
Unsecured 52.13 67.83 -23.15

Total Business 36,167.75 33,205.41 8.92
Priority Sector 6,465.78 6,211.44 4.09
% to Advances 43.04 44.52 -
Small Scale Industries 2,241.60 2,992.57 -25.09
Small Businessmen and Traders 2,131.73 730.00 192.02
Other Priority Sectors 2,092.45 2,488.87 -15.93
Working Capital 24,790.80 22,435.62 10.50
Investments 6,444.03 5,626.99 14.52
Borrowings and Refinance 406.90 414.05 -1.73
Net NPAs (%) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Capital Adequacy (%) 11.15 12.37  
Number of Members    

Regular * 1,72,282 1,68,529  
Nominal 5,78,363 5,54,947  

Number of Branches 229 226  
Number of Employees 3,906 3,641  
Productivity per Employee 9.26 9.12  
Profit per Employee (` in lac) 2.87 6.47  
Return on Average Assets (%) 0.46 1.12  
Net Interest Margin (%) 3.30 3.47  

* Shareholders holding fifty shares and above
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dear Members,
Your Directors have great pleasure to present to you 
the Ninety-fifth Annual Report on the business and 
the operations of your Bank together with the Audited 
Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2013.

1.	 THE GLOBAL ECONOMY AND INDIA :

The global economy has not yet emerged significantly 
from the shadows of the 2008-09 crisis. Amongst 
the advanced economies, the U.S. GDP registered 
a growth rate of 2.4 per cent. The latest data viz. 
Non-Farm Payroll (NFP), unemployment data, retail 
sales, etc. point to a gradual recovery in the U.S., 
spurred by unconventional policy measures such as 
Quantitative Easing (QE) by the Federal Reserve. 
Against the backdrop of this gradual recovery, we 
expect FED to maintain its accommodative monetary 
stance, in the near term. The Euro zone as a whole, 
has sunk into recession with latest GDP numbers 
at (-) 0.4 per cent. Its debt problems are growing 
as recession has made it harder to reduce debt 
burdens. European Banks also have thinner equity 
buffers than many American Banks. The drags on the 
European economy are in the form of high debt, high 
unemployment, continued uncertainty and too much 
austerity. The Cyprus crisis has once again illustrated 
that the European financial system is rather fragile 
and the recovery ahead may be slow, with significant 
downward risks. Japan has been struggling with a 
state of low growth and low inflation. Abenomics has 
improved Japan’s prospects but Government debt 
is still close to 250 per cent of GDP, which could 
be a nightmare for any other country. In a historic 
move recently, the Bank of Japan has decided to 
push for an extremely aggressive monetary policy, 
through a bond buying programme of JPY 1.2 
trillion. Japan thus seems determined to meet the 2 
per cent inflation target that it has set for itself in its 
current state of deflation, through weakening of its 

currency. Growth in the Emerging and Developing 
Economies (EDEs) is also lower, impacted by the 
global slowdown. Recent reports from China show 
the Q1 GDP growth in FY 2013-14 at 7.7 per cent, 
lower than expectations evidencing that economic 
recovery has not gained adequate momentum. 
To sum up, we are seeing early signs of recovery 
in the U.S. and Japan. Emerging economies are yet 
struggling to emerge from the sluggish trend that 
has been seen in the recent past and also to attain 
the earlier high growth numbers. In most emerging 
economies, Current Account Deficits (CAD) are 
growing and the anticipation of FED tapering off its 
QE gradually in latter half of FY 2013-14 has made 
the emerging economies wobble, atleast for now.
The Indian Economy in FY 2012-13 :
The GDP growth for FY 2012-13 was at 5 per 
cent y-o-y, in line with CSO’s advance estimates. 
However, the numbers were much lower than the 7.6 
per cent earlier budgeted by the Central Government. 
During FY 2012-13, Agriculture contributed 1.9 per 
cent, Industry contributed 1.2 per cent and Services 
contributed 6.8 per cent to India’s GDP. The GDP 
continues thus to be largely driven by the Services 
sector. Deceleration was due to a negligible growth 
in agriculture and a near standstill in industrial 
growth. While manufacturing and construction 
sectors continued to display weaknesses, the 
outlook for services sector improved as a result of 
upward revision in its trade and financing segments. 
The slowdown is against a backdrop of weak 
external demand, rising global uncertainty, elevated 
interest rates, high inflation and declining business 
confidence. Despite the economic slowdown, the 
gross fiscal deficit for FY 2012-13 was contained 
at 4.9 per cent of GDP. The Government has taken 
several steps to curtail deficit and put Government 
finances in a more orderly manner. These steps 
include deregulation of diesel prices, capping of 
subsidized LPG cylinders, divestment of PSUs, 
emphasis on direct cash transfers, etc. 

THE SARASWAT CO-OPERATIVE BANK LIMITED
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The Current Account Deficit (CAD) has however shot 
up significantly higher. With the exports contracting 
in the first three quarters of FY 2012-13, trade gap 
between imports and exports has been one of the 
major reasons behind the worrying CAD levels. On 
the other hand, imports have registered a growth of 
10.96 per cent y-o-y, thus leading to widening of the 
trade deficit.
Import of gold in particular on a large scale has further 
worsened the CAD. We are of the view that though 
expenditure on account of purchase and import 
of gold constitutes a very large and unsustainable 
drawal on India’s foreign exchange reserves, 
Government measures may not succeed much 
in alleviating the infatuation of gold among Indian 
households. Amongst its imaginative uses, gold, a 
malleable metal, functions as (a) a medium of barter 
and exchange (b) a form of savings (c) an adornment 
(d) a cultural signage (e) a means to display wealth 
(f) an industrial metal (g) an insurance policy (h) a 
presentation chip and (i) a domestic and international 
reserve and treasure – all these make its attraction 
perennially irresistible and its demand insatiable. 
Much success, therefore, cannot be expected from 
Government’s efforts to reduce the import of gold by 
Indian households.
On the inflation front, the WPI remained persistently 
above seven per cent for most part of the year. With 
stagflation i.e. sticky inflation and growth slowing 
markedly, RBI calibrated its Monetary Policy stance 
in line with macroeconomic conditions. After an initial 
cut of 50 bps in the Repo Rate during April 2012, 
RBI constrained its monetary easing and directed 
its measures towards ensuring adequate liquidity 
through CRR cuts (25 bps on three occasions) and 
SLR cut for Scheduled Commercial Banks by 100 bps 
from 24 per cent to 23 per cent. Further repo rate cuts 
were effected during the fourth quarter of FY 2012-
13, as inflation numbers started coming down. WPI 
inflation stood at 7.3 per cent during FY 2012-13.
Indian stock market witnessed sharp rise on the back 
of more than adequate global liquidity which found 
its way in emerging markets including India. Bombay 
Stock Exchange Sensex rose from 17,404.20 as on 

31st March, 2012 to reach at 18,835.77 as on 31st 
March, 2013 experiencing many highs on its way. 
With Government of India taking determined steps 
to address fiscal deficit, the 10-year benchmark 
yield dipped lower from 8.63 per cent as on 31st 
March, 2012 to 7.99 per cent as on 31st March, 
2013. Indian Rupee witnessed depreciation against 
the U.S. Dollar, particularly in the last quarter of FY 
2012-13, as CAD figures started worsening. Indian 
Rupee which stood at 50.87 as on 31st March, 2012, 
depreciated by 6.72 per cent to stand at 54.29 to a 
U.S. Dollar as on 31st March, 2013.
Overall Assessment :
The Indian economy in FY 2013-14 is expected to 
be led by consumption growth. The consumption 
growth will recover fully with Policy support required 
to fortify business segment, going forward. The April 
2013 inflation print (WPI) came out at a 42 month 
low of 4.7 per cent y-o-y with core inflation at 2.4 
per cent y-o-y. This coupled with good monsoons in 
the initial phase of the cycle clearly indicates that the 
growth cycle in the country has nearly bottomed out 
and economy seems poised for a modest recovery 
although at the outset this is likely to be driven more 
by consumption rather than by investment. The only 
rider will be Government’s inability to contain Current 
Account Deficit (CAD) as also the pressure on the 
Treasury emanating from the populist measures 
which are being adopted by Government ahead of 
general elections. 
The World Bank has forecasted that India’s growth 
outlook for the current fiscal will be at 5.7 per cent. The 
risk factors against this slow but assured recovery 
will be depreciating local currency and drying up of 
global liquidity against the backdrop of reports from 
Federal Reserve tapering of bond buying programme 
in the second half of FY 2013-14.
State of the Indian Economy since past few years :
For the past two decades, India witnessed one of 
the world’s fastest-growing economies. Even when 
the global recession and complacent policymaking 
had slowed progress, India’s GDP growth had 
remained at a healthy clip of 7 per cent and above. 
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However, during the past six years the GDP growth 
is decelerating and has declined from 9.5 per cent in 
FY 2005-06 to 5 per cent in FY 2012-13. Incidentally, 
this is the lowest GDP growth since FY 2002-03, 
when the economy had grown by a mere 4 per cent.
While in other emerging economies like China, 
Brazil and South Africa the manufacturing sector has 
grown much faster than the GDP, in India the share 
of the manufacturing sector in GDP has stagnated. 
This is evident from the growth in Index of Industrial 
Production which has slumped from 8.2 per cent 
in FY 2005-06 to 1 per cent in FY 2012-13. India’s 
economy continues, as aforesaid, to be mainly 
driven by the contribution of services sector to the 
economy.
Non-addressal of subsidy issue in a timely manner, 
Government’s populist expenditure programmes, 
the Sixth Pay Commission burden – all these have 
pushed up the fiscal deficit as percentage of GDP 
from 4 per cent in FY 2005-06 to 4.9 per cent in 
FY 2012-13. The fiscal deficit number in FY 2012-
13 of 4.9 per cent too could be achieved only with 
sustained, determined and painstaking efforts put in 
personally by our present Union Finance Minister, 
Shri P. Chidambaram, who thereby could live upto 
his promise and stature.
The country’s Current Account Deficit (CAD) has 
remained above the comfort level of 2.5 per cent 
over the past few years. The CAD has widened due 
to sluggish exports, front-loading of gold demand 
and seasonal rise in imports. The CAD which was 
at 1.2 per cent of GDP in FY 2005-06 has reached 
a discomforting level of 4.9 per cent of GDP in FY 
2012-13, driving the Rupee in a virtual bottomless 
pit.
Wholesale Price Inflation index spurted to 7.3 per 
cent in FY 2012-13 against 4.4 per cent in FY 2005-
06. The inflation print has witnessed an upturn on 
account of spike in factors such as farm-sector 
wages, food, fuel, supply side constraints and the 
depreciating rupee. 
The accompanying graph depicts the major macro-
economic indicators of India over FY 2005-06 to 

FY 2012-13 which clearly indicate a slowing Indian 
economy passing through a financial crisis.
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This graph captures and depicts lucidly the downturn 
in the Indian economy in recent years. All said, firstly 
this state of affairs of our economy leaves one with 
an impression that macroeconomists of the world 
have still not been able to fathom and unravel fully 
the inter-relationship between fiscal policy, central 
banks, financial markets and the real economy and 
that it still continues to be very poorly understood.
Secondly, it has now come into sharp focus that the 
basic problem of emerging economies such as India 
is that their financial markets are not deep enough or 
diversified enough to absorb global shocks of trillions 
of dollars of hot money moving in all directions.
Thirdly, the occasional claims of “de-coupling” of any 
economy from globalized finance constitutes only an 
act of self-delusion.
Impact of slowing economy on Banking Industry :
The drastic economic slowdown during 2012-13 had 
an adverse impact on performance of Indian Banks. 
This is clearly witnessed from unprecedented rise 
in the Non Performing Assets (NPAs) of Banks. The 
Gross NPAs of Indian Banks have reached ` 2.06 
trillion while restructured loans grossed ` 2.27 trillion 
as on 31st March, 2013. According to an RBI study, 
Gross Non Performing Assets of Indian Banks have 
more than trebled in the six years i.e. upto March 
2013. Net NPAs have grown even faster to reach 
` 888 billion by March 2013. The study estimates 
that the loss to Indian Banks resulting from NPAs has 
been more than 60 per cent of their net profit since 
March 2010. 
Also, while the NPAs are rising at a faster clip, their 
recovery has been very slow. The recovery of the 
NPAs through the suit filed cases over the years has 
been showing a markedly declining trend which is 
evident from the data tabled by Ministry of Finance in 
the Rajya Sabha recently.
Table No. 1 :
	 (` in crore)

Period Suit Filed
Amount

Recovered 
Amount

Recovery 
%

2009-10 47,576 2,403 5.1
2010-11 52,672 2,342 4.4
2011-12 79,117 1,700 2.1
2012-13 97,701 1,905 2.0

(Source: Rajya Sabha)

The above information tabled by the Government of 
India in Rajya Sabha tells it all - that in recent years, in 
this sticky economy the capacity of banks to recover 
their dues has decelerated both precipitously and 
dramatically.
It has also been observed that Public Sector Banks 
(PSBs) are writing off more loans than they recover 
and thereby they show lower gross NPAs. During the 
year, the position of actual recovery by public sector 
banks as against their loan write-offs is dismal as 
can be seen from the following data in public domain 
relating to some of the major banks in India :
Table No. 2 :

(` in crore)

Bank Name  Recovery  Write-off 
Bank of India  2,006.00 2,413.00
Indian Overseas Bank  1,270.00 1,642.25
Oriental Bank of Commerce  1,192.00 1,416.26
Syndicate Bank  1,030.00 1,297.30
Bank of Baroda  625.57 2,359.47
Corporation Bank  313.00 708.67
Bank of Maharashtra  303.92 663.12

In a nutshell, during FY 2012-13 due to economic slow-
down, entire banking industry in India faced grave 
and daunting challenges of abnormally rising stressed 
assets and thinner recoveries, your Bank being no 
exception.

2.	 MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN THE BANKING
	 AND FINANCIAL SECTOR IN INDIA :

During the recent past, the Reserve Bank of India, 
which regulates the Indian banking industry, has 
formulated several policies and initiatives that would 
have wholesome impact on the country’s banking 
sector. Some such key steps which top the priority 
list of RBI are :
	 Implementation of the Basel III norms : RBI 

has issued guidelines on implementation of 
Basel III norms for commercial banks, which 
will require massive capital infusion in these 
banks over the next few years. Under the new 
standards, scheduled commercial banks will 
have to maintain capital adequacy of at least 9 
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per cent, comprising Tier 1 capital of 7 per cent 
with common equity Tier 1 of 5.5 per cent of risk 
weighted assets. This move to strengthen Tier 
1 capital in particular will impart robustness to 
Indian Banks in the coming years.

	 Issue of New Bank Licences: With the 
amendments to the Banking Law, the Reserve 
Bank of India issued the new Bank Licensing 
Policy. RBI will soon be issuing new bank 
licences to all entities which satisfy the eligibility 
criteria, after a thorough due diligence. RBI 
is in the process of constituting an external 
committee which will be chaired by Dr. Bimal 
Jalan, an illustrious former Governor of RBI. 
This committee will screen licence applicants 
and will make recommendations to RBI. Many 
new entrants, especially Non Banking Financial 
Companies (NBFCs) are expected to enter the 
banking industry in the immediate future, thereby 
developing healthy competition and benefiting 
the Indian consumer in the long run.

	 Financial Inclusion: Financial inclusion has 
been prioritized with the RBI advising all banks 
to open at least one branch in villages with a 
population of more than 2000. Banks are also 
required to formulate a Board approved Financial 
Inclusion Plan (FIP), the implementation of which 
will be monitored by RBI. RBI has also listed 
the minimum facilities to be offered under a 
‘Basic Savings Bank Deposit Account’. RBI has 
further directed that all existing no-frills accounts 
be converted to basic savings bank deposit 
accounts, for which there will be no minimum 
balance requirement and all the services 
including deposits and withdrawals, facility 
of electronic payment channels, etc. should 
be made available to every customer at bank 
branches and/or ATMs.

	 RBI has also issued directions for Intra-Bank 
Deposit Accounts Portability. RBI has directed 
that information on the MICR and IFSC codes 
now has to be made available in the passbook/
statement of account of the account holders. 

RBI has also issued revised KYC guidelines for 
accounts of proprietary concerns.

	 Other Measures
l	 The Banking Law (Amendment) Bill 2011 to 

amend the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 
and the Banking Companies (Acquisition 
and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980 
was placed in the Lok Sabha for approval. 
Enactment of this Bill will empower RBI 
to call for information and returns from 
the associate enterprises of banking 
companies, and also to inspect the same, 
if necessary.

l	 RBI has proposed that banks will now be 
evaluated under a dynamic risk-based 
mechanism by replacing the present 
CAMELS (Capital Adequacy, Asset Quality, 
Management Quality, Earnings, Liquidity 
and Sensitivity to Market Risk) rating system 
with INROADS (Indian Risk-Oriented And 
Dynamic Rating System). 

l	 RBI has directed all banks to issue cheques 
with uniform features conforming to Cheque 
Truncation System (CTS) 2010 standard.

l	 RBI has issued new guidelines to the 
stakeholders to further strengthen the 
security and risk mitigation measures of 
cards and electronic banking transactions.

3.	 MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN THE URBAN 
	 CO-OPERATIVE BANKING SECTOR :

Urban Co-operative Banks (UCBs) are a small but 
an important component of India’s banking system. 
Deposits of around ` 2.38 lac crore are mobilized by 
UCBs, of which Maharashtra State alone accounts 
for ` 1.5 lac crore. 
Some of the major developments for UCBs during 
FY 2012-13 are listed below :
	 The Government of India has issued notification 

on 15th January, 2013 to bring an amendment to 
the SARFAESI Act, 2002 whereby the definition 
of ‘Bank’ has been amended to include “Multi-
State Co-operative Banks”. 
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	 RBI unveiled a revised ‘Supervisory Action 
Framework’ for Urban Co-operative Banks 
(UCBs), whereunder in the initial stage of 
deterioration in their financial position, self- 
corrective action by banks’ management is 
envisaged. If their financials still do not improve 
despite self-corrective actions, RBI may step 
in and initiate supervisory action as it deems 
necessary.

	 UCBs having net worth in excess of ` 200 crore 
have to ensure that they are in readiness to 
adopt the IFRS converged IAS.

	 UCBs were permitted to utilize an additional 
limit of 5 per cent of total assets, for grant of 
housing loans to individuals upto ` 25 lac under 
the priority sector.

	 RBI reiterated that UCBs, State and Central Co-
operative Banks should not grant any advance 
for purchase of gold in any form.

	 RBI issued rules for UCBs for setting up of Central 
Electronic Registry under the Securitization 
and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and 
Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002.

	 RBI notified a simplification of procedure for 
UCBs with regard to settlement of claims in 
respect of deceased depositors. 

	 With a view to check frauds, RBI has asked 
Urban Co-operative Banks to verify IT returns 
and other documents viz. copies of utility bills 
- electricity, landline, water, telephone, etc. 
submitted before opening bank accounts of 
businessmen as part of the KYC exercise.

4.	 THE COVER PAGE :
	 Celebrating Customer-Centric Banking
Banks are frequently criticized for treating customers 
as merely account numbers. However, banks clearly 
understand and recognize that the customer is at the 
centre of everything that they do. Forward-thinking 
banks in the sector like your Bank do recognize the 
importance of an effective customer relationship 
strategy and the need to be more ‘customer-centric’ 
for ensuring long-term success. 

“We don’t want only satisfied customers…we want 
delighted customers” – is the new marketing mantra 
today for banking services. 

A customer today is highly knowledgeable and would 
like to weigh all pros and cons before selecting a 
particular bank for all his/her needs. Your Bank has 
adopted a customer centric banking model based on 
five key areas :

l	 Customer Segmentation
l	 Multichannel Integration
l	 Operational excellence
l	 Real time cross selling
l	 Co-creation of products and services

	 Different types of markets : Rural/Semi-Urban/ 
Urban/Metro.

	 Your Bank has over the years established a 
strong branch network, covering rural, semi-
urban, urban as well as metropolitan areas. 
Your Bank has always prided itself on being 
a Bank for the common man. Through our 
branches in smaller towns, the Bank caters 
to the needs of small depositors and has also 
extended micro finance for smaller amounts 
below ` 15000/-, through sanction of clean 
loans to micro enterprises, rural artisans, petty 
traders, etc. who hail from the lower strata of 
the society. At the same time, the Bank relies 
on its technologically-supported products and 
services to cater to the elite customers from the 
Urban and Metro pockets. 

	 Different types of customers : Small customers/ 
Retail/SME/Large Corporate houses.

	 Your Bank is meeting the requirements of 
customers by extending various credit facilities 
to the small man, small traders, working capital 
needs (local as well as foreign currency) and 
term financing to SMEs as well as to large 
corporates. 

	 For retail customers, we have schematic lending 
schemes such as Vastu-Siddhi loans, Vehicle 
loans, Educational loans, Doctor Delite scheme, 
Pravasi schemes, etc.

	 Through different types of channels : ATMs/ 
Mobile banking/Internet banking.
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	 Increasingly, customers are demanding that 
banking services are available, when and where 
they want them. Your Bank has responded to 
their need by adopting the tagline “Anytime, 
anywhere and right now”. Your Bank’s own ATMs 
as well as ATMs (through NPCI network) serve 
as 24x7 channels for customers for withdrawal 
of cash, balance verifications and even transfer 
transactions. Besides, your Bank has introduced 
convenience banking through channels like 
Internet banking, Mobile banking to cater to the 
Gen-Next which prefers to do banking from the 
comfort of their homes/workplace.

	 Through various type of payment systems: ECS 
/NEFT/RTGS/Speed Clearing.

	 Payments systems like RTGS and NEFT are in 
place for customers to transfer funds speedily 
from his/her account to any other account 
anywhere in the country. ECS service is in 
place to help customer effect debit and credit 
transactions for payment of salaries, dividend 
and utility bill payments.

	 Co-creation of products and services :

	 Your Bank does not consider customer as 
an intrusion. He is the very purpose of our 
existence. Our Chairman takes pains to remind 
your Bank’s staff, “It is the customers who pay 
your salaries”. This has made listening to the 
customers very important and such thoughtful 
listening has resulted in building expectations 
of customers from our products, which when 
expressed lead to co-creation of newer products. 
The wide variety of products that we have 
today is possible only because your Bank was 
always eager to accept the suggestions of the 
customers. For example, to cater to the need of 
its highly diversified customer base of savers, 
your Bank has introduced a bouquet of different 
types of CASA accounts, with different minimum 
balance stipulations as seen in Table No. 3. 

Table No. 3 :
(Amount in `)

Sr 
No.

Type of CASA Account Urban Semi- 
Urban

Rural

1 Platinum Current 
Accounts

3,00,000 2,00,000 2,00,000

2 Elite Current Accounts 10,000 10,000 10,000 
3 Regular Current 

Accounts
5,000 2,500 1,500

4 Elite Gold Savings 
Accounts

1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000

5 Elite Silver Savings 
Accounts 

25,000 25,000 25,000

6 Elite Savings Accounts 5,000 5,000 5,000
7 Regular Savings Accounts 1,000 500 250
8 Minor Savings Accounts 100 100 100
9 Easy Deposits/ Campus/ 

Akshay Salary Savings 
Accounts and Basic 
Savings Accounts

Nil Nil Nil

NB: As we will be celebrating Bank’s 95th Foundation Day on 
14th September, 2013, we are announcing a new product 
beginning with that day i.e. 10th CASA product “SARASWAT 
BANK PATRON DEPOSIT ACCOUNT” with a minimum balance 
of ` 5,00,000/- (` Five lac) in Current Account or ` 5,00,000/- 
(` Five lac) in Savings Account.

The minimum limits set for these co-created products 
are based on different types of facilities extended 
therein to suit individual customer needs. It has 
been our consistent experience that the customer 
support for such products is spontaneous because 
they see in these products their “Own Bank” listening 
and responding to their ever-growing needs and 
demands. This has helped not only our products 
being delivered smoothly, flawlessly and elegantly 
but also being capable of meeting the full spectrum 
of banking needs of our customers – from their basic 
banking services needs to self-esteem and even 
Status needs.

Our ‘customer-centric banking’ has helped greater 
participation of the customer in the banking activities 
and making Banking with your Bank a joyful 
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experience for them. Our Cover Page for this year 
celebrates our deepest gratitude towards our most 
cherished and valuable asset of all – that is the 
satisfied customer.

5.	 CHAIRMAN’S SPEECH 2012 IN RETROSPECT :

The Chairman of your Bank, Shri E. K. Thakur, 
had delivered his speech on 27th September, 2012 
at the 94th Annual General Meeting of the Bank. In 
the said speech, the Chairman had discussed the 
then prevailing economic scenario as also your 
Bank’s various plans during FY 2012-13 viz. branch 
expansion, and controlling NPAs. 
As regards the economic scenario, the Chairman had 
expressed his views that with Government of India 
disciplining itself fiscally, we can expect a flexible 
stance from RBI on the monetary easing front. True 
to this, in tune with Government’s serious endeavour 
to control fiscal deficit, we saw RBI calibrating its 
policy stance in line with macroeconomic conditions 
and effecting a 100 bps cut in the repo rate during 
the entire year 2012-13. 
The Chairman had also announced that the Reserve 
Bank of India had by then accorded the Bank a ‘go-
ahead’ for opening of new branches and that the 
branch locations, infrastructure, etc. required for 
opening of new branches is being put into place and 
during the year FY 2013-14, we are planning to speed 
up our branch expansion programme. True to these 
assurances of the Chairman, during the first month of 
FY 2013-14 itself, your Bank has opened fifteen new 
branches, five in Mumbai and Navi Mumbai, seven 
in rest of Maharashtra i.e. Nagpur (2), Aurangabad, 
Ahmednagar (2), Solapur, Akola and three at Baroda 
in Gujarat State, thus further strengthening our base 
in the States of Maharashtra and Gujarat. Further to 
this, three more branches were opened in Mumbai 
during August 2013. More such branch openings are 
in the pipeline during FY 2013-14.

Contrary to the Chairman’s expectations on the NPA 
front, however, we saw a rise in the gross NPAs 
of the Bank. Inspite of recovery of ` 154.65 crore 
during FY 2012-13 (higher than in any previous 

year) in gross NPAs by your Bank in the prevailing 
conditions of stagflation in the Indian economy, the 
gross NPA level of your Bank rose significantly and 
its growth continues unabated even during FY 2013-
14. However, with the focussed and decisive efforts 
undertaken by your Bank during FY 2012-13 and 
continuance of the same during FY 2013-14, we are 
hopeful that we will be able to contain gross NPAs to 
manageable levels. It must also be foretold here that 
in future i.e. beyond FY 2012-13, year after year, it 
may no longer be possible for your Bank, in a similar 
economic situation, to hold on to our zero per cent 
Net NPA status, which we had steadfastly achieved 
and stubbornly maintained till end of FY 2012-13, 
that too, consecutively for past nine financial years.

6.	 OUR MISSION : ALL EYES ON ̀  ONE TRILLION !

As you are aware, the Bank had set ambitious targets 
in the form of Dr. Adarkar Missions. These targets 
were divided into four tranches i.e. Dr. Adarkar 
Mission I – IV. The first two goals i.e. Dr. Adarkar 
Mission I of achieving ` 10,000 crore by 31st March, 
2006 and Dr. Adarkar Mission II of achieving ̀  25,000 
crore by 31st March, 2011 were successfully scaled by 
your Bank, well ahead of the stipulated deadline. The 
immediate next tranche of the Dr. Adarkar Mission 
III is achievement of ` 50,000 crore by 31st March, 
2016. As explained earlier, the business growth has 
been relatively modest this year and your Bank has 
managed to touch a business level of ` 36,167.75 
crore only. The modest business growth is owing to 
the fact that your Bank adopted a cautious approach 
while granting fresh advances during the year in 
wake of the rise in stressed assets in the banking 
sector in general and in your Bank in particular. 
We are confident that in the ensuing financial year, 
we will forge ahead with renewed enthusiasm and 
vigour and post much improved business levels. 
More emphasis will be given on acquiring a) CASA 
Deposits b) Retail Loans and c) Quality commercial 
small ticket loan assets.
Your Bank is thus confident of achieving the next 
tranche of the Dr. Adarkar Mission III i.e. of ` 50,000 
crore in good time.
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7.	 HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT :

The HRD Department continues to perform its role 
of recruiting and nurturing human resources and 
creating an environment conducive for learning, 
growth and creation of better service conditions than 
our peers in the industry provide to their staff.
Some of the initiatives taken by the HRD Department 
during the year 2012-2013 are as follows :

	 Programme on “Creating a World Class 
Organization - from planning to performing”:

	 Forward-looking Board of Directors and banking 
executives always carry a dream at the back 
of their minds i.e. to create a World Class 
Organization. With this vision and insight, a 
training programme was organized from 26th to 
28th February 2013, with a provenly competent 
management professional as a guide.

	 The programme covered discussions on the 
following :

l	 Defining a World Class Organization 

l	 Vision for a World Class Organization 

l	 Mission as a driving force 

l	 World Class Value-Chain 

l	 Deciding Value-Drivers and Three 
dimensions of a strategic plan 

l	 Creating a Management Control System 
through World Class Benchmarking 

l	 World Class Banking Entrepreneurship 

l	 Growth through Innovation 

l	 Knowledge Management

	 The programme promoted thought-provocation 
through a vibrant methodology of presentations, 
group discussions, open-house brain-storms and 
well-designed models and cases to facilitate the 
discussions and conclusive learning processes.

	 Policy towards Women Co-Workers – 2013 :
	 Your Bank is committed to provide a safe and 

congenial work environment to its employees, 
more particularly, women employees and ensure 

that they are not subjected to any harassment. 
The Board of Directors therefore approved the 
“Policy Towards Women Co-workers” and also 
formed a Complaint Committee to redress 
complaints of harassment at workplace, if any, 
as envisaged under the Policy, in a time-bound 
manner. Your Bank’s Committee comprises 
besides three senior lady Executives of the 
Bank, Mrs. Shailaja Limaye, Representative 
of NGO “Majhi Maitrin Charitable Trust”, Pune 
and Ms. Ujwala Pawar, Representative of NGO 
“Saraswati Devi Vidya Vikas Trust, Mumbai”. 

	 An inaugural function of the Committee was 
held on 5th March, 2013, at the Saraswat 
Bank Bhavan, which was attended by all the 
Executives, Lady Chief Managers, Lady Branch 
Managers and Second Incharges at Branches/ 
Departments.

 Programme on Wealth Management/ 
Nominations for 9th Annual Private Banking 
Asia Conference 2013 :

	 The Bank is taking steps to introduce the product 
of Wealth Management in the future, for which 
we will need support of specialized professionals 
adequately trained in the modalities and nuances 
of Wealth Management. In view of the same, 
your Bank had nominated four officials viz. 
Mrs. Suprita Thakker, GM – Risk Management, 
Mrs. Ajita Bapat, AGM – Risk Management 
Department, Mr. Shreyas Nagarkar, Manager – 
New Initiatives Unit and Mr. Swapnil Abhyankar, 
Manager – New Initiatives Unit to attend the 9th 
Annual Private Banking Asia 2013 which was 
conducted on 13th and 14th March, 2013 at Marina 
Bay Sands Conventional Centre in Singapore, 
wherein topics on Investment Banking, Wealth 
Management and Portfolio Management were 
dwelt upon. The Conference has equipped our 
Bank officials with the knowledge of effective 
risk management, capital preservation and 
wealth creation options which can be extended 
to Bank’s customers helping them to improve 
their businesses and wealth-profile.
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	 Upgradation of select senior employees 
from Grade B to Grade A :

	 A clause had been incorporated in the Agreement 
/Settlement dated 12th July, 2011 wherein it was 
agreed to upgrade employees who were in the 
services of the Bank in Grade ‘B’ pay scale in 
employment of the Bank as on 31st March, 2011 
to Grade ‘A’ pay scale, upon achieving the Dr. 
Adarkar Mission III target of ` 50,000 crore. 
Since the Dr. Adarkar Mission III target is now 
clearly in sight, the Bank has decided to absorb 
“Select Grade B staff” employed by the Bank 
during Dr. Adarkar Mission II in the Grade ‘A’ 
on the basis of their year-wise seniority, every 
year from 1st April, 2012 onwards. This year i.e. 
with effect from 1st April, 2012, 197 employees 
from various cadres of Grade ‘B’ pay scale were 
upgraded to Grade ‘A’ pay scale, based on their 
acceptable performance reports.

	 Recruitment :

	 In view of your Bank’s continued expansion 
programme, for strengthening the Bank’s 
marketing and operations and also for filling the 
vacancies created by exit of some employees, 
559 employees were recruited during the year, 
of which one was in Executive cadre, ninety-
nine were in Management cadre and 459 were 
in Non-management cadre. Out of ninety-
nine candidates recruited in the Management 
cadre, thirty-eight are lateral recruits having 
rich and varied previous experience in reputed 
nationalized, private sector and co-operative 
banks. The 559 new recruits include fifty-eight 
recruited in Grade ‘A’ (Professionally-qualified 
such as CA, etc.) and remaining 496 in Grade 
‘B’ and five in Grade ‘C’. Total additions to the 
staff during the year were, however, lower at 265 
employees, as explained in the following table :

Table No. 4 :
Summary of Employees Recruited / Exited during 
FY 2012-13
Number of Employees as on 31-03-2012 3,641
Number of Employees recruited during the year 2012-13 559
Sub Total 4,200
Less the number of Employees who exited during the year 
2012-13 due to:  

1. Natural Death 3
2. Normal Retirement 28
3. Retirement on Medical Grounds 1
4. Voluntary Retirement 87
5. Termination 11
6. Dismissals 4
7. Resignations 160

Total Employees exiting the Bank 294
Number of Employees as on 31-03-2013 3,906
Net Addition during the year 2012-13 265

	 It will be clear from the above table that during the 
year, while a total of 294 employees have exited 
the Bank, a total number of 559 employees 
have been recruited i.e. thus there is a net 
intake of 265 employees. These employees 
were recruited as per a Manpower Plan, which 
had highlighted the need to keep the staff ready 
for proposed fifty new branches to be opened 
from 1st April, 2013 to 31st March, 2014.

	 Promotion Exercise :
	 During the year under Report, 148 employees 

were promoted to various cadres (eighty-two 
from Clerical to Officer cadre, forty-seven to 
various positions in Management cadre and 
nineteen to various positions in Executive 
cadre). Further, sixty-two Clerks were elevated 
to the post of Accounts Assistants in view of 
their seniority.

	 The promotions were undertaken to fill in the 
vacancies created by outgoing officials as a 
result of retirement, resignations, etc. as well as 
to cater to the growing expanse of your Bank.

	 SBVRS 2012 for the employees in Grade ‘A’ 
and Grade ‘B’ :

	 During the year, the Bank introduced the 
Voluntary Retirement Scheme for employees in 
both, Grade ‘A’ as well as Grade ‘B’ pay scale. In 
all, eighty-eight employees were relieved under 
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the Scheme. These included seven Executives, 
thirty-eight Management Staff members and 
forty-three Non-management Staff members.

	 Redesignation of “Clerks” as “Junior Officers”, 
“Accounts Assistants” as “Officers” and 
“Officers” as “Deputy Managers” :

	 Your Bank has been taking various pro-active 
steps from time to time, aiming to motivate 
its employees and improve their morale. In 
accordance with the same, the designation 
of “Clerks” was revised to “Junior Officers”, 
designation of “Accounts Assistants” was 
revised to “Officers” and the designation of 
“Officers” was revised to “Deputy Managers” 
with effect from 1st April, 2013.

	 This change in designations is aimed at giving 
the employees a sense of dignity and pride to 
be important functionaries of the organization. 
It will also help them effectively represent the 
Bank while marketing the Bank’s products.

 	 Training for Staff :
	 During the year, the Staff Learning Centre 

conducted 113 training programmes on various 
topics covering 3,957 employees – comprising 
1,764 employees from Management cadre 
and 2,193 employees from Non-management 
cadre. The training programmes included 
induction training, orientation programmes, 
refresher programmes as well as need-based 
functional programmes for various zones and 
departments. The programmes are conducted 
in all three modes i.e.
	 At the Learning Centre
	 At the work-stations and
	 On-line

	 In addition to the above, Staff Learning Centre 
was also instrumental in promoting self-
learning culture in the Bank through initiatives 
like supplying material to staff for IIBF exams, 
educative articles/contributions to Madhusattva 
and monthly on-line tests for employees on 
various banking topics.

8.	 SOME INITIATIVES IMPLEMENTED BY YOUR 
BOARD :

	 Unique Customer Identification Code (UCIC) 
for the Bank’s customers in India :

	 Availability of a Unique Customer Identification 
Code (UCIC) is important to identify a customer, 
track the facilities availed, monitor financial 
transactions in various accounts, improve risk 
profiling and take a holistic view of customer 
profile. In view of the same, your Bank initiated 
the process of UCIC during this year. 

	 The existing CBS platform already provided for 
recording Customer Information and generating 
a Unique Customer Identification Code. Some 
checks and measures were put in place like - 
Customer record was made mandatory while 
linking other account-related relationships 
(introducers, joint holders, guardians of minor 
holders, sureties, nominees, etc.). To avoid 
re-use of already unified IDs, at each phase 
customer database was pruned by deactivating 
the unified Customer IDs and such Customer 
IDs were rendered non-operative as no 
relationships were linked to it.

	 The UCIC project was undertaken in three 
phases as follows :

	 Phase-1 - consisting of Unification at the branch-
unit level (which unified almost 80 per cent of 
the multiple Customer IDs) was completed by 
30th November, 2012. 

	 Phase-2 at the regional-unit level (which unified 
a further 15-16 per cent multiple Customer IDs) 
by 10th April, 2013 and 

	 Phase-3 for the entire Bank project was 
completed by 15th May, 2013.

	 Thus, your Bank is poised well to complete the 
regulatory requirement within the stipulated 
time-line of RBI.

	 Post-UCIC i.e. now all individual customers of 
your Bank :
	 Will have a Unique Customer Identification 

Code (UCIC). 
	 Will have all the primary account/s and 

relationships linked to the UCIC.
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	 The addresses, contact details and other 
customer-related information in the UCIC 
will be replicated across all accounts held 
by the Customer. 

	 UCIC will have no impact to the Tax 
Deducted at Source (TDS) on the interest 
on fixed deposits.

	 Customers can link all their accounts under 
the UCIC for ATM/Net Banking (facility will 
be extended against specific request).

	 AADHAAR based accounts :
	 Aadhaar Payment Bridge System [APBS] is the 

payment system used to support direct cash 
transfer of Government subsidy. Government 
in co-ordination with National Payments 
Corporation of India (NPCI) had rolled out direct 
cash transfer welfare schemes for member 
Banks for further benefit to their customers.

	 Your Bank is now enrolled for Aadhaar Payment 
Bridge System [APBS] with NPCI for credit of 
various Government subsidies like gas subsidy, 
education subsidy, etc. directly to the accounts 
of the beneficiary customers.

9.	 EARLIER INITIATIVES - CURRENT STATUS :
	 Administrative Self-Regulatory Authority 

(ASRA) :
	 The unique initiative of creating ASRA in your 

Bank, which was unveiled in July 2011, has 
stabilized over the year and half and today is a 
part and parcel of our organizational structure and 
culture. As we had informed you in our previous 
Reports, the role of the ASRA functionary is 
that of a watch dog, ensuring compliances with 
internal as well as external regulations/directives 
/guidelines in all areas of the Bank’s functioning.

	 Under the aegis of ASRA, your Bank has updated 
fifty-two Policy documents and fifteen manuals, 
which are being used as operational guides by 
our branches/departments. Visits to branches by 
ASRA, to check on compliances with our internal 
guidelines on systems and procedures are one 
of the basic tenets of ASRA’s functioning. These 
visits have served the purpose of checking on 
the status of compliances as well as served as 
a platform for counselling the Branch Managers 

and staff at these branches on the need for 
adherence to the correct procedures, the logic 
behind such procedures and the pitfalls in non-
compliances. It can be said with a great deal 
of certainty that the adherence to systems and 
procedures by the various functionaries within 
the Bank has improved dramatically, which is 
also evidenced by the recent improvements in 
the audit ratings of most of our branches.

	 The Board is happy to state that the ASRA 
initiative has stabilized and in days to come, it 
will contribute to a healthier Bank in the area 
of regulatory and Board policy compliances. 
It may be mentioned that Mrs. Sudha Sivan, 
Dy. Managing Director has been posted as 
Administrative Self-Regulatory Authority (ASRA) 
and she has been working in that capacity since 
creation of the said Authority in the Bank.

 	 CASA Initiative – Year of CASA :
	 Your Bank has garnered 2,20,157 new CASA 

accounts during the year 2012-2013. The CASA 
component comprises various deposit schemes 
some of which call for minimum balance of ` 
100/- (CUBS, Akshay Salary Account) and some 
call for a higher balance of from ` 1,000/- to ` 
3,00,000/- (Quality CASA).

	 In order to increase the CASA composition, it 
is essential that Current and Savings account 
schemes calling for larger balances are 
opened (Elite variants). During FY 2012-13, the 
contribution from Regular accounts increased 
as compared to accounts opened under CUBS 
and Akshay Salary. This is a welcome trend and 
branches will continue to focus on marketing 
of Quality CASA through the coming years to 
improve the Net Interest Margin (NIM). These 
accounts are associated with various modern 
banking facilities to give the account holders the 
ease of banking.

	 Various initiatives were taken during the year 
to increase the CASA business viz. launch of 
Campus Scheme – an account specially targeted 
at ‘Gen Y’ – Youth, campaigns for garnering 
SBNRO, SBNRE accounts – accounts targeted 
specially at NRIs, etc.
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	 Under the Campus scheme, your Bank garnered 
42,000 savings accounts. However, through 
the various efforts and initiatives, overall your 
Bank could increase the CASA business by 
only ` 300.63 crore during the year. The CASA 
Deposits which stood at ` 5,081.38 crore as on 
31st March, 2012 increased to ` 5,382.01 crore 
as on 31st March, 2013. However in percentage 
terms, the expected CASA deposits of 28 per 
cent as envisaged by your Bank for FY 2012-
13 could not be achieved. The CASA ratio infact 
decreased from 26.39 per cent as on 31st March, 
2012 to 25.45 per cent as on 31st March, 2013.

Table No. 5 :
Position of CASA Deposits		 (` in crore)

Particulars 31-03-12 31-03-13
Total Deposits 19,252.71 21,144.33
CASA Amount 5,081.38 5,382.01
CASA (%) 26.39 25.45 
Increase in CASA 300.63
	 CASA however remains a permanent priority 

for the Bank. The Officers' Association and the 
Employees' Union of the Bank, in a magnificent 

gesture, have already undertaken to raise 
the CASA percentage to 32 per cent before 
submitting their next Charter of Demands for a 
future wage revision. This demonstrates the total 
determination of the Bank as a whole to scale up 
CASA achievement step by step. It will therefore 
be a continuous and constant endeavour of your 
Bank to improve the CASA percentage to the 
desirable level of 40 per cent of total deposits, 
over a period of time.

	 Micro-finance Initiative :
	 Your Bank has decided to venture into 

Micro-finance business from FY 2008-09 on 
experimental basis, with a view to help upliftment 
of rural poor and empowerment of women.

	 Encouraged by the response in the initial years, 
the Clean Loan scheme initiated in October, 
2008 was extended every year. Our branches 
in Sindhudurg and Ratnagiri Districts, disbursed 
more than ̀  450.00 lac for 2,879 rural/semi-urban 
beneficiaries under Clean Loan Scheme up to 
31st March, 2013. Barring stray irregularities in 
repayment, only twenty-nine accounts are in NPA 
so far. Details of the present loans outstanding 
are as follows :

Table No. 6 :
	 (` in lac)

Branch Sanctioned & 
Disbursed

Outstanding Overdue NPA

A/cs AMT A/cs AMT A/cs Amt A/cs AMT
Chiplun 103 17.16 89  6.17 13 0.18 4 0.46
Devgad 26 5.93 25 5.25 0 0.00 0 0.00
Kankavli 126 16.65 23 1.40 13 0.47 10 0.25
Kankavli-R. Plaza 53 5.85 52 3.67 2 0.02 0 0.00
Kudal 549 79.16 152 21.23 54 0.45 0 0.00
Lanja 20 4.70 18 2.42 14 0.02 0 0.00
Malvan 244 48.46 218 25.91 116 1.00 7 0.68
Rajapur 22 5.31 22 3.24 0 0.03 0 0.00
Ratnagiri 379 66.71 187 22.56 80 1.10 6 0.21
Sawantwadi 336 44.01 99 11.06 38  0.49 1 0.26
Vaibhavwadi 381 41.81 218 20.79 0 0.00 0 0.00
Vengurla 640  121.87 604 14.55 182 2.12 1 0.11
Total 2,879 457.62 1,707 138.25 512 5.25 29 1.97
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	 The NPA per cent in this segment is very small 
i.e. at 1.42 per cent.

	 Based on this initial experience, we now plan to 
expand the scope of this activity by financing Self 
Help Groups (SHGs) and monitoring the same to 
have a wide coverage through village adoption 
approach.

	 Credit Portfolio Audit (CPA) :
	 The CPA Department has now stabilized and has 

further strengthened with the addition to the Audit 
Team. CPAD has switched over to ‘On-line Mode’ 
by integrating the Audit Process with the Bank’s 
existing ‘Audit Package’.

	 Initially, CPAD has covered Audit of all High 
Value Accounts with Total Exposure of ` 20 crore 
and above, involving Aggregate Exposure of 
around ` 9,300 crore. High value accounts with 
total exposure of ` 5 crore to ` 20 crore, covering 
aggregate exposure of ` 2,200 crore have been 
audited to the extent of around 50 per cent. Audit 
of remaining 100 accounts has been planned to 
be completed by first half of FY 2013-14, as CPAD 
is being further strengthened by augmenting the 
Audit Team.

	 Closure of the reports is allowed only after the 
major non-compliances for the Post-Sanction 
Process in the critical areas of documentation, 
security creation, mortgages, charges registration 
and insurance are complied with effectively. In 
respect of the Warning Signals captured and 
recorded in reports, remedial steps taken by 
the branches are being vetted to satisfy that the 
branch action is adequate to reduce/contain the 
risk perceived for these accounts.

	 In the year 2013-14, CPAD has drawn plans 
for further improvements so that the overall 
level of compliances goes up further and the 
improvement in Credit Administration at the 
branches is sustained on a continuing basis.

	 Accountability Policy :
	 Your Bank had, during the financial year 2011-

12, documented and put in place a “Staff 
Accountability Policy”. The main objectives of the 
“Staff Accountability Policy” are :

●	 To identify the nature and extent of the 
negligence (of omission/commission) of 
the employees involved, malafides if any, 
in handling the transaction and to subject 
the employees to disciplinary proceedings 
commensurate with their contributory 
negligence and/or complicity.

●	 To ensure that deterrent action against 
employees is confined only to those errant 
employees, whose lapses are deliberate on 
their part or are in breach of duty.

●	 To ensure that cases involving malafides/ 
gross negligelce of employees are dealt 
with separately from cases of those which 
have not resulted from malafides/gross 
negligence.

● 	 To ensure that all employees understand 
that :

-	 Only the errant employees will face 
graded punitive actions, and that –

-	 Punitive action may not arise in each 
and every instance of a loss.

	 During the last financial year, the Management 
had referred fifty-eight cases to the Chief 
Accountability Officer relating to fraud, negligence 
and failure of advances at an early stage after 
sanction, which had resulted in financial loss to 
the Bank. The accountability exercise has been 
completed in thirty cases by the end of financial 
year.

	 After observing a strict process of natural 
justice, the Bank has expeditiously taken 
punitive measures against the errant staff by 
way of suspension pending enquiry, dismissals/ 
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discharges/terminations, stoppage of increments 
and serving of censure letters. These punitive 
measures would definitely act as a measure of 
deterrence to other staff so as not to engage or 
involve themselves in such acts of omission and 
commission.

	 The implementation of the policy has created 
considerable awareness amongst the staff that 
the guilty staff is liable for punishment but the 
members of non-guilty staff, even if questioned, 
are protected under policy - thus creating an 
environment of service security and assurance.

	 The Board wishes to assure its shareholders 
that the Staff Accountability Policy and the Chief 
Accountability Officer acting in concert with the 
Chief Vigilance Officer of the Bank responsible 
for the implementation of the policy, are playing a 
crucial role in mitigating internal operational and 
reputational risk. Proactive measures initiated 
in this direction such as preventive vigilance 
will go a long way in protecting the interests of 
depositors, your Bank and its shareholders.

	 Progress of New Initiatives Unit (NIU) :
	 Tap a few buttons and check your account 

balance sitting in the comfort of your home or pay 
your credit card bill while you are commuting to 
work. The new age Indian customer wants these 
and even more – they want “Anytime Banking 
Anywhere”. Rapid strides in technology have 
made all this possible via the concept of banking 
without the brick and mortar presence or banking 
on the go. Gone are the days when customers 
waited in line for hours to just update their 
pass books. Modern banking has come to the 
fingertips of customers and service paradigms 
have radically changed. Modern banking has 
swept many banks off their feet. Technology 
entered banking industry at lightning speed and 
is growing like a vortex adding new facets to 
modern banking. “Keeping up with the times is 

good; keeping ahead of it, better” – is the dictum 
of our New Initiatives Unit, which is established to 
transform your Bank into a modern and futuristic 
Bank equipped with state of the art technology, 
services, operations and more customer-friendly 
products.

	 The New Initiatives Unit (NIU) was set up in 
October 2011, with its preliminary assignment to 
prepare your Bank to offer fee-based advisory 
services to the Bank’s Wholesale Banking 
customers. To begin with, NIU primarily focussed 
on in-depth study of Mergers and Acquisitions 
and Private Equity advisory services in some 
depth. The team was trained under a boutique 
investment banking firm to offer these services 
in partnership with that firm. Offering advisory 
services required the Reserve Bank of India’s 
approval, which has been sought for by NIU and 
is still awaited.

	 Currently, Team NIU is working on diverse 
projects ranging from product development to 
technology enhancement to enhancing back-
end operations to employee satisfaction and 
development. Broad mandate of the team 
includes conducting research and advocacy 
concerning topics such as creating digital persona 
online, online marketing (focus on Social Media), 
tech products, wealth management services, and 
other such new projects that will put our Bank in 
an advantageous competing position vis-a-vis 
commercial banks.

	 Team NIU refines and defines the Bank’s 
product value proposition, product feasibility, 
benchmarking, cost benefit analysis, product 
mix and new product development. NIU’s remit 
extends to strategizing roll outs, launch of new 
products and services, increasing product length 
and depth. NIU is actively involved in developing 
your Bank’s new official website by way of 
website optimization for smooth and eye-catching 
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Graphical User Interface, better maneuverability, 
and easy access to Bank’s information, internet 
banking and other services.

	 Social sites are the new “word of mouth”, and 
that mouth is talking faster and louder than 
anyone else. Rather than meeting with a sales 
representative to discuss a bank’s offerings and 
services, customers are relying on Facebook, 
Twitter, Google+ and other channels to decide 
what brand they want to bank with. By embracing 
these new vehicles, banks will be able to more 
efficiently interact with their clients, appropriately 
tailor their messages on a case-by-case basis 
and increase the likelihood of long-term retention 
of customers. Additionally, by being active on a 
variety of social channels, banks are becoming 
more accessible to their consumers, which 
ultimately help to improve their brand identity.

	 Team NIU explored this opportunity by 
scrutinizing numerous media agencies and roped 
in Resultrix, a Publicis Groupe Company as your 
Bank’s digital media partner for creating your 
Bank’s digital persona on Social Media channels 
such as Facebook, Twitter and Google+.

	 The team conceptualizing integrated marketing 
communication through Digital Marketing has 
developed Single Point of Contact Structure 
for quick query resolution arising on Social 
Media. NIU formulated some helpful guidelines 
to safeguard the Bank’s as well as employees’ 
interests on Social Media. These guidelines 
will not only encourage employees to go out 
on internet and see your Bank’s new digital 
persona but also restrict them (employees) from 
communication that could be damaging to the 
interests of your Bank. Your Bank would have 
already set off in the digital space by the time 
this introduction to NIU appears in your Bank’s 
Annual Report.

	 In collaboration with our service provider, the 

Saraswat Infotech Ltd. (SIL) and relevant 
operational departments, the Team NIU, 
chasing new challenges, has been undertaking 
technology product benchmarking, new product 
development assessment and feasibility which 
include : 
●	 Corporate Internet Banking Platform
●	 Mobile Banking and IMPS
●	 Internet Banking
●	 Tie-up for online broking services
●	 Prepaid Payment Instruments – Payroll and 

Gift Cards and many more in the pipeline.
	 Further, the team will be working on other 

assignments such as creating and establishing 
your Bank’s presence in Electronic channels like 
Television, YouTube, etc.

	 NIU has been operating as the “think tank” of our 
Bank to come up with ideas and innovations that 
will enhance the business growth opportunities 
for your Bank. Projects undertaken by the team 
require members possessing diverse expertise 
and backgrounds. Thus, the team members are 
equipped with knowledge specific to the fields 
of Banking and Finance, Marketing and Market 
Research, Science and Information Technology. 
The team has an ideal mix of young personnel 
that complement each other ensuring quality 
results and unbiased research giving 360 degree 
overview of projects undertaken. This NIU 
team is a change agent. It is a transformational 
instrument to ensure transition of Saraswat Bank 
from merely being a good Bank to a great Bank.

	 Progress of BPR Project :

	 BPR initiative is underway in our Bank for the 
past four years. In line with our laid-down BPR 
goals, the Bank has so far opened six Small and 
Medium Enterprises Centres (SMEs), six Retail 
Asset and Small Business Enterprises Centres 
(RASECs), ten Clearing Processing Clusters 
(CPCs), two Centralized Deposit Service Centres 
(CDSCs) and a Document Archival Centre. 
The Bank has also segmented the activities 
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of the Bank into four Strategic Business Units 
(SBUs) i.e. Wholesale Banking, Retail Banking, 
Treasury and Gandhakosh (a ‘Bank within the 
Bank’ comprising seven merged banks).

	 More BPR initiatives are underway, whereby your 
Bank is planning to open at least two more Retail 
Asset and Small Business Enterprises Centres 
(RASECs) exclusively for SBU-Gandhakosh 
branches.

	 Publication of ‘Madhusattva’ in English 
language :

	 As assured in the last Annual Report, we have 
started publishing our magazine ‘Madhusattva’ 
in English once a month. Nineteen issues of the 
English Madhusattva have been published till 
31st March, 2013. All employees have access to 
English as well as bilingual (i.e. Marathi/English) 
Madhusattva, one of which is sent to employee’s 
residence as per his/her choice, while the other 
is available at the Branch/Department. Articles 
appearing in bilingual edition are not generally 
repeated in the English edition and the important 
articles/events reported in Marathi in bilingual 
edition are translated and published in the English 
edition for the benefit of staff members, who are 
not able to read Marathi language.

10.	 EVALUATION OF MERGERS :

At the time of takeover of erstwhile seven merged 
banks, there were total ninety-six branches of these 
banks. Out of these ninety-six branches, now only 

forty-nine old branches are operational as on 31st 
March, 2013, i.e. they continue to remain located 
where they were in the erstwhile merged banks. 
These forty-nine branches are operating under 
Gandhakosh-SBU. One branch of a merged Bank 
has been transferred to Zone V of Legacy Saraswat 
for operational convenience. Similarly three branches 
of Legacy Saraswat are transferred to Gandhakosh-
SBU. After a detailed viability study, forty-six branches 
of merged banks have either been closed or merged 
with the nearby branches of Gandhakosh-SBU.

Of the closed branches, eighteen licences of 
merged banks have been utilized by Gandhakosh-
SBU for opening new branches in new locations as 
such shifting of unviable branches in new locations 
was permissible under RBI Policy. Besides, thirty 
branches were opened under Gandhakosh-SBU 
from the Annual Business Plans of your Bank 
approved by RBI for the period 2008-2012. These 
branches were opened in Mumbai, Pune, Western 
Maharashtra, New Delhi and Gujarat State. Sixteen 
licences of merged Banks have been allowed by 
us to be utilized by Legacy Saraswat – that is the 
original Saraswat Bank – for opening of their new 
branches and twelve licences of merged banks are 
still to be utilized for opening new branches.

As on 31st March, 2013 SBU-Gandhakosh has in its 
fold a total of 100 branches and Legacy Saraswat 
has 129 branches in all.

Table No. 7 :	
Progress of Gandhakosh (SBU – Merged Banks) at a glance :	 (` in crore)
Total Business as 
on date of Merger 
(Original ninety- 
six Branches of 
seven merged 

banks)

Total Business 
of all one 
hundred 

Branches of 
Gandhakosh 

as on 31-03-13

Business 
per 

Employee 
as on date 
of Merger

Business 
per 

Employee 
as on 

31-03-13 of 
Gandhakosh

Gross 
NPAs 
as on 

date of 
Merger

Gross 
NPAs 
as on 

31-03-13

Aggregate 
recovery 

(including 
write off) till 

31-03-13

Operating 
Profit earned 

by the 
Branches of 
Gandhakosh 
till 31-03-13

Post-tax Profit 
earned by 

Gandhakosh 
till 31-03-13

1,894.78 9,239.83 1.54 7.49 276.41 101.60 174.81 395.82 296.59

From the above table, it is observed that the total business of Gandhakosh has increased from 
` 1,894.78 crore as on the date of merger to ` 9,239.83 crore as on 31st March, 2013.
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BUSINESS GROWTH OF GANDHAKOSH
Graph - II
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It may be observed from Graph II, that rise in business 
on y-o-y basis i.e. from FY 2012-13 over FY 2011-12 
has been of the order of ` 1,044.57 crore.
One of the most crucial aspects of the mergers 
of seven weak banks with our Bank has been the 
concerted efforts on recovery of NPAs. During 
the current financial year, the Gross NPAs of the 
SBU-Gandhakosh have been further reduced from 
` 276.41 crore as on the date of merger to ` 101.60 
crore as on 31st March, 2013.
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The productivity per employee of SBU-Gandhakosh 
branches which was ̀  1.54 crore at the time of merger 
has improved to ` 7.49 crore on 31st March, 2013.

OPERATING PROFIT
Graph - IV
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Operating Profit of SBU-Gandhakosh has risen 
from ` 314.24 crore as on 31st March, 2012 to ` 
395.82 crore on 31st March, 2013, recording a rise of 
` 81.58 crore i.e. by 26 per cent.
This increase in operating profit vindicates the fact 
that the experiment of mergers undertaken by your 
Bank has been a success.

11.	 BRANCH EXPANSION :

In the preceding year’s Annual Report, we had 
mentioned that the Reserve Bank of India had halted 
our Branch Expansion Programme on the grounds 
of regulatory discomfort, after issuance of a Show 
Cause Notice to the Bank. We have to inform our 
shareholders that the RBI has since taken a lenient view 
and decided not to impose any penalty on your Bank 
for the said Notice. On the basis of our explanations 
and assurance that Suspicious Transactions Reports 
will be raised in time and strict KYC norms will be 
implemented in the future, the Reserve Bank of India 
also reconsidered its stance on our Branch Expansion 
Programme.

During FY 2012-13, we could open only four 
branches prior to the Show Cause Notice afore-

Graph - III
PRODUCTIVITY PER EMPLOYEE
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referred and thereafter our Ashwamedh had come 
to a halt. We are glad to inform you however that 
the Reserve Bank of India in its letter dated UBD/
MRO/BSSI/6868/12.07.228/2012-13 dated 5th April, 
2013 has granted us permission to go ahead with 
our Branch Expansion Programme. In view of the 
same, the various modalities of the Branch Expansion 
Programme viz. selection of branch location, 
acquisition of premises - ownership or rent, other 
infrastructure requirements, etc. are being finalized. In 
the first month of the financial year 2013-14 itself, your 
Bank has opened fifteen new branches. Three more 
branches have been opened during August 2013. 

More new branch openings are in the offing and the 
Branch Expansion Programme will be carried out at a 
faster pace during FY 2013-14, the details of which will 
be furnished in the Chairman’s Speech at the Annual 
General Meeting scheduled on 30th September, 2013.

The position of our branches as at the end of 31st 
March, 2013 is as under :

Table No. 8 :
Particulars Number
Number of Branches as on 31-03-2012 226
Add: Number of Branches opened during FY 2012-13  4
Less: Number of Branches closed/merged during FY 
2012-13

 1

Total Number of Branches as on 31-03-2013 229

The details of the new branches opened during FY 2012-13 are as below :
Table No. 9 :
Details of four new branches opened during 01-04-2012 to 31-03-2013
Sr. 
No.

Name of the Branch Location Date of 
Opening

1 IC Colony, Borivali (W) (with ATM) Shop No.1 & 2, Ground Floor, Borivali Ruby 
CHSL, Holy Cross Road, I C Colony, 
Borivali (W), Mumbai 400 103.

25-06-2012

2 Airoli (with ATM) Shop No.1, 2 & 3, Ground Floor, Shrijidham 
Complex, Sector 7, Airoli, 
Navi Mumbai 400 708. 

28-06-2012

3 Boisar (with ATM) Shop No.1,2 and 3, Ground Floor, Ameya Park,
Building No. 2-A, Boisar-Navapur Road, 
Boisar (W) 401 501

29-06-2012

4 Kopri, Thane (E) (with ATM) Sai Tirth, Shop No. 6 to 11, Ground Floor, 
Siddharth Nagar, Kopri Colony,
Thane (E) 400 603.

20-02-2013

During the year, we have shifted one department to a new location.
Table No. 10 :
Details of Department shifted during 01-04-2012 to 31-03-2013
Sr. 
No.

Name of the Department Shifted to Shifting 
Date

1 SBU - Treasury 19/21, Bombay Mutual Chambers, 
1st floor, Ambalal Doshi Marg, Fort, 
Mumbai 400 001.

06-08-2012
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One branch, pertaining to the erstwhile Mandvi Co-op Bank i.e. Samuel Street, Mumbai was merged with 
Masjid Bunder Branch during the year.
Table No. 11 :
Details of Branch merged during 01-04-2012 to 31-03-2013
Sr. 
No.

Name of the Branch Merged with Branch Merging 
Date

1 Samuel Street, Mumbai Masjid Bunder 
80/82, Pragraj Issaji Street, 
Masjid Bunder (W), Mumbai 400 009

01-07-2012

Renovation of Branches :
In continuance of our exercise of renovating the existing old branches of Legacy Retail and Gandhakosh 
SBU as per our new branding standards, following eighteen branches have been fully renovated during the 
year :

Table No. 12 :
Details of Renovation of Branches during 
01-04-2012 to 31-03-2013.

Sr 
No.

Name of the Branch Date of 
Completion

1 Grant Road, Mumbai 18-04-2012
2 Tilak Road, Pune 28-04-2012
3 Nerul (W), Navi Mumbai 21-07-2012
4 Dahisar (E), Mumbai 21-07-2012
5 Vashi, Navi Mumbai 17-08-2012
6 Vile Parle (E), Mumbai 14-09-2012
7 Aundh, Pune 14-09-2012
8 Madhukendra, Dadar, Mumbai 15-09-2012
9 Jogeshwari (E), Mumbai 04-01-2013

10 Madgaon, Goa 05-01-2013
11 Ponda, Goa 05-01-2013
12 Sarvodaya Nagar, Mulund (W), Mumbai 13-02-2013
13 Dahanukar Colony, Pune 02-03-2013
14 Samadevi, Belgaum 15-03-2013
15 Tilakwadi, Belgaum 15-03-2013
16 Wadala, Mumbai 20-03-2013
17 Khadkeshwar, Aurangabad 30-03-2013
18 Prabhadevi, Mumbai 30-03-2013

In the following Branches, ATM facility was provided 
at the time of renovation :

1 Dahisar (E), Mumbai
2 Ponda, Goa
3 Tilakwadi, Belgaum

Financial Performance of New Branches :
The branches opened by your Bank from July 
2008 to end-March 2013 under our Branch 
Expansion Programme called “Ashwamedh” are 
referred to as “New Branches” in this Report. There 
were considerable reservations amongst some 
concerning opening of these new branches and 
the pace with which they were opened under the 
“Ashwamedh” programme. Conservative elements 
outside and within the Bank had predicted a 
real disaster for the Bank consequent upon our 
launching the “Ashwamedh” programme. They 
were using terms such as “reckless expansion” and 
“reckless recruitment” to spawn fear amongst staff 
and shareholders. It is therefore our duty to take 
shareholders into confidence in all such matters. It 
is in this context that in our recent Annual Reports, 
year after year, we have been reporting the progress 
of these new branches from a holistic perspective to 
bring forth clearly the abounding care with which the 
“Ashwamedh” programme is being implemented.
Table No. 13 :
Status of New Branches	 (` in crore)
(A) New Profit-making Branches

No of Branches Deposits Advances Business Profit
42 1,573.47 2,582.95 4,156.42 77.67

(B) New Loss-making Branches
No of Branches Deposits Advances Business Profit

45 746.28 430.79 1,177.07 -16.10
Grand Total (A+B)     

87 2,319.75 3,013.74 5,333.49 61.57
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From the Table No. 13, it may be noted that considered 
together, the eighty-seven new branches opened by 
us are in profit of ` 61.57 crore in an aggregate. The 
forty-five loss-making branches, as seen in the table 
above, are also expected to come into profit, within 
the expected viability period for new branches.
In order to successfully convert these loss-making 
branches into profit-making ones, we sought out 
the successful strategies used by branches which 
have shown a quick turnaround. Economic and 
environmental scanning has been made compulsory 
for every type of Branch i.e. loss-making or profit-
making; new or old, – as without such scanning the 
Branch staff would not understand the business 
opportunities available in Branch catchment and 
adjacent areas. 
Meeting on Turnaround Strategies :
A special meeting of all Branch Managers of fifty-
three loss-making branches was organized on 24th 
December, 2012 to discuss strategies to convert their 
branches into profit-making branches. The meeting 
was presided over by the Chairman of your Bank. 
The Branch Managers of loss-making branches were 
informed in advance to work on, prepare and present 
the strategy for turning around such branches. Branch 
Managers were directed to consider various key points 
while preparing the turnaround strategy viz. location 
of branch, whether residential/commercial orientation 
of business such as focus on deposit/advances, 
composition of staff, establishment and other costs 
involved particularly rentals which continuously tend 
to climb, Net Interest Margin (NIM) and Net Interest 
Income (NII).
There are total fifty-three branches of the Bank in 
losses as of 31st March, 2013. They comprise forty-five 
branches referred to as ‘new branches’ i.e. opened 
since July 2008 and eight ‘old branches’ opened 
prior to July 2008. As regards new branches, it was 
decided that after opening a branch, it should come 
into profit within eighteen months of its operation. The 
Branch Managers were advised that their role should 
primarily revolve around seven organizational and 
personal missions and responsibilities viz.
	 Reputation management (Bank's internal and 

external reputation)

	 Relationship management (with customers / 
shareholders / staff)

	 Regulation management (compliance with RBI 
directives and guidelines)

	 Results management (i.e. Responsibility 
for budgets, targets, financial results and 
maintenance of high standards of customer 
service)

	 Reporting management (Reporting as required 
and as prescribed)

	 Repairing management (i.e. Responsibility for 
Audit Compliances) and

	 Resurgence (i.e. Responsibility for emerging 
quickly from setbacks of all kinds and maintaining 
high morale of the staff)

It was emphasized that each one of the above areas 
of responsibility of a Branch Manager, which was 
explained in detail by the Chairman, is important 
from the Bank’s point of view and considering oneself 
successful, without fully understanding and without 
application to these responsibilities, will only constitute 
a phoney claim. The Branch Managers were advised 
to take steps, bearing these responsibilities in mind 
at all times, to turn around the Branch at the earliest 
and separate time-lines for each one of the branches 
to turn into profit were determined in consultation 
with the Branch Managers. It was explained that 
turning around the branches into profit was part of the 
‘Results Management’ responsibility of the Branch 
Managers. The Chairman of your Bank who presided 
over and provided guidance to the meeting also had 
a dialogue with individual Branch Managers and gave 
them branch-specific inputs on turnaround strategies.
Further, follow-up meetings will be held to assess the 
progress made by the loss-making branches and to 
guide them suitably for speedier turnaround.

12.	 RISK MANAGEMENT :
An element of risk is inherent in all the activities of 
a bank. Banking is dynamic and hence there is a 
necessity for ongoing vigilance to eliminate/mitigate 
the various risks. Thus, it is of utmost importance to 
understand the risks faced by the bank and to ensure 
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that the risks are properly identified, measured and 
under all circumstances, effectively controlled and 
efficiently managed. In order to enable this risk 
mitigation, your Bank has established a dedicated 
Risk Management Department as early as in 2002. 
The Risk Management Department is responsible 
for monitoring the Bank’s Risk Profile and puts in 
place proper systems for managing the risks on an 
ongoing basis.
Credit Risk :
The importance of mitigating the Credit Risk cannot 
be undermined in view of the fact that the credit 
portfolio forms the major chunk of the total assets of 
the Bank.
The activities in brief are as follows :
	 Monitoring of the overdues, SMAs and 

Restructured accounts.
	 Portfolio Analysis, Industry Study, Tracking 

Exposures, Rating Migration Study, etc.
	 Stipulation of the sectoral caps depending on 

the outlook towards the industry.
	 Scrutiny of the overdue accounts.
	 Scrutiny of all credit proposals from the risk 

perspective, especially the proposals relating to 
accounts having low credit ratings are subject to 
additional screening through this cell.

	 Review of the internal rating model.
Further, in view of incidence of very large amounts of 
Gross NPAs in FY 2012-13, it has been decided to 
create a specialized high-powered Credit Monitoring 
Cell in the Wholesale Banking SBU, which among 
other things will assimilate some of the above functions 
and work under a comprehensive special mandate.
Operational Risk :
In order to have an integrated control approach, the 
Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC) 
is already in existence. The Committee is headed 
by the Chief Financial Officer and the members 
are drawn from the Risk Management Department, 
Audit Department and Vigilance Department. The 
Committee identifies the risk-prone areas and 
suggests the mitigating measures for these risks :

	 The Bank has moved to online filing of reports to 
FIU-IND in the newly introduced XML format. 

	 The activities in brief performed by the 
Operational Risk Cell are :
	 Monitoring of alerts from the AML software.
	 Study various procedures from the risk 

mitigation angle.
	 Reporting to and liasoning with BCSBI and 

FIU-IND and implementation of various 
directives of RBI, FIU-IND, BCSBI, etc.

Know Your Customer (KYC) : The Bank has a Know 
Your Customer (KYC) Policy duly approved by the 
Board. The policy ensures that the Bank is dealing 
only with bona fide customers. 
Anti Money Laundering (AML) : Your Bank is taking 
every possible step to ensure that the accounts 
maintained in the Bank are not utilized for conducting 
Money Laundering activities by ensuring that a 
person with a dubious background cannot open any 
account with your Bank. The Bank ensures this, 
among other things, by verifying the names of the 
new account-applicants with various lists such as the 
Fraudster List, UN Terrorist List, Defaulters List, etc. 
This is facilitated by the AML software of the Bank. 
The Risk Categorization of every customer of the 
Bank is ensured in accordance with the profile of the 
customer.
Market Risk :
The Market Risk function in case of your Bank primarily 
focusses on the management of Liquidity Risk arising 
from Asset Liability mismatches and Interest Rate 
Risk. The Market Risk team of your Bank prepares 
the Structural Liquidity Statement (weekly basis) and 
Interest Rate Sensitivity Statement (monthly basis). 
Both these statements, being statutory requirements, 
are submitted from time to time to the RBI.
Your Bank has in place the Asset Liability Management 
Committee which meets every month to take view 
on the interest rate and liquidity gap position of the 
Bank in the backdrop of the prevailing trends in the 
economy.
Your Bank not only monitors the static liquidity 
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position but also the dynamic position by preparing 
the short term dynamic statement, which assesses 
the short term liquidity position based on the projected 
business level, etc.

The Liquidity Risk Profile and Mismatch Profile of 
your Bank are studied using various monitoring tools. 
The adverse impact of interest rate movements (if 
any) on the investment portfolio of your Bank is also 
studied from time to time.

The Risk Management Team of your Bank endeavours 
to adopt the best practices in Risk Management to 
counter the dynamic economic scenario.

13.	 AUDIT AND INSPECTION :
Audit not only safeguards Bank’s assets, but also 
ensures compliance with all RBI guidelines and 
statutory requirements. Branches identified for 
concurrent audit are audited on an ongoing basis 
by our selected external audit firms, while the 
other branches are subjected to quarterly audit by 
external audit firms. Besides, all concurrent and 
non-concurrent branches are inspected yearly by 
Internal Audit Department. Also, all RASEC and 
SME branches where advances are concentrated 
and which are already under concurrent audit, are 
audited half-yearly with exhaustive scope by your 
Bank’s Audit Department.

In addition to the above, all newly-opened 
branches are subjected to quarterly audit, by the 
Audit Department for the first two years, where all 
procedural, KYC and transactional aspects are 
covered. In any case, the audit process is closely 
monitored by the Audit Department.

During their inspection, Audit Department assesses 
every branch on various Board-approved parameters 
and allots the “Audit rating”. Low rated branches are 
accorded special attention to help them improve their 
ratings. Also, these branches are covered by monthly 
SNAP inspection by senior experienced bank staff 
and by quarterly inspection by Audit and Inspection 
Department, to help them rectify their errors and 
discrepancies.

Audit is conducted online and the audit report is 
available to the Audit Department immediately after 
its closure. Also, as the “Compliance Module” is 
browser-based, critical issues and compliances are 
immediately available to all concerned officials for 
their perusal and scrutiny, thus making the process 
easier.

Apart from the regular audit, your Bank also 
has Information Systems (IS) audit for audit of 
technological products and CPA audit for audit of the 
credit portfolio.

14.	 VIGILANCE :

Vigilance Department carries out detailed re-
examination of existing systems and procedures at 
the branches, with a view to prevent probable frauds. 
Frauds detected/noticed at your Bank, as well as those 
occurring in the banking industry, are also studied to 
plug the loopholes in our system, if any. Action is also 
taken to prevent such frauds in future.

The Vigilance Department reports all frauds and action 
taken to the Board of Directors, Audit, Accounts & NPA 
Management Committee of the Board and Reserve 
Bank of India in FMR-1 returns. Further development 
in existing fraud cases are submitted to Reserve Bank 
of India in FMR-2 returns on frauds periodically. As a 
preventive measure, Vigilance Department circulates 
the modus operandi of frauds detected at your Bank 
as well as in Banking Industry, to all branches for 
taking adequate precaution in the future.

Your Bank has also established a Counterfeit 
Banknotes Vigilance Cell, which submits monthly 
reports to the Reserve Bank of India on detection of 
counterfeit notes.

15.	 YOUR BANK’S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR 
FY 2012-13 :

Key Financial Parameters during FY  2012-13 :

India’s economic growth decelerated to 5 per cent in 
FY 2012-13. This was mainly the result of prolonged 
weakness in industrial activity aggravated by domestic 
supply bottlenecks and also comparative slowdown in 
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the service sector. To address the accentuated risk to 
growth and to ease liquidity pressures, RBI cut CRR 
by 75 bps and lowered key policy rates by 100 bps 
cumulatively on three occasions during FY 2012-13.

RBI in its Monetary Policy Statement 2013-14 
indicated that economic activity during the current 
year is expected to show only a modest improvement 
over the preceding year, with a pick-up likely only in 
the second half of the year.

Against this backdrop, the key financials of your Bank 
during FY 2012-13 are as follows :

	 The business of your Bank has been growing at 
a Compounded Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 
13.88 per cent over the past five years beginning 
from the year 2008-09 till the year 2012-13. 

	 During FY 2012-13, total business of the Bank 
(i.e. deposits plus advances) increased from 
` 33,205.41 crore as on 31st March, 2012 to 
` 36,167.75 crore as on 31st March, 2013 i.e. an 
absolute growth of ` 2,962.34 crore.

	 The deposits grew from ` 19,252.71 crore as on 
31st March, 2012 to ` 21,144.33 crore as on 31st 
March, 2013, while advances increased from 
` 13,952.70 crore as on 31st March, 2012 to 
` 15,023.42 crore as on 31st March, 2013.

	 The gross profit of the Bank has improved from 
` 411.33 crore in FY 2011-12 to ` 482.35 crore in 
FY 2012-13, a rise of 17.27 per cent.

	 The NIM, which stood at 3.47 per cent as on 31st 
March, 2012 stood at 3.30 per cent as on 31st 
March, 2013 i.e. at a good level even in prevalent 
depressing economic environment.

	 The Cost to Income ratio has improved from 
49.82 per cent as on 31st March, 2012 to 48.42 
per cent as on 31st March, 2013.

	 The Gross Profit per Employee has increased 
from ` 11.30 lac as on 31st March, 2012 to 
` 12.35 lac as on 31st March, 2013.

	 The Business per Employee grew from ` 9.12 
crore as on 31st March, 2012 to ` 9.26 crore as 
on 31st March, 2013.

	 Gross NPAs till 31st March, 2013 have been fully 
provided for from our profits from time to time 
and therefore your Bank continued to retain its 
coveted position as Zero Net NPA Bank, for the 
ninth successive year. The Provision Coverage 
Ratio (PCR) of your Bank is 100 per cent as 
against 70 per cent prescribed by RBI for 
Scheduled Commercial Banks.

	 Own funds of your Bank have increased from 
` 1,715.69 crore as on 31st March, 2012 to 
` 1,961.31 crore as on 31st March, 2013. The 
Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) 
stood at 11.15 per cent as on 31st March, 2013 
well above the 9 per cent prescribed by RBI. The 
CRAR level has been maintained at acceptable 
level inspite of the limited avenues available to 
UCBs for raising capital funds.

 	Business per Branch rose from ` 146.93 crore 
as on 31st March, 2012 to ` 157.94 crore as on 
31st March, 2013.

Table No. 14 :
Average Business Per Branch :	 (` in crore)
Position as on 31st March, 2013 No. of 

Branches
Average 
Business

Legacy Branches (Orginal Saraswat Bank Branches) 83 224.61

New Branches - Legacy 39 42.71

Gandhakosh Branches 49 101.62

Gandhakosh Branches (Transferred From Legacy) 3 197.44

New Branches - Gandhakosh 48 76.42

SME Branches 6 1,055.14

Overseas 1 288.83

Total 229 157.94
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The following Tables Nos. 15, 16 and 17 reflect your Bank’s financial performance during FY 2012-13 as a 
snapshot :
Table No. 15 :
Business Growth	 (` in crore)
Particulars 31-03-2013 31-03-2012 % change
Deposits (i+ii = A) 21,144.33 19,252.71 9.83

(i)	Low-Cost Deposits (a+b) 5,382.01 5,081.38 5.92
	 (a) Current 965.83 1,059.58 -8.85
	 (b) Savings 4,416.18 4,021.80 9.81

(ii)	Term Deposits 15,762.32 14,171.33 11.23
Advances (B) 15,023.42 13,952.70 7.67
Total Business Turnover (A+B) 36,167.75 33,205.41 8.92
Investments 6,444.03 5,626.99 14.52

Table No. 16 :
Operating Results	 (` in crore)
 Particulars 31-03-2013 31-03-2012 % change
Interest Income 2,290.51 1,921.54 19.20
Interest Expenses 1,616.03 1,304.59 23.87
Net Interest Income 674.48 616.95 9.32
Non-Interest Income 260.63 202.81 28.51
Total Operating Income 935.11 819.76 14.07
Operating Expenses 452.76 408.43 10.85
Gross Profit 482.35 411.33 17.27
Provisions 329.44 71.83 358.64
Profit before Tax and Exceptional Items 152.91 339.50 -54.96
Income Tax* 31.18 89.73 -65.25
Profit after Tax and before Exceptional Items 121.73 249.77 -51.26
Exceptional Items 9.64 14.20 -32.11
Net Profit after Tax and Exceptional Items 112.09 235.57 -52.42
*For the FY 2012-13, your Bank paid Total Income tax of ` 128.25 crore. After netting out the deferred Income Tax 
benefit of ` 97.07 crore, the net amount of ` 31.18 crore has been charged to Profit and Loss A/c statement. 
Table No.17 :
Key Indicators of Performance	
Particulars 31-03-2013 31-03-2012
Return on Average Assets % 0.46 1.12
Non Interest Income to Total Income %* 10.22 9.55
Cost to Income % 48.42 49.82
Net Interest Margin % 3.30 3.47
Average yield on Advances % 12.35 12.00
Average yield on Investments % 7.94 7.57

Working Note : 	 (` in crore)
*Non Interest Income to Total Income % 10.22 9.55
Non Interest Income 260.63 202.81
Total Income 2,551.14 2,124.35
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Table No. 18 :
Cost Control	 (` in lac)

Particulars 31-03-2013 31-03-2012 Decline in 
absolute terms

Law Charges 37.44 51.16 -13.72
Printing & Stationery Expenses 414.55 453.14 -38.59
Advertisement 662.19 1,170.40 -508.21
Cheque Processing Charges 193.29 195.76 -2.47
Bank Charges 1,016.81 1,035.19 -18.38
Car Expenses 109.10 111.49 -2.39
Sundries 1,489.67 1,779.01 -289.34
Total 3,923.05 4,796.15 -873.10

With a view to curtail controllable costs, the Income and Cost Council scrutinizes various expenditure items 
very closely and tries to reduce the expenditures/costs wherever required. The Council has been able to 
control costs over certain heads of expenses in FY 2012-13 with concerted efforts and focussed approach. 
Thus the Bank has been able to reduce expenditure on certain heads to the extent of ` 8.73 crore during FY 
2012-13. The details of the same are given in the Table No. 18 above.

16.	 SEGMENT–WISE PERFORMANCE : 
SBU – RETAIL BANKING:

	 Multiple Delivery Channels :
	 VISA Debit card :
	 Your Bank launched VISA Debit Card facility 

to customers during the year 2008-09. The 
total number of VISA Debit Cards issued has 
increased to 7,29,319. Our VISA Debit Card can 
also be used for E-commerce transactions i.e. 
for online shopping, ticket booking, etc. Details 
of usage of our Debit Card on POS network 
as well as ATMs across the country are given 
below :

Table No. 19 :
Usage of Visa Debit Card :	 (` in crore)

Year Cash Withdrawal Domestic POS International POS
No. Of 

Transac-
tions

Amount

(`)

No. Of 
Transac-

tions

Amount

(`)

No. Of 
Transac-

tions

Amount

(`)

2011-12 41,52,843 933.14 4,77,016 67.11 980 0.36

2012-13 49,35,877  1,501.94 8,15,785  105.81 1,879 0.65

	 Out of the 7,29,319 Visa Debit Cards issued to the 
customers 5,90,402 were active as on 31st March, 2013.

	 The current year initiatives include Issuance of 
Platinum EMV Visa Debit Card and RuPay Chip 
Cards and introduction of additional features 
like PIN@POS for our existing Visa Debit Card.

	 ATMs :
	 During the year, twelve new ATM centres were 

opened taking the total number to 159 ATM 
centres as on 31st March, 2013.

	 Access to NFS Network :
	 Your Bank has joined hands with National 

Payments Corporation of India (NPCI) on 15th 
October, 2010 for providing ATM access to our 
customers across India. Today our customers 
have access to more than 1,18,660 ATMs 
of seventy-one member banks and seventy 
-nine sub-member banks of NFS under this 
arrangement. Almost all the Nationalized, 
Private Sector and major Co-operative Banks 
are members of NFS network.

	 Our Bank being a principal member of National 
Payments Corporation of India (NPCI), under 
the Sponsor Model we have issued RuPay ATM 
cards to the customers of various Co-operative 
Banks like Chembur Nagrik Sahakari Bank 
Ltd., Rajashri Sahu Sahakari Bank Ltd. One 



31

Annual Report 2012-13

of the Sub-member Banks approved by us for 
issuance of RuPay Debit Card is Raigad District 
Central Co-operative Bank (DCCB). It has been 
informed to us by NPCI that in the NABARD 
supported Kisan Credit Card (KCC) project, 
Raigad DCCB is the first DCCB in the 
country to issue RuPay KCC Debit Card. We 
are, therefore, proud of our association with 
Raigad DCCB in this project.

	 SMS Banking :
	 Your Bank had launched SMS Banking facility 

during the year 2006-07. We have 2,91,237 
customers using SMS Banking facility as on 
date.

 	 The Bank has also introduced ‘missed call’ alert 
facility wherein customer has to give a missed 
call on a specific number provided by the Bank 
to know the balance and last three transactions 
in the account.

 	 The Bank is taking initiative for creating 
awareness among customers to register for 
SMS Banking facility while opening the accounts 
or while registering for Visa Debit Card so that 
customers receive alerts for transactions in 
their banking accounts. This facility is on free of 
charge offer to all the customers.

	 Alerts available on SMS Banking :
l	 Credit of any amount of ` 5,000/- or above 

as specified by the customer.
l	 Debit of any amount of ` 5,000/- or above 

as specified by the customer.
l	 Alert for ATM/Point of Sale transactions for 

any amount on Visa Debit Card.
l	 Securities getting credited in Demat 

Account.
l	 Securities getting debited in Demat 

Account.
l	 Promotional messages.

	 Internet Banking :
	 Your Bank launched Internet Banking facility 

during the year 2007-08. We have 1,36,577 
customers using Internet Banking facility as on 
date and the number is increasing gradually.

	 Functionalities offered on Internet Banking 
at present :
l	 View Linked Accounts Details – Linked 

accounts comprise multiple accounts of 
individuals where first name is common.

l	 Checking Account Balance.
l	 Getting Mini Statements.
l	 Knowing Status of Cheque issued.
l	 Funds Transfer

	 Between your linked accounts.
	 Within Saraswat Bank across India.
	 Inter Bank Funds Transfer through 

RTGS/NEFT.
l	 View Loan Account details.
l	 Facility to customer to check activities 

carried out by him/her at the end of the 
session before logging out.

l	 Cheque book request.
l	 Inter Bank Funds Transfer (RTGS/NEFT) 

– Using this feature, customer is able to 
transfer funds from one Bank to another. 
We have increased the RTGS/NEFT limit 
for online transactions from ` 3.00 lac to 
` 20.00 lac w.e.f. May 2012.

l	 26 AS – Using this option, customer can 
view the position of the tax paid during the 
year as well as for previous year.

l	 Facility of opening Fixed Deposit via 
Internet Banking.

	 More facilities through Internet Banking, as 
given below are in the offing, and will be 
offered during the course of ensuing year:

l	 Online utility bill payment and online 
shopping facility.

l	 Online Stop Payment.
l	 Facility to transfer funds 24 x 7 through 

RTGS/NEFT.
l	 Facility to generate duplicate password in 

case customer forgets password.
	 RTGS/NEFT :
	 The RTGS/NEFT platform, which is in place in 

your Bank since March 2004, has now replaced 
the cheque system to a large extent. The rise 
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in number of transactions on the RTGS/NEFT 
platform necessitated formation of a separate 
cell for these operations. A Centralized RTGS/
NEFT Cell is now set up at our Vashi premises, 
which looks after the RTGS/NEFT operations. 
Total number of RTGS/NEFT transactions 
during FY 2012-13 is 13,39,000.

	 Distribution of Third Party Products :
	 During the year, the Bank has earned a total 

revenue of ` 7.78 crore from sale of Third Party 
Products as under :

	 Life Insurance :
	 Your Bank has tied up with M/s HDFC Life 

Insurance Co. Ltd. for sale of individual policies 
under Corporate Agency Arrangement. During 
the year, a premium of ̀  5.93 crore was mobilized 
and a revenue of ` 1.24 crore was earned.

	 Non-Life Insurance :
	 Your Bank has tied up with M/s Bajaj Allianz 

General Insurance Company Ltd. for sale of 
non-life insurance policies. During the year, a 
premium of ` 13.09 crore was mobilized and a 
revenue of ` 2.55 crore was earned.

	 Personal Loan Insurance :
	 Your Bank has tied up with M/s Bajaj Allianz Life 

Insurance Company Ltd. We are covering the 
lives of Housing and Personal Loan Borrowers. 
During the year, premium of ` 6.03 crore was 
mobilized and a revenue of ` 1.54 crore was 
earned.

	 Demat : 
	 Your Bank is offering depository services of 

NSDL and CDSL. The number of demat accounts 
as on 31st March, 2013 reached 90,634. The 
number of demat accounts opened during the 
year were 2,046. A total of 199 branches across 
your Bank are offering demat services.

	 Your Bank issues SMS alerts for all demat 
transactions. ASBA facility now is operational 
in your Bank from any branch. During the year, 
your Bank has supported IPO issues through 
ASBA for Equity, Debt and Rights Issue. The 
total revenue earned was ` 2.28 crore.

	 Mutual Funds :
	 Your Bank has also tied up with the leading mutual 

fund houses to offer mutual fund products. Your 
Bank has earned an income of ` 0.17 crore from 
the said activity during FY 2012-13.

	 Retail Loan Portfolio :
	 The Retail Loan portfolio of the Bank as on 

31st March, 2013 is ` 3,117 crore, which is at 
20.75 per cent of the Total Advances portfolio 
of the Bank. Your Bank has always recognized 
the needs of the retail individuals and has set 
for itself a target of increasing the contribution 
of retail advances to 40 per cent of the total 
advances in the next three years i.e. by 31st 
March, 2016.

	 In order to achieve this, the Bank has already 
undertaken the following major steps.

	 With a view to provide easy finance to small 
traders and businessmen, the Bank has 
modified the Samruddhi scheme of loan against 
property and the response to the same has 
been encouraging.

	 Interest rates on the Vastu Siddhi Home loan 
and Super Fast Car loan have been reduced 
to offer one of the lowest and most competitive 
rates in the industry.

Table No. 20 :
Scheme wise Retail Loans Disbursed during FY 
2012-13			   (` in lac)
Scheme No. of A/cs Disbursed Amt.
Vastu Siddhi Home loan 3,240 49,117.64
Super Fast Car 2,727 19,949.99
Samruddhi 705 8,484.18
Multipurpose Loan 2,821 4,044.47
Gold Loan 2,005 3,710.40
Doctor Delite 74 1,271.61
Saraswati Education 315 992.21
Others 418 1,714.66
TOTAL 12,305 89,285.16

It may be observed from the above table that the 
Vastu Siddhi Home Loan, Superfast Car Loan and 
Samruddhi Scheme are the major contributors for the 
Retail Loan disbursement in the year under Report. 
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During the FY 2012-13, the Retail Loan portfolio of the Bank saw a disbursement of ` 892.85 crore i.e. an 
addition of 30.78 per cent to retail portfolio as on 31st March, 2012.

Overdues in Retail Loans decreased from ` 66.88 crore in FY 2011-12 to ` 59.42 crore in FY 2012-13 i.e. a 
decrease of 11.15 per cent.

Table No. 21 :
(` in crore)

Retail Loans Outstanding as on 31st March, 2013 3,117.00
Overdue position as on 31st March, 2013 59.42
Overdues % to Retail loan outstanding 1.90 
Retail Loan disbursement during FY 2012-13 892.85
Total Advances as on 31st March, 2013 15,023.41
Retail Loans to Advances % 20.75

Disbursement and NPA position of RASECs for FY 2012-13 :
Out of the total disbursement of ` 892.85 crore, RASECs disbursed ` 668.19 crore i.e. 75 per cent of the 
disbursement was initiated through six RASEC Centres, constituted under our BPR initiative.

Table No. 22 :
RASEC-wise disbursement amount-wise for the year 2012-13 and NPAs :	 (` in crore)

Disbursement NPA Position
  No. of Branches No. of A/cs Amount No. of A/cs Amount 
BORIVALI 33 1,345 151.91 27 2.85
PUNE 19 1,578 149.09 56 0.59
DADAR 19 1,313 125.35 11 1.09
THANE 26 960 105.51 7 0.60
MATUNGA 26 752 93.02 21 1.06
AURANGABAD 13 790 43.31 2 0.01
TOTAL 136 6,738 668.19 124 6.20

The percentage of NPAs to total disbursement by 
RASECs during the year under Report is at 0.93 
per cent. RASECs have thus played a crucial role 
in controlling the NPAs in retail loans and hence 
all the branches across the Bank will be brought 
under this centralized processing model of RASECs. 
Currently, out of our 229 branches as of 31st March, 
2013, 136 branches are covered under RASECs. 
These are primarily Legacy Retail SBU Branches. 
Most Gandhakosh SBU branches continue to remain 
outside RASECs i.e. outside the ambit of BPR. We will 
bring all these remaining branches under RASECs 

as a means to control the retail NPAs at the branches 
uncovered by RASECs. We are approaching RBI to 
grant us permission to open two more RASECs for 
the purpose.

17.	 SBU - WHOLESALE BANKING :
Last year was a difficult year for commercial credit 
with acute slowdown of the economy and as a result, 
virtually no fresh investments were witnessed in 
the industrial sector. Many large projects were kept 
on hold due to pending clearances. This adversely 
affected credit demand in the commercial credit 
segment.
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Your Bank’s commercial loan portfolio mainly 
comprised loans to Small and Medium Enterprises 
(SMEs), a few Large Corporates and Businesses. 
During the year under Report, the commercial loan 
portfolio increased from ` 11,051 crore as on 31st 
March, 2012 to ̀  11,906 crore as on 31st March, 2013 
showing a rise of ` 855 crore. Overall credit off-take 
was low, as your Bank adopted a cautious approach 
in lending in view of the prevalent adverse economic 
climate and cascading NPAs.
Your Bank has a well diversified commercial credit 
portfolio spread over a large number of industries 
from various sectors. Credit concentration on any 
particular industry has been consciously avoided as 
a policy mandate. As a prudent measure, our Bank’s 
exposure to any particular industry does not exceed 
10 per cent of our Total Advances. Sector-wise 
highest exposure during FY 2012-13 was to ‘Auto & 
Auto Components industry’, which was at 7.89 per 
cent of Total Advances at the end of FY 2012-13 and 
NPAs in this segment were negligible.
Based on our experience gained from the position 
of impaired assets and guidelines given by RBI in its 
Annual Policy statement for FY 2012-13 and overall 
economic scenario of various industries as revealed 
from the data from the different organizations such 
as CRISIL, your Bank has identified a negative list 
and a caution list of industries. Due weightage is 
given for the same while screening loan proposals 
for consideration of Board of Directors.
In the past few years, we have taken share in a few 
large industrial projects by joining in syndication/
consortium led by major PSU Banks/private sector 
banks. Your Bank has sanctioned sizeable advances 
in this segment which are being disbursed over a 
period of time as the projects progress. However, 
our overall experience of such long gestation green-
field projects is very unsatisfactory particularly owing 
to delayed implementation of projects, which in turn 
mainly results from delays in getting various approvals 
from authorities, leading to time and cost overruns 
and non-achievement of Commercial Operation Date 
(COD). Contribution of such project finance to our 
Gross NPAs has been a matter of grave concern for 
our Bank. Promoters of some of these projects have 
resorted to every trick that they can think of to escape 

from their personal responsibility for the derailment 
of the projects. Based on our recent experience, 
which has not been very salubrious to say the least, 
we have therefore become more circumspect while 
seeking participation in various Bank consortia for 
project lending.
In view of rising impairment in industrial/corporate 
loans, more and more cases are being referred to 
CDR/Restructuring by the banking industry. The 
outstanding advances of your Bank under CDR/
Restructuring aggregate to ` 270.47 crore as on 
31st March, 2013. Your Bank has also tightened 
its internal systems for monitoring, noticing early 
warning signals and corrective actions are being 
taken proactively.
Total Advances sanctioned but pending for 
disbursement as on 31st March, 2013 were of the 
order of ` 1,677.66 crore.
Commercial Real Estate Exposure :
One area of concern for our shareholders and 
depositors could be Commercial Real Estate 
Exposure of the Bank. For Urban Co-operative Banks, 
Real Estate Exposure refers to Housing Loans given 
to individuals as well as exposure to Commercial 
Real Estate (CRE). The total exposure of your Bank 
to the real estate sector stood at ` 3,200.21 crore as 
on 31st March, 2013.
Table No. 23 depicts the composition of our real 
estate exposure.
Table No. 23 :
Credit Exposure to Real Estate as on 31-03-2013

(` in crore)
Housing Loans: Amount

Housing Loans upto ` 25 lac 1,631.35
Housing Loans above ` 25 lac 753.80

Total Housing Loans	 (A) 2,385.15
Commercial Real Estate Exposure:

Term loans 530.84
Overdraft (Limit/Balance whichever is higher) 271.86
Bank Guarantee 7.36
Investment made by Treasury in housing sector 5.00

Total Commercial Real Estate Exposure	 (B) 815.06
Total Real Estate Exposure	 (A+B) 3,200.21
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It may be noted that as on 31st March, 2013, our 
total Real Estate Exposure stood at ` 3,200.21 crore 
which was well within RBI prescribed exposure 
norms. The major portion of Real Estate Exposure 
was contributed by housing loans extended to 
individuals which was of the order of ` 2,385.15 
crore, constituting 74.53 per cent of Total Real Estate 
Exposure and 15.88 per cent of our Total Advances. 
Loans to Commercial Real Estate (CRE) sector 
constituted only 5.43 per cent of the Total Advances.

Movement of NPAs :

As explained earlier in our assessment of the 
Indian economy, during FY 2012-13, with the 
economy acutely slowing down and growth numbers 
plummeting, the entire banking industry’s stressed 
assets shot up abnormally and an accentuated 
impact was observed in co-operative banks including 
your Bank. This accentuated impact on co-operative 
banks originates in the loan market reality that good 
assets, when they come to the banking market, 
are immediately gobbled up by large State sector 
and Private sector banks, as these banks  inherent 
pricing power allows them to offer very fine interest 
rates to their borrowers. Co-operative banks, on the 
other hand, are left having to deal with remnant of 
the loan seekers, where the quality of commercial 
assets being financed may not be very impressive. 
Poaching of the Co-operative sector’s profitable 
and good advances has also unfortunately become 
a favourite pastime of large commercial banks and 
they do so by enticing borrowers with provision of 
loans initially at low rates of interest.

During the financial year 2012-13, there were 
additions of ` 415.38 crore to your Bank’s NPAs 
as against the addition of ` 119.51 crore of NPAs 
during the earlier year. Accounting for recovery of 
` 154.65 crore during the year, which incidentally 
was highest during any year in the past till date, net 
additional rise in NPA during FY 2012-13 was of the 
order of ` 260.73 crore. Slippage of some big ticket 
advances to NPA category has resulted in this sharp 

rise in NPA. In view of above, we could not maintain 
Bank’s Gross NPAs at the desired level. However, 
your Bank has maintained zero net NPA status for 
the ninth consecutive year by making the required 
provisions from profits, during the year under Report. 
The provision coverage ratio up to FY 2012-13 thus 
stands to 100 per cent as against RBI prescribed ratio 
of 70 per cent (for Scheduled Commercial Banks).

Movement of NPAs and Provisions during the 
year was as under :

Table No. 24 :

(` in crore)
GROSS NPAs
As on 31st March, 2012  402.71
Additions during the year  415.38
Reduction during the year 154.65
As on 31st March, 2013 663.44
PROVISIONS
As on 31st March, 2012 402.72
Additions during the year 339.45
Reduction during the year  78.69
As on 31st March, 2013 663.48
NET NPAs
As on 31st March, 2012 0.00
As on 31st March, 2013 0.00

Establishment of “Central Recovery Council” :
Owing to a slowing economy as well as the market 
experiencing stiff liquidity conditions, the banking 
industry in general is facing the problem of rising 
stressed assets in its portfolio. In the year 2011-12, 
the gross NPAs of your Bank stood at ` 402.71 crore 
which are fully provided. To worsen matters, the NPAs 
of your Bank rose further to ` 535.17 crore as on 30th 
September 2012. This unprecedented rise in NPAs 
necessitated the need to provide focussed attention 
on recovery of NPAs, expediting litigations in case of 
all called back cases leading to their eventual recovery, 
sale of securities, follow-up of incipient NPAs and 
monitoring of the overdue accounts so as to prevent 
their slippages into NPA category. The year 2012-13 
was therefore declared as the ‘Year of NPA Recovery’ 
and a Central Recovery Council was constituted to 



36

Annual Report 2012-13

focus on the vital issues of recovery mentioned above.
The Council is presided over by the Chairman of your 
Bank and the members include the Vice-Chairman, 
the Managing Director, the D.M.D. Wholesale 
Banking, the D.M.D. Retail Banking, other select 
senior Executives of the Bank, Heads of SMEs 
and of RASECs. Shri P.P. Patki, Deputy Managing 
Director and Chief Financial Officer was appointed 
as the Convenor of the Council. The Council actively 
monitored the progress made by the Bank regularly 
in respect of the recovery of overdues and NPAs. It 
also suggested strategies for recoveries with a view 
to provide impetus to the recovery efforts of the Bank, 
which is essential to curtail the growth of NPAs and 
improve Bank’s profitability.
In order to keep a constant eye on the burgeoning NPA 
problem, the Recovery Council held nine meetings 
during FY 2012-13. During these meetings, major 
NPAs were discussed threadbare with all the Zonal 
heads, SME heads, RASEC heads and remedial 
measures were suggested. Total recoveries during 
the year amounted to ` 154.65 crore. Inspite of these 
efforts, the gross NPAs of the Bank have risen from 
` 402.71 crore as on 31st March, 2012 to ` 663.44 
crore as on 31st March, 2013. We reiterate that these 
NPAs of the order of ` 663.44 crore have been fully 
provided from our profits. 
The Central Recovery Council formulated a broader 
and systematic plan to reduce the NPAs.
	 The NPAs were classified as Retail and Wholesale 

segment.
	 Further classification was undertaken based 

on age-wise parameter i.e. NPAs before March 
2012 and NPAs during FY 2012-13.

	 For Retail segment, the task of recovery in the 
accounts was assigned to RASEC Heads and 
Zonal Managers. 

	 Recovery Department gave to operating units 
all the data of all impaired accounts including 
even loans with a smaller ticket size (below 
` 50,000/-). The Zonal Managers and in turn, 
the Branch Managers were advised to divide the 
responsibility amongst individual staff members 
according to their area of residence.

	 Special care was taken to avoid overdues in new 
retail loans disbursed during the year.

	 Regarding intimation of payments due, letters 
were sent to all concerned defaulters. Also, 
SMSs were sent by developing a special type of 
facility through our service-provider, the Saraswat 
Infotech Limited (SIL).

	 Public sources such as websites of Regulators 
such as RBI, SEBI, Taxation authorities, 
TATA, MTNL directories, etc. were referred for 
confirming the status, the addresses, contact 
numbers of the defaulters, etc.

	 Personal contacts were developed with the 
defaulters with high value NPA accounts.

	 One-to-one dialogues were initiated with 
borrowers. High priority was accorded to the 
task and marathon meetings were held with 
defaulters.

	 Zonal and SME Heads were also directed to 
initiate such meetings at their level and submit 
Action Taken Reports (ATRs). Activity Reports 
were also being generated at all levels – i.e. 
Zones, SMEs and RASECs. 

	 As regards publishing the names of defaulters 
in newspapers, it was decided that henceforth 
such a clause would be incorporated in the 
loan agreements and sanction letters, to avoid 
unnecessary litigation and resultant delays in 
recoveries.

	 Possibility of publishing the names of all the 
defaulters in the Annual Report of the Bank is 
being explored.

	 Pre-arbitration notices were issued to speed up 
the recovery process.

	 In case of upcountry branches where difficulties 
are encountered in taking possession of the 
properties in pursuance of securitization notices 
issued to borrowers, a copy of a favourable 
judgment of the Bombay High Court was 
submitted to the District Collectors of the area 
concerned, which helped smoothen, facilitate 
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and expedite the obtention of possession of 
related properties.

	 In case of difficulties encountered or obstruction 
faced from borrowers while taking possession of 
securities, protection of the Chief Metropolitan 
Magistrate for obtention of attendance of police 
force at site was arranged.

	 Monthly reports were made mandatory as these 
helped in identifying problem areas, be it at the 
staff level or business-related.

	 Local meetings were held to establish coordination 
in the Recovery Process, so that all those 
involved – Zones, RASECs and Branches were 
kept in the loop and all communication channels 
upto the level of Chairman were specially kept 
open for recovery matters.

	 Scanning of the AML package was done to 
ascertain if the defaulters are having accounts 
with any other branches of our Bank and to 
recover such balances, if any.

	 Scrutiny of the CIBIL reports was done for 
ensuring that the details of the outstanding loans 
and their status is correctly reflected in CIBIL.

	 Monthly Reports were obtained from all Zonal 
Managers, SME Branch Heads, RASEC Heads 
and Department In-charges by the Chairman and 
the top management as regards the recovery 
activities performed at their zones/branches/ 
departments.

The Recovery Council received a positive response 
from all segments of staff, the Employees’ Union 
and the Officers’ Association, who all worked with full 
dedication towards achievement of the commitments 
given. As post March 2013, NPAs continue to rise 
unabatedly, the Central Recovery Council has 
continued its pressure for recovery of NPAs on the 
entire operational wing of your Bank. Review of the 
recovery in NPAs is being taken at fortnightly intervals. 
A progress report vis-a-vis the commitments made 
is tabled at every meeting of the Central Recovery 
Council in order to judge the progress as also to 
tackle any impediments faced.

To sum up, recovery efforts have been initiated 
on a large scale. Borrowers and guarantors were 
repeatedly contacted in person or on phone. The 
follow-up was kept up and the pressure was built in 
each case. In cases where recovery from the borrower 
was not forthcoming inspite of all efforts, arbitration 
proceedings were initiated and in some cases awards 
were obtained. Action was also initiated for disposing 
of the collateral securities/properties. However, due 
to the slowdown of the economy, there are only a 
few buyers for properties in the market, prices have 
tended down substantially and selling off of properties 
has also become difficult in the current stagflation. 
Acceptable offers for settling the accounts are also not 
forthcoming and thus inspite of best possible efforts, 
recovery of NPAs is mired in a sticky economy.

All the same, with the establishment of the Central 
Recovery Council, the process for recovery was 
speeded up; faster decisions were taken in all respects 
i.e. from initiating talks with the borrowers till arbitration 
and finally disposal of properties. Operational heads 
were given stringent targets to ensure that recoveries 
are done in full. 

Also with the efforts of the Central Recovery 
Council, the management has been able to form a 
very clear and transparent view about each and every 
account, be it in Wholesale or Retail segment and 
the follow-up for every such account is very much in 
place. With the continuation of the instrumentality of 
the Central Recovery Council for recovery, some 
results are visible during the current year i.e. FY 
2013-14. All the business heads of SBU-Wholesale, 
SBU-Retail, SBU-Gandhakosh, all RASEC heads 
and all SME heads are scrupulously monitoring the 
recovery efforts of their SBUs and branches. Further, 
each and every branch is directed to take specific 
care on fresh accounts sliding into the NPA category.

Unfortunately, inspite of all the above efforts, there 
have been substantial additions to gross NPAs during 
the first two quarters of FY 2013-14. (Also, the team 
of RBI officials conducting annual inspection for FY 
2012-13 under Banking Regulation Act has expressed 
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serious concerns regarding asset quality of the Bank 
and on their scrutiny, added a few accounts to the 
gross NPAs. The RBI Inspection Team has also asked 
the Board of Directors to analyze new NPAs during 
the year and complete accountability exercise to fix 
responsibility. This is under process.) Besides, the 
reason of sticky economy in the main, the sudden 
spurt of gross NPAs and deterioration in asset quality 
of the Bank owe their occurrence to the following 
factors :
	 With the ever-increasing business of the Bank, 

the ticket-size of advances of the Bank went up 
substantially i.e. currently up to ` 250 crore for a 
single loan and ` 500 crore for a group loan.

	 The Bank, therefore, decided to participate in 
project lending/multiple banking with large state 
sector banks/large private sector banks.

	 As the large banks referred to above have 
economic research units on each industry 
vertical, your Bank tended to rely largely on 
the technical feasibility and economic viability 
appraisal carried out by these large banks.

	 Unfortunately, the Indian economy continued to 
traverse through a very difficult path over the 
past six years in particular, political and economic 
discourse at national level continued to grow 
more and more vitiated and shrill with increasing 
crescendo, as scam after scam was unearthed 
by constitutional authorities such as the CAG. 
This hamstrung the reform process, which in turn 
sent a negative signal to investors.

	 The projects on their way could not reach their 
COD mainly because of delays in clearances and 
supply side bottlenecks.

Forex Business :

Your Bank is possessing RBI licence to deal in 
foreign exchange since 1979 and it caters to the 
foreign exchange requirements of our customers 
through ten well-established Forex Centres. Out of 
these ten Forex Centres, five are in Mumbai including 
Overseas Branch at Marine Lines and one each in 
Pune, Aurangabad, Kolhapur, Panjim and New Delhi.

During the year, these Forex Centres handled 
merchant foreign exchange business equivalent 
of only ` 11,311.95 crore. The Merchant Foreign 
Exchange turnover for the previous year was 
` 11,060 crore. Inspite of lower exports from the 
country mainly due to weak global demand, your 
Bank has maintained the level of merchant foreign 
exchange turnover at the level of the previous year. 
The inter-bank foreign exchange turnover remained 
stagnant at ` 31,345.97 crore in FY 2012-13 as 
compared to ` 31,449.40 crore in FY 2011-12.

Your Bank also handles foreign exchange business 
of customers of select other co-operative banks 
which do not have RBI licence to deal in foreign 
exchange, under lines of credit sanctioned to them. 
During the year, lines of credit for foreign exchange 
business extended to twenty co-operative banks 
were renewed at the aggregate level of ` 128 crore.

As the travel cards are gaining popularity over 
travellers cheques, your Bank has finalized a tie-up 
arrangement with Axis Bank for sale of VISA Travel 
Currency Cards to the customers of your Bank.

18.	 SBU – TREASURY OPERATIONS :
The Treasury operations of your Bank primarily 
revolve around Government securities and other 
debt and money market instruments. The 10-year 
Government security market opened for the year at 
8.63 per cent. At the start of the year itself, the yields 
dipped in response to a sharp 50 bps repo rate cut 
by RBI. However, it soon emerged that the monetary 
easing by RBI may not be so quick, given that the 
economy was trapped in a state of stagflation, 
a combination of sticky inflation and weakening 
growth. However, with factors like no additional 
market borrowing by Government, adequate liquidity 
support by RBI through Open Market Operations 
(OMOs) and cut in Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR), a repo 
rate cut in the last quarter and market expectations 
of further cuts, the 10-year benchmark closed for the 
year at 7.99 per cent.
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SBU-Treasury earned a net profit of ` 72.11 crore 
for the year vis-a-vis ` 55.03 crore for the preceding 
year, largely on the back of trading profits. Further, 
SBU-Treasury has successfully improved the interest 
income yield from 7.57 per cent for FY 2011-12 to 
7.94 per cent for FY 2012-13.

19.	 IMPACT ON CAPITAL ADEQUACY OF HIGHER 
PROVISIONS FOR NPAs OF THE BANK – THE NEED 
FOR CORPORATIZATION OF CO-OP BANKS :

One of the consequences of the rising level of Gross 
NPAs is that apart from eating into the profits, it also 
affects the Capital Adequacy of the banks, particularly 
in case of co-operative banks, whose major source of 
increasing Net Own Funds is by way of plough back 
of profits.
The Urban Co-operative Banks do not receive capital 
infusion through budgetary support from Union 
Government or State Governments. They cannot 
also raise capital at the stock market which only the 
private sector and PSU commercial banks can do. 
This makes the position of Urban Co-operative Banks 
more precarious in a year where economic downturn 
occurs. This aspect stands out clearly from our 
financials for FY 2012-13. 
For last several years, your Bank’s Board of Directors 
has been emphasizing and harping on this specific 
issue mainly through the Annual Reports, so that 
our members realize that a growing bank requires 
regulatory growth capital, which is difficult to come if 
we remain as a Bank in the Co-operative Sector. You 
may re-call that in the Annual Report of 2009-10 under 
the sub-heading “Constraint of Capital” appearing on 
Page No. 29 of that Report, this aspect has been dealt 
with in some details. It was inter alia, mentioned in that 
Report as follows :
“Members have to take note that a growing bank 
needs strong ‘growth capital’ and members at 
their levels are therefore requested to ventilate 
the above issues at all legitimate forums to help 
support your Board of Directors in their pursuit 
of justice and thus support the cause of the co-
operative movement. Yours is a growing Bank and 
in order to have orderly growth, some regulations 
and laws require urgent amendment so that 

UCBs including your Bank do not experience a 
constraint of capital for growth. This constraint on 
capital is the greatest cause of concern for your 
Board of Directors today.”
Similarly in the Annual Report of 2010-11 under head 
“Paucity of capital funds: The sword of Damocles”, it 
was reiterated by your Board of Directors on Page No. 
50 of that Report as follows :
“A growing Bank requires growth capital. This 
paucity of growth capital has thus become a major 
impediment in the growth path of your Bank. 
Weak capital also destabilizes the Bank. We have 
proposed to the authorities as an interim measure 
that rather than UCBs having to sell their share 
at ` 10/- which is its face value, they should be 
allowed to sell (and redeem, when necessary, the 
shares so sold) at the book value of the shares, 
so that we get a temporary reprieve on the capital 
augmentation front, pending consideration of our 
demand to restore exemption under section 80-
P.” (i.e. of the Income Tax Act).
Further in the Annual Report of 2011-12, under the 
head “Capital Constraint”, the importance of capital 
was once again brought into focus by your Board of 
Directors. It was stated therein as follows :
“With growth in business, your Bank has to make 
big-ticket advances, of course within the limits set 
by RBI. In a bad economic cycle, if some of these 
big-ticket loans are impaired, the capital adequacy 
may suddenly plummet below prescribed nine 
per cent and such an event could make your 
Bank highly vulnerable. While privatization 
(commercialization) of the Bank is not a likeable 
option for any of us and while your Board of 
Directors would very much desire that your Bank 
continues to work in the co-operative sector, if 
paucity of capital is likely to threaten the very 
foundation of the Bank, prudence would demand 
that in future the Bank considers an acceptable 
option in the interests of its own survival and that 
of its shareholders”.
With the current bad economic cycle as witnessed 
particularly in FY 2012-13 and deliberated at length 
in this Annual Report, the NPA level in the banking 
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industry in general and the NPAs of your Bank in 
particular have risen substantially, thereby affecting 
Capital Adequacy level of your Bank. Though currently 
our CRAR is above 11%, it has been achieved with 
the support of such fragile elements as revaluation of 
assets and borrowings such as LTSD. Thus it may 
be noted that your Bank, year after year and for 
the past three consecutive years, has been giving 
a ‘Wake-Up Call’ on this capital adequacy issue. 
All our Annual Reports have been unanimously 
upheld in the respective Annual General Meetings.
Now, as we outline this Annual Report, the Reserve 
Bank of India has released the ‘Discussion Paper on 
Banking Structure in India – The Way Forward’ on 
27th August, 2013. The Reserve Bank in its Report 
has acknowledged the fact that in the case of large 
Multi-State Co-operative Banks, some of them have 
become ‘too big to be a co-operative’. (It may be 
mentioned here that your Bank is the largest Bank 
in the UCB sector in India). It also adds that these 
UCBs are at a competitive disadvantage and can 
lag behind their competitor Scheduled Commercial 
Banks, as they are unable to provide a wider range of 
facilities to their customers. Corporatization could be 
the best alternative for multi-state UCBs. Conversion 
into Scheduled Commercial Banks would give more 
business opportunities to such Multi-State UCBs. 
However, as the existing laws governing co-operatives 
do not provide for conversion of Multi-State UCBs into 
Scheduled Commercial Banks, it will be necessary 
to amend the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 
2002 and the Companies Act, 1956.
We welcome the above policy statement of RBI. 
Your Board of Directors will be closely monitoring the 
developments in this regard and in due course will 
take appropriate steps so as to protect the interests 
of all its stakeholders. It is needless to add here that 
your Board of Directors unanimously favours the 
conversion of your Bank into a Scheduled Commercial 
Bank, mainly with a view to protect it from the vagaries 
of economic cycle, which can be possible only with 
substantial augmentation of risk capital.
Capital Adequacy Ratio – CRAR :
The Capital Adequacy Ratio for the year ended 31st 

March, 2013 stood at 11.15 per cent as against 12.37 
per cent as on 31st March, 2012 as detailed below :
Table No. 25 :
Capital Adequacy Ratio - CRAR :	 (` in crore)
Particulars 31-03-2013 31-03-2012

Capital-Tier I    

a. 	 Share Capital	 126.13 116.13

b. 	 Reserves and Surplus   

 	 Statutory Reserve 454.83 393.28

 	 Other Reserves 700.68 589.75

 	 Profit and Loss Account 86.10 186.07

	 Sub - Total 1,241.61 1,169.10

Gross Tier I Capital 	 (a+b) 1,367.74 1,285.23

Less: Intangible assets & losses 279.90 182.61

Tier I Capital	 (A) 1,087.84 1,102.62

Capital-Tier II   

Revaluation Reserve 135.96 139.83

General Provisions 79.08 64.55

Investment Fluctuation Reserve 80.00 71.55

Subordinated Debts 120.00 180.00

Tier II Capital	 (B) 415.04 455.93

Total Capital Funds	 (A+B) 1,502.88 1,558.55

Risk Assets   

i.  Funded Risk Assets 12,659.84 11,727.41

ii. Non-funded Risk Assets 425.87 437.54

iii. Risk Weighted Assets for 
 market risk

388.13 432.77

Total Risk Weighted Assets 
(i+ii+iii)

13,473.84 12,597.72

Capital Adequacy Ratio % 11.15 12.37

The fall in CRAR is due to :
	 Increase in provisioning for BDDR : In order to 

maintain zero per cent Net NPA, for last several 
years your Bank had decided to fully provide for 
all the NPAs. Hence the BDDR provisions have 
increased from ̀  402.72 crore in March 2012 to ̀  
663.48 crore in March 2013, which has lowered 
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the Net Profit – thus reducing the plough-back 
contribution to Tier I capital and consequently 
CRAR.

	 Your Bank had raised ` 300 crore by way of 
LTSD during FY 2009-10. In terms of RBI 
guidelines, these funds are subject to the 
progressive discount @ 20 per cent of the 
amount raised every year. As such, only 
` 120.00 crore is available for CRAR computation 
as on 31.03.2013 and it comes as Tier II capital.

	 The risk-weighted assets have increased from 
` 12,597.72 crore to ̀  13,473.84 crore, requiring 
capital for additional risk coverage, thereby 
impacting the CRAR.

	 Though the Revaluation Reserve stands at 
` 302.13 crore as on 31st March, 2013, as per 
RBI guidelines only 45 per cent of the same 
is available for the purpose of computation of 
CRAR i.e. only ` 135.96 crore could be taken 
under the Tier II capital.

	 The Bank earned profit of ` 112.09 crore during 
the FY 2012-13. However in terms of RBI circular 
Ref.no.POT.PCB.Cir.No. 45/09.116.00/2000-01 
dated 25.04.2001 amount available to the extent 
of ` 86.10 crore could be taken under capital 
after netting out certain amounts payable such 
as ex-gratia, dividends, etc. as per the proposed 
appropriations.

	 Your Bank did not undertake any fresh issue 
of Long-Term Subordinated Deposit (LTSD) 
and Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference 
Shares (PNCPS) during FY 2012-13, due to 
lower business growth and higher interest rates 
prevailing at that point of time, which would 
have increased the cost of the capital so raised. 
However, during FY 2013-14, we have applied 
to RBI for approval of issuance of Long-Term 
Subordinated Deposit as well as Perpetual Non-
Cumulative Preference Shares, to prop up our 
capital. We are expecting to receive an approval 
from RBI regarding the same very shortly.

WHERE YOUR BANK STANDS :
We have mentioned above in some detail that currently 
Asset Quality is a serious issue with your Bank, much 
like many other banks in the industry, with of course 
a difference of degree of severity in our case, which 
arises from the “significant” additions to the Bank’s 
gross NPAs during FY 2012-13 and FY 2013-14. We 
would however, urge upon members not to take an 
alarmist view of the present circumstances of the 
Bank. 

	 First because, whatever has happened to 
India’s economy has happened to India’s firms, 
companies, businesses and industries, which, in 
turn, has delivered a “knock on effect” on India’s 
banking industry, particularly as banking system 
is the soft underbelly of the economy. Further, 
whatever has happened to the banking industry 
has also happened to your Bank, we being an 
integral and a very small player in the sector, we 
cannot escape from the consequences of current 
economic stagflation. 

 Secondly, by maintaining the Bank as a Zero Net 
NPA Bank and by fully providing for all NPAs 
through profits year after year for past nine years, 
we have created a reserve of over ` 300 crore 
(i.e. surplus BDDR provision) which can take the 
load of making statutorily required provisions 
towards the growth in our Gross NPAs. This will, 
of course, take away our hard-earned status 
as a ‘Zero Net NPA Bank’. However, current 
extraordinary economic circumstances do 
demand extraordinary responses.

 Thirdly, the Basic Business and Revenue Model 
of your Bank is robust. It is important to notice 
and note here that its ever-increasing NPAs 
may have shaken your Bank but they have 
not hobbled it. The strength of our BASIC 
BUSINESS AND REVENUE MODEL can be 
gauged from the fact that even when the Indian 
economy is passing through dire straits, your 
Bank’s financial results for 2012-13 show the 
following achievements :
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	 During FY 2012-13, total income of your 
Bank exceeded ` 2,550 crore.

	 Gross Profit for the FY 2012-13 was at  
` 482.35 crore as compared to ` 411.33 
crore in FY 2011-12.

	 Even in the prevalent depressing economic 
circumstances and resultant pressure for 
re-pricing of advances at lower rates, your 
Bank could achieve a Net Interest Margin 
(NIM) of 3.30 per cent at the year end.

	 During FY 2012-13, Net Owned Funds of 
your Bank rose from ` 1,715.69 crore to 
`1,961.31 crore.

	 The Gross NPAs of ` 663.44 crore have 
been fully provided for from profits and we 
have maintained your Bank at zero per cent 
Net NPA as on 31st March, 2013. 

Apart from the foregoing, it must be remembered 
that since the Gross NPAs of the Bank as on  
31st March, 2013 at ` 663.44 are fully provided for 
from our profits, all recoveries from the said Gross 
NPAs will be added back to the Bank’s profits 
in the ensuing years, thus further strengthening 
your Bank’s financial profile. These are tough and 
challenging times for the Bank, but we assure you 
that with enduring values, strong leadership and our 
committed and productive workforce at the Bank, we 
are confident of meeting all the challenges squarely.
HOW DO WE SEE THE FUTURE :
The key to our success so far has been our value-based 
approach, holistic understanding of issues, forward-
looking outlook and futuristic policies. Over the years, 
we have built a culture of being open, transparent and 
confident. We have no doubt whatsoever in our mind 
that India will soon emerge out of the current morass 
and it will be reckoned as a very important member 
of the comity of nations in the world. Indian economy 
will start looking up very soon and those who continue 
to steer their organizations with faith in India’s destiny 
will succeed in taking their institutions from strength to 
strength. Your Bank will continue to remain engaged 
now in mending what we can and in future it will 
partake in the vibrant and luminous destiny of India.

20.	 APPROPRIATIONS :
We propose the following appropriations from 
Net Profit for the Financial Year 2012-13 :
Table No. 26 :

(` in lac)
 Particulars 2012-13 2011-12
Transfer to Reserve Fund (25 %) 2,802.28 5,889.23
Contingency Reserve (10 %) 1,120.91 2,355.69
Provision for payment of contribution to 
Education Fund of N.C.U.I.(1 %) 112.09 235.57
Proposed Dividend @10% (Prev. FY 20%) 1,213.10 2,181.58
Provision for Ex-gratia payment to 
Employees @10%  (Prev. FY 20%) 1,350.45 2,311.03
Building Fund 0.00 0.00
Members' Welfare Fund 50.00 50.00
Provision for Staff Welfare 10.00 10.00
Provision for Public, Charitable & Co-
operative Purposes (1%) 112.09 235.57
Investment Fluctuation Reserve 1,735.00 845.50
Special Reserve 1,000.00 1,500.00
General Reserve 1,700.00 7,940.00
Balance to be carried forward to the next year 79.91 76.73
Total 11,285.83 23,630.90

Dividend :
Your Board of Directors recommends a dividend of 
10 per cent for the year ended 31st March, 2013.
Members' Welfare Fund :
Your Board of Directors recommends contribution 
of ` 50 lac towards this fund. After this addition, the 
total amount in this fund will be ` 748.50 lac. During 
the year, 1,058 members availed of reimbursement 
of the medical expenses and expenses for medical 
checkup facilities.
Sixty-nine awards were granted to meritorious 
children of members.
Ex-gratia to Employees :
Your Board of Directors recommends that a 10 per 
cent Ex-gratia be granted to our employees for the 
Financial Year ending 31st March, 2013.
Provision for Public, Charitable and Co-operative 
Purposes :
As permitted under RBI Circular No. UBD.(PCB)/
BPD/Cir/43 dated 11th April, 2005, your Board 
recommends an appropriation of one per cent of the 
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net profit i.e. ` 112.09 lac, for public, charitable and 
co-operative purposes.
Special Reserve :
In accordance with Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961, Urban Co-operative Banks are eligible 
for a deduction in respect of profits earned from 
eligible businesses e.g. profits earned from loans 
and advances granted to industries, infrastructure, 
agriculture and housing sectors. Twenty per cent 
of such profits transferred to a Special Reserve will 
be eligible for deduction from taxable income. Your 
Board, therefore, recommends an amount of ` 1,000 
lac to be appropriated out of profits derived from the 
said eligible businesses, towards Special Reserve.

21.	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) :
Global Konkan Festival 2013 :
For the past few years, the Global Konkan Festival 
is being organized as an annual event in Mumbai by 
the Konkan Bhumi Prathisthan in order to showcase 
the natural beauty, tourism, culture, folk art, industry, 
food and agriculture of the Konkan region to the 
world. This year this annual event was held from 
4th January, 2013 to 7th January, 2013, the aim 
being once again to highlight the glory, bounty and 
economic potential of the Konkan region. Your Bank, 
which originated in Konkan, has been an important 
supporter of Global Konkan, since its inception.
Ideal Shareholder Award :
Since FY 2009-10, your Bank has introduced a 
scheme of felicitating one shareholder every year as 
an Ideal Shareholder (Adarsha Sabhasad). We have 
over 1,72,000 shareholders and from among them, 
one shareholder is selected each year as an Ideal 
Shareholder by the Bank based on his achievements 
as a person and also on his loyalty and contribution 
to your Bank. This initiative has enabled us to 
further deepen the bonds between the Bank and its 
shareholders.
This year, the Ideal Shareholder (Adarsha Sabhasad) 
Award was bestowed on Shri Kirti Bhaidas Sanghvi. 
Shri Sanghvi is the Chairman of Hindustan Pencils 
Pvt. Ltd. Shri Sanghvi has over forty years of 
dedicated work experience and under his able hands 

and guidance, Hindustan Pencils Pvt. Ltd. has gone 
from strength to strength, becoming the largest 
primary school stationery manufacturer in India 
today. Under his leadership, the Company grew 
manifold, and many varieties of stationery products 
were introduced in Indian and international markets. 
His vision enabled the Company to spread its wings 
and set up a new manufacturing plant outside India 
in Sri Lanka in 2010.
Shri Sanghvi is also working for the deprived and 
disadvantaged sections of society. Amongst his 
many roles, he is one of the trustees of Rajula 
Education Trust, Rajula, District Amreli, Gujarat, 
which runs colleges and hostels exclusively for girls. 
He is also one of the trustees of Nataraj Education 
Foundation at Vile Parle in Mumbai, which provides 
higher education to students on scholarship basis. 
In addition, he is one of the trustees of Nataraj 
Research Centre, Bhavnagar, which has built Asia’s 
first building for educating handicapped students. 
Shri Sanghvi has thus proved his dedication to the 
important twin causes that can shape our nation’s 
destiny viz. education and the girl child.
Shri Sanghvi has been shareholder of your Bank 
since 1975. His company, Hindustan Pencils Pvt. 
Ltd. banks with us almost exclusively since 1965. 
We all at the Bank are proud of Shri Sanghvi’s 
achievements as also his fruitful association with 
your Bank.

22.	 OTHER DEVELOPMENTS :
A small step to turn Global : 
Your Bank participated in the three day exhibition jointly 
organized by Maharashtra Economic Development 
Council (MEDC), Anand Trade Development Services 
of Mumbai, Gulf Maharashtra Business Forum 
(GMBF) and A2Zee Events from Dubai. The show 
was organized to display and make available Indian 
consumer products to the people in Dubai. The theme 
of this mega event was to promote the rich business 
and cultural skills of Maharashtra on a global platform 
and your Bank did not miss the opportunity of being a 
part of this event as it was a wonderful opportunity for 
your Bank to shake hands with an enthusiastic Asian 
community living outside India.
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There were delegates from twenty countries with 150 
entrepreneurs at the show. We had deputed Mrs. 
Madhuri Kamat, Asst. Gen. Manager and Mrs. Aditi 
Sanzgiri, Chief Manager to make presentations on 
behalf of the Bank. They performed a splendid job. 
The event had good media coverage with “Khaleej 
Times” – the leading newspaper covering details of 
each participant in the exhibition. The event was also 
covered by “Zee 24 Taas” channel. Our Bank stall was 
put up in the most prominent place and attracted lot 
of interest. The promotional pamphlets and standees 
imparted a professional look to our stall. Apart from 
our loyal existing customers in Dubai, prospective 
customers also visited our stall. Amongst all the co-
operative banks, your Bank was the first and the only 
Bank to have participated in this event.

23.	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE :
Composition of your Bank’s Board :
The composition of the Board is governed by the 
Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and 
the Bye-laws of the Bank. As on 31st March, 2013, 
there are sixteen Directors on your Board in addition 
to the Managing Director. The Board includes 
eminent persons with professional expertise and 
rich experience in Banking, Finance, Civil Service, 
Education, Sports and other fields. As against the 
stipulation of RBI of having at least one Chartered 
Accountant and one Banker on the Board of Urban 
Co-operative Banks, your Bank has three Chartered 
Accountants and seven Bankers as its Directors.

During the period under Report, twenty-five Board 
meetings were held.

Co-option of Shri Jagdish Pai K.L. in the Board :
Shri Jagdish Pai K.L. was one of the persons elected 
unopposed on 10th August, 2011 as a Director on the 
Board of your Bank, along with a team of fifteen other 
directors. He could not however join the Board as 
he had not received the permission from the Central 
Government, which was required by him as he was 
a former Government appointee in his capacity as 
the Executive Director of Canara Bank. Later, since 
the ‘cooling period’ prescribed by the Government 
of India was over, Shri Jagdish Pai K.L. offered to 
accept the position as a Director of your Bank and the 

Board of Directors in its meeting held on Thursday, 
27th September, 2012 co-opted Shri Jagdish Pai K.L. 
as Director of the Bank.

Shri Jagdish Pai K.L is a rank holder in the Bachelor’s 
Degree in Commerce. He is the former General 
Manager of Bank of India and later, Executive 
Director of Canara Bank and has rich and diversified 
experience, having worked in Corporate Banking 
and having effectively led various zones of Bank of 
India where he was working earlier. During his tenure 
in Canara Bank, he was responsible for handling 
various facets of the bank’s business including 
Corporate Credit, SME Credit, HR, Vigilance, 
Premises, Information Technology, etc. Your Bank 
has richly benefitted from his induction in the Board 
of Directors.

Sitting Fees :
Your Bank had placed an amendment to the Bye-law 
No. 63 in the last Annual General Meeting held on 
27th September, 2012, in respect of paying fees to 
members of the Board of Directors except Managing 
Director for attending meetings of the Board of 
Directors. All the members at the AGM supported the 
amendment in the Bye-law wholeheartedly and the 
said amendment was passed by the General Body 
unanimously.

Further, as required under the Multi-State Co-
operative Societies Act, 2002, a letter under Ref: 
SCB:94:ASJ:562 dated 1st October, 2012 was written 
to the Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies, 
Government of India, New Delhi to seek approval to 
the above-referred amendment to the Bye-law No. 
63. The approval was issued from the Office of the 
Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies, New 
Delhi, vide their letter No. L-11016/6/85-L&M (Vol.II) 
dated 14th November, 2012. Accordingly sitting fees 
are being paid to members of the Board of Directors 
for the meetings of the Board as also for the meetings 
of sub-committees of the Board.

Loans to Directors :
No Director has borrowed any monies from your 
Bank. This has been a healthy tradition in your Bank 
and has been enshrined in Bye-law No. 55 and Bye-
law No. 63 (c) many years ago.
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Whistleblower Policy :
Good governance and transparency has been the 
hallmark of your Bank and over the years, we have 
been taking initiatives and adopting systems to 
ensure that this tradition remains vibrant. One of the 
initiatives undertaken this year was the drawing up of 
a Whistleblower Policy for your Bank. What makes 
this unique is that we have done this, suo moto, 
without any mandatory directives from RBI to Urban 
Co-operative Banks in this matter.

Whistleblowing, in its simplest form, involves reporting 
of wrong doing within an organization, either to 
internal or external agencies. In terms of this Policy 
of the Bank, any employee of the Bank, depositor, 
borrower, shareholder, member of the public, having 
sufficient grounds for concern, can lodge a complaint 
pertaining to the acts of omission or commission 
by any of the functionaries of the Bank to the 
Ombudsman appointed for the purpose. Currently, 
Mrs. Sudha Sivan, Deputy Managing Director and 
Administrative Self-Regulatory Authority (ASRA) 
in the Bank acts as the Ombudsman. The Policy 
Document, approved by your Board of Directors has 
been uploaded on the Bank’s website also.

Working of Committees of the Board :
The Board has constituted Committees, which 
include Directors and higher management, who take 
informed decisions in the best interests of the Bank.

As on 31st March, 2013, three Committees of the 
Board were in place during the period under Report 
viz. the Executive and HRD Committee, the Audit, 
Accounts and NPA Management Committee, and the 
Merger Committee.
The various Committees and their scope are as 
follows :

Executive and HRD Committee :
The Executive and HRD Committee of the Bank 
looks into HR and training issues, formulation 
and implementation of action plan for sustaining/ 
improving the quality of the Bank’s human resources, 
disciplinary and accountability enforcement and 
welfare measures for employees at all levels. It also 
takes decisions on all operational matters excepting 

sanction of loans/advances, decides upon branch 
expansion, acquisition of premises on purchase or 
lease for branches/offices, approves expenditures 
and costs in relation thereto and also considers 
any matter which requires urgent consideration. 
During the year under review, eight meetings of the 
Committee were held.
Audit, Accounts and NPA Management Committee :
The Committee provides direction, oversees the 
total audit function of the Bank, follows up on the 
statutory/external/concurrent audits of the Bank and 
ensures strict adherence of RBI’s guidelines and 
directives from time to time. Twelve meetings of the 
Committee were held during the year. It deliberates 
on progress of the recoveries of overdues and NPAs 
and decides on issuing of securitization notices 
and possessions of properties charged to the Bank 
to expedite recoveries. Excepting respected Shri 
Madhav Mantri and Shri N.R. Warerkar, all other 
Directors are members of this Committee.
Merger Committee :
The Merger Committee has been constituted to take 
appropriate decisions on feasible mergers of weaker 
/loss-making co-operative banks as also to oversee 
the affairs and provide directions to Gandhakosh, 
a SBU formed by combining the erstwhile seven 
merged banks, and also to its different zones which 
are created to look after the business of the erstwhile 
merged banks. It takes all operational decisions 
relating to Gandhakosh SBU, which is virtually run 
as a ‘Bank within the Bank’ to keep a focussed watch 
on the progress made by it. During the year under 
review, three meetings of the Merger Committee 
were held.
24.	 MEMBERSHIP :
Your Bank has 1,72,282 members who hold fifty and 
above fully-paid shares as on 31st March, 2013. The 
number of nominal members of the Bank stood at 
5,78,363 as on 31st March, 2013.
25.	 APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS :
Your Board of Directors recommends the appointment 
of M/s Kulkarni & Khanolkar, Chartered Accountants, 
located at 13/14, Bell Building, Sir P.M. Road, Fort, 
Mumbai 400 001 as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Bank for the FY 2013-14.
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26.	 DISCLOSURES :
As per the disclosure norms stipulated by the RBI, 
we hereby declare that insurance premium to DICGC 
has been paid upto 31st March, 2013 and there are 
no arrears payable to DICGC.

27.	 SARASWAT INFOTECH LIMITED (SIL) :
SIL, the wholly-owned subsidiary of your Bank, 
completed its seventh financial year on 31st March, 
2013. During this year also, SIL continued to provide 
IT infrastructure and services to your Bank. 

We enclose hereto a Report of the Board of Directors 
along with Audited Profit and Loss Account of the 
Company for the period ended 31st March, 2013 and 
Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2013.

Reinstating Information Technology Department 
in the Bank :
As mentioned in last year’s Annual Report, you are 
aware that RBI had issued a Show-Cause Notice to 
your Bank on 19th April, 2012, which pertained to the 
Bank’s subsidiary Saraswat Infotech Ltd (SIL). RBI 
has pointed out that the Bank was not maintaining 
“arms’ length relationship” with its subsidiary as 
required under RBI’s approval letter for the subsidiary 
and this is borne out by the fact from the financials 
of SIL which indicated its over dependence on the 
parent organization, even after a period of seven 
years of its creation. Nearly ninety per cent of the 
revenues of SIL have been coming from the parent 
Bank. RBI, therefore, asked your Bank to reinstate 
its own Information Technology Department in the 
Bank.

SIL has been providing Core Banking Services on 
a SaaS (Software as a Service) basis to a few Co-
operative Banks spread across India. SIL has also 
been offering its ‘Swiftcore’ - Core Banking Solution 
(CBS) on a licence basis to a few small-sized Co-
operative Banks who have set up their own Data 
Centre. All the Banks availing SaaS services or 
services on a licensed basis are very small banks 
having generally a branch network of 5 to 10 
branches, with modest financials. Core Banking 
Solution of late has become a ‘commodity’ offered 

also by many small and medium-sized Infotech 
companies spread across the country which has 
intensified the competition amongst the players.

When RBI mandated adoption of Core Banking 
Solution by all banks in the Urban Co-operative 
Banking sector, in order that its members get a fair 
deal, the National Association of Federation of Urban 
Co-operative Banks (NAFCUB) floated a tender on 
behalf of all its member Urban Co-operative Banks 
in March 2010. The tender sought the offer price for 
Core Banking Solution (CBS) on a revenue model to 
be offered to all the Urban Co-operative Banks in the 
country. Severe competition amongst the players led 
to offering of services at prices, which in the opinion 
of SIL, were not adequate to cover the costs. The 
lowest rate so finalized has become a benchmark 
for the companies offering Core Banking Services 
including SIL. SIL has therefore been compelled by 
market realities to offer the services at and around 
the rate finalized by NAFCUB. The rate so finalized 
is very low and casts on the Company, heavy 
responsibilities such as :

	 Maintaining the databases of the banks under 
SaaS, safe and secure at its Data Centre as well 
as at the disaster recovery centre.

	 Taking the onerous responsibility to ensure 
data-integrity, its non-pilferage as also guarding 
it against any misuse, interference with, or 
manipulation.

	 Provide primary lease line connectivity and the 
standby connectivity.

	 Carry out daily and periodic operations.

	 Providing online support to the branches on 
24 x 7 basis. 

The business model of SIL therefore is high volume 
and low value in nature. (SIL has 34 small co-
operative banks on SaaS with 342 locations, 10 small 
co-operative banks have been using its Core Banking 
on a licence basis). This model therefore is no more 
lucrative and profitable for SIL. This model is of low 
margin and hence puts pressure on profitability of 
SIL. The revenues of SIL from business outside that 
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of your Bank, therefore are infinitesimally small and 
they are unlikely to show any substantial increase in 
the near future. The “arms’ length” issue raised by 
RBI will therefore keep on cropping up in future too.

Your Bank has therefore thought it appropriate at this 
juncture to set up its own Information Technology 
Department as advised by RBI to reduce the 
dependence of your Bank on SIL. Your Bank has 
informed the decision of the Board to SIL in this 
regard and effective from 1st July, 2013, Service 
Level Agreement with SIL has been abrogated. In 
view of this change, Bank would absorb some select 
employees of SIL, many of whom were employees of 
your Bank earlier and who were providing functional 
services to your Bank for carrying out software 
development activities for your Bank on behalf of SIL.

SIL however would provide services for managing 
the Data Centre and network of your Bank and 
would also help Bank carry out customization-
related changes and facilitate Bank to provide new 
technology-related services through various delivery 
channels. The Board of Directors of your Bank and 
of SIL will take all necessary and consequential 
decisions to further the separation of SIL from 
your Bank, such as withdrawing its investment and 
infrastructure provided to SIL so that it becomes 
truly “arms’ length” and a company independent 
of the Bank. In this process, your Bank will take a 
humanistic view of the employees of SIL, who will 
be rendered surplus consequent upon withdrawal of 
your Bank’s business from SIL and try to work out 
an arrangement that will help accommodating most 
of them. The Board of Directors is confident that this 
proposition has your approval.

28.	 OBITUARY :
We regret to record that during the year, some of the 
shareholders, employees and former employees of 
your Bank passed away.

The Board of Directors offers its deepest condolences 
to the families of the bereaved.

We pray that all the departed souls rest in peace and 
may the Almighty grant fortitude and strength to their 
family members to bear the irreparable loss of their 
dear ones.

29.	 GRATITUDE :
Your Board wishes to place on record the appreciation 
of the support which the Board of Directors and the 
Bank has received from all our shareholders and 
other stakeholders and thanks them profusely for the 
confidence and trust that they have reposed in us 
and the Bank for all these years.

Your Board would also like to place on record the deep 
sense of gratitude to the authorities of the Reserve 
Bank of India, the Office of the Central Registrar 
of Co-operative Societies, Government of India, 
New Delhi, the Office of the Commissioner for Co-
operation and Registrar of Co-operative Societies, 
Maharashtra State, Pune for their valuable guidance, 
support and co-operation. The Board is also grateful 
to the Registrars of Co-operative Societies of the 
States of Madhya Pradesh, Karnataka, Goa, Delhi 
and Gujarat.

The Board of Directors places on record its 
appreciation to all sections of employees for their 
loyalty, dedication and wholehearted involvement 
in achieving the goals and missions of the Bank, 
including providing excellent service to all our 
customers. The Board of Directors, in particular, 
recalls with deep gratitude the co-operation being 
extended to the Bank management by the Employees’ 
Union and Officers’ Association of the Bank. 

Your Board wishes to assure all shareholders that we 
will continue to strive towards attaining better results 
and excellence through continued professional 
commitment to achieve and exceed the ambitious 
organizational goals that we have set in the form of 
Dr. Adarkar Missions.

For and on behalf of the Board 

	 Ekanath Keshav Thakur
	 Chairman
Mumbai, : 5th September, 2013
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Jeeef<e&keâ DenJeeue 2012-13

efo meejmJele keÀes-Dee@HejsìerJn yeBkeÀ efueefceìs[ 
95 J³ee Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeuee®ee iees<eJeeje

ceeveveerÙe meYeemeo,

DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee 95 Jee Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeue DeLee&le®e DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 
2012-13 ®ee meeoj keÀjleevee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueuee Deevebo nesle 
Deens.

1)	peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLee Je Yeejle :

peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLee ner Depetvener 2008-2009 ®³ee 
DeeefLe&keÀ ceboer®³ee efJeUK³eeletve HetCe&le: meeJejuesueer veener. efJekeÀefmele 
DeLe&J³eJemLeebceO³es, DecesefjkesÀ®ee efJekeÀemeoj ne 2.4 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀe 
neslee. HesÀ[jue efjPeJn&ves JesUesJesUer DeeKeuesu³ee Ghee³e³eespeveebcegUs 
DecesefjkeÀve DeLe&J³eJemLee meeJejle Deens. vepeerkeÀ®³ee YeefJe<³eele 
`jesKes HegveKe&jsoerkeÀjCee®³ee' (Quantitative Easing) 
keÀe³e&¬eÀcee®ee Jesie keÀceer keÀjC³ee®es mebkesÀle HesÀ[jue efjPeJn&ves efoues 
Deensle. Hejbleg DeLe&J³eJemLee cepeyetle nesC³eekeÀefjlee HesÀ[jue efjPeJn& 
DeeCeKeer keÀener ceefnves meO³ee®es®e ceJeeU HeleOeesjCe ®eeuet þsJeerue, 
DeMeer MekeÌ³elee Deens. 

ogmeN³ee yeepetuee ³egjesefHe³eve DeLe&J³eJemLee Depetvener ceboer®³ee ieeUele 
©leuesueer Deens. mebHetCe& ³egjesPeesve®ee meO³ee®ee efJekeÀemeoj ne  
GCes (-) 0.4 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀe Deens. keÀpee&®ee ceesþe oyeeJe 
lemes®e lees HejleeJee keÀjC³ee®eer #eerCe #ecelee, Òe®eb[ yesjespeieejer, 
melele®eer Deefveef½elelee Je Ieìuesueer ¬eÀ³eMekeÌleer, ns ³egjesefHe³eve 
DeLe&J³eJemLesJejerue keÀeUs {ie Deensle. ³egjesefHe³eve yeBkeÀebkeÀ[s ¿ee 
ceboer®³ee HeefjCeeceebHeemetve ye®eeJe keÀjC³eemeeþer Demeuesueer iebieepeUer 
ner DecesefjkeÀve yeBkeÀeb®³ee leguevesle KetHe®e legìHegbpeer Deens. ³egjesHeceOeerue 
DeveskeÀ osMeeb®³ee DeLe&J³eJemLesJej Deeuesu³ee ieb[eblejeveblej l³eele 
Deelee mee³eÒeme ¿ee osMee®eer Yej He[ueer Deens. ¿ee Heeée&YetceerJej 
³egjesefHe³eve DeLe&J³eJemLes®ee iee[e ©UeJej ³ee³euee yeje®e DeJeOeer 
ueeiesue. meO³eelejer ³egjesefHe³eve DeLe&J³eJemLee Keeueer IemejC³ee®eer®e 
MekeÌ³elee Jeeìles.

peHeevener meO³ee keÀceer efJekeÀemeojeMeer Je leUeuee iesuesu³ee ceneieeF& 
ojeMeer Pegbpelees Deens. (ceneieeF& KetHe Keeueer cnCepes®e leUeuee peeCes 
DeMeer HeefjefmLeleermeg×e DeeOegefvekeÀ DeLe&Meem$e%eeb®³eeceles efJekeÀemeoj 
kegbÀþerle keÀª MekeÀles. DeefuekeÀ[s DeLe&Meem$e%e keÀener ÒeceeCeele 
Jee{uesueer ceneieeF& DeLe&J³eJemLesle Demesue, lej l³ee ceneieeF&uee 
Good Inflation - DeeJeM³ekeÀ ceneieeF& Demes mebyeesOeleele. 

YeejleeyeÎue DeLe&Meem$e%eeb®ee Demee mecepe Deens keÀer, 5% 
FlekeÀe ceneieeF&oj osMee®³ee efJekeÀemeeuee HetjkeÀ þjsue.) peHeeve®es 
HebleÒeOeeve efMevPees De@yes ³eebveer jeefyeJeuesu³ee DeeefLe&keÀ OeesjCeebcegUs 
peHeeve®eer DeLe&J³eJemLee megOeejC³ee®eer ue#eCes efomet ueeieueer Deensle. 
Hejbleg mejkeÀejer keÀpee&®es efJekeÀemeojeMeer ÒeceeCe 250 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHe³e¥le 
Heesnes®eues Deens, ner yeeye kegÀþu³eener DeLe&J³eJemLesmeeþer ef®ebleepevekeÀ 
Deens. yeBkeÀ Dee@HeÀ peHeeveves yeepeejeleerue DeLe&HegjJeþe Jee{C³eemeeþer 
1.2 ue#e keÀesìer ³esve®eer jesKes Kejsoer peenerj kesÀueer Deens. 
pesCeskeÀªve yeepeejeleerue DeeefLe&keÀ lejuelee Jee{sue Je l³ee®ee HeefjCeece 
ceneieeF&ojeJej nesTve lees 2 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHe³e¥le Heesnes®esue, pees peHeeve®³ee 
DeLe&J³eJemLes®³ee efJekeÀemeeuee HetjkeÀ þjsue.

efJekeÀmeveMeerue osMeebleerue efJekeÀemeojner peeieeflekeÀ ceboer®³ee 
meeJeìeKeeueer keÀceer®e jeefnuee. ®eerve®ee efJekeÀemeojner DeHes#esHes#ee 
Keeueer jeefnuee. Lees[keÌ³eele meebiee³e®es lej, DecesefjkeÀe Je peHeeve®³ee 
DeLe&J³eJemLesle nUtnUt keÀe nesF&vee HeCe megOeejCee efometve ³esle Deens. 
Hejbleg Go³eesvcegKe DeLe&J³eJemLee ¿ee Depetvener ceboer®³ee le[eK³eeletve 
yeensj He[C³eemeeþer Oe[He[le Deensle. Go³eesvcegKe DeLe&J³eJemLeeb®³ee 
osMeebceOeerue Jee{Ceejer ®eeuet Keel³eeleerue letì ner ef®ebles®eer yeeye þjle 
Demetve, l³ee®e ojc³eeve DecesefjkeÀve HesÀ[jue efjPeJn&ves  keÀpe&jesKes 
HegveKe&jsoer®ee Jesie ceboeJeC³ee®³ee Jele&efJeuesu³ee MekeÌ³elesves, vepeerkeÀ®³ee 
keÀener keÀeUele ¿ee DeLe&J³eJemLee keÀþerCe HeefjefmLeleerletve peeCeej 
Deensle.

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceOeerue Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLeeë

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLee Hee®e 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{ueer. ner Jee{ ceO³eJeleea meebeqK³ekeÀer mebmLesves J³ekeÌle 
kesÀuesu³ee Deboepeevegmeej nesleer. Hejbleg DeLe&mebkeÀuHeele DeHesef#euesu³ee 
7.6 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee yejer®e Keeueer nesleer. DeLe&J³eJemLes®³ee 
IemejCeerceeieerue cegK³e keÀejCes cnCepes ke=Àef<e#es$eele Peeuesueer Del³euHe 
Jee{ Je DeewÐeesefiekeÀ Jee{er®eer `pewmes Les' efmLeleer. Flej #es$eebHewkeÀer 
efveefce&leer Je yeebOekeÀece #es$eeb®eerner HeefjefmLeleer keÀcekegÀJele®e jeefnueer. 
HeÀkeÌle mesJee#es$eele Jee{ efometve Deeueer. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-
13 ceO³es, ke=Àef<e#es$ee®es ³eesieoeve 1.9 ìkeÌkesÀ, DeewÐeesefiekeÀ #es$ee®es 
³eesieoeve 1.2 ìkeÌkesÀ DeeefCe mesJee#es$ee®es ³eesieoeve 6.8 ìkeÌkesÀ 
FlekesÀ jeefnues. DeLe&J³eJemLesleerue IemejCe ner cegK³elJes keÀªve 
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HejosMeeletve Yeejleer³e GlHeeoveebmeeþer keÀceer Peeuesueer ceeieCeer, 
Yeejleele efve³ee&leerntve DeefOekeÀ nesle Demeuesueer Dee³eele, meelel³eeves 
Jee{le peeCeejer peeieeflekeÀ Deefveef½elelee, Yeejleeleerue ®e{s J³eepeoj, 
®e{leer ceneieeF& Je GÐeespekeÀeb®ee {emeUle  peeCeeje DeelceefJeéeeme 
³eecegUs Peeueer.

DeLe&J³eJemLesleerue IemejCeerveblejner Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es efJeÊeer³e 
letì 4.9 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer jeKeC³eele mejkeÀejuee ³eMe Deeues. cegK³eleë 
DeLe&ceb$eer Þeer. Heer. ef®eobyejced ³eebveer JesUesJesUer G®eueuesu³ee  þesme 
HeeJeueebcegUs®e efJeÊeer³e legìer®ee oj DeeìeskeÌ³eele jeKeCes MekeÌ³e 
Peeues. ef[Pesue®³ee efkebÀceleerJejerue efve³eb$eCe nìefJeCes, Sue.Heer.
peer. efmeueW[jJejerue meJeueleer keÀceer keÀjCes, mejkeÀejer kebÀHev³eebleerue 
efveieg¥leJeCetkeÀ Fl³eeoer Ghee³e³eespeveebcegUs efJeÊeer³e letì efve³ebef$ele 
jeefnueer.

Hejbleg ®eeuet Keel³eeleerue letì cee$e G®®e HeeleUerJej®e jeefnueer. ³ee®es 
cegK³e keÀejCe cnCepes efve³ee&leerle nesCeejer Ieì Je Jee{Ceejer Dee³eele. ¿ee 
oesneWceOeerue meelel³eeves Jee{le peeCeejer leHeÀeJele ®eeuet Keel³eeleerue 
letì ef®ebleepevekeÀ nesC³eeme keÀejCeerYetle Deens. Je<e& 2012-13 ®³ee 
meg©Jeeleer®³ee leerve efleceenerle efve³ee&le Ieìueer lej Dee³eele 10.96 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{ueer. ³eeefMeJee³e meesv³ee®³ee ceesþîee ÒeceeCeeJej nesCeeN³ee 
Dee³eeleercegUs HeefjefmLeleer DeefOekeÀ®e efyekeÀì yeveueer.

Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es IeeGÀkeÀ ceneieeF&oj ne peJeUHeeme 7 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee Jej jeefnuee. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves ¿ee keÀeUele 
HeefjefmLeleervegmeej DeeHeu³ee HeleOeesjCeele yeoue kesÀues. Je<ee&jbYeer 
cnCepes®e SefÒeue 2012 ceO³es jsHees ojele 0.50 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer keÀHeele 
keÀjC³eele ³esTve lees 8.00 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej DeeCeC³eele Deeuee. ¿ee 
veblej®³ee keÀeUele DeLe&J³eJemLesleerue lejuelee Jee{efJeC³eekeÀefjlee 
jesKe jeKeerJelee ÒeceeCeele (meer.Deej.Deej.) leerve JesUsuee Òel³eskeÀer 
0.25 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer keÀHeele keÀjC³eele Deeueer, lej JewOeeefvekeÀ lejuelee 
ÒeceeCener (Smed.Sued.Deej.) 24 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve 1 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeves keÀceer 
keÀªve 23 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej DeeCeC³eele Deeues. Je<ee&®³ee ®eewL³ee efleceenerle 
IeeTkeÀ ceneieeF&oje®ee Keeue®ee ÒeJeeme megª Peeu³eeJej jsHees ojele 
Hegvne keÀHeele keÀjC³eele Deeueer.

peeieeflekeÀ yeepeejHesþebceOeerue cegyeuekeÀ lejuelescegUs Yeejleer³e Yeeb[Jeueer 
yeepeejele DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es yejer®e iegbleJeCetkeÀ Peeueer. 
yeer.Smed.F&. efveoxMeebkeÀ Je<ee&®³ee meg©Jeeleer®³ee 17,404.20 
Jeªve Je<e&DeKesjerme 18,835.77 Jej PesHeeJeuee. efJeÊeer³e letì 
megOeejC³eekeÀefjlee mejkeÀejves DeeefLe&keÀ DeeIee[îeebJej Iesleuesu³ee 
keÀener þesme efveCe&³eebcegUs one Je<ee¥®³ee mejkeÀejer keÀpe&jesK³eebJejerue 
ojner 31 cee®e& 2012 ®³ee 8.63 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve 31 cee®e& 
2013 uee 7.99 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHe³e¥le efJemeeJeuee. Yeejleer³e ©He³ee cee$e 

DecesefjkeÀve [e@uej®³ee leguevesle Je<e&Yejele Je l³eelener efJeMes<ele: 
MesJeì®³ee efleceenerle ®eeuet Keel³eeleerue Jee{l³ee legìercegUs keÀcekegÀJele 
yeveuee. ©He³ee Yeejleer³e DecesefjkeÀve [e@uej®³ee leguevesle Je<ee&jbYeer®³ee 
` 50.87 Jeªve Je<e&DeKesjerme ` 54.29 He³e¥le Iemejuee.

ÔãÌãÄ‡ãŠÓã ½ãîÊ¾ã½ãã¹ã¶ã :
Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLes®eer Deeieeceer Jeeì®eeue ner GlHeeoveeb®ee 
cegyeuekeÀ HegjJeþe Je l³ee GlHeeoveebvee DemeCeejer ceeieCeer DeLee&le®e 
ueeskeÀeb®eer ¬eÀ³eMekeÌleer ³eebJej DeJeuebyetve Demesue. mejkeÀejves DeeefLe&keÀ 
OeesjCe ueJe®eerkeÀ þsJetve þesme efveCe&³e Iesleues lej®e GlHeeoveele Jee{ 
nesTve GÐeesie#es$eeme l³ee®ee HeÀe³eoe nesF&ue.

SefÒeue 2013 ceO³es IeeTkeÀ ceneieeF&oj ne 42 ceefnv³eeb®³ee 
Keeue®³ee HeeleUerJej cnCepes®e 4.7 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej neslee. ³eeyejesyej®e   
2013-14 ¿ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le ®eebieu³ee HeeJemee®³ee Deboepeeves 
efJekeÀemeojele Jee{ nesC³ee®eer MekeÌ³elee Deens. Hejbleg iegbleJeCegkeÀerHes#eener, 
GlHeeoveele Je GlHeeoveeb®³ee ceeieCeerle Jee{ Peeu³eeme DeeefLe&keÀ 
efJekeÀemee®eer ieleer Jee{sue.

peeieeflekeÀ yeBkesÀves Yeejlee®ee efJekeÀemeoj ³esl³ee Je<ee&le 5.7 ìkeÌkesÀ 
FlekeÀe jenerue Demes YeekeÀerle kesÀues Deens. ¿ee mebLe HeCe efveef½eleHeCes 
Jee{CeeN³ee efJekeÀemeeuee DecesefjkeÀve [e@uej®³ee leguevesle {emeUle 
peeCeeje ©He³ee Je Deeìle ®eeueuesueer efJeosMeer iebieepeUer ³eeb®es De[LeUs 
Deensle. DecesefjkeÀve HesÀ[jue efjPeJn&ves mejkeÀejer keÀpe&jesKes efJekeÀle 
IesC³ee®es l³eeb®es OeesjCe ceeies IesC³ee®es mebkesÀle efou³eecegUs, yejer®eMeer 
HejosMeer iegbleJeCetkeÀ Yeejleeletve Hejle peeT MekeÀles Je l³ee®ee efJeHejerle 
HeefjCeece DeeHeu³ee DeLe&J³eJemLesJej nesT MekeÀlees.

vepeerkeÀ®³ee keÀener Je<ee¥leerue Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLes®eer efmLeleer:

iesueer oesve MelekesÀ Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLee ner peieeleerue Jesieeves 
Jee{Ceejer SkeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLee cnCetve DeesUKeueer peeles. peeieeflekeÀ 
ceboer Je keÀcekegÀJele DeeefLe&keÀ OeesjCee®³ee Heeée&YetceerJej DeeHeu³ee 
DeLe&J³eJemLesves je<ì^er³e GlHeVeele meMekeÌle DeMeer 7 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer 
Jee{ oeKeefJeueer. Hejbleg iesu³ee mene Je<ee¥le ns ef®e$e Heeueìues Je 
DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2005-06 ®³ee 9.5 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve l³eele IemejCe 
nesTve, DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es leer 5 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHe³e¥le 
Heesnes®eueer ne DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2002-03 veblej®ee veer®eebkeÀ Deens. Je<e&  
2002-03 ceO³es DeLe&J³eJemLee ner 4 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{ueer nesleer. 

(DeefOekeÀ ceeefnleermeeþer ¿ee DenJeeuee®³ee He=<þ ¬eÀ.7 Jej efouesu³ee 
DeeuesKe ¬eÀ.1 Hene, lees DeeuesKe `oJe[uesueer mebOeer' oeKeefJeCeeje 
Demetve Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesle 2005-06 Heemetve keÀMeer IemejCe 
Peeueer les mHeä keÀjlees).
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®eerve, ye´ePeerue DeeefCe oef#eCe DeeefÖeÀkeÀe ¿ee DeeHeu³eemeejK³ee 
efJekeÀmeveMeerue DeLe&J³eJemLeebceO³es DeewÐeesefiekeÀ efJekeÀemeoj ne mekeÀue 
jeä^er³e GlHeVee®³ee ojeHes#ee DeefOekeÀ ieleerves Jee{uee. ³eeGueì 
Yeejleele DeewÐeesefiekeÀ Jee{ ner Kegbìuesueer®e Deens. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 
2005-06 ceO³es GÐeesie#es$eeleerue Jee{ ner 8.2 ìkeÌkesÀ nesleer, leer 
DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es 1 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeJej Iemejueer.

Devegoevee®³ee efJe<e³eeJej mejkeÀejves JesUer®e ue#e ve HegjefJeu³eecegUs, 
lemes®e efJeefJeOe ueeskeÀevegve³eer ³eespeveeb®ee Ke®e& DeeefCe meneJ³ee 
Jesleve Dee³eesiee®ee yeespee, ¿eecegUs efJeÊeer³e letì ner DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e&  
2005-06 ®³ee 4 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 uee 
4.9 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHe³e¥le jeKeueer iesueer. ns meg×e kesÀJeU keWÀêer³e DeLe&ceb$eer 
Þeer. Heer. ef®eobyejce ³eeb®es DeLekeÀ, efve½e³eer Je HeefjÞeceHetJe&keÀ Òe³elve 
³eecegUs®e MekeÌ³e Peeues.

DeeHeu³ee osMee®³ee ®eeuet Keel³eeleerue HeefjefmLeleer keÀener JesieUer 
veener. ®eeuet Keel³eeleerue letìner iesueer keÀener Je<ex 2.5 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee 
Jej®e jeefnueer. ¿ee Jee{er®es ÒecegKe keÀejCe cnCepes efve³ee&leerle 
nesle Demeuesueer Ieì, meesv³eeuee DemeCeejer Òe®eb[ ceeieCeer DeeefCe 
Dee³eeleerle nesle Demeuesueer Jee{. ®eeuet Keel³eeleerue letì DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e&  
2005-06 ®³ee 1.2 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 
DeKesjerme 4.9 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej Heesnes®eueer. HeefjCeeceer ©He³ee®eer IemejCe 
cee$e ®eeuet jeefnueer.

IeeTkeÀ ceneieeF&oj DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2005-06 ®³ee 4.4 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es 7.3 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej 
Heesnes®euee. ¿ee Jee{er®eer ÒecegKe keÀejCes cnCepes ûeeceerCe DeLe&J³eJemLesleerue 
Jee{erJe cepegjeroj, KeeÐeeVes, Keefvepe lesue, Hee³eeYetle Jemletb®³ee 
efkebÀceleerle Peeuesueer Jee{ Je ©He³ee®³ee cetu³eele nesCeejer IemejCe nes³e.

DeLe&J³eJemLesleerue ceboer®ee yeBefkebÀie #es$eeJej Peeuesuee HeefjCeece:

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLes®ee iee[e 
ªUeJeªve Iemeju³ee®ee HeefjCeece yeBefkebÀie #es$eeJej ÒeecegK³eeves 
Gceìuee. ¿eecegUs yeBkeÀeb®³ee DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®³ee ÒeceeCeele 
Òe®eb[ Jee{ Peeueer. 31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer Yeejleer³e yeBkeÀeb®eer 
DeveglHeeefole keÀpex `  2,06,000 keÀesìer lej Hegveyee¥OeCeer kesÀuesueer 
keÀpex `   2,27,000 keÀesìerbHes#eener peemle nesleer. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& 
yeBkesÀ®³ee meJex#eCeevegmeej {esyeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpexner iesu³ee mene 
Je<ee¥le efleHeìerves Jee{uesueer Deensle. efveJJeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpex 
l³eenerHes#ee Jesieeves Jee{tve cee®e& 2013 DeKesj ̀   88,800 keÀesìerbJej 

Heesnes®eueer. cee®e& 2010 Heemetve DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥cegUs yeBkeÀeb®³ee 
efveJJeU veHeÌ³eele 60 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebntve DeefOekeÀ Ieì Peeueer.

DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es ÒeceeCe Jesieeves Jee{le Demeleevee l³eeb®³ee 
Jemegueerle efoJemeWefoJeme Ieì nesle Deens. DeueerkeÀ[s®e jep³emeYesle 
DeLe&ceb$eeue³eeves meeoj kesÀuesu³ee ceeefnleervegmeej keÀesìe&le Jemegueermeeþers 
oeKeue kesÀuesu³ee oeJ³eeb®³ee ceeO³eceeletve nesCeeN³ee Jemegueerle iesu³ee 
keÀener Je<ee¥le DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®³ee Jemegueer®es ÒeceeCener GÊejesÊej 
Iemejle ®eeueues Deens.

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 1 	 (` keÀesìeRceO³es)

Je<e& Jemegueerr oeJ³eeb®eer  
jkeÌkeÀce

Jemegueer Peeuesueer 
jkeÌkeÀce

Jemegueer®eer 
ìkeÌkesÀJeejer

2009-10 47,576 2,403 5.1
2010-11 52,672 2,342 4.4
2011-12 79,117 1,700 2.1
2012-13 97,701 1,905 2.0

(jep³emeYes®³ee ceeO³eceeves)

Jejerue lekeÌl³eele efometve ³esles keÀer, iesu³ee keÀener Je<ee¥le yeBkeÀeb®³ee 
DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®³ee Jemegueer®es ÒeceeCe ns Jesieeves Iemejle ®eeueues 
Deens. meeJe&peefvekeÀ #es$eeleerue yeBkeÀebyeeyeleerle Demesner Dee{Utve 
Deeues keÀer, ¿ee yeBkeÀe {esyeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es ÒeceeCe keÀceer 
oeKeefJeC³eekeÀefjlee ner keÀpex efve<keÀeefmele (write-off) keÀjleele. keÀpex 
efve<keÀeefmele keÀjC³ee®es ÒeceeCe ns keÀpee¥®³ee Jemegueer®³ee ÒeceeCeeHes#eener 
peemle Deens. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es yeBkeÀeb®³ee Jemegueer®es 
ÒeceeCe ns l³eebveer efve<keÀeefmele kesÀuesu³ee keÀpee¥®³ee ÒeceeCeeHes#ee keÀceer 
Deens ns Keeueerue peenerj DeekeÀ[sJeejerntve efometve ³esles :

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 2  	 (` keÀesìeRceO³es)
yeBkeÀ Jemegueer jkeÌkeÀce efve<keÀeefmele 

kesÀuesueer keÀpex
yeBkeÀ Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³ee 2,006.00 2,413.00
Fbef[³eve DeesJnjmeerpe yeBkeÀ 1,270.00 1,642.25
DeesefjSbìue yeBkeÀ Dee@HeÀ keÀe@ceme& 1,192.00 1,416.26
efmeb[erkesÀì yeBkeÀ 1,030.00 1,297.30
yeBkeÀ Dee@HeÀ ye[esoe 625.57 2,359.47
keÀe@HeexjsMeve yeBkeÀ 313.00 708.67
yeBkeÀ Dee@HeÀ cenejeä^ 303.92 663.12

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es DeeefLe&keÀ ceboercegUs HetCe& yeBefkebÀie 
#es$eeHeg{s Jee{l³ee DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es Je Ieìle peeCeeN³ee Jemegueer®es 
ceesþs DeeJneve GYes jeefnues. ogow&Jeeves DeeHeueer yeBkeÀner ¿ee HeefjefmLeleeruee 
DeHeJeeo jeefnuesueer veener.
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2)	yeBefkebÀie Je efJeÊeer³e #es$eeleerue cenÊJee®³ee Ie[ecees[er :

Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ ner yeBefkebÀie Je efJeÊeer³e #es$e cepeyetle 
jenC³eekeÀefjlee melele efJeefJeOe met®evee Je ceeie&oMe&keÀ leÊJes peejer 
keÀjerle Demeles. DenJeeueJe<eea yeBefkebÀie #es$eekeÀefjlee Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& 
yeBkesÀkeÀ[tve DeeKeC³eele Deeuesu³ee keÀener cenÊJee®³ee Ghee³e³eespevee 
KeeueerueÒeceeCes Deensle ë

l	 yesmeue III ®eer ceeie&oMe&keÀ leÊJes :

	 yeBkeÀeb®ee Yeeb[Jeueer Hee³ee meg¢{ keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee YeefJe<³eele 
ceesþîee ÒeceeCeeJej Yeeb[Jeue GYeejCeer keÀjeJe³eeme ueeieCeej 
Deens. l³eevegmeej yesmeue III Debleie&le Mes[îegu[ J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ 
yeBkeÀebkeÀefjlee ceeie&oMe&keÀ leÊJes peejer keÀjC³eele Deeueer. ¿ee 
met®eveebvegmeej Mes[îegu[ J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ yeBkeÀebvee Yeeb[Jeue 
He³ee&Hleles®es ÒeceeCe ns l³eeb®³ee risk weighted ceeueceÊes®³ee 
9 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ SketÀCe Yeeb[Jeue, 7 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ efìDej-1 
Yeeb[Jeue Je 5.5 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ meeceeef³ekeÀ FeqkeÌJeìer efìDej-1 
Yeeb[Jeue þsJeeJes ueeiesue. l³eecegUs ³esl³ee keÀeUele ¿ee yeBkeÀeb®ee 
Yeeb[Jeueer Hee³ee cepeyetle nesF&ue.

l	 veJeerve yeBefkebÀie HejJeeves :

	 DeueerkeÀ[s®e Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves yeBefkebÀie keÀe³eÐeele 
og©mleer keÀªve veJeerve yeBkeÀebvee HejJeeves osC³eekeÀefjlee cemegoe 
peejer kesÀuee Deens. yeBefkebÀie #es$eele  He´JesMe  keÀjC³eemeeþer yeN³ee®e 
mebmLee efJeMes<ele: vee@ve-yeBefkebÀie HeÀe³eve@eqvMeDeue mebmLee GlmegkeÀ 
Deensle. p³ee mebmLee Hee$eles®es efvekeÀ<e HetCe& keÀjleerue DeMeebvee 
Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ l³ee mebmLeeb®³ee HeeMJe&Yetceer®eer HetCe& 
leHeemeCeer keÀªve ueJekeÀj®e yeBefkebÀie HejJeevee osF&ue. ¿eecegUs 
yeBefkebÀie #es$eele YeefJe<³ekeÀeUele efvekeÀesHe mHeOee& Jee{erme ueeietve 
l³ee®ee HeÀe³eoe yeBkeÀ ûeenkeÀebvee nesF&ue. ner HejJeevee He´efke´À³ee HetCe& 
keÀjC³eemeeþer Deelee efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ®es ceepeer ieJnve&j [e@. efyeceue 
peueeve ³eeb®³ee DeO³e#elesKeeueer SkeÀ meefceleer vesceC³eele Deeueer 
Deens.

l	 efJeÊeer³e menYeeie (Financial Inclusion) :

	 meceepeeleu³ee meJe& IeìkeÀebHe³e¥le yeBefkebÀie mesJee Heesnes®eJeC³eemeeþer 
Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves meJe& yeBkeÀebvee l³eeb®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[UekeÀ[tve meJe&meceeJesMekeÀ efJeÊeer³e DeejeKe[e cebpetj keÀªve 
IesC³ee®³ee met®evee efou³ee Deensle. l³ee®³ee DebceueyepeeJeCeerJej 

KegÎ Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ efve³eb$eCe þsJeCeej Deens. ¿ee Debleie&le 
meJe& yeBkeÀebvee ÒeeLeefcekeÀ ye®ele Keeleer GIe[C³ee®³ee met®eveener 
efou³ee Deensle. ¿ee Keel³eeDebleie&le ye®ele Keel³ee®³ee efkeÀceeve 
megefJeOee osC³eemener meebefieleues Deens. yeBkeÀebkeÀ[s Demeuesueer 
meO³ee®eer vees-ÖeÀerue (No-Frill) Keeleerner ÒeeLeefcekeÀ 
ye®eleKeel³eele ªHeebleefjle keÀjC³eeme meebefieleues Deens. ¿ee 
Keel³eebvee efkeÀceeve efMeuekeÀer®eer DeeJeM³ekeÀlee DemeCeej veener, 
lemes®e jkeÌkeÀce þsJeC³ee®³ee Je keÀe{C³ee®³ee meJe& megefJeOee, 
FueskeÌì^e@efvekeÀ megefJeOee, S.ìer.Sced. megefJeOee Fl³eeoer Òel³eskeÀ 
ûeenkeÀeHe³e¥le Heesnes®eu³ee Heeefnpesle Demesner efveoxMener efjPeJn& 
yeBkesÀves efoues Deensle.

	 Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves Deeblej-yeBkeÀ þsJe Keel³eeb®³ee 
nmleeblejCeeyeÎue®es (Intra-Bank Deposit Account 
Portability) efve³ece peejer kesÀues. l³ee®eyejesyej ûeenkeÀe®³ee 
HeemeyegkeÀceO³es/efJeJejCeHe$eeceO³es Sced.Dee³ed.meer.Deej. (MICR) 
Je Dee³ed.SHedÀ.Smed.meer. (IFSC) keÀes[®eer ceeefnleer osCes 
yebOevekeÀejkeÀ keÀjC³eele Deeues DeeefCe ÒeesÒee³eìjer mebmLes®³ee 
Keel³eebkeÀefjlee veJeerve kesÀ.Jee³ed.meer. (KYC) leÊJesner peejer 
keÀjC³eele Deeueer.

l 	Flej Ie[ecees[er :

	 	 yeBefkebÀie efyeue (megOeeefjle) 2011 DevJe³es yeBefkebÀie jsi³eguesMeve 
De@keÌì, 1949 DeeefCe yeBefkebÀie kebÀHeveerpe De@keÌì, 1980  
³eeble ueeskeÀmeYesle keÀener megOeejCee meg®eJetve cebpegjermeeþer 
þsJeC³eele Deeu³ee. ¿ee keÀe³eÐeeÜejs Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& 
yeBkeÀ, yeBkeÀeb®³ee mJeceeuekeÀer®³ee GHekebÀHev³eebkeÀ[tve efJeefJeOe 
ÒekeÀej®eer ceeefnleer ceeieJetve l³eeb®eer leHeemeCeerner keÀª MekesÀue.

	 	 Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves yeBkeÀeb®³ee HeleceeveebkeÀveemeeþer 
meO³ee®³ee CAMEL He×leerSsJepeer INROADS 

(Indian Risk-Oriented and Dynamic Rating 
System) He×leer Deceueele DeeCee³e®es þjefJeues Deens.

	 	 ®eskeÀ ì^bkesÀMeve ÒeCeeueer 2010 Debleie&le meJe& yeBkeÀebveer 
meceeve JewefMe<ìîes Demeuesues cegefêle ®eskeÀ (OeveeosMe) peejer 
keÀjC³ee®³ee met®evee efveie&efcele keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee.

	 	 Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves keÀe[& lemes®e FueskeÌì^e@efvekeÀ 
ceeO³eceeletve nesCeeN³ee J³eJenejebleerue peesKeerce keÀceer 
keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee Je megj#ee Jee{efJeC³eekeÀefjlee ceeie&oMe&keÀ 
leÊJes peenerj kesÀueer Deensle.
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3) veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBefkebÀie #es$eeleerue cenÊJee®³ee Ie[ecees[er :

veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀe ¿ee Yeejleer³e yeBefkebÀie #es$ee®ee SkeÀ íesìemee HeCe 
cenÊJee®ee Yeeie Deensle. peJeUHeeme ` 2.38 ue#e keÀesìeR®³ee þsJeer 
¿ee yeBkeÀebkeÀ[s pecee Deensle. l³eebHewkeÀer cenejeä^ jep³ee®ee Jeeìe ne  
`  1.50 ue#e keÀesìer þsJeeR®ee Deens. ¿ee #es$ee®³ee me#eceerkeÀjCeemeeþer 
Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ JesUesJesUer efJeefJeOe megOeejCee peenerj keÀjerle 
Demeles.

Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es veeiejer 
menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebkeÀefjlee Keeueerue megOeejCee ueeiet kesÀu³ee.

l	 15 peevesJeejer 2013 jespeer Yeejle mejkeÀejves SARFAESI 
De@keÌì 2002 ceO³es ` yeBkeÀ' ¿ee Meyoe®eer J³eeHleer Jee{Jetve 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀmeejK³ee yengjep³eer³e menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebveener l³ee 
keÀe³eÐee®es HeÀe³eos efceUeJesle DeMeer J³eJemLee kesÀueer.

l	 veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀeb®eer DeeefLe&keÀ HeefjefmLeleer keÀcekegÀJele 
Peeueer Demeu³eeme ¿ee yeBkeÀebveer mJele:®e lelHejlee oeKeJetve 
l³eele megOeejCee Ie[JeeJeer Je lejerner HeefjefmLeleer ve megOeeju³eeme, 
Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ nmle#esHe keÀjerue, ¿ee DeeMe³ee®ee cemegoe 
Òeme=le keÀjC³eele Deeuee.

l	 ` 200 keÀesìeR®³ee Jej mJeefveOeer Demeuesu³ee veeiejer menkeÀejer 
yeBkeÀebveer Dee³ed.SHedÀ.Deej.Smed. (IFRS) ner Deeblejjeä^er³e 
efnMesye ÒeCeeueer mJeerkeÀejC³eeme le³eej jeneJes, DeMee met®evee 
osC³eele Deeu³ee.

l	 veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀe DeeHeu³ee SketÀCe ceeueceÊes®³ee meO³ee®³ee 
ce³ee&osHes#ee 5 ìkeÌkesÀ DeefOekeÀ ce³ee&oe ` 25 ueeKeebHe³e¥le®eer 
ie=nkeÀpex (ÒeeLeefcekeÀ #es$eebleie&le - Priority Sector) 
cebpetj keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee JeeHeª MekeÀleele, DeMeer meJeuele osC³eele 
Deeueer.

l	 veeiejer, jep³e Je ceO³eJeleea menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebveer ¿ee veblej®³ee 

keÀeUele meesves KejsoerkeÀefjlee keÀpex cebpetj keÀª ve³esle, ¿ee 
OeesjCee®ee Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀleHexÀ Hegve©®®eej keÀjC³eele 
Deeuee.

l	 mejHesÀmeer (SARFAESI) keÀe³eÐeebleie&le keÀpe&oejeb®³ee 
ceeueceÊesmebyebOeer ceO³eJeleea FueskeÌì^e@efvekeÀ ceeefnleer mebkeÀefuele 
keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebmeeþer efve³ece peejer kesÀues iesues.

l	 kesÀ.Jee³ed.meer. (KYC) Debleie&le J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀeb®es Keeles 
GIe[C³eemeeþer Dee³ekeÀj HejleeJee DeeefCe Flej keÀeieoHe$es 

Goe. Jeerpe efyeue, ìsefueHeÀesve efyeue, HeeC³ee®es efyeue Fl³eeoer 
leHeemeeJeerle, pesCeskeÀªve iewjJ³eJenejebJej efve³eb$eCe jenerue 
DeMee met®evee osC³eele Deeu³ee.

4)  ¿ee Je<eer&®³ee DenJeeuee®es  cegKeHe=ÿ -`ûeenkeÀ keWÀefêle yeBefkebÀie' :

DeepekeÀeue yeBkeÀe DeeHeu³ee ûeenkeÀebvee kesÀJeU SkeÀ Keeles¬eÀceebkeÀ 
mecepeleele Demee þHekeÀe yeBkeÀebJej þsJeuee peelees. Hejbleg yeBkeÀe ¿ee 
ûeenkeÀebvee keWÀêmLeeveer þsJetve®e keÀe³e& keÀjerle Demeleele. YeefJe<³ee®ee 
JesOe IesCeejer DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ ner ûeenkeÀebMeer Demeuesu³ee DeeHeu³ee veel³ee®es 
cenÊJe peeCeles Je YeefJe<³eele ns veeles ¢{ keÀjC³eeJej Yej osles. 
Deecneuee vegmeles®e meceeOeeveer ûeenkeÀ vekeÀesle lej Deeveboer ûeenkeÀ nJes 
Deensle, ne meO³ee®³ee ³egieeleerue mesJee efJeHeCevee®ee veJee ceb$e Deens. 

Deepe®ee ûeenkeÀ ne ngMeej Je ®eeCee#e ûeenkeÀ Deens. l³eeuee 
yeBefkebÀiemebyebOeer HetCe& ceeefnleer Deens Je lees meJee¥ieeves efJe®eej keÀªve®e 
SKeeÐee yeBkesÀle Keeles GIe[lees. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves :

l	 ûeenkeÀe®eer Jeie&Jeejer, (Customer Segmentation).
l	 efJeefJeOe ceeO³eceeb®es megmet$eerkeÀjCe (Multichannel 

Integration).
l	 J³eeJeneefjkeÀ Glke=Àälee (operational excellence).
l	 ûeenkeÀebvee l³eeb®eer iejpe DeesUKetve Dev³e GlHeeoveeb®es efJeHeCeve 

(Real Time Cross Selling). 
l	 ûeenkeÀmebJeeoeletve efJekeÀefmele kesÀuesu³ee megefJeOee.

¿ee Heb®emet$eervegmeej efJeefJeOe ÒekeÀej®³ee mesJee-megefJeOee ûeenkeÀebmeeþer 
GHeueyOe kesÀu³ee Deensle.

l	 yeepeeje®es efJeefJeOe ÒekeÀej - ûeeceerCe / efveceMenjer / Menjer 
/ ceneveiejs :

	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es peeUs ns Deelee meJe&otj Hemejuesues Deens. ¿eeceO³es 
ûeeceerCe, efveceMenjs, Menjs lemes®e ceneveiejsner ³esleele. DeeHeCe 
ûeeceerCe lemes®e íesìîee MenjebceOeerue ûeenkeÀebmeeþer ` 15,000 
He³e¥le®eer ueIegkeÀpex cebpetj keÀjlees, lemes®e íesìs J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ, 
meceepee®³ee efvecvemlejebceOetve Deeuesues ûeeceerCe keÀejeieerj 
Fl³eeoer ûeenkeÀebveener mesJee HegjefJelees. ¿eeyejesyej®e Menjer Je 
ceneveiejeleerue meJe& mLejebleerue ûeenkeÀebkeÀefjlee leb$e%eeveeJej 
DeeOeeefjle mesJee-megefJeOeener HegjefJelees.

l	 efJeefJeOe ÒekeÀej®es ûeenkeÀ - efkeÀjkeÀesU ûeenkeÀ / ueIeg Je 
ceO³ece GÐeesie / ceesþs J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ GÐeesie :

	 Jejerue meJe& ÒekeÀej®³ee GÐeesieebmeeþer DeeHeCe efJeefJeOe ÒekeÀej®³ee 
mesJee-megefJeOee HegjefJelees. ¿eeefMeJee³e Jew³eefkeÌlekeÀ ûeenkeÀebkeÀefjlee 
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efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpee&®³ee efJeefJeOe ³eespeveener DeeHeu³eekeÀ[s Deensle. 
p³eeceO³es Jeemleg-efme×er ie=nkeÀpex, JeenvekeÀpex, Mew#eefCekeÀ keÀpex,  
[e@keÌìj ef[ueeFì ³eespevee, ÒeJeemeer keÀpex Fl³eeoer ³eespevee 
jeyeefJelees.

l	 efJeefJeOe ÒekeÀej®³ee leb$e%eeveeOeeefjle megefJeOee GHeueyOe - 
S.ìer.Sced./ceesyeeF&ue yeBefkebÀie/Fbìjvesì yeBefkebÀie :

	 meO³ee®³ee ceeefnleer leb$e%eevee®³ee ³egieele ûeenkeÀebvee les efpeLes 
Demeleerue lesLetve DeeefCe meowJe cnCepes ®eewJeerme leeme yeBefkebÀie 
megefJeOee GHeueyOe nJ³ee Demeleele. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves l³eeb®³ee 
¿ee ceeieCeerme Òeeflemeeo osTve keÀOeerner, kegÀþsner DeeefCe lJeefjle 
(Anytime, Anywhere and Right Now) ne ceb$e 
IesTve meJe& vesì yeBefkebÀie megefJeOee HegjefJeu³ee Deensle.

	 ie´enkeÀebvee DeeHeCe DeeHeu³ee lemes®e ve@Meveue HesceWì keÀe@HeexjsMeve  
Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³ee (NPCI)®³ee peeÈ³eeÜejs meJe& osMeYej Hemejuesu³ee  
S.ìer.Sced.Üejs DeeHeCe jkeÌkeÀce keÀe{C³ee®eer, Keel³eeleerue 
efMeuuekeÀ jkeÌkeÀce leHeemeC³ee®eer Je jkeÌkeÀce ogmeN³ee Keel³eele 
nmleebleefjle keÀjC³ee®eer megefJeOee GHeueyOe keÀªve efoueer 
Deens. lemes®e Fbìjvesì yeBefkebÀie Je ceesyeeF&ue yeBefkebÀieÜejs le©Ce 
ûeenkeÀebveener DeekeÀef<e&le kesÀues Deens.

l	 efJeefJeOe ÒekeÀej®³ee jkeÀcee nmleeblejCee®³ee megefJeOee - 
F&.meer.Smed./Sved.F&.SHeÀd.ìer./Deej.ìer.peer.Smed./mHeer[ 
eqkeÌueDeefjbie ÒeCeeueer :

	 Deej.ìer.peer.Smed. Je Sved.F&.SHeÀd.ìer. ¿ee megefJeOeebÜejs ûeenkeÀebvee 
DeeHeu³ee Keel³eeletve Dev³e yeBkeÀeb®³ee Keel³eebceO³es peueoieleerves 
jkeÌkeÀce nmleebleefjle keÀjlee ³esles. ¿ee megefJeOee DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀle 
Deelee efmLejeJeu³ee Deensle. Jesleve, ueeYeebMe, efyeue YejCes DeMee 
íesìîee / efkeÀjkeÀesU jkeÀceeb®es J³eJenej F&.meer.Smed. megefJeOesletve 
keÀjlee ³esleele. ner megefJeOeener DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ûeenkeÀebkeÀefjlee 
GHeueyOe kesÀuesueer Deens.

l	 ie´enkeÀmebJeeoeletve  efJekeÀefmele megefJeOee :

	 DeeHeues DeefmlelJe ûeenkeÀecegUs Deens ns DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ peeCeles. 
¿eecegUs®e DeeHeues DeO³e#e ns DeeHeu³ee keÀce&®eeN³eebvee melele 
DeeþJeCe keÀªve osle Demeleele keÀer, `DeeHeues ûeenkeÀ ns®e legce®es 
Jesleve osleele'. ie´enkeÀebMeer melele mebJeeo meeOeCes, DeeHeues ûeenkeÀ 
DeeHeu³eekeÀ[tve p³ee mesJee-megefJeOeeb®eer DeHes#ee keÀjleele, l³ee 

HeefjHetCe&jerl³ee osCes ns DeeHeues keÀle&J³e Deens. ¿eeletve®e veJe-
veJeerve ³eespeveeb®ee Giece neslees. meO³ee DeeHeCe p³ee efJeefJeOe 
ÒekeÀej®³ee megefJeOee HegjefJelees l³ee yeBkesÀves DeeHeu³ee ûeenkeÀeb®³ee 
met®evee JesUesJesUer SskeÀu³eeveblej®e Deceueele DeeCeu³ee Deensle. 
Goe. DeeHeu³ee ûeenkeÀeb®³ee iejpee DeesUKetve, DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀves DeveskeÀ ÒekeÀej®³ee ®eeuet Je ye®ele Keel³ee®³ee keÀemee 
þsJeer ³eespevee GHeueyOe kesÀuesu³ee Deensle. l³eeleerue keÀener þsJeer 
³eespevesle Keel³eeble DeeJeM³ekeÀ DemeCeejer efkeÀceeve jkeÌkeÀce ³esLes 
veceto keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens.

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 3	   (`)

De. 
¬eÀ.

efJeefJeOe Keeleer Menjs efveceMenjs ûeeceerCe

1 Hue@efìvece ®eeuet Keeles 3,00,000 2,00,000 2,00,000

2 Sefueì ®eeuet Keeles 10,000 10,000 10,000

3 efve³eefcele ®eeuet Keeles 5,000 2,500 1,500

4 Sefueì ieesu[ ye®ele Keeles 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000

5 Sefueì efmeuJnj ye®ele Keeles 25,000 25,000 25,000

6 Sefueì ye®ele Keeles 5,000 5,000 5,000

7 efve³eefcele ye®ele Keeles 1,000 500 250

8 DeuHeJe³eerve (Minor) ye®ele 
Keeles

100 100 100

9 FPeer þsJeer / ke@ÀcHeme Je De#e³e 
Jesleve ye®ele Keeleer

0 0 0

efìHe : 14 meHìWyej, 2013 jespeer ³esCeeN³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee 95J³ee 
JeOee&Heveefoveer SkeÀe veJeerve keÀemee þsJeer ³eespeves®eer Iees<eCee keÀjC³eele 
³esle Deens. ner yeBkesÀ®eer oneJeer keÀemee þsJe ³eespevee Demesue. ¿ee ³eespeves®es 
`meejmJele yeBkeÀ He@ì^ve þsJe ³eespevee' Demes veecekeÀjCe keÀjC³eele Deeues 
Deens. ¿ee ³eespevesDebleie&le ®eeuet Jee ye®ele Keel³eele efkeÀceeve efMeuuekeÀ 
`  5,00,000 DemeCes DeeJeM³ekeÀ Demesue.

Jejerue ÒekeÀej®³ee efJeefJeOe megefJeOeebcegUs ûeenkeÀebvee DeeHeu³ee iejpeebÒeceeCes 
Keeles efveJe[C³ee®ee He³ee&³e GHeueyOe Deens. ¿eecegUs DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀMeer 
J³eJenej keÀjCes ne ûeenkeÀebmeeþer SkeÀ megKeo DevegYeJe Deens. ¿eecegUss®e 
³eeJe<eea DeeHeu³ee DenJeeuee®es cegKeHe=<þ ns DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es meJee¥le 
ceewu³eJeeve DeefOeÿeve Demeuesu³ee, cnCepes®e DeeHeu³ee meceeOeeveer Je 
ÒeHegÀefuuele ûeenkeÀebÒeefle meceefHe&le kesÀuesues Deens.
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5)	 DeeHeuee efveOee&j : ue#³e ` 1,00,000 keÀesìeR®³ee 
	 cenÊJeekeÀeb#eer J³eJemee³ee®es :

DeeHeCeeme %eele Demesue®e keÀer, DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves [e@. Dee[ejkeÀj 
efceMeve Debleie&le ®eej ìHH³eeble J³eJemee³eHetleea®eer cenÊJeekeÀeb#eer GefÎäs 
efveOee&efjle kesÀueer Deensle. ³eeleerue Heefnues oesve ìHHes cnCepes®e [e@. 
Dee[ejkeÀj efceMeve I Je II DeeHeCe efveOee&efjle kesÀuesu³ee cegoleer DeeOeer®e 
³eMemJeerjerl³ee HetCe& kesÀues Deensle. ³eeHeg{erue ìHHee cnCepes®e [e@. 
Dee[ejkeÀj efceMeve III ne ` 50,000 keÀesìeR®ee ìHHee 31 cee®e& 
2016 He³e¥le HetCe& keÀjeJe³ee®ee Deens. Hejbleg ¿eeDeeOeer cnìu³eeÒeceeCes 

DeeefLe&keÀ ceboer®eer PeU ner ÒeecegK³eeves ¿ee Je<ee&le DeeHeu³eeuee yemeueer Je 
J³eJemee³eJe=×erJej l³ee®ee ceesþe HeefjCeece efometve Deeuee. DenJeeueJe<ee&le 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee SketÀCe J³eJemee³e ` 36,167.75 keÀesìeRJej 
Heesnes®euee. mebHetCe& yeBefkebÀie #es$eele Jee{le Demeuesu³ee DeveglHeeefole 
keÀpee¥®³ee Heeée&YetceerJej DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves Je<ee&®³ee GÊejeOee&le 
keÀpe&efJelejCeele Iesleuesu³ee meeJeOe HeefJe$³eecegUs J³eJemee³eeleerue Jee{ 
ner ce³ee&efole jeefnueer.

Deecneuee Kee$eer Deens keÀer, Deeieeceer Je<ee&le ³esCeeN³ee DeeJneveebvee 
Deecner veJeerve Gcesoerves Je DeelceefJeéeemeeves meeceesjs peeTve 
J³eJemee³eJe=×erkeÀ[s me#ece Jeeì®eeue keÀª. ³esl³ee Je<ee&le keÀemee þsJeer, 
efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpex Je GÊece opee&®eer J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpex Jee{efJeC³eeJej 
Yej efouee peeF&ue. osMeele DeeefLe&keÀ ceboer®es JeeleeJejCe Demeleeveener 
Dee[ejkeÀj efceMeve III Debleie&le þjefJeuesueer J³eJemee³eHetleea cnCepes®e, 
`  50,000 keÀesìeR®³ee SketÀCe J³eJemee³ee®es ue#³e ³esl³ee keÀeUele  
HetCe& keÀjC³ee®ee Deece®ee Òe³elve jenerue.

6)	 ceeveJemebmeeOeve efJeYeeie :

DevegYeJeer Je kegÀMeue keÀce&®eeN³eeb®eer Yejleer keÀjCes, keÀce&®eeN³eeb®³ee 
%eeveele Je keÀewMeu³eele efJeefJeOe GHe¬eÀceebÜejs Yej IeeueCes, yeBefkebÀie 
#es$eeleerue Flej mHeOe&keÀ mebmLeebHes#ee Hees<ekeÀ JeeleeJejCeefveefce&leer 
keÀjCes, yeBkesÀves þjefJeuesueer GefÎ<ìs ieeþC³eemeeþer SkeÀe O³es³eeves Òesefjle 
Demeuesueer ÞeceMekeÌleer le³eej keÀjCes  ³eemeeþer DeeHeuee ceeveJe mebmeeOeve 
efJeYeeie DeefJejle He´³elveMeerue Deens.

ceeveJe mebmeeOeve efJeYeeieeves DenJeeueJe<ee&le G®eueuesues HeeJeues:

	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀuee peeieeflekeÀ HeefjceeCe Demeuesueer mebmLee 
yeveefJeC³ee®ee GHe¬eÀce :	

	 YeefJe<³ee®ee efJe®eej keÀ©ve yeBkesÀ®es meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U Je G®®e 
HeoeefOekeÀejer DeeHeu³ee mebmLesme peeieeflekeÀ HeefjceeCe Demeuesueer 

mebmLee (World Class Organization) yeveefJeC³ee®es 
mJeHve DeeHeu³ee GjeMeer yeeUietve Deensle. ne®e efJe®eej IesTve 
26 les 28 HesÀye´gJeejer 2013 ojc³eeve SkeÀ ÒeefMe#eCe GHe¬eÀce 
Dee³eesefpele keÀjC³eele Deeuee neslee. ¿ee ÒeefMe#eCe GHe¬eÀceele 
yeBkesÀleerue efveJe[keÀ Heb®eJeerme G®®e DeefOekeÀeN³eebvee meeceeJetve 
IesC³eele Deeues. 

	 ceefnuee menkeÀce&®eeN³eebmeeþer OeesjCe - 2013 :

	 DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ meJe& keÀce&®eeN³eebvee, efJeMes<ele: ceefnuee keÀce&®eeN³eebvee 
keÀe³ee&ue³eele keÀece keÀjleevee megjef#ele, DevegketÀue Je mevceeveHetJe&keÀ 
JeeleeJejCe þsJeC³eemeeþer keÀefìye× Deens. l³eemeeþer meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[Ueves ceefnuee keÀce&®eeN³eebmeeþer SkeÀ efJeMes<e OeesjCe cebpetj 
keÀªve l³eeDebleie&le keÀe³ee&ue³eele íUe®³ee ³esCeeN³ee le¬eÀejer 
efveOee&efjle keÀeueeJeOeerle efveJeejC³eemeeþer SkeÀe le¬eÀej meefceleer®eer 
mLeeHevee kesÀueer Deens. ¿ee meefceleerceO³es DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee leerve 
Jeefj<þ ceefnuee G®®e HeoeefOekeÀeN³eeb®³ee meesyele `ceePeer cew$eerCe 
®e@efjìsyeue ì^mì'®³ee ÒeefleefveOeer, meew. Mewuepee efuece³es DeeefCe 
`mejmJeleer osJeer efJeÐee efJekeÀeme ì^mì'®³ee ÒeefleefveOeer, Þeerceleer 
GppJeuee HeJeej ¿ee keÀe³e&jle jenleerue.

	 mebHeÊeer J³eJemLeeHeve (Wealth Management) veJeJeer 
Jeeef<e&keÀ Òee³eJnsì yeBefkebÀie DeeefMe³ee Heefj<eo  2013 :

	 yeBkeÀ ûeenkeÀebmeeþer YeefJe<³eele mebHeÊeer J³eJemLeeHevee®eer megefJeOee 
megª keÀjC³eemeeþer þesme HeeJeues G®euele Deens. ³eekeÀefjlee yeBkesÀuee 
mebHeÊeer J³eJemLeeHeve meb³eespevee®³ee keÀe³e&ÒeCeeueer®eer ceeefnleer 
DemeCeeN³ee lep%e J³ekeÌleeR®eer DeeJeM³ekeÀlee Deens. ¿ee efJe<e³eeJej 
Jeeef<e&keÀ Òee³eJnsì yeBefkebÀie DeeefMe³ee Heefj<eo, cejervee yes me@C[med 
keÀvJnsvMeveue meWìj, efmebieeHetj ³esLes 13 Je 14 cee®e& 2013 
jespeer Dee³eesefpeueer nesleer. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ¿ee Heefj<eosmeeþer 
meew. megefÒelee þkeÌkeÀj (ceneJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ) - peesKeerce efJeYeeie, 
veJeerve ³eespevee efJeYeeiee®³ee (Sved.Dee³e.³eg.) meew. Deefpelee 
yeeHeì (meene³³ekeÀ ceneJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ), Þeer. Þes³eme veiejkeÀj 
(J³eJemLeeHekeÀ) Je Þeer. mJeefHveue DeY³ebkeÀj (J³eJemLeeHekeÀ) 
³eebvee veeceebefkeÀle kesÀues nesles. ¿ee Heefj<eosle FvJnsmìceWì yeBefkebÀie, 
mebHeÊeer meb³eespeve, Heesì&HeÀesefueDees J³eJemLeeHeve Demes efJe<e³e 
DeY³eemeues iesues. ¿ee Heefj<eosceO³es DeeHeu³ee DeefOekeÀeN³eebvee 
HeefjCeecekeÀejkeÀ peesKeerce J³eJemLeeHeve, Yeeb[Jeuee®es peleve 
Je Je=×er ³eeb®es ÒeefMe#eCe Je %eeve efceUeues. YeefJe<³eele DeeHeu³ee 
ûeenkeÀebvee mebHeÊeer J³eJemLeeHevee®ee meuuee osC³eemeeþer DeeefCe 
l³eeb®³eeMeer veJeerve J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ mebyebOe pees[C³ee®³ee DeefOekeÀ 
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mebOeer GHeueyOe keÀjC³eemeeþer ¿ee DeY³eemee®ee GHe³eesie nesF&ue.

	 `ye' ÞesCeerleerue efveJe[keÀ keÀce&®eeN³eeb®es `De' ÞesCeerle 
HeefjJele&ve :

	 Deelee [e@. Dee[ejkeÀj efceMeve III ®es ` 50,000 keÀesìerb®³ee 
J³eJemee³ee®es GefÎ<ì DeeHeu³ee ¢efä#esHeele Deens. DeMee JesUer pes 
keÀce&®eejer [e@. Dee[ejkeÀj efceMeve II ®³ee ³eMemJeer GefÎ<ìHetleea®³ee 
keÀeUele DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀle keÀe³e&jle nesles, l³eebvee l³eeb®³ee 
mesJeep³es<þlesvegmeej ÒeeOeev³eeves `De' ÞesCeerle meeceeJetve IesC³ee®ee 
efveCe&³e yeBkesÀves Iesleuee Deens. ³eevegmeej 1 SefÒeue 2012 Heemetve 
efJeefJeOe HeoebJejerue 197 keÀce&®eeN³eebvee l³eeb®³ee iegCeJeÊes®³ee 
DeeOeejs `ye' ÞesCeerletve `De' ÞesCeerle meeceeJetve IesC³eele Deeues.

	 keÀce&®eejer Yejleer :

	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee Jee{le peeCeeje J³eJemee³e Je efJeefJeOe ³eespeveeb®³ee 
efJeHeCeveemeeþer ueeieCeejs ceveg<³eyeU efJe®eejele IesTve DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀves DenJeeueJe<eea 559 veJeerve keÀce&®eeN³eeb®eer Yejleer kesÀueer; 
Hejbleg yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀce&®eejerJeiee&le SketÀCe 265 keÀce&®eeN³eeb®eer®e 
Jee{ Peeueer, ns Keeueerue lekeÌl³eeJeªve efometve ³esF&ue.

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 4 

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceOeerue yeBkesÀleerue keÀce&®eejer Yejleer 
Je yeBkeÀ mees[tve iesuesues keÀce&®eejer
31-03-2012 jespeer®eer keÀce&®eejer Jeiee&®eer mebK³ee 3,641
Je<e& 2012-13 ceOeerue keÀce&®eejer Yejleer 559
SketÀCe mebK³ee 4,200
GCes Je<e& 2012-13 ceOeerue yeBkeÀ mees[tve iesuesu³ee 
keÀce&®eeN³eeb®eer mebK³eeë

 

	 1 	 efveOeve 3
	 2	  efveJe=Êeer 28
	 3 	 JewÐekeÀer³e keÀejCeemleJe efveJe=Êeer 1
	 4 	 mJes®íeefveJe=Êeer 87
	 5 	 mesJeemeceeHleer (Termination) 11
	 6 	 ye[leHeÀea 4
	 7 	 jepeerveecee* 160
SketÀCe efveie&efcele keÀce&®eeN³eeb®eer mebK³ee 294
31-3ö2013 ®eerr keÀce&®eejerJeiee&®eer mebK³ee 3,906
Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es keÀce&®eejerJeiee&le Peeuesueer 
efveJJeU Jee{

265

* je<ì^er³eke=Àle yeBkeÀeble npeejes keÀce&®eeN³eeb®eer Yejleer megª Demeu³eeves 
DeeHeu³eekeÀ[tve jepeerveecee osTve l³ee yeBkeÀeble peeCeeN³ee leªCe  
mesJekeÀeb®eer mebK³ee Jee{ueer Deens.
	 ye{leer®eer Òeef¬eÀ³ee :

	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer Jee{leer J³eJemee³eJe=×er lemes®e efveJe=Êe keÀce&®eeN³eebcegUs 
GHeueyOe nesCeejer efjkeÌle Heos, ³eevegmeej DenJeeueJe<eea 148 
keÀce&®eeN³eebvee HeoesVeleer osC³eele Deeueer. ³eeceO³es 82 efueefHekeÀebvee 
DeefOekeÀejer HeoebJej, 47 DeefOekeÀeN³eebvee efJeefJeOe Jeefjÿ HeoebJej Je 
19 DeefOekeÀeN³eebvee G®®e HeoeefOekeÀejer HeoebJej HeoesVeleer osC³eele 
Deeueer. ³eeefMeJee³e, 62 efueefHekeÀebvee l³eeb®³ee mesJeep³es<þlesvegmeej 
uesKeemeene³³ekeÀ cnCetve ye{leer osC³eele Deeueer.

	 `De' Je ̀ ye' ÞesCeerleerue keÀce&®eeN³eeb®eer mJes®íeefveJe=Êeer ³eespevee 
(Sme.yeer.Jner.Deej.Smed. 2012) :

	 DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves `De' Je `ye' ÞesCeerleerue 
keÀce&®eeN³eebmeeþer mJes®íeefveJe=Êeer ³eespevee meeoj kesÀueer nesleer. ¿ee 
³eespevesDebleie&le 88 keÀce&®eeN³eebveer mJes®íeefveJe=Êeer mJeerkeÀejueer. 
³eeceO³es 7 G®®e HeoeefOekeÀejer, 38 J³eJemLeeHekeÀer³e HeoebJejerue 
keÀce&®eejer lej, 43 Flej keÀce&®eeN³eeb®ee meceeJesMe neslee.

	 efueefHekeÀ, uesKeemene³³ekeÀ, DeefOekeÀejer HeoebJejerue mesJekeÀeb®es 
Heoveeceeblej:

	 keÀce&®eeN³eeb®eer iegCeJeÊee Jee{erme ueeietve l³eebvee Òeeslmeeefnle 
keÀjC³eemeeþer DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ efJeefJeOe ®eeueveelcekeÀ HeeJeues G®euele 
Demeles. ¿ee Deveg<ebieeves 1 SefÒeue 2013 jespeer keÀce&®eeN³eeb®³ee 
efJeefJeOe Heoeb®es KeeueerueÒeceeCes Heoveeceeblej keÀjC³eele Deeues:

	 	 `efueefHekeÀ' Heoe®es Heoveeceeblej `keÀefveÿ DeefOekeÀejer' 
(p³egefve³ej Dee@efHeÀmej) Demes keÀjC³eele Deeues.

	 	 `uesKee meene³³ekeÀ' Heoe®es `DeefOekeÀejer' (Dee@efHeÀmej) Demes 
Heoveeceeblej keÀjC³eele Deeues.

	 	 `DeefOekeÀejer' Heoe®es `GHeJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ' ([sH³egìer ce@vespej) 
Demes Heoveeceeblej keÀjC³eele Deeues.

	 ³ee HeoveeceeblejecegUs keÀce&®eeN³eeb®ee DeelceefJeMJeeme Je mevceeve 
Jee{tve l³ee®ee HeÀe³eoe keÀce&®eeN³eebvee yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeefJeOe GlHeeoveeb®es 
efJeHeCeve keÀjleevee nesF&ue ne ³eeceeie®ee GÎsMe Deens.

	 keÀce&®eeN³eebmeeþer ÒeefMe#eCe :
	 DenJeeueJe<ee&le DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀce&®eejer ÒeefMe#eCe keWÀêeleHexÀ 

113 ÒeefMe#eCe DeY³eeme¬eÀce IesC³eele Deeues. ¿ee®ee ueeYe SketÀCe 
3,957 keÀce&®eeN³eebveer Iesleuee. 
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7)	meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves DeeKeuesu³ee veJeerve ³eespevee :

	 SkeÀcesJe ûeenkeÀDeesUKe ¬eÀceebkeÀ (UCIC) yeBkesÀ®³ee 
Yeejleeleerue ûeenkeÀebmeeþer :

	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves SkeÀcesJe ûeenkeÀDeesUKe ¬eÀceebkeÀ (UCIC) 
DeJeuebyeC³ee®eer He×le ®eeuet kesÀueer Deens. meO³ee®³ee meer.yeer.Smed. 
(CBS) ÒeCeeueerceO³es ûeenkeÀeb®³ee ceeefnleer®eer veeWo keÀjC³ee®eer 
DeeefCe SkeÀcesJe ûeenkeÀ DeesUKe ¬eÀceebkeÀ efvecee&Ce keÀjC³ee®eer mees³e 
GHeueyOe kesÀueer Deens.

	 SkeÀcesJe ûeenkeÀDeesUKe ¬eÀceebkeÀ (UCIC) Ghe¬eÀcee®es 
leerve ìHHes :

	 	 Heefnu³ee ìHH³eeDebleie&le 30 veesJnWyej 2012 He³e¥le 
MeeKeeHeeleUerJej mebueiveerkeÀjCe keÀjC³eele Deeues.

	 	 ogmeN³ee ìHH³eeceO³es 10 SefÒeue 2013 He³e¥le efJeYeeieer³e 
HeeleUerJej mebueiveerkeÀjCe HetCe& kesÀues.

	 	 eflemeN³ee ìHH³eeceO³es 15 ces 2013 He³e¥le mebHetCe& yeBkesÀleerue 
ûeenkeÀeb®³ee efJeefJeOe Keel³eeb®es mebueiveerkeÀjCe HetCe& Peeues.

	 l³eecegUs efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves efveOee&efjle kesÀuesu³ee keÀeueeJeOeerle 
efveoxMeeb®eer HeefjHetCe&lee Peeueer.

l	 DeeOeej Keeles :

	 DeeOeej HesceWì ye´erpe ÒeCeeueer (APBS), MeemekeÀer³e Devegoevee®es 
ûeenkeÀe®³ee Keel³eele Lesì nmleeblejCe keÀjC³eemeeþer JeeHejueer 
peeles. Meemeveeves ve@Meveue HesceWì keÀe@HeexjsMeve®³ee (NPCI) 
ceeO³eceeletve Devegoevee®es Lesì nmleeblejCe keÀjC³ee®eer efnlekeÀejer 
³eespevee ûeenkeÀebmeeþer efle®³ee meYeemeo yeBkeÀebvee osT kesÀueer Deens. 
³eeDebleie&le ie@me Devegoeve, efMe#eCe Devegoeve Fl³eeoeRmeejKes 
DeveskeÀ ÒekeÀej®es MeemekeÀer³e Devegoeve ûeenkeÀe®³ee Keel³eele 
Lesì pecee JneJes ³eemeeþer DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves DeeOeej HesceWì ye´erpe 
ÒeCeeueer (ABPS) ner mesJee ve@Meveue HesceWì keÀe@HeexjsMeve Dee@HeÀ 
Fbef[³eeceeHe&Àle DeeHeu³ee ûeenkeÀebkeÀefjlee ®eeuet kesÀuesueer Deens.

8)	 HetJeea®³ee ³eespeveeb®eer meÐeefmLeleer :

	 ÒeMeemekeÀer³e mJeefve³eb$ekeÀ G®®e HeoeefOekeÀejer (Deemeje): 
(Administrative Self Regulatory Authority 
- ASRA)

	 Deemeje (ASRA) ne efJeYeeie DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves peguew 2011 
ceO³es megª kesÀuee. iesu³ee Je<e&Yejele l³eele ®eebieueer megmet$elee 
³esTve lees yeBkesÀ®³ee mebmLeelcekeÀ mebj®eves®ee DeefJeYeep³e IeìkeÀ 

yeveuee Deens. ieleJe<eea®³ee DenJeeueele veceto kesÀu³eeÒeceeCes 
Deemeje®es cegK³e keÀe³e& cnCepes MeeKeebceOeerue keÀeceebceO³es 
megmet$elee DeeCeCes, yeBkesÀves DeeKetve efouesu³ee keÀe³e&ÒeCeeueer Je 
keÀe³e&He×leer lemes®e Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ Je Flej efve³eecekeÀ 
mebmLeebveer efouesu³ee efveoxMeeb®es keÀeìskeÀesj Heeueve nesle Deens keÀe 
³ee®eer Kee$eer keÀjCes ns Deens. Deemeje®³ee osKejsKeerKeeueer yeBkesÀves 
SketÀCe 52 OeesjCeebb®es (Policy Document) omleSsJepe 
le³eej kesÀues DeeefCe 15 efve³eceeJeu³ee (Manual) DeÐe³eeJeled 
keÀªve Iesleu³ee. MeeKeebvee Yesì osTve lesLes efve³eceeb®es Je 
ceeie&oMe&keÀ leÊJeeb®es Heeueve nesles keÀe, nsner Deemeje JesUesJesUer 
leHeemele Demeles. ¿ee YesìeRceOetve MeeKee J³eJemLeeHekeÀ Je 
Flej keÀce&®eeN³eeb®es keÀeceeleerue efve<keÀeUpeerHeCeecegUs nesCeeN³ee 
mebYeeJ³e efmLeleeryeeyele ÒeyeesOeve kesÀues peeles. efve³eceeb®es Heeueve 
keÀjC³ee®es cenÊJe Je l³ee®eer DeeJeM³ekeÀlee mecepeeJeueer peeles. 
¿ee meieÈ³ee®ee ®eebieuee ueeYe Peeu³ee®es uesKeeHejer#eCee®³ee Je 
leHeemeCeer®³ee cetu³eceeHeveeletve ue#eele ³esles. DeeHeu³ee MeeKeeb®eer 
leHeemeCeer ÞesCeer megOeejC³eemener ³eecegUs ceole Peeueer Deens. 

	 keÀemee þsJeeR®³ee Je=×ermeeþer ceesnerce - keÀemee Je<e& :

	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves 2012-2013 ¿ee Je<ee&le 2,20,157 
veJeerve keÀemee Keeleer GIe[ueer. keÀemee Keel³eeb®³ee Debleie&le 
efJeefJeOe þsJe ³eespevee Deensle, p³eeceO³es ` 100 FlekeÀer efkeÀceeve 
jkeÌkeÀce DemeCeeN³ee Keel³eebHeemetve (keÀyped Keeles, De#e³e me@uejer 
Je peveefnle þsJe Keeles), ` 1,000 les ` 3,00,000 He³e¥le 
FlekeÀer efkeÀceeve jkeÌkeÀce DemeCeejer Keeleer Deensle. keÀemee Keel³eeb®es 
ÒeceeCe Jee{efJeC³eemeeþer efkeÀceeve jkeÌkeÀce DemeCeeN³ee ®eeuet Je ye®ele 
Keel³eeb®eer peemleerle peemle mebK³ee Jee{efJeCes iejpes®es Deens. 
2012-13 ¿ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le keÀyped DeeefCe De#e³e  
me@uejer ¿ee Keel³eebHes#ee meeOeejCe ®eeuet DeeefCe ye®ele Keel³eebveer 
þsJeeRceO³es peemle Yej Ieeleueer. ³eeHeg{sner DeeHeu³ee MeeKee GÊece 
Òeleer®eer keÀemee Keeleer (p³eeceO³es efkeÀceeve efMeuuekeÀ jkeÌkeÀce peemle 
Deens) DeeCetve yeBkesÀ®³ee efveJJeU J³eepe efceUkeÀleerle Yej Ieeueleerue 
Demee efJeéeeme Deens. keÀemee Keeleer Jee{efJeC³eemeeþer ûeenkeÀebvee 
leb$e%eeveeOeeefjle lemes®e DeeOegefvekeÀ megefJeOee DemeCeeN³ee keÀemee 
³eespevee DeeHeCe megª kesÀu³ee Deensle. JesieJesieÈ³ee Òe³elveebveblej 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee keÀemee J³eJemee³e kesÀJeU ` 300.63 keÀesìeRveer 
Jee{uee.
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lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 5 - keÀemee þsJeeR®eer efmLeleer 

	 (` keÀesìeRceO³es)

leHeMeerue 31.03.12 31.03.13
SketÀCe þsJeer 19,252.71 21,144.33

keÀemee J³eJemee³e 5,081.38 5,382.01

keÀemee ìkeÌkesÀJeejer 26.39 25.45

keÀemee þsJeeRleerue Jee{ 300.63

	 keÀemee J³eJemee³e Jee{efJeCes ner yeBkesÀ®eer keÀe³ece®e Deûe¬eÀcelee 
jenerue. yeBkesÀ®³ee DeefOekeÀejer Je keÀce&®eejer mebIeìveebveer ³eeHetJeea®e 
SkeÀ mJeeieleen& HeeTue G®euetve YeefJe<³eeleerue JesleveÞesCeer 
keÀjejeDeeOeer yeBkesÀ®ee keÀemee J³eJemee³e 32 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀe 
ieeþC³ee®es ue#³e þsJeues Deens. ³eeJeªve®e meJe& mLejeleerue 
keÀce&®eejer Jeiee&ceO³es keÀemee þsJeer Jee{efJeC³eemeeþer vesìeves ®eeueuesues 
Òe³elve efometve ³esleele. keÀemee J³eJemee³e SketÀCe þsJeeR®³ee 40 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHe³e¥le vesC³ee®ee yeBkesÀ®ee ceeveme Deens Je ns ue#³e ieeþCes 
ne yeBkesÀ®ee meelel³eeves Òe³eeme Demesue.

	 keÀpe& efJeYeeieemeeþer efJeMes<e uesKeeHejer#eCe :- (Credit 
Portfolio Audit - CPA)

	 uesKeeHejer#ekeÀeb®³ee ìercme®³ee ceoleerves CPA efJeYeeie 
Deelee DeefOekeÀ me#ece Peeuee Deens. yeBkesÀ®³ee meO³ee®³ee 
uesKeeHejer#eCee®³ee ÒeCeeueerceO³es megmet$eerkeÀjCe keÀªve leer  
Dee@veueeF&ve He×leerceO³es HejeJeefle&le keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens. 
Òel³eskeÀer ` 20 keÀesìeRHes#ee peemle keÀpe&jkeÌkeÀce Demeuesu³ee 
SketÀCe ` 9,300 keÀesìeR®³ee meJe& JeeefCep³e keÀpe&Keel³eeb®es 

uesKeeHejer#eCe ¿ee efJeYeeieeves HetCe& kesÀues Deens. l³eeefMeJee³e  
` 5 keÀesìer les ` 20 keÀesìer keÀpe&jkeÌkeÀce Demeuesu³ee SketÀCe 
`  2,200 keÀesìeR®³ee keÀpe&Keel³eeb®esner 50 ìkeÌkesÀ uesKeeHejer#eCe 
HetCe& Peeues Deens. GJe&efjle 100 Keel³eeb®es uesKeeHejer#eCe  
2013-14®³ee Heefnu³ee meneceener ojc³eeve HetCe& keÀjC³eele 
³esF&ue. keÀpe&cebpegjerveblej omleSsJepe, leejCe, efJecee, ieneCeKele, 
veeWoCeeryeoue ³eeyeeyeleerle uesKeeHejer#eCeele efveoxefMele kesÀuesu³ee 
cenÊJee®³ee yeeyeer J³eJeefmLeleHeCes HetCe& kesÀu³eeveblej®e uesKeeHejer#eCe 
DenJeeue yebo keÀjC³ee®eer Devegceleer efoueer peeles. Deeieeceer Je<ee&le 
keÀpe&Keel³eebyeeyele ³eesi³e efve³eb$eCe DeeCeC³ee®³ee ¢<ìerves Je DeHetCe& 
Òeef¬eÀ³eeb®eer Hetle&lee lJeefjle Je HeefjHetCe& nesC³eemeeþer ³eesi³e HeeJeues 
G®eueueer peeleerue.   

	 keÀce&®eeN³eeb®³ee keÀecekeÀepee®³ee peyeeyeoejer®es OeesjCe - 
(Employee Accountability Policy) :

	 DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2011-12 ojc³eeve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves 
keÀecekeÀepeeleerue keÀce&®eeN³eeb®³ee peyeeyeoejer®es OeesjCe le³eej 
kesÀues. l³ee®eer cegK³e GefÎ<ìs KeeueerueÒeceeCes :

		 keÀce&®eeN³eebÜejs J³eJenej neleeUleevee kesÀuesueer ®etkeÀ Je 
Peeuesu³ee efve<keÀeUpeerHeCeemeeþer®es mJeªHe þjJetve keÀejJeeF& 
efveef½ele keÀjCes.

		 oes<eer keÀce&®eeN³eebJej®e keÀejJeeF& keÀjCes Je efveoex<e J³ekeÌleeRvee 
l³eeHeemetve Deueie þsJeC³ee®eer Keyejoejer IesCes.

		 meJe& keÀce&®eeN³eebvee Keeueerue ieesäer mecepeu³ee Deensle ³ee®eer 
Kee$eer keÀjCes :

		  De)	HeÀkeÌle oes<eer keÀce&®eeN³eebJej®e keÀejJeeF& nesF&ue.

		  ye)	 yeBkesÀ®³ee Òel³eskeÀ vegkeÀmeeve ÒekeÀjCeer keÀce&®eeN³eebJej 
keÀejJeeF& nesF&ue®e Demes veener.

	 DenJeeueJe<eer& ®eerHeÀ DekeÀeTbefìefyeefueìer Dee@efHeÀmejkeÀ[s 
HeÀmeJeCetkeÀ, efve<keÀeUpeerHeCee Je DeuHeeJeOeerle®e keÀpe&ÒekeÀjCe 
cees[erle peeTve yeBkesÀuee Peeuesues vegkeÀmeeve DeMeer 58 ÒekeÀjCes 
megHeto& keÀjC³eele Deeueer. l³eeHewkeÀer ¿ee Je<ee&®³ee meceeHleerHe³e¥le 
³eebHewkeÀer 30 ÒekeÀjCeeb®eer leHeemeÒeef¬eÀ³ee HetCe& keÀjC³eele Deeueer. 
vewmeefie&keÀ v³ee³ee®eer Hetle&lee keÀªve yeBkesÀves ³eeyeeyeleerle lelHejlesves 
mebyebefOele keÀce&®eeN³eeb®es efveuebyeve, oes<eejesHeHe$e, Jeeef<e&keÀ HeieejJee{ 
jesKeCes DeMee mJeªHee®eer keÀejJeeF& kesÀueer. ¿ee keÀejJeeF&cegUs Dev³e 
keÀce&®eeN³eebveener DeMee iewjÒekeÀejele DeeHeCe menYeeieer Demelee 
keÀecee ve³es Demee Je®ekeÀ efveef½eleHeCes yemeuee. ¿ee OeesjCeecegUs 
iewjÒekeÀejele oes<eer Dee{Uuesu³ee keÀce&®eeN³eeuee keÀejJeeF&uee 
meeceesjs peeJes ueeiesue ³ee®eer peeCeerJe meJe& keÀce&®eeN³eebceO³es Peeueer. 
l³ee®eyejesyej DeeHeCe iewjÒekeÀejele oes<eer vemeu³eeme DeeHeCeeme 
yeBkesÀkeÀ[tve HetCe& mebj#eCe efceUsue ³ee®es Deeéeemevener efceUeues.

	 yeBkesÀ®³ee veJeerve GHeke´Àceeb®ee efJeYeeie - New Initiative 
Unit (N.I.U.) :

	 pegves yeBefkebÀie Deelee Fefleneme pecee Peeues Deens. DeeOegefvekeÀ 
leb$e%eeve Deelee DeefleJesieeves yeBefkebÀie #es$eele ³esle Deens DeeefCe 
l³ee®ee JeeHej yeBefkebÀie®³ee JesieJesieÈ³ee #es$eele PeHeeìîeeves 
Hemejle Deens. `keÀeUeÒeceeCes yeoueCes ns ®eebieues Demeles Hejbleg 
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keÀeUe®³eeHeg{s jenCes ns l³eenerHes#ee GÊece Demeles' ner GkeÌleer 
Sved.Dee³e.³eg. (New Initiative Unit – veJeerve GHe¬eÀce 
efJeYeeie) ¿ee efJeYeeieeves DeeHeu³ee vepejsmeceesj þsJeueer Deens. ne 
efJeYeeie DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀme DeeOegefvekeÀ leb$e%eeveeÜejs ûeenkeÀebme 
veJeveJeerve megefJeOee osC³eeme keÀefìye× Deens.

	 Sved.Dee³e.³eg. efJeYeeiee®eer peer GefÎ<ìs Deensle veJeerve ³eespevee 
efJekeÀefmele keÀjCes, veJeerve leb$e%eeve yeBkesÀle DeeCeCes, MeeKeebceOeerue 
Òeef¬eÀ³ee (Back-end) J³eJenejele megmet$elee DeeCeCes, lemes®e 
yeBkesÀleerue keÀce&®eeN³eeb®eer DeeOegefvekeÀ yeBefkebÀie Je DeeOegefvekeÀ leb$e%eeve 
Deelcemeele keÀjC³eemeeþer ceveesYetefcekeÀe le³eej keÀjCess. ³eeefMeJee³e 
yeBefkebÀieceOeerue JesieJesieÈ³ee efJe<e³eebJej lemes®e leb$e%eeveeefOeefÿle 
mesJee Je GlHeeoves ceeefnleer leb$e%eeveeJej efJekeÀefmele keÀjCes, 
iegbleJeCetkeÀmeboYee&le ûeenkeÀebvee ceeie&oMe&ve keÀjCes, Dee@veueeF&ve 
efJeHeCeve lemes®e DeMee DeveskeÀ Heefj³eespeveebJej keÀece keÀjCes - 
pesCeskeÀªve DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ peeieeflekeÀ yeBkeÀeb®³ee opee&®³ee megefJeOee 
osT MekesÀue.

	 meeceeefpekeÀ mebJeeo leb$e%eeve ceeO³eces (social media)ner 
Deelee mebJeeoe®eer veJeerve ceeO³eces Peeueer Deensle. Òel³e#e J³ekeÌleerMeer 
mebJeeo meeOeC³eeHes#ee ûeenkeÀ Deelee HesÀmeyegkeÀ, eqìdJeìj, iegieue 
DeMee meeF&ìdmeJej peeTve DeeHeu³eeuee kegÀþu³ee ³eespevee nJ³ee 
Deensle, les þjJele Demelees. DeeHeCener DeeHeu³ee ûeenkeÀebMeer ³eeÜejs 
mebHekeÀe&le jentve l³eeb®³eeMeer DeeHeues J³eeJeneefjkeÀ mebyebOe ¢{ 
keÀª MekeÀlees. NIU®³ee He´³elveebletve   ¿ee meeF&ìdmeJej yeBkesÀ®es 
veeJe efomeu³eeves melele DeeHeCe ûeenkeÀeb®³ee [esÈ³eebmeceesj jent Je 
l³eecegUs yeBkesÀ®³ee ye´B[®ee Òemeej JneJe³eeme ceole nesF&ue. 	

	 DeeHeueer GHekebÀHeveer meejmJele FvHeÀesìskeÀ efue.(SIL) ³eeb®³ee 
ceeO³eceeletve Sved.Dee³e.³eg. efJeYeeie efJekeÀefmele keÀjerle Demeuesu³ee 
keÀener ³eespevee :

	 	 J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀebmeeþer Fbìjvesì yeBefkebÀie J³eemeHeerþ.

	 	 ceesyeeF&ue yeBefkebÀie.

	 	 Fbìjvesì yeBefkebÀie.

	 	 Dee@veueeF&ve ye´esefkebÀie megefJeOee.

	 	 ÒeerHes[ megefJeOee - Hes-jesue DeeefCe efieHeÌì keÀe[&.

	 	 Dev³e DeveskeÀ mesJee-megefJeOee ueJekeÀj®e GHeueyOe.

	 ³eeefMeJee³e otjef®e$eJeeCeer lemes®e ³egìîegyeJejner meejmJele yeBkesÀ®ee 
®esnje efomeeJee ³eemeeþer Sved.Dee³e.³eg. efJeYeeie Òe³elveMeerue Deens. 

veeJeerv³eHetCe& ³eespeveebÜejs DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀHeg{erue J³eJemee³ee®³ee 
mebOeer Jee{efJeCes ns Sved.Dee³e.³eg. efJeYeeiee®es O³es³e Deens. ¿ee 
efJeYeeieeves neleer Iesleuesues efJeefJeOe GHe¬eÀce jeyeefJeC³eemeeþer 
DeeHeu³eekeÀ[s kegÀMeue Je DevegYeJeer keÀce&®eejer Deensle. les efJeÊe, 
efJeHeCeve, yeBefkebÀie, meeceev³e efJe%eeve lemes®e yeBefkebÀie yeepeejHesþs®ee 
DeY³eeme ¿ee efJeefJeOe efJe<e³eeble efveHegCe Deensle. ¿ee efJeYeeieeleerue 
keÀce&®eejer ns le©Ce Deensle. les DeefleMe³e cesnvele IesTve keÀeces 
keÀjerle Deensle. l³eeb®³eeÜejs DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es ªHeeblej ³esl³ee 
keÀener keÀeUele GÊece yeBkesÀletve DeefleGÊece yeBkesÀle efveef½eleHeCes 
nesF&ue.

	 J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀe³e&ÒeCeeueer Hegvej&®evee (yeer.Heer.Deej.) 
ÒekeÀuHee®eer Òeieleer :

	 iele ®eej Je<ee¥Heemetve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀle yeer.Heer.Deej. ÒekeÀuHe 
keÀe³e&jle Deens. yeer.Heer.Deej.®³ee cegK³e GÎsMeevegmeej yeBkesÀves 
DeeleeHe³e¥le mene efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpex Je J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀebmeeþer ueIegkeÀpex 
neleeUC³eemeeþer ceO³eJeleea jemeskeÀ efJeYeeie (RASEC), mene 
ueIeg Je ceO³ece GÐeesie keÀpe& efJeYeeie (SME), one eqkeÌueDejeRie 
Òeesmesefmebie meWìme&, oesve ceO³eJeleea ef[Hee@efPeì meefJn&me meWìme& 
DeeefCe SkeÀ `omleSsJepe peHeCetkeÀ keWÀê' megª kesÀues. yeBkesÀ®³ee 
J³eJemee³ee®eer efJeYeeieJeejer keÀªve ®eej efve³eespeveye× efJeYeeieeb®eer 
mLeeHevee kesÀueer (Strategic Business Unit - SBU). 
1) J³eeHeejer keÀpe&efJeYeeie (Wholesale Banking); 2) 
efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&efJeYeeie (Retail Banking); 3) iebOekeÀes<e 
Je 4) keÀes<eeefJeYeeie ns les efJeYeeie (SBU) nesle. efJeÊeer³e 
Je<e& 2013-14 ojc³eeve mebceerefuele yeBkeÀeb®³ee iebOekeÀes<e 
efJeYeeieemeeþer oesve efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe& Je J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀebmeeþer ueIeg 
keÀpe& neleeUCeejs ceO³eJeleea jemeskeÀ efJeYeeie ®eeuet keÀjC³ee®ee 
yeBkesÀ®ee ceeveme Deens.

9)	 mebceerueerkeÀjCee®es cetu³eceeHeve :

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2006-2007 ojc³eeve DeeHeCe menkeÀejer yeBefkebÀie 
#es$eeleerue De[®eCeerle Deeuesu³ee keÀener yeBkeÀe DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀle 
mebceerefuele keÀªve IesC³eeme meg©Jeele kesÀueer. DeepeHeeJeslees De[®eCeerle 
Deeuesu³ee meele yeBkeÀe l³eeb®³ee megceejs 6,80,000 þsJeeroejeb®es 
efnlej#eCe keÀjC³eemeeþer DeeHeCe DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀle mebceerefuele keÀªve 
Iesleu³ee. mebceerefuele keÀjC³ee®³ee JesUer l³eeJesUs®³ee meele yeBkeÀeb®³ee 
efceUtve SketÀCe 96 MeeKee nesl³ee. ³eeHewkeÀer 31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer 
49 MeeKee l³eeb®³ee HetJeea®³ee peeieer keÀe³e&jle Deensle. ¿ee 49 MeeKee 
iebOekeÀes<e ¿ee efJeMes<e efJeYeeiee®³ee (SBU) osKejsKeerKeeueer keÀe³e&jle 
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Deensle. mebceerefuele yeBkeÀeb®³ee MeeKeebHewkeÀer SkeÀ MeeKee keÀecekeÀepee®³ee 
meesF&keÀefjlee cetU meejmJele yeBkesÀ®³ee Heefjceb[U Hee®eceO³es DebleYet&le 
kesÀueer Deens. SketÀCe J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ J³eJene³e&lee ue#eele IesTve 
mebceerefuele yeBkeÀeb®³ee 46 pegv³ee MeeKee vepeerkeÀ®³ee MeeKeebceO³es 
efJeueerve keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee Deensle efkebÀJee HetCe&le: yebo keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee 
Deensle. yebo kesÀuesu³ee MeeKeebHewkeÀer mebceerefuele yeBkeÀeb®es 18 MeeKee 
HejJeeves, iebOekeÀes<e efJeYeeieeves Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®eer HejJeeveieer 
IesTve veJeerve mLeueebleefjle efþkeÀeCeer MeeKee GIe[C³eemeeþer JeeHejues. 
(³eeJ³eefleefjkeÌle Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee HejJeeveieerves iebOekeÀes<e 
efJeYeeieeKeeueer 30 veJeerve MeeKee GYeeju³ee). ¿ee MeeKee cegbyeF&, HegCes, 
Heef½ece cenejeä^, veJeer efouueer Je iegpejele ¿ee Yeeieele megª kesÀu³ee. 
mebceerefuele yeBkeÀeb®es meesUe MeeKee HejJeeves DeeHeCe cetU meejmJele yeBkesÀuee 
veJeerve MeeKee GIe[C³eemeeþer efoues. mebceerefuele yeBkeÀeb®es yeeje HejJeeves 
³eeJe<eer& DeeHeCe veJeerve MeeKee ÒemLeeefHele keÀjC³eemeeþer JeeHejCeej 
Deenesle. 31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer iebOekeÀes<e efJeYeeieeDebleie&le 100 
MeeKee lej cetU meejmJele yeBkesÀDebleie&le 129 MeeKee efceUtve yeBkesÀ®³ee 
SketÀCe 229 MeeKee keÀe³e&jle Deensle.

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ.6 - iebOekeÀes<e efJeYeeiee®eer keÀeceefiejer		
(` keÀesìeRceO³es)

mebceerefuele keÀjC³eele Deeuesu³ee meele yeBkeÀeb®ee 
l³eeJesU®ee SketÀCe J³eJemee³e (SketÀCe MeeKee 96)

1,894.78

31-03-2013 uee iebOekeÀes<e®³ee 100 
MeeKeeb®ee SketÀCe J³eJemee³e

9,239.83

mebceerefuekeÀjCee®³ee JesUer he´eflekeÀce&®eejer J³eJemee³e 1.54
31-3-2013 uee he´eflekeÀce&®eejer J³eJemee³e 7.49
{esyeU Deveglheeefole keÀpex (mebceerefuekeÀjCee®³ee 
JesUer)

276.41

31-3-2013 uee {esyeU Deveglheeefole keÀpex 101.60
31-3-2013 he³e¥le veJeerve MeeKeebmen SketÀCe 
Deveglheeefole keÀpee&®eer Jemegueer

174.81

iebOekeÀes<e®³ee MeeKeebveer efceUefJeuesuee {esyeU veHeÀe 395.82
iebOekeÀes<e®³ee MeeKeebveer efceUefJeuesuee keÀjesÊej 
efveJJeU veHeÀe

296.59

meele yeBkeÀe mebceerefuele keÀªve iebOekeÀes<e efvecee&Ce 
keÀjC³eemeeþer DeeHeCe JeeHejuesueer yeBkesÀ®eer SketÀCe 
iebieepeUer

280.00

Jejerue lekeÌl³eeJeªve iebOekeÀes<e efJeYeeiee®ee SketÀCe J³eJemee³e 

mebceerueerkeÀjCee®³ee efoJeMeer Demeuesu³ee ` 1,894.78 keÀesìeRJeªve 

31 cee®e& 2013 DeKesjerme ` 9,239.83 keÀesìer He³e¥le Jee{efJeC³eele 
DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ ³eMemJeer Peeueer Je iebOekeÀes<e efJeYeeie Deelee yeBkesÀ®es SkeÀ veHeÀe 

keWÀê (Profit Centre) yeveues Deens ns mHe<ì nesF&ue.

10)	MeeKeeefJemleej :

ceeieerue Je<eer&®³ee DenJeeueele veceto kesÀu³eeÒeceeCes Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& 
yeBkesÀves l³eeJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀme `keÀejCes oeKeJee' veesìerme 
peejer kesÀueer nesleer.¿ee keÀejCeemleJe DeeHeuee veJeerve MeeKee megª 
keÀjC³ee®ee `DeéecesOe' GHe¬eÀce ceboeJeuee neslee. Hejbleg Deecner 
Deece®³ee YeeieOeejkeÀebme keÀUJet Feq®ílees keÀer, meoj veesìermeuee 
HeeþefJeuesu³ee GÊejebJej meceeOeeve J³ekeÌle keÀjle Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& 
yeBkesÀves DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀJej kegÀþu³eener ÒekeÀej®ee ob[ ueeJeuee veener. 
DeeHeCe efouesues mHeäerkeÀjCe DeeefCe YeefJe<³eele meJe& ûeenkeÀeb®³ee 
mebMe³eemHeo J³eJenejeb®ee DenJeeue lJeefjle keÀUefJeCes Je kesÀ.Jee³e.meer. 
OeesjCe keÀeìskeÀesjHeCes HeeUCes ³ee®eer efouesueer nceer, ³eecegUs Yeejleer³e 
efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves l³eeb®³ee YetefcekesÀle yeoue keÀªve DenJeeueJe<eea GefMeje 
keÀe nesF&vee, veJeerve MeeKeeefJemleejeme HejJeeveieer efoueer. ³eecegUs 
DeeefLe&keÀJe<e& 2012-13 ceO³es DeeHeCe kesÀJeU ®eej veJeerve MeeKee 
GIe[t MekeÀuees. ¿eecegUs DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves 23 SefÒeue 2013 jespeer 
HebOeje veJeerve MeeKee megª kesÀu³ee, lemes®e 20 Dee@iemì 2013 
jespeer l³eeble DeeCeKeer leerve veJeerve MeeKeeb®eer Yej Ieeleueer. ³esl³ee 
Je<ee&le MeeKeeefJemleeje®ee keÀe³e&¬eÀce peesceeves megª keÀjC³ee®ee Deece®ee 
ceeveme Deens. lemes®e 30 meHìWyej 2013 He³e¥le DeeHeu³ee MeeKee 
251 keÀjC³eemeeþer DeeHeues Òe³elve megª Deensle. ³eeyeÎue®ee DeefOekeÀ 
leHeMeerue 30 meHìWyej 2013 jespeer nesCeeN³ee Jeeef<e&keÀ meJe&meeOeejCe 
meYesleerue DeO³e#eer³e Yee<eCeele osC³eele ³esF&ue. 

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ 7

leHeMeerue ¬eÀceebkeÀ
31 cee®e& 2012 jespeer yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe MeeKee 226
DeefOekeÀ - 2012-13 ¿ee Je<ee&le megª kesÀuesu³ee veJeerve MeeKee 4
GCes - 2012-13 ¿ee Je<ee&le yebo/mebceerefuele kesÀuesu³ee MeeKee 1
31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe MeeKee 229
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DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es GIe[uesu³ee ®eej MeeKeeb®ee leHeMeerue KeeueerueÒeceeCes :

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 8

De.¬eÀ. MeeKes®es veeJe HeÊee GodIeeìvee®eer leejerKe

1 Dee³e.meer. keÀe@ueveer (yeesefjJeueer he.) Mee@he veb. 1,2, leUcepeuee, yeesefjJeueer ©yeer men. ie=.mebmLee 
ce³ee&. nesueer ke´Àe@me jes[, Dee³emeer keÀe@ueveer, yeesefjJeueer (he.), 
cegbyeF& 400 103

25-06-2012

2 Ssjesueer MeeKee (SìerSce men) Mee@he veb. 1,2, leUcepeuee, ÞeerpeerOeece keÀe@chueskeÌme, meskeÌìj 
7, Ssjesueer, veJeer cegbyeF& - 400 708

28-06-2012

3 yeesF&mej (SìerSce men) Mee@he veb. 1,2,3, leUcepeuee, Deces³e heeke&À, efye. veb. 2 
S,yeesF&mej-veJeehegj jes[, yeesF&mej (he.) - þeCes 401 501

29-06-2012

4 keÀeshejer þeCes (SìerSce men) Mee@he veb. 6 les 11, leUcepeuee, efme×eLe& veiej, keÀeshejer  
keÀe@ueveer, þeCes (het.), 400 603

20-02-2013

DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeCe DeeHeues SkeÀ He´cegKe keÀe³ee&ue³e veJ³ee peeiesle 
mLeueebleefjle kesÀues.
lekeÌlee ¬eÀ.9

De.
¬eÀ.

keÀe³ee&ue³ee®es
veeJe

veJeerve HeÊee mLeueeblejCe 
efoveebkeÀ

1 Smeyeer³et - 
keÀes<eeefJeYeeie

19/21, yee@cyes 
c³eg®³egDeue ®eWyej, 
1uee ceeUe, Debyeeueeue 
oesMeer ceeie&, HeÀesì&, 
cegbyeF& 400 001

06-08-2012

lemes®e pegv³ee ceeb[Jeer keÀes-Dee@He. yeBkesÀ®eer me@c³egDeue mì^erì ner MeeKee 
DeeHeCe DeeHeu³ee ceefmpeo yeboj ¿ee MeeKesle efJeueerve kesÀueer.

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 10

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ojc³eeve efJeueerve Peeuesu³ee MeeKes®ess veeJe:
De.
¬eÀ.

keÀe³ee&ue³ee®es
 veeJe

MeeKes®ee heÊee efJeueerveerkeÀjCe
efoveebkeÀ

1 me@c³egDeue 
mì^erì MeeKee

ceeqmpeo yeboj MeeKee, 
80-82, he´eiejepe 
Fmeepeer eqmì^ì, ceeqmpeo 
yeboj (he.), cegbyeF& - 
400 009

01-07-2012

pegv³ee MeeKeeb®es vetleveerkeÀjCe :
DeeHeCeeme %eele®e Deens keÀer, DeeHeu³ee pegv³ee MeeKeeb®es DeeHeu³ee veJeerve 
ye´B[®³ee Deveg<ebieeves DeeHeCe vetleveerkeÀjCe Je megMeesefYekeÀjCe keÀjerle 
Deenesle. DenJeeueJe<eea 18 pegv³ee MeeKeeb®es mebHetCe&le: vetleveerkeÀjCe 
keÀjC³eele Deeues. les lekeÌlee ke´À. 11 ceO³es Keeueer oeKeefJeC³eele Deeues 
Deens.

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 11

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ojc³eeve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves kesÀuesu³ee 18 
pegv³ee MeeKeeb®³ee vegleveerkeÀjCee®ee leHeMeerue :

De.he´. MeeKes®es veeJe vegleveerkeÀjCe 
hetCe&lJee®eer leejerKe

1 ie´Bì jes[, cegbyeF& 18-04-2012
2 efìUkeÀ jes[, hegCes 28-04-2012
3 vesªU (he.), veJeer cegbyeF& 21-07-2012
4 oefnmej (het.) cegbyeF& 21-07-2012
5 JeeMeer (veJeer cegbyeF&) 17-08-2012
6 efJeuesheeuex (het.) cegbyeF& 14-09-2012
7 DeeQOe, hegCes 14-09-2012
8 ceOegkeWÀê, oeoj, cegbyeF& 15-09-2012
9 peesieséejer (het.) cegbyeF& 04-01-2013

10 ce[ieeJe, ieesJee 05-01-2013
11 HeÀeW[e, ieesJee 05-01-2013
12 meJeexo³e veiej, ceguegb[ (he.) 13-02-2013
13 [neCetkeÀj keÀe@ueveer, hegCes 02-03-2013
14 meceeosJeer, yesUieeJe 15-03-2013
15 efìUkeÀJee[er, yesUieeJe 15-03-2013
16 Je[eUe, cegbyeF& 20-03-2013
17 Ke[kesÀéej, Deewjbieeyeeo 30-03-2013
18 he´YeeosJeer, cegbyeF& 30-03-2013
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12)	uesKeeHejer#eCe Je leHeemeCeer :

uesKeeHejer#eCe ns yeBkesÀ®³ee ceeueceÊes®es j#eCe keÀjles®e Hejbleg Yeejleer³e 

efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ lemes®e Flej mebmLeebveer Je DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ 

ceb[Ueves efouesu³ee met®evee lemes®e ceeie&oMe&keÀ leÊJeeb®es Heeuevener 

yeBkesÀ®³ee meJe& J³eJenejele nesle Deens, ³ee®eer o#elee Iesle Demeles. 

DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee þjeefJekeÀ cenÊJee®³ee MeeKeeb®es uesKeeHejer#eCe ns 

meceeJeleea uesKeeHejer#ekeÀebleHexÀ kesÀues peeles. ³eekeÀefjlee yeensjerue efJeefJeOe 

uesKeeHejer#ekeÀ mebmLeebvee DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves efve³egkeÌle kesÀues Deens. 

Jejerue MeeKeebJ³eefleefjkeÌle Flej MeeKeeb®es $ewceeefmekeÀ uesKeeHejer#eCe 

yeBkesÀves vesceuesues yee¿e uesKeeHejer#ekeÀ keÀjleele. ³eeefMeJee³e meJe& 

MeeKeeb®es Jeeef<e&keÀ lej meJe& `jemeskeÀ efJeYeeie' Je `Smed.Sced.F&.' 

MeeKeeb®es uesKeeHejer#eCe DeOe&Jeeef<e&keÀ keÀeueeJeOeerves kesÀues peeles. 

lemes®e veJeerve MeeKeeb®es uesKeeHejer#eCe Heefnueer oesve Je<ex Òel³eskeÀ 

efleceeneruee nesles. ³eeceO³es veJeerve MeeKeeb®eer meJe& DeeefLe&keÀ J³eJenej 

OeesjCeeb®eer DebceueyepeeJeCeer, lemes®e KYC ¿ee Deveg<ebieeves meKeesue 

leHeemeCeer nesles. uesKeeHejer#eCeeojc³eeve DeeHeu³ee meb®eeuekeÀ 

ceb[Ueves DeeKeuesu³ee OeesjCeevegmeej Òel³eskeÀ MeeKesuee Je efJeYeeieeuee 

`leHeemeCeer ÞesCeer' osC³ee®eer He×le DeJeuebefyeueer peeles. keÀceer ÞesCeer 

Demeuesu³ee MeeKee lemes®e efJeYeeieebJej efJeMes<e ue#e HegjJetve l³eeb®³ee 

opee&le megOeejCee keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee meJe&leesHejer meene³³e kesÀues peeles. 

uesKeeHejer#eCe ns Dee@veueeF&ve He×leerves kesÀues peeles Je l³ee®ee DenJeeue 

uesKeeHejer#eCe efJeYeeieeuee lJeefjle GHeueyOe neslees. `kebÀHuee³evme cee@

[îetue'cegUs cenÊJee®es cegÎs Je l³ee®eer Hetle&lee mebyebefOele DeefOekeÀeN³eebvee 

íeveveermeeþer lJeefjle efceUeu³eecegUs Òeef¬eÀ³ee megueYe Peeueer Deens. 

³eeJ³eefleefjkeÌle leb$e%eeveeJej DeeOeeefjle ³eespevee/megefJeOeebkeÀefjlee 

Dee³ed.Smed. uesKeeHejer#eCener kesÀues peeles.

13)	o#elee efJeYeeie :

o#elee efJeYeeie ne yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀe³e&He×leerleerue $egìer MeesOetve keÀe{tve 
iewjJ³eJenej nesT ve³es cnCetve Òe³elveMeerue Demelees. DeeHeu³ee lemes®e 
Flej yeBkeÀebleerue iewjJ³eJenej ³eeb®ee met#ce DeY³eeme keÀªve DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀe³e&He×leerle keÀener $egìer Dee{Uu³eeme l³ee otj keÀje³e®ee 
Òe³elve keÀjlees. YeefJe<³ekeÀeUele DeMee ieesäer Ie[t ve³esle, ³eemeeþer 
keÀe³e&Jeenerner kesÀueer peeles. o#elee efJeYeeie yeBkesÀle Ie[CeeN³ee meJe& 

veJeerve MeeKeeb®³ee J³eJemee³ee®es cetu³eceeHeve :
peguew 2008 les cee®e& 2013He³e¥le GIe[uesu³ee veJeerve MeeKee 
`DeéecesOe' ¿ee GHe¬eÀceeDebleie&le megª keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee. ¿ee 
veJeerve MeeKee GIe[C³ee®³ee DeeHeu³ee Jee{erJe JesieeJej lemes®e 
keÀce&®eejer Yejleer®³ee Òeef¬eÀ³esJej yeBkesÀ®³ee yeensªve Je yeBkesÀletvener 
keÀener efnleef®eblekeÀebkeÀ[tve ÒeMveef®evn GHeefmLele keÀjC³eele Deeues. 
l³eecegUs yeBkesÀ®³ee meYeemeoebvee efJeéeemeele IesTve mel³e HeefjefmLeleer 
l³eeb®³eemeceesj ceeb[Ces ns Deece®es keÀle&J³e Deens. l³eecegUs Òel³eskeÀ 
Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeueele `DeéecesOe' GHe¬eÀceeDebleie&le megª kesÀuesu³ee 
veJeerve MeeKeeb®eer DeeefLe&keÀ efmLeleer Deecner meYeemeoebmeceesj ceeb[erle 
Demelees.

peguew 2008 les cee®e& 2013 He³e¥le GIe[uesu³ee MeeKeeb®ee leHeMeerue:

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 12	 (` keÀesìeRceO³es)

MeeKeeb®eer mebK³ee þsJeer keÀpex
SketÀCe 

J³eJemee³e
veHeÀe

De) veHeÌ³eeleerue MeeKee  - 42 1,573.47 2,582.95 4,156.42   77.67
ye) leesìîeeleerue MeeKee - 45   746.28   430.79 1,177.07 -16.10
SketÀCe MeeKee            -87 2,319.75 3,013.74 5,333.49   61.57

Jejerue lekeÌl³eele Demes efometve ³esles keÀer, meJe& 87 MeeKeeb®eer SkeÀef$ele 
DeekeÀ[sJeejer yeIelee leesìîeeleerue veJeerve MeeKeeb®ee leesìe meeceeJetve 
IesTvener, SketÀCe 87 veJeerve MeeKee ¿ee veHeÌ³eele Demeu³ee®es efometve 
³esles. ¿ee MeeKeeb®ee veHeÀe ne ` 61.57 keÀesìer FlekeÀe Deens. meO³ee 
leesìîeele Demeuesu³ee 45 MeeKeener megª kesÀu³eeHeemetve oesve Je<ee¥®³ee 
keÀeUele veHeÌ³eele ³esleerue DeMeer Deecneuee Kee$eer Deens.

leesìîeeleerue MeeKee veHeÌ³eele ³esC³eemeeþer Deecner veHeÌ³eele Demeuesu³ee 
MeeKeebveer DeJeuebefyeuesueer OeesjCes DeOeesjsefKele keÀªve leesìîeele 
Demeuesu³ee MeeKeeefOekeÀeN³eeb®eer meYee yeesueeefJeueer. ¿ee meJe& MeeKeebvee 
l³eeb®³ee Heefjmejeleerue J³eJemee³emebOeeR®es meJex#eCe (Economic 
Scanning) keÀjC³eeme meebefieleues. keÀejCe l³eeefMeJee³e ¿ee MeeKeebvee 
l³eeb®³ee Heefjmejeleerue J³eJeneje®³ee mebOeer mecepet MekeÀu³ee vemel³ee

11)	peesKeerce J³eJemLeeHeve :

yeBkesÀ®³ee meJe&®e J³eJenejele peesKeerce ner Demeles®e. yeBefkebÀie ns 
keÀeUeÒeceeCes  melele yeouele Demeles. l³eecegUs®e l³eele melele efvecee&Ce 
nesCeeN³ee peesKeceer DeesUKetve l³eeb®es efvejekeÀjCe lJeefjle keÀjCes 
DeeJeM³ekeÀ Demeles. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ³ee®es cenÊJe JesUer®e DeesUKetve 
Je<e& 2002 ceO³es peesKeerce J³eJemLeeHeve efJeYeeiee®eer mLeeHevee kesÀueer. 
ne efJeYeeie yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eJenejeleerue peesKeceeR®ee DeY³eeme keÀªve l³ee 
efve³eb$eCeele þsJelees.
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iewjJ³eJenejeb®ee Je l³eeJej kesÀuesu³ee keÀejJeeF&®ee DenJeeue meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[Ue®³ee uesKeeHejer#eCe Je Sved.Heer.S. J³eJemLeeHeve meefceleerHeg{s 
þsJelees. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀueener keÀener iewjJ³eJenej Ie[u³eeme 
l³eeb®eer ceeefnleer efoueer peeles. keÀce&®eeN³eeb®³ee ceeefnleermeeþer lemes®e 
DeMeeÒekeÀej®³ee iewjJ³eJenejebvee DeeUe yemeeJee cnCetve iewjJ³eJeneje®eer 
ceeefnleer meJe& MeeKeebvee HeefjHe$ekeÀeÜejs keÀUefJeueer peeles. yeveeJeì 
®eueveer veesìebmeeþer o#elee efJeYeeieeDebleie&le yeBkesÀle SkeÀ mJeleb$e keÀ#e 
megª keÀjC³eele Deeuee Deens. l³ee®ee ceeefmekeÀ DenJeeuener Yeejleer³e 
efjPeJn& yeBkesÀkeÀ[s meeoj kesÀuee peelees.

14) yeBkesÀ®³ee DeeefLe&keÀ keÀeceefiejer®ee Dee{eJee :

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceOeerue keÀe³e&efme×er®eer þUkeÀ 
JewefMe<ìîes :
DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es Yeejlee®ee efJekeÀemeoj ne Hee®e 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHe³e¥le Keeueer Iemejuee. iesu³ee oMekeÀeleuee ne veer®eebkeÀ 
Deens. DeLe&J³eJemLesleerue IemejCe ner ÒeecegK³eeves DeewÐeesefiekeÀ 
GlHeeoveeble Peeuesueer Ieì, efJeefJeOe Jemlegb®³ee HegjJeþîeeMeer efveie[erle 
De[®eCeer Je mesJee#es$eele Deeuesueer efMeefLeuelee ³eecegUs Peeueer. 
DeLe&J³eJemLes®ee oj Jee{erme ueeieC³eekeÀefjlee lemes®e yeepeejeleerue 
lejuelee Jee{efJeC³eekeÀefjlee Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e&  
2012-13 ceO³es jesKe jeKeerJelee ÒeceeCeele (CRR) 0.75 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer keÀHeele kesÀueer lemes®e J³eepeojelener leerve JesUsuee SkeÀef$ele 
1 ìkeÌkeÌ³ee®eer keÀHeele kesÀueer.

Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2013-14 ®³ee HeleOeesjCeele 
³esl³ee Je<ee&lener DeLe&J³eJemLee vejce®e jenC³ee®es mebkesÀle efoues Deensle. 
¿ee DenJeeueevegmeej DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 Hes#ee Deeieeceer Je<ee&le 
DeLe&J³eJemLee keÀener DebMeer megOeejsue, HeCe ner megOeejCee ÒeecegK³eeves 
Je<ee&®³ee GÊejeOee&le®e efometve ³esF&ue Demes veceto kesÀues Deens.

³ee Heeée&YetceerJej DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceOeerue DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee 
keÀeceefiejerb®eer þUkeÀ JewefMe<ìîes KeeueerueÒeceeCes Deensle:

	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee mejemejer Jeeef<e&keÀ Jee{er®ee oj ne DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 
2008-09 les 2012-13 ¿ee Hee®e Je<ee¥le 13.88 ìkeÌkesÀ 
FlekeÀe neslee.

	 DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee SketÀCe 
J³eJemee³e ne 31 cee®e& 2012®³ee ` 33,205.41 
keÀesìeRJeªve 31   cee®e& 2013 jespeer ` 36,167.75 
keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®euee. J³eJemee³eele SkeÀtCe Jee{ ner ̀  2,962.34 
keÀesìer FlekeÀer Deens.

	 SkeÀtCe þsJeer ¿ee 31 cee®e& 2012 jespeer®³ee ` 19,252.71 
keÀesìeRJeªve 31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer ̀  21,144.33 keÀesìeRJej 
Heesn®eueer lej, keÀpex ner 31 cee®e& 2012®³ee ̀  13,952.70 
keÀesìeRJeªve 31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer ̀  15,023.42 keÀesìeRJej 
Heesnes®eueer.

	 yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀjHetJe& veHeÌ³eele 17.27 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{ nesTve 
ceeieerue Je<ee&®³ee ` 411.33 keÀesìeR®³ee leguevesle keÀjHetJe& 
veHeÌ³eeves DenJeeueJe<eea ` 482.35 keÀesìeR®eer cepeue ceejueer.

	 ceeieerue Je<ee&leerue efveJJeU J³eepeefceUkeÀle Je J³eepeKe®e& ³eeleerue 
HeÀjkeÀ (Sved.Dee³ed.Sced) 3.47 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve ³eeJe<eea 3.30 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej Deeuee.

	 ÒeJeleea Ke®ee&®es ÒeJeleea GlHevveeMeer ÒeceeCe 31 cee®e& 2012®³ee 
49.82 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve 31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer 48.42 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHe³e¥le megOeejues.

	 ÒeeflekeÀce&®eejer {esyeU veHeÀe ne 31 cee®e& 2012®³ee ` 11.30 
ueeKeebJeªve 31 cee®e& 2013 DeKesjerme ̀  12.35 ueeKeeHe³e¥le 
Heesnes®euee.

	 ÒeeflekeÀce&®eejer J³eJemee³e ceeieerue Je<ee&®³ee ` 9.12 keÀesìeRJeªve 
DenJeeue Je<eer& ` 9.26 keÀesìeRHe³e¥le Heesnes®euee.

	 31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer®eer {esyeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®eer HetCe& 
lejleto veHeÌ³eeletve kesÀu³eecegUs meueie veJeJ³ee Je<eea DeeHeCe efveJJeU 
DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es SketÀCe keÀpee¥Meer ÒeceeCe Metv³e ìkeÌkeÌ³eeJej 
jeKeC³eele ³eMemJeer Peeuees. meoj lejleto Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& 
yeBkesÀ®³ee efve³eceevegmeej efkeÀceeve 70 ìkeÌkesÀ keÀjCes yebOevekeÀejkeÀ 
Demeues lejerner DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ³eeyeeyele MebYej ìkeÌkesÀ lejleto 
kesÀuesueer Deens.

	 yeBkesÀ®ee mJeefveOeer ne 31 cee®e& 2012®³ee ` 1,715.69 
keÀesìeRJeªve 31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer ` 1,961.31 keÀesìeRJej 
Heesnes®euee. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&Hlelee ÒeceeCe ns 
11.15 ìkeÌkesÀ Deens. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee efveoxMeevegmeej 
ns ÒeceeCe 9 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee Jej Demeues Heeefnpes. Yeeb[Jeue 
GYeejCeer®es ce³ee&efole He³ee&³e GHeueyOe Demetvener DeeHeCe ns ÒeceeCe 
11.15 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ jeKet MekeÀuees.

	 yeBkesÀ®ee ÒeefleMeeKee J³eJemee³e ne 31 cee®e& 2012®³ee 
` 146.93 keÀesìeRJeªve 31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer ` 157.94 
keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®euee.
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lekeÌlee ¬eÀ.13 - ÒeefleMeeKee GlHeeokeÀlee efJeMues<eCe 	

(`  keÀesìeRceO³eñ)

MeeKee He´leerMeeKee mejemejer J³eJemee³e
meejmJele yeBkesÀ®³ee cetU MeeKee 83 224.61
meejmJele yeBkesÀ®³ee veJeerve MeeKee 39 42.71
iebOekeÀes<e®³ee pegv³ee keÀe³e&jle MeeKee 49 101.62
iebOekeÀes<euee meejmJele yeBkesÀkeÀ[tve efceUeuesu³ee MeeKee 3 197.44
iebOekeÀes<e®³ee DeeHeCe megª kesÀuesu³ee veJeerve MeeKee 48 76.42
Smed.Sced.F&. MeeKee 6 1,055.14
mecegêHeejer³e MeeKee 1 288.83
SketÀCe 229 157.94

Heg{erue lekeÌles DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceOeerue DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer keÀeceefiejer oMe&efJeleele :

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 14 - J³eJemee³eJe=×er	 (` keÀesìeRceO³es)
leHeMeerue 31 -03-2013 31 -03-2012 Jee{ % 
SketÀCe þsJeer 	 (De) 21144.33 19252.71 9.83
®eeuet þsJeer (Current) 965.83 1059.58 -8.85
ye®ele þsJeer (Savings) 4416.18 4021.80 9.81
keÀemee (ye®ele + ®eeuet þsJeer) 5382.01 5081.38 5.92
cegole þsJeer 15762.32 14171.33 11.23
SketÀCe keÀpe& 	 (ye) 15023.42 13952.70 7.67
SketÀCe J³eJemee³e 	 (De + ye) 36167.75 33205.41 8.92
SketÀCe iegbleJeCetkeÀ 6444.03 5626.99 14.52

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 15 - ÒeJeleea keÀeceefiejer	 (` keÀesìeRceO³es)
leHeMeerue 31 -03-2013 31 -03-2012 Jee{ % 
J³eepe GlHevve 2290.51 1921.54 19.20
J³eepe Ke®e& 1616.03 1304.59 23.87
efveJJeU J³eepe GlHevve 674.48 616.95 9.32
Flej GlHevve 260.63 202.81 28.51
SketÀCe He´Jeleea GlHevve 935.11 819.76 14.07
He´Jeleea Ke®e& 452.76 408.43 10.85
{esyeU veHeÀe 482.35 411.33 17.27
lejlegoer 329.44 71.83 358.64
keÀj DeeefCe DeHeJeeoelcekeÀ Ke®e& HetJe& veHeÀe 152.91 339.50 -54.96
keÀj 31.18 89.73 -65.25
keÀjesÊej DeeefCe DeHeJeeoelcekeÀ Ke®e& HetJe& veHeÀe 121.73 249.77 -51.26
DeHeJeeoelcekeÀ Ke®e& 9.64 14.20 -32.11
keÀj DeeefCe DeHeJeeoelcekeÀ Ke®ee&veblej®ee efveJJeU veHeÀe 112.09 235.57 -52.42
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lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 16 - J³eJemee³e efvekeÀ<eeb®es ÒeceeCe	

leHeMeerue 31 -03-2013 31 -03-2012
mejemejer ceeueceÊesJejerue HejleeJee % 0.46 1.12
J³eepee J³eefleefjkeÌle GlHevvee®es J³eepe GlHevveeMeer He´ceeCe % 10.22 9.55
He´Jeleea Ke®ee&®es SketÀve He´Jeleea GlHevveeMeer He´ceeCe % 48.42 49.82
efveJJeU J³eepe GlHevve Je J³eepeKe®ee&leerue Deblej % (NIM) 3.30 3.47
keÀpee&Jejerue mejemejer HejleeJee % 12.35 12.00
iegbleJeCegkeÀerJej mejemejer HejleeJee % 7.94 7.57
lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 17 - Ke®e&efve³eb$eCe 	

(` ueeKeeble)

De.ke´À. leHeMeerue 31 -03-2013 31 -03-2012 He´l³e#e Ieì

1 efJeOeer Ke®e& 37.44 51.16 -13.72
2 íHeeF& Je mìsMevejer Ke®e& 414.55 453.14 -38.59
3 peeefnjele Ke®e& 662.19 1,170.40 -508.21
4 ®eskeÀ He´esmesefmebie Ke®e& 193.29 195.76 -2.47
5 yeBkeÀ MegukeÀ 1,016.81 1,035.19 -18.38
6 Jeenve Ke®e& 109.10 111.49 -2.39
7 Flej Ke®e& 1,489.67 1,779.01 -289.34
 SketÀCe 3,923.05 4,796.15 -873.10

Jejerue lekeÌl³eele oMe&efJeu³eeÒeceeCes DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es DeeHeu³ee GlHeVe Je Ke®e&efve³eb$eCe (Income and Cost Council) 
meefceleerves efJeefJeOe ÒekeÀej®³ee Ke®ee¥Jej yeejkeÀeF&ves ue#e þsJetve Jee{l³ee J³eJemee³ee ojc³eevener  ` 8.73 keÀesìeRveer keÀener Ke®e& keÀceer kesÀues. 
15)	efJeYeeieJeej keÀeceefiejer (SBU) - efjìsue yeBefkebÀie 

	 ûeenkeÀebmeeþer efJeefJeOe megefJeOee :

	 efJnmee [sefyeì keÀe[& :
	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves Je<e& 2008-09 ceO³es efJnmee [sefyeì keÀe[& 

³eespevee megª kesÀueer. meO³ee ns [sefyeì keÀe[& 7,29,319 ûeenkeÀ 
JeeHejleele. Dee@veueeFve Kejsoer, efJeefJeOe Dee@veueeFve eflekeÀerì 
Deej#eCe, S.ìer.Sced. ceOetve jkeÌkeÀce keÀe{Ces Fl³eeoeRmeeþerner 
efJnmee [sefyeì keÀe[& JeeHejues peeles. Keeueerue lekeÌl³eele efJnmee 
[sefyeì keÀe[e&®³ee JeeHejemebyebOeer leHeMeerue efouesuee Deens

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ.18 - eqJnmee [sefyeì keÀe[&®ee JeeHej 	

(` keÀesìeRceO³es)
Je<e& jkeÌkeÀce keÀe{Ces osMeebleie&le JeeHej efJeosMeeleerue JeeHej

SketÀCe J³eJenej jkeÌkeÀce 
(`)

SketÀCe J³eJenej jkeÌkeÀce 
(`)

SketÀCe J³eJenej jkeÌkeÀce 
(`)

2011-12 41,52,843 933.14 4,77,016 67.11 980 0.36

2012-13 49,35,877 1,501.94 8,15,785 105.81 1,879 0.65

³esl³ee Je<ee&le DeeHeCe Hue@efìvece FScedJner efJnmee [sefyeì keÀe[&, ©Hes 
ef®eHe keÀe[& ³eespevee ®eeuet keÀjCeej Deenesle. lemes®e efJnmee [sefyeì 
keÀe[e¥meeþer Heerved De@ìd Hee@Ped megefJeOes®eer megjÀJeele keÀjCeej Deenesle.

	 S.ìer.Sced. :
	 DenJeeueJe<eea yeeje veJeerve S.ìer.Sced. keWÀês megª keÀjC³eele 

Deeueer. l³eecegUs 31 cee®e& 2013 DeKesjerme DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer 
159 S.ìer.Sced. keWÀês keÀe³e&jle Deensle. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves  
ces 2012 ceO³es peveefnle ye®eleKeel³eebkeÀefjlee efJnmee [sefyeì 
keÀe[& osC³eeme meg©Jeele kesÀueer. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ve@Meveue HesceWì 
keÀe@HeexjsMeve Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³ee®³ee menkeÀe³ee&ves 15 Dee@keÌìesyej 
2010 Heemetve osMeYejele Flej yeBkeÀeb®³ee S.ìer.Sced. ceOetve 
jkeÌkeÀce keÀe{C³ee®eer megefJeOee GHeueyOe keÀªve efoueer Deens. Deepe 
DeeHeues ûeenkeÀ NFS ®³ee ceeO³eceeletve osMeeleerue 71 meYeemeo 
yeBkeÀe, lemes®e 79 menmeYeemeo yeBkeÀebceeHeÀ&le 1,18,660 
S.ìer.Sced. keWÀêebceOetve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es [sefyeì keÀe[& JeeHeªve 
DeeHeues J³eJenej keÀª MekeÀleele.

	 Sved.SHedÀ.Smed. vesìJeke&À : 
	 DeeHeCe ve@Meveue HesceWì keÀe@HeexjsMeve Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³ee®es cegK³e 

meYeemeo Demeu³eecegUs DeeHeu³ee menmeYeemeo yeBkeÀebvee ©Hes 
S.ìer.Sced. keÀe[&®eer megefJeOee GHeueyOe keÀªve efoueer Deens. ¿ee 
Debleie&le ®eWyetj veeieefjkeÀ menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ Je jepeÞeer Meent menkeÀejer 
yeBkeÀeb®³ee ûeenkeÀebvee DeeHeCe ner megefJeOee efouesueer Deens. efpeune 
ceO³eJeleea yeBkeÀebceO³es DeeHeCe ner megefJeOee je³eie[ ef[efmì^keÌì 
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	 Deej.ìer.peer.Smed. Je Sved.F&.SHedÀ.ìer. :

	 jkeÌkeÀce nmleeblejCee®³ee Deej.ìer.peer.Smed. Je Sved.F&.SHedÀ.
ìer. ¿ee FueskeÌì^e@efvekeÀ megefJeOee®³ee DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ cee®e& 2004 
Heemetve osle Deens. ¿ee megefJeOee Debleie&le Jee{Ceejs J³eJenej yeIelee 
DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves JeeMeer, veJeer cegbyeF& ³esLes ns J³eJenej 
ceO³eJeleea efþkeÀeCeentve neleeUC³eekeÀefjlee JesieUe efJeYeeie megª 
kesÀuee Deens. DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es Deej.ìer.peer.Smed. Je 
Sved.F.SHedÀ.ìer. Debleie&le SketÀCe 13,39,000 J³eJenej Peeues.

	 Flej DeemLeeHeveeb®³ee efJecee GlHeeoveeb®es efJeHeCeve :

	 DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves Flej 
DeemLeeHeveeb®³ee efJecee GlHeeoveebHeemetve SketÀCe ` 7.78 keÀesìeR®es 
GlHeVe efceUefJeues.

	 peerJeve efJecee - (Life Insurance) :

	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ces. S®ed.[er.SHedÀ.meer. ueeF&HeÀ FvMegjvme kebÀHeveeryejesyej 
DeeHeu³ee ûeenkeÀebvee peerJeve efJecee Hee@efuemeer efJe¬eÀer®ee keÀjej kesÀuee Deens. ¿ee 
Debleie&le DeeHeCe ` 5.93 keÀesìeR®ee efJecee nHlee (efÒeefce³ece) pecee kesÀuee.

	 meJe&meeOeejCe efJecee - (Non-life Insurance) :
	 ces. yepeepe Deuee³evPe pevejue FvMegjvme kebÀHeveeryejesyej meJe&meeOeejCe 

efJecee Hee@efuemeer efJekeÀC³eemeeþer DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves mecevJe³e keÀjej kesÀuee 
Deens. DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ¿ee J³eJemee³eele ` 13.09 
keÀesìeR®ee efJecee nHlee (efÒeefce³ece) pecee kesÀuee.

	 Jew³eeqkeÌlekeÀ keÀpe& efJecee - (Personal Loan 
Insurance):

	 ie=n lemes®e Jew³eeqkeÌlekeÀ keÀpex Iesleuesu³ee ûeenkeÀemeebþer DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀves ces. yepeepe Deuee³evPe pevejue FvMegjvme kebÀHeveeryejesyej 
keÀjej kesÀuee Deens. ¿ee Debleie&le DeeHeCe `6.03 keÀesìeR®ee efJecee 
nHlee (efÒeefce³ece) pecee kesÀuee Deens.

	 ef[ce@ì :
	 DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ ner Sved.Smed.[er.Sued. Je meer.[er.Smed.Sued. ¿ee 

oesvner mebmLeebMeer ef[ce@ì J³eJenejebkeÀefjlee mebueive Deens. DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀle 31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer SketÀCe 90,634 ef[ce@ì 
Keeleer Deensle. DenJeeueJe<eea 2,046 veJeerve ef[ce@ì Keeleer 
GIe[ueer iesueer. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe 199 MeeKeebceeHe&Àle 
ef[ce@ì megefJeOee ûeenkeÀebvee GHeueyOe keÀªve efouesueer Deens. ¿ee 
J³eJemee³eeletve ¿ee Je<ee&le DeeHeCe `2.28 keÀesìeR®es GlHeVe 
efceUefJeues. meJe& ef[ce@ì J³eJenejebkeÀefjlee DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ SmedScedSmed 
Deueì& ûeenkeÀebvee HeeþefJeles. lemes®e ASBA megefJeOeener Deelee 
DeeHeu³ee meJe& MeeKeebceO³es GHeueyOe Deens.

meWì^ue keÀes-Dee@HejsefìJn yeBkesÀuee efoueer Deens. Sved.Heer.meer.
Dee³ed.ves DeeHeu³eeuee keÀUefJeues Deens keÀer, mebHetCe& osMeele 
efpeune ceO³eJeleea yeBkeÀebceO³es ©Hes [sefyeì keÀe[& efJeleefjle 
keÀjCeejer veeyee[& meene³³eerle je³eie[ ef[efmì^keÌì meWì^ue 
keÀes-Dee@HejsefìJn yeBkeÀ ner Heefnueer yeBkeÀ þjueer Deens. ¿ee 
GHe¬eÀceele je³eie[ ef[efmì^keÌì meWì^ue keÀes-Dee@HejsefìJn 
yeBkesÀyejesyej Demeuesu³ee DeeHeu³ee menkeÀe³ee&®ee Deecneuee 
DeefYeceeve Deens.

	 SmedScedSmed yeBefkebÀie :

	 DeeHeCe SmedScedSmed megefJeOee Je<e& 2006-07 ceO³es megª kesÀueer. 
meO³ee 2,91,237 ûeenkeÀ ¿ee megefJeOes®ee ueeYe Iesle Deensle. 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ¿ee megefJeOesDebleie&le efcem[d keÀe@ue Deueì& megefJeOee 
GHeueyOe keÀªve efoueer Deens. ¿eele yeBkesÀves efouesuee SkeÀ þjeJeerkeÀ 
otjOJeveer ¬eÀceebkeÀ ueeJeu³eeme ûeenkeÀeuee Keel³eeleerue efMeuuekeÀ 
jkeÌkeÀce Je MesJeì®es leerve J³eJenej mecepet MekeÀleele. veJeerve Keeles 
GIe[leevee DeLeJee eqJnmee [sefyeì keÀe[&®eer veeWoCeer keÀjleevee 
ûeenkeÀeuee SmedScedSmed yeBefkebÀie®³ee megefJeOesmebyebOeer ceeefnleer osTve 
l³eemeeþer veeWoCeer keÀjC³ee®ee GHe¬eÀce yeBkesÀves megª kesÀuee 
Deens. l³ee³eesies ûeenkeÀeuee l³ee®³ee Keel³eele nesCeeN³ee yeBefkebÀie 
J³eJenejemebyebOeer Deueì& (met®evee) efceUleerue. ner megefJeOee 
yeBkesÀleHexÀ efve:MegukeÀ osC³eele ³esles. 

	 Fbìjvesì yeBefkebÀie :

	 Fbìjvesì yeBefkebÀie megefJeOee DeeHeCe Je<e& 2007-08 ceO³es megª 
kesÀueer. Deepe®³ee Ie[eruee ner megefJeOee DeeHeues 1,36,577 
ûeenkeÀ JeeHejleele. ¿ee megefJeOesDebleie&le SkeÀe®e ûeenkeÀe®³ee 
DeveskeÀ Keel³eeb®es mìsìceWì, Keel³eeleerue efMeuuekeÀ 
jkeÌkeÀce, ueIeg efJeJejCeHe$e, efouesu³ee OeveeosMeemeboYee&leerue 
ceeefnleer, Keel³eebleie&le HewMeeb®es nmleeblejCe, keÀpee&®es 
mìsìceWì, OeveeosMe-HegefmlekesÀ®eer ceeieCeer veeWoefJeCes,  
Deej.ìer.peer.Smed. Je Sved.F&.SHedÀ.ìer. J³eJenej, ûeenkeÀe®ee 
Dee³ekeÀj Yeju³ee®eer ceeefnleer (HeÀe@ce& 26 S.Smed.), cegole 
þsJe Keeles GIe[Ces Fl³eeoer megefJeOee GHeueyOe keÀªve efou³ee 
Deensle. ³eeefMeJee³e YeefJe<³ekeÀeUele Dee@veueeF&ve efyeueeb®ee YejCee,  
Dee@veueeF&ve Kejsoer, Dee@veueeF&ve mìe@He HesceWì, ®eesJeerme leeme 
Deej.ìer.peer.Smed. Je Sved.F&.SHedÀ.ìer. megefJeOee Je ûeenkeÀ HeemeJe[& 
(HejJeueer®ee Meyo) efJemeju³eeme ogmeje HeemeJe[& Dee@veueeF&ve 
osC³ee®eer megefJeOee Fbìjvesì yeBefkebÀieceOetve ûeenkeÀebvee osC³eele 
³esCeej Deensle.
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	 efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpex efJeYeeie
	 31 cee®e& 2013 DeKesj DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpex 

`3,117 keÀesìer FlekeÀer nesleer. ns ÒeceeCe DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee 
SketÀCe keÀpe&J³eJemee³ee®³ee 20.75 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ Deens. 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpee¥®es cenÊJe ue#eele IesTve ns 
ÒeceeCe Heg{erue leerve Je<ee¥le cnCepes®e 31 cee®e& 2016 He³e¥le 
40 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej vesC³ee®es þjefJeues Deens.

	 ³ee GÎsMeeves KeeueerueÒeceeCes HeeJeues G®eueC³eele Deeuesueer Deensle.
	 	 ueIegGÐeespekeÀebmeeþer ceeueceÊee leejCe þsJetve keÀpe& 

osCeeN³ee mece=×er ³eespevesle yeoue keÀjC³eele Deeues. l³eeuee 
GlmeenJeOe&keÀ Òeeflemeeo efceUle Deens.

	 	 JeenveKejsoer keÀpee¥®³ee efJeHeCevee®³ee oesve ceesefncee 
jeyeefJeC³eele Deeu³ee. ³eeceO³es ûeenkeÀebvee Òeesmesefmebie 
MegukeÀeceOetve meJeuele osC³eele Deeueer.

	 	 Jeemleg-efme×er Je megHejHeÀemì JeenvekeÀpe& ³eespeveeb®es J³eepeoj 
yeBefkebÀie #es$eele SkeÀe efkeÀceeve HeeleUerJej DeeCeC³eele Deeues.

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ.19 

efJeefJeOe efjìsue keÀpee¥®es  2012-13 ceOeerue efJelejCe	

(` ueeKeeble)

³eespevee SketÀCe Keeleer efJeleefjle jkeÌkeÀce 

Jeemlegefme×er ie=n keÀpe& 3,240 49,117.64

megHejHeÀemì Jeenve keÀpe& 2,727 19,949.99

mece=×er 705 8,484.18

ceuìerHeHe&pe keÀpe& 2,821 4,044.47

ieesu[ (megJeCe&) keÀpe& 2,005 3,710.40

[e@keÌìj ef[ueeF&ì 74 1,271.61

mejmJeleer Sp³egkesÀMeve 315 992.21

Flej 418 1,714.66

SketÀCe 12,305 89,285.16

Jejerue lekeÌl³eele Demes efometve ³esles keÀer, Jeemleg-efme×er Je megHejHeÀemì 
JeenvekeÀpe& ¿ee oesve ³eespeveebletve meJee&le peemle keÀpe&efJelejCe Peeues.

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&J³eJemee³eele 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ̀ 892.85 keÀesìeR®es keÀpe&JeeìHe kesÀues. cnCepes®e 31 
cee®e& 2012®³ee efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe& J³eJemee³eele 30.78 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer 
Jee{ Peeueer. ¿ee J³eJemee³eeleerue LekeÀyeekeÀer ner DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e&  
2011-12®³ee `67 keÀesìeRJeªve DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13uee 
`59 keÀesìeRJej Deeueer. cnCepes®e ¿eele 11 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer Ieì Peeueer.

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 20	 (` keÀesìeRceO³es)
31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer efMeuuekeÀ efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpex 3,117.00

LekeÀyeekeÀer 31 cee®e& 2013 59.42
efMeuuekeÀ keÀpee&Meer LekeÀyeekeÀer®es He´ceeCe (%) 1.90
2012-13 ceO³es efJeleefjle kesÀuesueer efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpex 892.85
SketÀCe keÀpex 31.03.2013 15,023.41
efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpee¥®es SketÀCe keÀpee&Meer He´ceeCe (%) 20.75

jemeskeÀ efJeYeeieeb®es keÀpe&efJelejCe Je DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®eer 
HeefjefmLeleer :

SketÀCe `892.85 keÀesìeR®³ee keÀpe&efJelejCeeHewkeÀer jemeskeÀ efJeYeeieebveer 
`668.19 keÀesìerb®es keÀpe&efJelejCe kesÀues, cnCepes®e mene jemeskeÀ 
efJeYeeieebveer 75 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®es keÀpe&efJelejCe kesÀues.

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 21

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceOeerue jemeskeÀ efvene³e keÀpe&efJelejCes

(` keÀesìeRceO³es)
efJelejCe DeveglHeeefole

jemeskeÀ MeeKee Keeleer jkeÌkeÀce Keeleer jkeÌkeÀce

yeesefjJeueer 33 1,345 151.91 27 2.85

HegCes 19 1,578 149.09 56 0.59

oeoj 19 1,313 125.35 11 1.09

þeCes 26 960 105.51 7 0.60

ceeìgbiee 26 752 93.02 21 1.06

Deewjbieeyeeo 13 790 43.31 2 0.01

SkeÀtCe 136 6,738 668.19 124 6.20

DenJeeueJe<eea ¿ee J³eJemee³eeDebleie&le efveJJeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es 
ÒeceeCe ns jemeskeÀDebleie&le kesÀu³ee iesuesu³ee SketÀCe efkeÀjkeÀesU 
keÀpe&efJelejCee®³ee 0.93 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ Deens. DeveglHeeefole efkeÀjkeÀesU 
keÀpee¥®es ÒeceeCe keÀceer jeKeC³eemeeþer jemeskeÀ efJeYeeieebveer ceesuee®eer 
keÀeceefiejer yepeeJeueer Deens. cnCetve®e yeBkesÀ®³ee meJe& MeeKee ¿ee jemeskeÀ 
efJeYeeieebleie&le DeeCeC³ee®ee Deece®ee ceeveme Deens. 31 cee®e& 2013 
jespeer SketÀCe 229 MeeKeebHewkeÀer, 136 MeeKee ¿ee jemeskeÀDebleie&le 
³esleele. ¿ee ÒeecegK³eeves cetU meejmJele yeBkesÀ®³ee MeeKee Deensle. 
iebOekeÀes<e efJeYeeieele ³esCeeN³ee yengleebMe MeeKee ¿ee jemeskeÀ®³ee Debleie&le 
³esle veenerle. DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es ÒeceeCe efve³eb$eCeele jeKeC³eemeeþer 
iebOekeÀes<e®³ee ¿ee meJe& MeeKee jemeskeÀKeeueer DeeCeC³eele ³esCeej Deensle. 
³eekeÀefjlee oesve veJeerve jemeskeÀ efJeYeeie megª keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee DeeHeCe 
Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkeÀkeÀ[s HejJeeveieer ceeefieleueer Deens.
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16)IeeTkeÀ yeBefkebÀie J³eJemee³e efJeYeeie - (SBU Wholesale 
Banking) :

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesleerue 
ceboercegUs DeewÐeesefiekeÀ #es$eele veJeerve iegbleJeCetkeÀ HeÀej keÀceer ÒeceeCeele 
Peeueer. ceesþs ÒekeÀuHe De[ketÀve He[ues. ³ee®ee HeÀìkeÀe keÀpee¥®³ee 
keÀceer ÒeceeCeele Peeuesu³ee Jee{erme keÀejCeerYetle Peeuee. DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®ee IeeTkeÀ yeBefkebÀie J³eJemee³e ne cegK³elJeskeÀªve ueIeg Je ceO³ece 
GÐeespekeÀ (SME) DeeefCe ceesþs J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ ³eeb®³eele efJeYeeieuee 
Deens. SketÀCe®e yeBefkebÀie J³eJemee³eeleerue keÀpe&efJelejCeele Peeuesueer keÀceer 
Jee{ Heenlee DeeHeu³eener yeBkesÀves J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpe&efJelejCeele meeJeOe 
HeefJe$ee Iesleuee neslee. 31 cee®e& 2012 DeKesj IeeTkeÀ keÀpex ner  
` 11,051 keÀesìer FlekeÀer nesleer leer 31 cee®e& 2013 DeKesjerme  
` 855 keÀesìeRveer Jee{tve `11,906 keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®eueer.

DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpex ner efJeefJeOe GÐeesieebvee efJeleefjle 
kesÀuesueer Deensle. SkeÀ Keyejoejer®ee Ghee³e cnCetve kegÀþu³eener SkeÀe 
GÐeesieeuee yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe keÀpee¥HewkeÀer 10 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHes#ee DeefOekeÀ keÀpe& 
efoues iesuesues veener. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es meJee&le peemle 
keÀpex Jeenve DeeefCe JeenveHetjkeÀ GÐeesieeuee efoueer Deensle. l³eeb®ee Jeeìe 
ne SketÀCe keÀpee¥®³ee 7.89 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀe Deens. ¿ee GÐeesieeleerue 
DeveglHeeefole keÀpee&®es ÒeceeCe DeuHe Deens.

DeeHeu³eeuee Deeuesuee DevegYeJe, Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®es DeeefLe&keÀ 
Je<e& 2012-13®es HeleOeesjCe, SketÀCe®e DeeefLe&keÀ HeefjefmLeleer lemes®e 
efmeyeeruemeejK³ee mebmLeebkeÀ[tve efJeefJeOe GÐeesieebmebyebOeer Òemeeefjle 
Peeuesueer ceeefnleer ³eeJeªve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves keÀener GÐeesieOebos 
keÀpe&efJelejCeemeeþer Jep³e& ceeveC³ee®es lej Flej keÀeneRyeeyele 
meeJeOeevelee yeeUieC³ee®es OeesjCe mJeerkeÀejues Je l³ee®es Heeueve 
keÀjC³eekeÀ[s keÀeìskeÀesj ue#e osTve®e meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[UekeÀ[s keÀpee&®es 
Depe& cebpegjermeeþer HeeþefJeues iesues.

DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ keÀener Je<ee¥Heemetve efmeb[erkesÀMeve / keÀvmee@efMe&DecedceO³es 
keÀener ceesþîee DeewÐeesefiekeÀ ÒekeÀuHeebceO³es menYeeieer nesle Deens. ns 
ÒekeÀuHe Òeiele nesleevee DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ceesþîee keÀpee¥®eer cebpegjer 
efoueer Deens, HeCe l³eele GÐeesieebvee DeeJeM³ekeÀ Demeuesues HejJeeves, 
keÀ®®³ee ceeuee®es oj Je GHeueyOelee Fl³eeoer keÀejCeebcegUs Peeuesu³ee 
ÒekeÀuHeefojbieeF&cegUs ÒekeÀuHe Ke®e&Je=×er nesle Demeu³eeves DeeHeuee 

DevegYeJe ÒekeÀuHe keÀpee¥yeeyele meceeOeevekeÀejkeÀ veener. ³eecegUs DeeHeCe 
DenJeeueJe<eea, DeMee ÒekeÀuHeebHeemetve otj jeefnuees. DeewÐeesefiekeÀ / keÀe@
Heexjsì keÀpee¥ceOeerue vegkeÀmeeve Je Jee{lee OeeskeÀe, l³eeletve nesCeejs meer.
[er.Deej. / efjmì^keÌ®eefjbie ³eecegUs DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves OeeskeÌ³ee®³ee met®evee 
JesUer®e DeesUKetve Debleie&le Òeef¬eÀ³ee DeefOekeÀ keÀeìskeÀesj kesÀueer Deens.

31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer cebpetj kesÀuesueer Hejbleg efJeleefjle ve Peeuesueer 
SketÀCe keÀpex `1,677.66 keÀesìer FlekeÀer Deensle.

Keeueerue lekeÌlee ne mLee³eer ceeueceÊeebmeeþer efouesu³ee keÀpee¥®eer efmLeleer 
oMe&efJelees:

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 22

mLee³eer ceeueceÊesmeeþer efouesueer keÀpe&W 31 cee®e& 2013

(` keÀesìeRceO³es)
ie=n keÀpex jkeÌkeÀce

` 25 ueeKeeHe³e¥le®eer ie=n keÀpex 1,631.35

` 25 ueeKeebJejerue ie=n keÀpex 753.80

SketÀCe ie=n keÀpex 	 (De) 2,385.15

J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ mLee³eer ceeueceÊesmeeþer efouesueer keÀpex 

cegole keÀpex 530.84

DeesJnj[^eHedÀì 271.86

yeBkeÀ ie@jsbìer 7.36

keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeiee®eer iebgleJeCetkeÀ 5.00

SketÀCe J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ mLee³eer ceeueceÊesmeeþer efouesueer keÀpex 	 (ye) 815.06

SketÀCe mLee³eer ceeueceÊesmeeþer efouesueer keÀpex (De + ye) 3,200.21

DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves 31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer SketÀCe `3,200.21 
keÀesìeR®eer keÀpex mLee³eer ceeueceÊeebmeeþer efJeleefjle kesÀuesueer Deensle. 
mLee³eer ceeueceÊee keÀpee¥ceO³es ie=nkeÀpex Je J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀebmeeþer Je 
mLee³eer ceeueceÊeebmeeþer efouesu³ee keÀpee¥®ee meceeJesMe neslees.

Jejerue lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 22 ne mLee³eer ceeueceÊeebmeeþer efouesu³ee keÀpee¥®eer 
efmLeleer oMe&efJelees :

mLee³eer ceeueceÊesmeeþer efouesu³ee keÀpee¥HewkeÀer ie=nkeÀpee¥meeþer 
`2,385.15 keÀesìeR®eer keÀpex efoueer iesueer Deensle. ie=nkeÀpex ner 
SketÀCe mLee³eer ceeueceÊeebmeeþer efouesu³ee keÀpee¥®³ee 74.53 ìkeÌkesÀ 
Deensle Je SketÀCe keÀpex J³eJemee³ee®³ee ner 15.88 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer 
Deensle lej J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ mLee³eer ceeueceÊee SketÀCe keÀpe&J³eJemee³ee®³ee 
5.43 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer Deens.
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DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®ee Dee{eJee :
DenJeeueele ³eeDeeOeer Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesyeÎue Yee<³e kesÀu³eeÒeceeCes 
DeLe&J³eJemLesleerue ceboercegUs mebHetCe& yeBefkebÀie #es$eele DeveglHeeefole 
keÀpee¥le ceesþer Jee{ Peeueer DeeefCe DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀueener l³ee®ee ceesþe 
HeÀìkeÀe yemeuee. ¿ee DeeefLe&keÀ ceboer®ee meJee&le peemle HeefjCeece yeBefkebÀie 
efJeéeele ÒeecegK³eeves menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebvee YeesieeJee ueeieuee. yeepeejele peer 
keÀener GÊece opee&®eer keÀpe& ÒekeÀjCes nesleer, leer meeJe&peefvekeÀ #es$eeleerue 
ceesþîee lemes®e Keepeieer yeBkeÀebveer l³eeb®³ee J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ leekeÀoer®³ee 
peesjeJej keÀceer J³eepeojele DeeHeu³eekeÀ[s JeUJetve Iesleueer. ³eeGueì 
keÀceer opee&®eer GJe&efjle keÀpex menkeÀejer yeBkeÀeb®³ee Jeeìîeeuee Deeueer. 
DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee DeveglHeeefole 
keÀpee¥ceO³es SketÀCe `415.38 keÀesìeR®eer Jee{ Peeueer. ner®e Jee{ 
ceeieerue Je<eea `119.51 keÀesìer FlekeÀer nesleer. ¿ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le 
DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®eer `154.65 keÀesìeRveer Jemegueer nesTvemeg×e 
DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥leerue efveJJeU Jee{ ner `260.73 keÀesìer FlekeÀer 
Peeueer. Kejs cnCepes yeBkesÀves DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ojc³eeve 
kesÀuesueer Jemegueer ner yeBkesÀ®³ee Feflenemeeleerue DeeleeHe³e¥le®eer meJee&le 
peemle Jeeef<e&keÀ Jemegueer Deens. DeveglHeeefole keÀpee&le Peeuesu³ee ceesþîee 
Jee{er®es keÀejCe cnCepes Deecner efJeleefjle kesÀuesu³ee keÀener ceesþîee 
keÀpee¥®es DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥le Peeuesues HeefjJele&ve nes³e. Hejbleg ¿ee 
HeefjefmLeleerlener DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves efveJJeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es ÒeceeCe 
mebHetCe&HeCes veHeÌ³eeceOetve lejleto keÀªve melele veJeJ³ee Je<eeaner Metv³e 
jeKeues. meoj lejleto Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee efve³eceevegmeej 70 
ìkeÌkesÀ keÀjCes yebOevekeÀejkeÀ Demeues lejerner DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ³eeyeeyele 
100 ìkeÌkesÀ lejleto kesÀueer Deens.

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 23 - DeveglHeeefole keÀpex Je l³eeJejerue lejleto 

(` keÀesìeRceO³es)
{esyeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpex

31 cee®e& 2012  402.71
+ Je<e& Yejeleerue Jee{  415.38
-Je<e& Yejeleerue Ieì 154.65
31 cee®e&2013 663.44

lejleto
31 cee®e& 2012 402.72
+ Je<e& Yejeleerue Jee{ 339.45
-Je<e& Yejeleerue Ieì  78.69 663.48
31 cee®e&2013 ®eer SketÀCe lejleto

efveJJeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpex
31 cee®e& 2012 0.00
31 cee®e&2013 0.00

ceO³eJeleea keÀpe& Jemetueer ceb[Ue®eer mLeeHevee - (Central 
Recovery Council):

DeeefLe&keÀ ceboer Je keÀceer jeskeÀ[megueYelee ³eecegUs SketÀCe yeBefkebÀie 
#es$eeuee keÀpe& HejleHesÀ[erceO³es Deefve³eefcelelee Je Flej DeveskeÀ DeeJneves 
DevegYeJeeJeer ueeieueer. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2011-12 ceO³es DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®eer ` 402.71 keÀesìer FlekeÀer DeveglHeeefole keÀpex nesleer. 30 
meHìWyej 2012 He³e¥le efmLeleer DeefOekeÀ efyekeÀì nesTve DeveglHeeefole 
keÀpex ` 535.17 keÀesìeRHe³e¥le peeTve Heesnes®eueer. ³eecegUs yeBkesÀuee 
³eeJej ieebYeer³ee&ves efJe®eej keÀjC³ee®eer iejpe Yeemet ueeieueer DeeefCe keÀener 
þesme Ghee³e ³eespeC³eele Deeues. p³eele DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®eer Jemegueer, 
keÀe@u[d ye@keÀ ÒekeÀjCeele keÀesì& keÀejJeeF&, veJeerve keÀpex DeveglHeeefole 
nesT ve³es cnCetve keÀjeJee ueeieCeeje HeeþHegjeJee, LekeÀyeekeÀer Demeuesu³ee 
Keel³eebJej vepej þsJetve leer DeveglHeeefole keÀpee&le ªHeebleefjle ve 
nesC³ee®eer Keyejoejer IesCes ¿ee Ghee³eeb®ee meceeJesMe Deens. cnCetve®e 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ns ̀ DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®³ee 
Jemegueer®es Je<e&' Ieesef<ele kesÀues DeeefCe JemegueermeboYee&leerue cenÊJee®³ee 
efJe<e³eebJej ue#e keWÀefêle keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee `ceO³eJeleea keÀpe&Jemegueer 
ceb[Ue®eer' mLeeHevee kesÀueer.

ceO³eJeleea Jemegueer ceb[Ueves DeveglHeeefole keÀpex keÀceer 
keÀjC³eemeeþer DeeKeuesu³ee J³eeHekeÀ Ghee³e³eespevee :

•	 DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es IeeTkeÀ keÀpex Je efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpex Demes 
efJeYeepeve kesÀues.

•	 cee®e& 2012 HetJeea®eer DeveglHeeefole keÀpex Je DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 
2012-13 ceOeerue DeveglHeeefole keÀpex Demesner efJeYeepeve 
keÀjC³eele Deeues.

•	 efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&Jemegueer®eer peyeeyeoejer ner meJe& jemeskeÀ ÒecegKe Je 
Heefjceb[U ÒecegKeebvee meesHeefJeueer iesueer.

•	 Jemegueer efJeYeeieeves efouesu³ee efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpee¥®³ee ceeefnleerJeªve 
keÀce&®eeN³eebvee ns keÀece efJeYeeietve osC³eele Deeues.

•	 ³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le efJelejerle keÀjC³eele Deeuesu³ee efkeÀjkeÀesU 
keÀpee¥ceO³es LekeÀyeekeÀer nesT ve³es ³eeyeeyele efJeMes<e keÀeUpeer 
Iesleueer iesueer.

•	 ceesþer DeveglHeeefole keÀpex DemeCeeN³ee LekeÀyeekeÀeroejebMeer 
Jew³eeqkeÌlekeÀjerl³ee mebHeke&À keÀjC³eele Deeuee.
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•	 LekeÀyeekeÀeroejebMeer mJeleb$eHeCes Yesìer IesTve mebJeeo meeOeC³eele 
Deeuee.

•	 Heefjceb[U Je Smed.Sced.F&. ÒecegKeebveer JejerueÒeceeCes mebJeeo meeOetve 
l³eeyeeyele®ee DenJeeue lemes®e JemegueermeboYee&le keÀe³ee&efvJele 
kesÀuesu³ee ³eespeveeb®ee DenJeeue meeoj keÀjeJe³eeme meebefieleuee.

•	 ³eeHeg{s keÀpee&®³ee keÀjejeceO³es Je cebpegjerHe$eeceO³es keÀpee&®eer 
HejleHesÀ[ ve kesÀu³eeme Je=ÊeHe$eele veeJes Òeefme× keÀjC³eeyeeyele®es 
keÀuece pees[C³ee®es þjefJeC³eele Deeues.

•	 JemegueerÒeef¬eÀ³ee peueo keÀjC³eemeeþer ueJeeoe®eer keÀejJeeF& 
nesC³eeHetJeea LekeÀyeekeÀeroejebvee veesìermee HeeþefJeC³ee®³ee met®evee 
peejer keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee.

•	 ûeeceerCe Yeeieeble ieneCe þsJeuesu³ee ceeueceÊee leey³eele IesC³ee®eer 
veesìerme osC³eele De[LeUs ³esleele, DeMee efþkeÀeCeer cegbyeF& G®®e 
v³ee³eeue³ee®es DeeosMe mLeeefvekeÀ efpeuneefOekeÀeN³eeuee osTve 
ceeueceÊee leey³eele IesC³ee®eer Òeef¬eÀ³ee peueoieleerves keÀjC³ee®³ee 
met®evee osC³eele Deeu³ee Je DeMee ceeueceÊee leey³eele IesC³eele 
Deeu³ee.

•	 ceeueceÊee leey³eele IeslesJesUer keÀener De[®eCeer GÓJeu³eeme cegK³e 
ceneveiej ob[eefOekeÀeN³eebkeÀ[tve Heesefueme mebj#eCe IesC³ee®³ee 
met®evee osC³eele Deeu³ee.

•	 keÀce&®eejer HeeleUerJejerue efkebÀJee J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ HeeleUerJejerue 
J³eJene³e& De[®eCeer ue#eele ³eeJ³eele ¿eemeeþer ceeefmekeÀ DenJeeue 
DeefveJee³e& kesÀuee iesuee. 

•	 Heefjceb[U, jemeskeÀ Je MeeKeebceOeerue J³ekeÌleeRceO³es mebJeeo jeneJee 
¿eemeeþer meYee Iesleu³ee iesu³ee.

•	 LekeÀyeekeÀer®³ee met®evee Je l³ee®es Smed.Sced.Smed. (SMS) 
keÀpe&OeejkeÀeuee HeeþefJeC³eele Deeues.

•	 keÀpe&OeejkeÀe®eer Flej MeeKeebceO³es Keeleer Deensle keÀe ns leHeemetve 
SketÀCe jkeÀces®eer Jemegueer keÀjC³ee®ee Òe³elve kesÀuee iesuee.

•	 efmeefyeue®es (CIBIL) DenJeeue leHeemetve l³eele LekeÀerle keÀpee¥®eer 
³eesi³e ceeefnleer Demeu³ee®eer MeneefveMee keÀjC³eele Deeueer.

•	 Heefjceb[UÒecegKe, Smed.Sced.F&. MeeKeeÒecegKe Je efJeYeeieÒecegKeebvee 
ceeefmekeÀ JemegueermeboYee&leerue DenJeeue DeO³e#eebvee lemes®e G®®e 
J³eJemLeeHeveeuee meeoj keÀjC³eeme meebieC³eele Deeues.

•	 Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeueele LekeÀyeekeÀeroejeb®eer veeJes yeBkesÀ®³ee Jeeef<e&keÀ 

DenJeeueele peenerj keÀjC³ee®eer MekeÌ³elee He[leeUtve HeenC³ee®es 
þjefJeC³eele Deeues.

•	 meeJe&peefvekeÀjerl³ee GHeueyOe Demeuesu³ee ceeefnleerletve cnCepes®e 
ìeìe, Sced.ìer.Sved.Sued. ef[jskeÌìjer, Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ, 
mesyeer, Fl³eeoeR®³ee JesyemeeF&ìJeªve LekeÀyeekeÀeroejeb®es HeÊes Je 

otjOJeveer ¬eÀceebkeÀeJeªve LekeÀyeekeÀeroejeb®eer ceeefnleer MeesOeueer 
iesueer.

ceO³eJeleea Jemegueer ceb[Ueuee yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀce&®eejer ³egefve³eve Je Dee@efHeÀmeme& 
DemeesefmeSMeved ³eeb®³eekeÀ[tve KetHe®e ®eebieuee Òeeflemeeo efceUeuee. 
meJe& DeefOekeÀejer-keÀce&®eeN³eebveer DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®³ee Jemegueermeeþer 
vesìeves Je DeLekeÀ Òe³elve kesÀues iesues. ³eeGHejner cee®e& 2013 veblej 
DeveglHeeefole keÀpee&le Jee{ nesle®e jeefnueer. leejCe þsJeuesu³ee ceeueceÊee 
efJekeÀC³eekeÀefjlee Òe³elve kesÀues peele Deensle. Hejbleg DeeefLe&keÀ ceboercegUs 
¿ee ceeueceÊee efJekeÀle IesC³eekeÀefjlee HeÀej®e Lees[s ûeenkeÀ yeepeejele 
GHeueyOe Deensle. lemes®e efJe¬eÀerueener DeHesef#ele efkebÀcele efceUle veener. 
l³eecegUs ¿ee ceeueceÊee efJekeÀu³ee peele veenerle. DeveglHeeefole keÀpe&Keeleer 
yebo keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee SkeÀjkeÌkeÀceer keÀpe&HejleHesÀ[ ÒemleeJe DeHes#esÒeceeCes 
³esle veenerle DeeefCe DeMee ÒekeÀejs meJe& Òe³elve kesÀu³eeveblejner mebLe 
DeLe&J³eJemLescegUs DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®³ee Jemegueer®es ÒeceeCe ns keÀceer 
Deens. ceO³eJeleea Jemegueer ceb[Ue®³ee mLeeHevescegUs Jemegueer Òeefke´À³esuee Jesie 
Deeuee Deens. LekeÀyeekeÀeroejebMeer yeesueCeer les ueJeeoeceeHe&Àle keÀejJeeF& Je 
leejCe ceeueceÊee efJe¬eÀermeboYee&le lJeefjle efveCe&³e Iesleues peele Deensle 
Je Jemegueer DeefOekeÀ peesceeves nesC³eemeeþer efJeefJeOe efJeYeeieÒecegKeebvee 
DeeJneveelcekeÀ GefÎäs efoueer iesueer Deensle. DeeHeu³ee Jemegueer 
efJeYeeiee®³ee ÒeespeskeÌì efHeÀefvekeÌme GHe¬eÀceeÜejs efve<keÀeefmele kesÀuesu³ee 
keÀpee¥®³ee Jemegueer®es Òe³elvener ®eeuet Deensle. ¿ee meJe& Òe³elveebleer 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves SketÀCe `154.65 keÀesìeR®eer Jemegueer kesÀueer Deens. 
lejerner veJeerve DeveglHeeefole keÀpex Je SketÀCe®e {esyeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpex 
³eeb®eer mebK³ee iesu³ee Je<ee&Hes#ee Jee{uesueer Deens.

meJe& ³eespeveeye× J³eJemee³e efJeYeeie (SBU) ÒecegKe, meJe& 
jemeskeÀÒecegKe DeeefCe meJe& Smed.Sced.F&. ÒecegKe DeeHeeHeu³ee efJeYeeieebleerue 
keÀpe&Jemegueer®³ee Òe³elveebJej ue#e þsJetve Deensle. lemes®e meJe& MeeKeebvee 
veJeerve keÀpe&Keeleer ner DeveglHeeefole nesT ve³es ³eekeÀefjlee met®evee 
osC³eele Deeu³ee Deensle.

ogozJeeves FlekesÀ meJe& Òe³elve keÀªvener DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2013-14®³ee 
Heefnu³ee oesve efleceenerle DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥le ceesþîee ÒeceeCeele Jee{ 
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Peeueer. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee Je<e& 2012-13®³ee leHeemeCeerlener 
l³eeb®³ee DeefOekeÀeN³eebveer yeBkesÀ®³ee DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥yeeyele ef®eblee J³ekeÌle 
kesÀueer. l³eeb®³ee leHeemeCeerle Depetve keÀener Keeleer ner DeveglHeeefole 
Keel³eeble ªHeebleefjle Peeueer. ¿ee meJe&ÒekeÀejs Peeuesu³ee DeveglHeeefole 
keÀpee¥®³ee Jee{erle Keeueerue ieesäer keÀejCeerYetle Peeu³ee:

	 yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eJemee³eJe=×eryejesyej®e SkeÀe J³eJemee³eeme keÀpe& 
osC³ee®³ee jkeÀceslener l³eeÒeceeCeele Jee{ Peeueer. Goe. SkeÀ keÀpe& 
`250 keÀesìer DeeefCe mecegn keÀpex `500 keÀesìer.

	 ¿ee Deveg<ebieeves meeJe&peefvekeÀ #es$eeleerue Je Keepeieer #es$eeleerue 
ceesþîee yeBkeÀebyejesyej ÒekeÀuHe keÀpe& lemes®e efJeefJeOe (multiple) 
keÀpexner osC³ee®ee efveCe&³e yeBkesÀves Iesleuee.

	 ¿ee yeuee{îe Je ceesþîee yeBkeÀeb®es Òel³eskeÀ GÐeesie#es$eeJej mebMeesOeve 
keÀjCeejs mJeleb$e efJeYeeie Demeu³eeves DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves l³ee   
ceesþîee yeBkeÀeb®³ee leebef$ekeÀ Je DeeefLe&keÀ Hejer#eCeeJej DeeOeeefjle  
DeMeer keÀpe&ÒekeÀjCeeb®eer íeveveer kesÀueer.

	 ogozJeeves Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLee ner iesueer ®eej Je<ex DeefleMe³e 
Ke[lej Jeeì®eeue keÀjerle Deens. jeä^er³e  HeeleUerJejerue 
jepekeÀer³e efveef<¬eÀ³elee ³eeuee cegK³elJeskeÀªve keÀejCeerYetle Deens. 
Yeejlee®³ee ceneuesKeHeeueebveer efJeefJeOe DeeefLe&keÀ IeesìeÈ³eebJej 
Dees{uesu³ee keÀ[keÀ leeMesN³eebcegUs DeeefLe&keÀ megOeejCeeb®eer keÀeW[er 
Peeuesueer Deens. HeefjCeeceer iegbleJeCetkeÀoej nele DeeKe[les Iesle 
Deensle, lej keÀener ÒeJele&keÀ l³eebveer megª kesÀuesu³ee ÒekeÀuHeeletve 
HeUJeeìe MeesOele Deensle.

	 Jemletb®³ee HegjJeþîeele nesle Demeuesu³ee De[LeÈ³eebcegUs ceesþs 
ÒekeÀuHener HetCe&lJeeme peele veenerle ner JemlegefmLeleer Deens

• 	 efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJemee³e :

	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀuee efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJemee³ee®ee HejJeevee 1979 
meeueer efceUeuee. meO³ee efJeosMe efJeefvece³e megefJeOee DeeHeu³ee 
one megmeppe Je DeÐe³eeJele keWÀêebceeHe&Àle DeeHeCe ûeenkeÀebHe³e¥le 
Heesnes®eefJele Deenesle. DenJeeueJe<ee&le Demeuesu³ee ceboermeo=Me 
Heeée&YetceerJejosKeerue DeeHeuee ûeenkeÀebMeer mebyebefOele Dee³eele-
efve³ee&le J³eJemee³e ` 11,311.95 keÀesìerbJej Heesnes®euee. 
ceeieerue Je<eea ne®e J³eJemee³e `11,060 keÀesìer FlekeÀe 
neslee. osMee®³ee efve³ee&leerle Peeuesueer Ieì, ®eeuet Keel³eeleerue 
letì Fl³eeoer HeefjefmLeleerbJej ceele keÀªve DeeHeCe ceeieerue 
Je<ee&FlekeÀer®e J³eJemee³ee®eer HeeleUer þsJeC³eele ³eeJe<eeaner ³eMe 

efceUefJeues Deens. DeeblejyeBkeÀ efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJemee³e DeeefLe&keÀ 
Je<e& 2011-12uee `31,449.40 keÀesìer FlekeÀe neslee, lees 
peJeUHeeme meejKee®e jentve DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceOes 
`31,345.97 keÀesìeRJej iesuee. p³ee Dev³e ueneve menkeÀejer 
yeBkeÀebkeÀ[s efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJenejeb®ee HejJeevee veener DeMee 
20 menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebvee DeeHeCe efJeosMe efJeefvece³e mesJee HegjefJelees. 
efJeosMe ÒeJeemeele ì^@Jnueme& ®eskeÌmeHes#ee ì^@Jnue keÀe[&®eer Jee{leer 
ueeskeÀefÒe³elee yeIetve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves De@efkeÌmeme yeBkesÀyejesyej eqJnmee 
ì^@Jnue keÀjvmeer keÀe[& megefJeOee DeeHeu³ee ûeenkeÀebvee osC³eemeeþer 
keÀjej kesÀuee Deens.

17)	keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeie :

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeieeves ` 72.11 
keÀesìeR®ee veHeÀe efceUefJeuee. 31 cee®e& 2012 jespeer SketÀCe veHeÀe ne 
` 55.03 keÀesìer FlekeÀe neslee. keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeieeves iegbleJeCegkeÀerletve 
efceUCeeN³ee J³eepee®ee mejemejer oj ne DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2011-12®³ee 
7.57 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es 7.94 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHe³e¥le vesTve yeBkesÀ®³ee efceUkeÀleerle Yej Ieeleueer Deens.

18)	yeBkesÀ®³ee Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥meeþer kesÀuesu³ee DeefOekeÀ 
lejlegoeR®ee Yeeb[Jeue he³ee&HlelesJej (ke@ÀefHeìue  
De@ef[keÌJemeer) nesCeeje heefjCeece - menkeÀejer yeBkeÀeb®³ee keÀe@
heexjsìe³ePesMeve®eer iejpe :

{esyeU Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥le nesCeeN³ee Jee{er®ee SkeÀ Lesì heefjCeece 
cnCepes veHeÌ³eeleerue Ieì. yeBkesÀ®³ee Yeeb[Jeue he³ee&HlelesJejner l³ee®ee 
heefjCeece neslees®e. efJeMes<eleë menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebJej, p³eeb®³ee mJeefveOeer®ee 
cegK³e Giece ne HeÀkeÌle veHeÌ³eeletve kesÀuesu³ee lejlegoerletve®e Demelees, 
l³eeb®³eeJej®ee ne HeefjCeece ÒekeÀ<ee&ves peeCeJelees.

keWÀê eEkeÀJee jep³e mejkeÀejkeÀ[tve veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebvee Yeeb[Jeue 
hegjefJeues peele veener. Keepeieer eEkeÀJee J³eeheejer yeBkeÀebhe´ceeCes ¿ee yeBkeÀe 
mìe@keÀ ceekexÀìceOetvener Yeeb[Jeue GYes keÀª MekeÀle veenerle. ³eecegUs 
KeeueeJeuesu³ee Deee|LekeÀ heefjeqmLeleerle veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀeb®eer 
heefjefmLeleer DeefOekeÀ®e efyekeÀì nesles. 2012-13 ®³ee Deee|LekeÀ 
Je<ee&le Deece®³ee DenJeeueele ³ee®es ef®e$e mheä efomeles. 

iesueer keÀener Je<ex meelel³eeves Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®es meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U ¿ee 
efJeefMeä cegÎîeeJej Jeee|<ekeÀ  DenJeeueeletve ÒeecegK³eeves peesj osle Deens. 
pesCes keÀªve Deeheu³ee YeeieOeejkeÀebvee peeCeerJe nesF&ue keÀer, yeBkesÀ®³ee 
Jee{ermeeþer ueeieCeejs Yeeb[Jeue efceUefJeCes ns DeeJeenve DeeheCe menkeÀej 
#es$eele jeefnuees lej keÀþerCe Deens.
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Deeheu³ee mcejCeele Demesue®e keÀer, 2009-10 ®³ee Jeee|<ekeÀ 
DenJeeueele `keÀvmì^Wì Dee@HeÀ ke@Àefheìue' (Yeeb[Jeue GYeejCeerleerue 
De[®eCeer) ¿ee GheceLeÈ³eeKeeueer l³ee Fbûepeer DenJeeuee®³ee He=<þ ¬eÀ. 
29Jej ne cegÎe keÀenerMee efJemleejeves ceeb[uee neslee, l³eeleerue SkeÀ 
Gleeje Keeueer osle Deenesle.

``YeeieOeejkeÀebveer ³ee®eer veeWo I³eeJeer keÀer, yeBkesÀ®³ee Jee{ermeeþer 
me#ece Yeeb[JeueJe=×er®eer iejpe Demeles. YeeieOeejkeÀebveer l³eemeeþer 
³eesi³e l³ee J³eemeheerþeJeªve ne cegÎe ceeb[eJee Je Deeheu³ee 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueuee l³eeb®³ee menkeÀejer ®eUJeUerleerue v³ee³³e 
YetefcekesÀ®³ee heeþhegjeJ³eemeeþer heeefEþyee ÐeeJee. 

Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee J³eJemee³e Jee{le Deens, efle®³ee ³eesi³e 
Jee{ermeeþer keÀener efve³ece Je keÀe³eos ³eele leele[erves yeoue 
nesCes iejpes®es Deens, pesCes keÀªve Deeheueer yeBkeÀ Je Flej veeiejer 
menkeÀejer yeBkeÀe ³eebvee Yeeb[JeueJe=×ermeeþer De[®eCeer ³esCeej 
veenerle. ¿ee Yeeb[JeueJe=×erle ³esCeeN³ee De[®eCeer ne Deeheu³ee 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Uemeceesj Demeuesuee ¿ee Ie[er®ee meJee&le ceesþe 
he´Mve Deens.'' 

lemes®e Deeheu³ee 2010-11 ®³ee Jeee|<ekeÀ DenJeeueele `hee@efmeìer 

Dee@HeÀ ke@Àefheìue HebÀ[dme-oer mJees[& Dee@HeÀ [@ceeskeÀume' (Yeeb[Jeue 

efveOeer®eer keÀcelejlee - [eskeÌ³eeJej®eer ìebieleer leueJeej) ¿ee 

ceLeÈ³eeKeeueer l³ee Fbûepeer DenJeeueele He=ÿ ¬eÀ. 50Jej Deeheu³ee 

meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves Keeueerue cegÎs hegvne ceeb[ues nesles.

``J³eJemee³e Jee{le Demeuesu³ee yeBkesÀuee Jee{l³ee Yeeb[Jeuee®eer 
iejpe Demeles. ¿ee Jee{l³ee Yeeb[Jeuee®eer keÀcelejlee ne yeBkesÀ®³ee 
he´ieleerheLeeJej ceesþe De[mej Deens. keÀcekegÀJele Yeeb[Jeue 
yeBkesÀuee DeeqmLej yeveJeles, ³eemeeþer Deecneuee he´eefhlekeÀj 
keÀe³eÐee®³ee keÀuece 80-heer Üejs metì osC³ee®ee hegvee|Je®eej 
keÀjeJee. ¿ee Deece®³ee ceeieCeer®ee efJe®eej nesF&he³e¥le leelhegjleer 
Ghee³e³eespevee cnCetve Deecner mebyebefOele DeefOekeÀeN³eebheg{s Demee 
he´mleeJe ceeb[uee Deens keÀer, veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebvee l³eeb®es 
10 ` oMe&veer cetu³e Demeuesues meceYeeie l³eeb®³ee HegmlekeÀer 
efkeÀceleerJej DeeOeeefjle efJekeÀC³ee®eer lemes®e iejpe Demesue lesJne 
l³ee®e HegmlekeÀer efkeÀceleerves HejleeJee keÀjC³ee®eer hejJeeveieer 

ÐeeJeer. l³eecegUs Deecneuee Yeeb[JeueJee{er®³ee he´MveeJej 
leelhegjlee ceeie& efceUsue.''

Deece®³ee 2011-2012 ®³ee Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeueele `ke@ÀefHeìue 

kebÀmì^Wì' ¿ee ceLeÈ³eeKeeueer Deeheu³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves Yeeb[Jeuee®es 

cenÊJe ¿ee cegÎîeebJej hegvne SkeÀoe ue#e JesOeleevee cnìues nesles.

``J³eJemee³eJee{ercegUs Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀuee Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& 
yeBkesÀves Ieeuetve efouesu³ee ce³ee&osle ceesþîee jkeÀces®eer keÀpex ÐeeJeer 
ueeieleele. De[®eCeer®³ee Deee|LekeÀ heefjeqmLeleerle pej keÀener 
ceesþîee jkeÀces®eer keÀpex OeeskeÌ³eele Deeueer lej, l³ee®ee heefjCeece 
DeeHeueer Yeeb[Jeue he³ee&hlelee efveoxefMele veT ìkeÌkeÌ³eebntve 
Keeueer peeTve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer heefjeqmLeleer efyekeÀì nesT 
MekeÀles. KeepeieerkeÀjCe DeLeJee J³eeheejerkeÀjCe ne Deeheu³eeuee 
ve ©®eCeeje he³ee&³e Deens. DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ menkeÀej #es$eele®e 
keÀe³e&jle jeneJeer Demee Deeheu³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®ee ceeveme 
Deens. hejbleg Jee{l³ee J³eJemee³eevegmeej pej Yeeb[Jeuee®eer 
keÀcelejlee nesTve yeBkesÀ®ee hee³ee®e keÀcekegÀJele nesC³ee®ee 
OeeskeÀe efvecee&Ce keÀjerle Demesue lej, yeBkesÀ®³ee DeeqmlelJeemeeþer 
Je YeeieOeejkeÀeb®³ee efnleemeeþer ³eesi³e lees he³ee&³e YeefJe<³eele 
efveJe[Ces MeneCeheCee®es þjsue.''

2012-13 ¿ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&leerue, efJeMes<ele: meO³ee®³ee efyekeÀì 

Deee|LekeÀ heefjeqmLeleerle ³ee®ee GÀneheesn efJemleejeves ¿ee DenJeeueele 

kesÀuee Deens, meeceev³eleë yeBeEkeÀie #es$eele Je Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀleerue 

Deveglheeefole keÀpee&lener ceesþîee he´ceeCeele Jee{ Peeueer Deens. ³ee®ee 

heefjCeece Yeeb[Jeue he³ee&hlelesJej Peeuee Deens Je ner OeeskeÌ³ee®eer Iebìe 

Deens.

pejer Deeheues meO³ee®es Yeeb[Jeue he³ee&hleles®es he´ceeCe DekeÀje ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej 

Demeues lejer les ceeueceÊes®es hegvecet&u³eebkeÀve Je Sued.ìer.Smed.[er. 

Fl³eeoeR®³ee DeeOeejeJej mebkeÀefuele kesÀues Deens. Deeheueer yeBkeÀ Je<ee&vegJe<ex 

efJeMes<eleë ceeieerue leerve Je<ex meelel³eeves Yeeb[Jeue he³ee&hleles®³ee 

efJe<e³eeJej menkeÀej #es$eeleerue peeCeekeÀejebvee FMeeje osle Deeueer 

Deens. Deeheu³ee meJe& Jeee|<ekeÀ DenJeeueele Je l³ee l³ee meJe&meeOeejCe 

meYesle Deece®³ee Jejerue efJeJes®evee®ee meJee&vegceles mJeerkeÀej Peeuee Deens.
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Deelee ne pees DenJeeue efueefnuee peele Deens, l³ee®e ojc³eeve 

Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves `ef[mkeÀMeve heshej Dee@ve yeBeEkeÀie 

mì^keÌ®ej Fve Fbef[³ee' - o Jes HeÀe@Je&[&' ne heshej 27 Dee@iemì 

2013 uee he´me=le kesÀuee Deens. ³eele efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves veeWo 

Iesleueer Deens, keÀer keÀener yengjep³e  menkeÀejer yeBkeÀe (ceuìermìsì  

keÀes-Dee@He. yeBkeÀe) ¿ee menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ cnCetve Kethe®e ceesþîee 

Peeu³ee Deensle. (³ee efþkeÀeCeer veceto keÀjCes ³eesi³e nesF&ue keÀer, 

Deeheueer yeBkeÀ veeiejer menkeÀejer #es$eeleerue, osMeeleerue meJee&le 

ceesþer yeBkeÀ Deens) ³eele heg{s Demesner cnìues Deens keÀer, ¿ee veeiejer 

menkeÀejer yeBkeÀe Deeheu³ee ie´enkeÀebvee efJeefJeOe megefJeOee osC³eele 

Flej mheOe&keÀ J³eeheejer yeBkeÀeb®³ee leguevesle ceeies he[leele. 

keÀe@heexjsìe³ePesMeve (kebÀHeveer keÀe³eÐeebleie&le mebj®evee) ne 

yengjep³eer³e veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebmeeþer meJee&le GÊece he³ee&³e 

þª MekeÀlees. yengjep³eer³e veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀeb®es J³eeheejer 

yeBkesÀleerue heefjJele&ve l³eebvee DeefOekeÀ J³eJemee³ee®³ee mebOeer 

GheueyOe keÀªve osleerue, hejbleg meO³ee menkeÀejer keÀe³eÐeeble 

leMeer lejleto vemeu³eecegUs yengjep³eer³e menkeÀejer keÀe³eoe 

2002 Je kebÀheveer keÀe³eoe 1956 ³eeceO³es megOeejCee keÀjCes 

DeeJeM³ekeÀ Deens.

Deecner efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ¿ee OeesjCee®es mJeeiele keÀjlees. Deeheues 

meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U ¿ee yeeyeleerleerue Ie[ecees[eRJej meelel³eeves ue#e 

þsJeerue Je Deeheu³ee meJe& mebyebefOeleeb®es efnle peheC³eemeeþer ³eesi³e l³ee 

JesUer  Devegªhe heeJeues G®eueC³ee®eer o#elee IesF&ue. DeLee&le®e ns veceto 

keÀjCes Gef®ele þjsue keÀer, kesÀJeU Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&Hleles®³ee keÀe³ece®³ee 

ìebiel³ee leueJeejercegUs Deeheues meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U SkeÀceleeves Deeheu³ee 

yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eeheejer yeBkesÀleerue heefjJele&veeme DevegketÀue Deens, keÀejCe 

Deee|LekeÀ DeeqmLejlesletve yeBkesÀ®es j#eCe keÀjCes ns kesÀJeU peesKeerce 

Yeeb[JeueJe=×ercegUs®e MekeÌ³e nesF&ue.

Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&Hlelee (CRAR) :

ieleJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&Hlelee 12.37 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer 

nesleer, leer ¿ee DenJeeue Je<eea 11.15 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer Peeueer Deens.

(Fbie´peer DenJeeueeleerue lekeÌlee ke´À. 25) 

Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&Hleles®³ee ÒeceeCeele Ieì nesC³ee®eer keÀejCes :

	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥meeþer HetCe& lejleto keÀjC³ee®ee efveCe&³e 
Iesleuee Deens. l³eecegUs ner lejleto ` 402.72 keÀesìeRHeemetve  ¿eeJe<ee&r 
` 663.48 keÀesìer FlekeÀer keÀjeJeer ueeieueer. l³eecegUs yeBkesÀ®³ee veHeÌ³eele 
DeeefCe HeefjCeeceer Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&Hlelesle Ieì Peeueer.

	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves 2009-10 ¿ee Je<eea Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&Hleles®³ee 
GHe³eesieemeeþer ` 300 keÀesìeR®³ee oerIe& cegoleer®³ee þsJeer mJeerkeÀeju³ee 

nesl³ee. ¿ee oerIe&cegoleer®³ee þsJeeRHewkeÀer ojJe<eea 20 ìkeÌkesÀ jkeÌkeÀce 
Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&Hlelee ÒeceeCeemeeþer efve³eceeÒeceeCes keÀceer keÀjeJeer ueeieles. 
cnCetve®e ³eeJe<eea ` 120 keÀesìeR®³ee oerIe& cegoleer®³ee þsJeer®e Yeeb[Jeue 
He³ee&Hlelee ÒeceeCeemeeþer GHeueyOe Peeu³ee.

	 ceeueceÊesJejerue peesKeceer®³ee mejemejer iegCeebkeÀveele ceeieerue 
Je<eea®³ee ` 12,597.72 keÀesìerbHeemetve DenJeeue Je<ee&le 
`13,473.84 keÀesìer FlekeÀer Jee{ Peeueer, l³ee®ee HeefjCeece 
Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&HlelesJej efomeuee.

	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee Hegvece&tu³eebkeÀve (Revaluation) efveOeer 
`302.13 keÀesìer FlekeÀe Deens. Hejbleg Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& 
yeBkesÀ®³ee efve³eceeÒeceeCes l³eeleerue HeÀkeÌle 45 ìkeÌkesÀ ns Yeeb[Jeue 
He³ee&Hleles®³ee ÒeceeCeemeeþer JeeHejlee ³esleele, cnCepes®e 
`135.96 keÀesìer efì³ej II Yeeb[Jeue cnCetve JeeHejlee ³esleerue.

	 Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es yeBkesÀves `112.09 keÀesìebr®ee veHeÀe 
efceUefJeuee. HeCe Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee No.POT.
PCB.Cir.No.45/09.116.00/2000-01 efoveebkeÀ 
25.04.2001 HeefjHe$ekeÀevegmeej efJeefJeOe efveOeerbkeÀefjlee veHeÀe 
efJelejCe kesÀu³eeveblej ̀ 86.10 keÀesìer SJe{er®e jkeÌkeÀce Yeeb[Jeue 
cnCetve JeeHejlee ³esF&ue.

	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ³eeJe<eea J³eJemee³eele HeÀejMeer Jee{ ve Peeu³eeves 
Je yeepeejeleerue ®e{s J³eepeoj ue#eele Ieslee Yeeb[JeueJe=×ermeeþer 
veJeerve oerIe& cegoleer®³ee þsJeer mJeerkeÀeju³ee veenerle, lemes®e 
HeHex®³egDeue vee@ve-keÌ³egc³eguesìerJn ÒesHeÀjvmed MesDeme&ner 
(PNCPS) efJeleefjle kesÀues veenerle.

	 Hejbleg Je<e& 2013-14 ceO³es DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& 
yeBkesÀkeÀ[s oerIe& cegole þsJe Je HeHex®³egDeue vee@ve-keÌ³egc³eguesìerJn 
ÒesHeÀjvmed MesDeme& (PNCPS)Üeje Yeeb[Jeue GYes keÀjC³ee®eer 
HejJeeveieer ceeefieleueer Deens. efve³eecekeÀebkeÀ[s lees Depe& Òeuebefyele Deens.
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DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer meÐeefmLeleer:

Deecner ³eeDeeOeer cnìu³eeÒeceeCes keÀpe&ceeueceÊeeb®ee IemejCeeje opee& 
ner DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀHeg{erue meO³ee®eer ÒecegKe mecem³ee Deens. ner®e 
mecem³ee keÀceer-DeefOekeÀ HeÀjkeÀeves meJe& yeBkeÀe DevegYeJele Deensle. 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee yeeyeleerle DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 lemes®e 
2013-14  ceO³es DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥ceO³es Jee{ Peeueer Deens. Hejbleg 
Deecner meYeemeoebme DeeJeenve keÀjlees keÀer, ¿ee HeefjefmLeleerkeÀ[s l³eebveer 
nJeeueefoue nesTve Heent ve³es. keÀejCe peer Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLes®eer 
efmLeleer Deenss, l³ee®es®e He[meeo mebHetCe&  Yeejleer³e yeBefkebÀie #es$eele 
Gceìues Deensle. lemes®e mebHetCe& yeBefkebÀie #es$ee®eer peer HeefjefmLeleer 
Deens, leer®e HeefjefmLeleer DeeHeu³eener yeBkesÀ®eer DemeCeej Deens, keÀejCe 
DeeHeCener ³ee®e yeBefkebÀie #es$ee®ee SkeÀ íesìemee HeCe DeefJeYeep³e 

IeìkeÀ Deenesle. DeeHeCe ¿ee HeefjefmLeleerHeemetve otj peeT MekeÀle 
veener. ogmejs Demes keÀer, DeeHeCe Deepeleeiee³ele DeeHeues efveJJeU 
DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es ÒeceeCe DeeHeu³ee veHeÌ³eeletve ÒeefleJe<eer& l³ee®eer 
mebHetCe& lejleto keÀªve Metv³e ìkeÌkesÀ jeKeues Deens. l³eecegUs l³eemeeþer 
DeeHeCe `300 keÀesìeR®eer, efve³eceeJeueerHes#ee DeefOekeÀ lejleto kesÀueer 
Deens, peer DeeHeu³ee meO³ee®³ee {esyeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpee&®ee Yeej 
G®eueC³eeme HegjsMeer Deens. Heg{erue keÀeUele keÀoeef®ele DeeHeu³eeuee 
`Metv³e efveJJeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpe&' Demeuesueer yeBkeÀ ns efyeªo ueeJelee 
³esCeej veener. Hejbleg DeMee DeeHelkeÀeueerve HeefjefmLeleerle leelkeÀeefuekeÀ 
Ghee³e®e keÀjeJes ueeieleele. eflemejer ieesä DeMeer keÀer, DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee 
cetueYetle J³eJemee³e Je efceUkeÀleer®ee {e®ee  (basic business 
and revenue model)  ne cepeyetle Deens, l³eecegUs®e DeeHeu³ee 
DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥le DeveHesef#ele Jee{ nesTvener yeBkesÀ®³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 
2012-13 ceOeerue keÀeceefiejer KeeueerueÒeceeCes Deens.

	 DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer SketÀCe efceUkeÀle 
(total income) ner `2,550 keÀesìer FlekeÀer Deens.

	 yeBkesÀ®ee keÀjHetJe& veHeÀe ne ceeieerue Je<eea®³ee ̀  411.33 keÀesìeR®³ee 
leguevesle DenJeeueJe<eea ̀  482.35 keÀesìeRHe³e¥le Heesnes®euee Deens.

	 ³ee efvejeMeepevekeÀ DeeefLe&keÀ HeefjefmLeleerner, DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves 

3.30 ìkeÌkesÀ SJe{s efveJJeU J³eepe efceUkeÀleer®es ÒeceeCe jeKeues 

Deens.

	 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee mJeefveOeer ne ceeieerue Je<eea®³ee ` 1,715.69 

keÀesìeRJeªve 31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer ` 1,961.31 keÀesìeRJej 

Heesnes®euee.

	 31 cee®e& 2013 jespeer DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®eer ` 663.44 

keÀesìeR®eer HetCe& lejleto veHeÌ³eeletve kesÀuesueer Demeu³eecegUs, 

pemepeMeer ¿ee keÀpee¥®eer Jemegueer nesle peeF&ue lemeleMeer yeBkesÀ®³ee 

veHeÀe#ecelesle Jee{ nesF&ue Je DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es ÒeceeCe keÀceer 

nesle peeF&ue. DeveglHeeefole keÀpe&Jemegueermeeþer DeeHeues YeieerjLe 

Òe³elve megª®e Deensle.

meO³ee®ee keÀeU ne DeefleMe³e efyekeÀì Je Ke[lej Demee Deens.  

Hejbleg G®®eO³es³eefve<þe, Kebyeerj vesle=lJe Je meceefHe&le Je=Êeerves keÀece 

keÀjCeejs keÀce&®eejer, lemes®e DeefOekeÀejer mebIeìvee Je keÀce&®eejer ³egefve³eve®es 

menkeÀe³e&, ³eecegUs ¿ee meJe& DeeJneveebJej Deecner ³eMemJeerjerl³ee ceele 

keÀª Demee Deecneuee HetCe& efJeéeeme Deens.

YeefJe<³eekeÀ[s HeenC³ee®ee Deece®ee ¢efäkeÀesve :

G®®eO³es³eefve<þe, J³eeHekeÀ otj¢äer DeeefCe GppJeue YeefJeleJ³e 

Ie[efJeCeejer OeesjCes ns®e Deece®³ee ³eMee®es iecekeÀ Deens. Je<ee&vegJe<ex 

DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer Del³eble mJe®í, HeejoMeea Je oceoej DeMeer GppJeue 

HejbHeje Deecner efJeefpeieer<eg Je=Êeerves  peesHeemeueer Deens. Deecneuee Kee$eer 

Deens keÀer, DeeHeuee Yeejle osMe meO³ee®³ee ¿ee efyekeÀì HeefjefmLeleerletve 

ueJekeÀj®e yeensj ³esF&ue DeeefCe Deeblejjeä^er³e mlejeJej cenÊJeHetCe& 

YetefcekeÀe yepeeJesue. Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLee ueJekeÀj®e GYeejer IesF&ue 

DeeefCe Yeejlee®³ee GppJeue YeefJeleJ³eeJej p³eeb®ee efJeéeeme Deens DeMee 

mebmLeener DeefOekeÀeefOekeÀ Òeiele nesleerue. DeeHeueer yeBkeÀner meÐeHeefjefmLeleer 

megOeejC³ee®eer ceesnerce peesceeves megª þsTve, Yeejleceeles®³ee ÒekeÀeMeceeve 

YeefJeleJ³ee®³ee Jeeì®eeueerle menYeeieer nesF&ue.

19) veHeÀeefJelejCe

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 ceO³es efveJJeU veHeÌ³eeceOetve Keeueerue ÒeceeCes 
lejleto keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme keÀjerle Deenesle.
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lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 24	 (` ueeKeeble)

2012-13 2011-12

jeKeerJe efveOeer (25%) 2,802.28 5,889.23

DeekeÀefmcekeÀlee efveOeer (10%) 1,120.91 2,355.69

Mew#eefCekeÀ efveOeer (1%) 112.09 235.57

He´mleeefJele ueeYeebMe 10% (ieleJe<eea 
20%) 

1,213.10 2,181.58

keÀce&®eeN³eebmeeþer meevegie´n 
DevegoeveekeÀefjlee kesÀuesueer lejleto 
10% (ieleJe<eea 20%)

1,350.45 2,311.03

Fceejle efveOeer 0.00 0.00

meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeer 50.00 50.00

keÀce&®eejer keÀu³eeCe efveOeer 10.00 10.00

meeJe&peefvekeÀ, Oecee&oe³e Je menkeÀejer 
keÀe³ee&meeþer efveOeer (1%)

112.09 235.57

iegbleJeCetkeÀefJe<e³ekeÀ peesKeerce efveOeer  1,735.00 845.50

efJeMes<e jeKeerJe efveOeer 1,000.00 1,500.00

meJe&meeOeejCe jeKeerJe efveOeer 1,700.00 7,940.00

Heg{erue Je<ee&keÀjerlee efMeuuekeÀ 79.91 76.73

SketÀCe 11,285.83 23,630.90

ueeYeebMe :

³eeJe<eea YeeieOeejkeÀebvee 10 ìkeÌkesÀ ueeYeebMe osC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens.

meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeer :-

ÒeefleJe<eeaÒeceeCes ³eeJe<eeanerr meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe 
efveOeermeeþer ` 50 ueeKe Jeie& keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme kesÀueer Deens. ne 
efveOeer pecesme Oeªve SketÀCe meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeer ` 748.50 
ueeKe SJe{e Demesue. DenJeeue Je<ee&le SketÀCe 1,058 meYeemeoebveer 
JewÐekeÀer³e ceoleer®ee ueeYe Iesleuee. meYeemeoeb®³ee 69 iegCeJeble 
Heeu³eebvee Heeefjleesef<ekesÀ osTve ieewjefJeC³eele Deeues.

keÀce&®eeN³eebmeeþer meevegûen Devegoevee®eer lejleto :

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-13 meeþer yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀe³ecemJeªHeer 
keÀce&®eeN³eebvee 10 ìkeÌkesÀ meevegûen Devegoeve osC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens.

meeJe&peefvekeÀ Oecee&oe³e DeeefCe menkeÀejer keÀe³ee&meeþer efveOeer:

efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee No.UBD.(PCB)/BPD/Cir/43 efoveebkeÀ 11 
SefÒeue 2005 HeefjHe$ekeÀevegmeej HejJeeveieer efou³eeÒeceeCes yeBkesÀ®³ee 
SketÀCe veHeÌ³ee®³ee 1 ìkeÌkeÀe cnCepes®e `112.09 ueeKe meeceeefpekeÀ 
keÀe³e& Je Oecee&oe³e keÀe³ee&meeþer Jeie& keÀjeJes DeMeer efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[U keÀjerle Deens.

efJeMes<e jeKeerJe efveOeer :

meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves ³eeJe<eeaner ÒeeHleerkeÀj keÀe³eÐee®³ee lejlegoervegmeej 
efJeMes<e jeKeerJe efveOeerle ` 1,000 ueeKe Jeie& keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme 
kesÀueer Deens.

20)	yeBkesÀves peesHeemeuesueer meeceeefpekeÀ yeebefOeuekeÀer :

iueesyeue keÀeskeÀCe ceneslmeJe :

keÀeskeÀCee®es vewmeefie&keÀ meeQo³e&, He³e&ìve, ueeskeÀkeÀuee, mebmke=Àleer, GÐeesieOebos 
Je MesleerJ³eJemee³e peieeHeg{s DeeCeC³eemeeþer meueie keÀener Je<es& keÀeskeÀCe 
Yetceer Òeefle<þeveÜejs iueesyeue keÀeWkeÀCe ns Jeeef<e&keÀ mebcesueve Dee³eeesefpele 
kesÀues peeles. ³eeJe<eea 4 peevesJeejer 2013 les 7 peevesJeejer 2013 

¿ee keÀeueeJeOeerle Hegvne SkeÀoe keÀeskeÀCee®es JewYeJe Je DeeefLe&keÀ #ecelee 
³eeJej ÒekeÀeMe ìekeÀC³ee®³ee GÎsMeeves ns mebcesueve Dee³eesefpele kesÀues nesles. 

DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee ¿ee GHe¬eÀcee®³ee meg©Jeeleer®³ee Je<ee&Heemetve ³eele 
cenÊJeHetCe& menYeeie neslee.

DeeoMe& meYeemeo :
DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2009-10 Heemetve ÒeeefleefveefOekeÀ 
mJeªHeele DeeHeu³ee®e meYeemeoeleerue SkeÀe meYeemeoe®ee DeeoMe& 
meYeemeo cnCetve ieewjJe keÀjles. ³eecegUs yeBkesÀuee efle®³ee meYeemeoebMeer 
Demeuesues DeeHeues veeles ¢{ keÀjC³eeme ceole nesles. DenJeeueJe<eea 
Þeer. keÀerleea YeeF&oeme mebIeJeer ³eebvee yeBkesÀ®es DeeoMe& meYeemeo cnCetve 
ieewjefJeC³eele Deeues. Þeer. mebIeJeer ns 1975 Heemetve yeBkesÀ®es meYeemeo 
Deensle. Þeer. mebIeJeer ns efnbogmleeve Heseqvmeume Òee. efue.®es DeO³e#e 
Deensle. Þeer. mebIeJeer ³eebveer iesueer 40 Je<ex efnbogmleeve Heseqvmeume®³ee 
J³eJemee³eeuee Jeentve Iesleues Deens. l³eeb®³ee me#ece ceeie&oMe&veeKeeueer 
ner mebmLee MeeUebvee GHe³eesieer DemeCeejer meeOevemeeceûeer yeveefJeC³eeceO³es 

Deûesmej Deens. Þeer. mebIeJeer ³eeb®³ee otj¢<ìercegUs ¿ee mebmLes®es GlHeeove 
Je keÀe³ee&ue³e Yeejleeyeensjner Heesnes®eues Deens. Þeer. mebIeJeer meceepeele 
ceeies He[uesu³ee Je megefJeOeebHeemetve Jebef®ele jeefnuesu³ee J³ekeÌleeRmeeþer 
meeceeefpekeÀ keÀe³e& keÀjleele. l³eeb®³ee yeN³ee®eMee keÀe³ee¥HewkeÀer SkeÀ 
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cnCepes les jepetuee Mew#eefCekeÀ ì^mì (Decejsueer, iegpejele) ¿ee 

mebmLes®es les efJeéemle Deensle. ¿ee ì^mìÜejs cegueeRmeeþer ceneefJeÐeeue³es 
Je Jemeefleie=ns ®eeueefJeueer peeleele. les veìjepe Mew#eefCekeÀ Òeefle<þeve, 

efJeuesHeeues& ³eeb®es efJeéemle Deensle. cegueebvee G®®e efMe#eCeemeeþer ¿ee 
ÒeefleÿeveeÜejs efMe<³eJe=Êeer efoueer peeles. DeHebie cegueebmeeþer Mew#eefCekeÀ 
megefJeOee HegjefJeCeejer DeeefMe³ee Keb[eleerue Heefnueer mebmLee Demeuesu³ee 
veìjepe efjme®e& meWìj (YeeJeveiej)®esner les efJeéemle Deensle.
21) Flej GHe¬eÀce :

Yeejleeyeensj ceev³elee efceUC³eemeeþer SkeÀ ef®ecegkeÀues HeeTue :

ceneje<ì^ FkeÀe@vee@efcekeÀ [sJnueHeceWì keÀeTeqvmeue (MEDC), Deevebo 
ì^s[ [sJnueHeceWì meefJn&mesme cegbyeF&, ieuHeÀ ceneje<ì^ yeerPevesme HeÀesjce 
(GMBF) DeeefCe SìtPes[ FJnWìdme ³eebveer ogyeF& ³esLes meb³egkeÌleHeCes 
Dee³eesefpele kesÀuesu³ee leerve efoJemeer³e ÒeoMe&veeceO³es DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves 
menYeeie Iesleuee neslee.

ogyeF&leerue ueeskeÀebvee Yeejleele yeveefJeuesu³ee ûeenkeÀesHe³eesieer Jemlet 
Je megefJeOeeb®eer ceeefnleer keÀªve osTve Deeblejjeä^er³e HeeleUerJej 

ceneje<ì^eleerue keÀewMeu³e Heesnes®eefJeC³ee®ee Òe³elve ¿ee ÒeoMe&veeÜejs 

keÀjC³eele Deeuee. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ¿ee mebOeer®ee GHe³eesie Yeejleeyeensj 
jenCeeN³ee DeeefMe³eeF& jefnJeeMeeb®eer DeesUKe keÀªve IesC³eemeeþer kesÀuee. 

¿ee ÒeoMe&veele Jeerme osMeeb®es ÒeefleefveOeer Je 150 J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ Deeues 

nesles. ¿ee ÒeoMe&vee®es `Keefuepe ìeF&cme' ¿ee ogyeF&leerue DeûeieC³e 
Je=ÊeHe$eeves Je `Peer 24 leeme' ¿ee otjef®e$eJeeefnveerves Jeelee¥keÀve kesÀues. 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee mìe@ue ceeskeÌ³ee®³ee efþkeÀeCeer neslee Je meJe& ûeenkeÀeb®es 
ue#e JesOetve Iesle neslee. ogyeF&leerue DeeHeu³ee ûeenkeÀeb®³ee J³eefleefjkeÌle 
yejs®emes YeeJeer ûeenkeÀner DeeHeu³ee mìe@ueuee DeeJepet&ve npesjer ueeJetve 
iesues. ¿ee GHe¬eÀceele menYeeieer Peeuesueer Yeejleeleerue menkeÀej 
#es$eeleerue DeeHeueer SkeÀ®e yeBkeÀ nesleer !
22) mebmLee DeefYeMeemeve :

meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®eer j®evee :
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®eer j®evee ceefuìmìsì keÀes-Dee@He. meesmee³eìer keÀe³eoe 
2002 DeeefCe yeBkesÀ®³ee Heesìefve³eceevegmeej kesÀueer peeles. 31 cee®e& 
2013 jespeer yeBkesÀJej meesUe efveJee&ef®ele meb®eeuekeÀ Deensle. DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[UeJej veeceJeble, Òeefleefÿle, J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ 
kegÀMeuelee DeeefCe yeBefkebÀie, efJeÊeer³e lemes®e Flej #es$eeleerue iee{e 
DevegYeJe Demeuesues lep%e meb®eeuekeÀ Deensle. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee 

efve³eceevegmeej veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[UeJej efkeÀceeve 
SkeÀ ®eeì&[& DekeÀeTbìbì Je SkeÀ yeBkeÀj DemeCes DeeJeM³ekeÀ Deens. 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[UeJej leerve ®eeì&[& DekeÀeTbìbìdme 
Je meele DevegYeJeer yeBkeÀme& Deensle. 

³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee SketÀCe 
25 meYee Peeu³ee.

meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueleerue yeoue :
Þeer. peieoerMe Hew kesÀ.Sue. ³eeb®ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[UeJej meceeJesMe :
Þeer. peieoerMe Hew kesÀ.Sue. efoveebkeÀ 10 Dee@iemì 2011 jespeer 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Uele efveJe[tve Deeues nesles. les ³eeDeeOeer keÀ@veje yeBkesÀ®es 
Meemeveeves efve³egkeÌle kesÀuesues keÀe³e&keÀejer meb®eeuekeÀ Demeu³eecegUs l³eebvee 
DeeHeu³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Uele meeceerue nesC³eemeeþer keWÀê mejkeÀej®³ee 
HejJeeveieer®eer DeeJeM³ekeÀlee nesleer, l³eecegUs les efveJe[CegkeÀerveblej 
lelkeÀeue meb®eeuekeÀ Heo mJeerkeÀeª MekeÀues veJnles. efveJe=Êeerveblej®eer 
DeeJeM³ekeÀ Demeuesueer DeHesef#ele cegole HetCe& kesÀu³eeveblej 27 meHìsbyej 
2012 jespeer Peeuesu³ee meYesceO³es Þeer. peieoerMe Hew kesÀ. Sue. ³eebvee 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves DeeHeu³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[UeJej mJeerke=Àle keÀªve 
Iesleues.
Þeer. peieoerMe Hew kesÀ. Sue. ns JeeefCep³e MeeKes®es iegCeJeble 
HeoJeerOej Deensle. l³eebvee yeBefkebÀie #es$eeleerue keÀecee®ee mece=× 
DevegYeJe Deens. lemes®e l³eebveer yeBkeÀ Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³eeceO³esner keÀece 
kesÀues Demetve efJeefJeOe Heefjceb[Ue®es ÒecegKe cnCetve lemes®e yeBkeÀ  
Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³ee®es ceneJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ cnCetve peyeeyeoeN³ee neleeUu³ee 
Deensle. ke@Àveje yeBkesÀceO³es keÀe@Heexjsì keÀpex, Smed.Sced.F&. keÀpex, 
ceeveJemebmeeOeve, o#elee efJeYeeie, Òeercee³emesme, ceeefnleer Je leb$e%eeve 
Fl³eeoer efJeYeeieeb®eer peyeeyeoejer l³eebveer meebYeeUueer Deens.
yewþkeÀ YeÊee :
ceeieerue meJe&meeOeejCe meYesle DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves efveJee&ef®ele meb®eeuekeÀebvee 
yewþkeÀ YeÊee osC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme keÀjCeeje GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 63®³ee og©mleer®ee 
cemegoe cebpetj keÀªve Iesleuee neslee. meJe&meeOeejCe meYesme Demeuesu³ee meJe& 
meYeemeoebveer SkeÀcegKeeves ¿ee og©mleerme Heeefþbyee efouee neslee.
³ee Deveg<ebieeves ceuìer-mìsì keÀes-Dee@He. meesmee³eìer keÀe³eÐeevegmeej 
GHeefJeOeer cebpetj keÀjC³eemeeþer ceO³eJeleea GHeefveyebOekeÀ, menkeÀej 
efJeYeeie veJeer efouueer ³eebvee HeeþefJeC³eele Deeuee Je l³eeb®eer cebpegjer ¬eÀ.
SkeÀ-11016/6/85-Sued DeeefCe Sced/(vol II) efo. 14 veesJnWyej 
2012 ®³ee He$eevegmeej efceUeueer. ³eevegmeej meb®eeuekeÀebvee meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[Ue®³ee Je l³ee®³ee GHemeefceleer®³ee yewþkeÀermeeþer yewþkeÀ YeÊee 
osC³eeme meg©Jeele keÀjC³eele Deeueer.
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meb®eeuekeÀebvee keÀpex :
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀesCel³eener meb®eeuekeÀeves DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀkeÀ[tve 
keÀesCel³eener ÒekeÀej®es keÀpe& Iesleuesues veener. ner DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer iesu³ee 
DeveskeÀ Je<ee¥®eer DeefleMe³e mJeeieleen& Je efvekeÀesHe HejbHeje Deens. ³ee®es 
ÒeeJeOeeve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 55 DeeefCe 63 meer ceO³es 
yeN³ee®e Je<ee¥HetJeea keÀjC³eele Deeues Deens.
eqJnmeueyueesDej OeesjCe (Whistleblower Policy) :
DeefYeMeemevee®eer GÊece iegCeJeÊee Je HeejoMe&keÀlee jeKeC³eemeeþer 
yeBkesÀves eqJnmeueyueesDej (Whistleblower Policy) OeesjCe 
DeeKeues Deens. l³eeDebleie&le, meJe& keÀce&®eejer, meYeemeo, ûeenkeÀ ns 
yeBkesÀleerue keÀesCel³eener ÒekeÀej®ee Ye´äe®eej, iewjJ³eJenej, iegvnsieejer 
ÒeJe=ÊeeryeÎue®³ee le¬eÀejer efve³egkeÌle ueeskeÀHeeueekeÀ[s veeWoJet MekeÀleele. 
meO³ee cee. Þeerceleer megOee efmeJeve, GHekeÀe³e&keÀejer meb®eeefuekeÀe Je 

ÒeMeemekeÀer³e mJeefve³ebef$ele G®®eeefOekeÀejer (Deemeje) ¿ee DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®³ee ueeskeÀHeeue Deensle. meJe& mebyebefOele J³ekeÌleeRvee ner ceeefnleer 
efceUeJeer cnCetve ns OeesjCe yeBkesÀ®³ee JesyemeeF&ìJej veceto kesÀues Deens. ns 
OeesjCe yeBkesÀves Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®eer keÀesCeleerner ceeie&oMe&keÀ leÊJes 
efkebÀJee mekeÌleer vemeleevee mJele:ntve Deceueele DeeCeues Deens.

meefcel³eeb®es keÀe³e& :

yeBkesÀ®³ee GlkeÀ<ee&meeþer meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee GHemeefcel³ee mLeeHeve 
keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee Deensle.

31 cee®e& 2013 He³e¥le KeeueerueÒeceeCes meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee leerve 
GHemeefcel³ee keÀe³e&jle Deensle.

	 G®®eeefOekeÀejer Je ceeveJemebmeeOeve meefceleer.

	 uesKeeHejer#eCe, efnMesye, DeveglHeeefole keÀpex J³eJemLeeHeve meefceleer.

	 mebceerueerkeÀjCe meefceleer.

G®®eeefOekeÀejer Je ceeveJemebmeeOeve meefceleer :

keÀce&®eejer ÒeefMe#eCe, keÀce&®eeN³eeb®eer iegCeJeÊee Jee{efJeCes Je jeKeCes, 
keÀce&®eeN³eebmeeþer keÀu³eeCekeÀejkeÀ ³eespevee DeeKeCes ³eebmeejKeer keÀeces 

ner meefceleer keÀjles. ¿ee J³eefleefjkeÌle MeeKee efJemleej, l³eemeeþer peeiee, 

keÀce&®eeN³eebvee keÀpex cebpetj keÀjCes Fl³eeoer keÀecesner ¿ee meefceleerceeHe&Àle 

kesÀueer peeleele. DenJeeueJe<eea ¿ee meefceleer®³ee Deeþ meYee Peeu³ee.

efnMesye uesKeeHejer#eCe, DeveglHeeefole keÀpex J³eJemLeeHeve meefceleer:

ner meefceleer uesKeeHejer#eCee®³ee meJe& keÀeceebJej osKejsKe keÀjles, 
uesKeeHejer#eCeemeboYee&le ceeie&oMe&ve keÀjles, JesieJesieÈ³ee ÒekeÀej®es 

uesKeeHejer#eCe megjUerleHeCes Heej He[C³eemeeþer HeeþHegjeJee keÀjles, 
efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee efve³eceeb®es Heeueve nesles Deens keÀe, ns leHeemeles. LekeÀerle 
keÀpex, DeveglHeeefole keÀpex lemes®e ceeueceÊee peHleermeeþer veesìerme peejer 

keÀjCes Fl³eeoer efJe<e³e ¿ee meefceleerle ®eef®e&ues peeleele. DenJeeueJe<eea 

¿ee meefceleer®³ee yeeje meYee Peeu³ee. cee. Þeer. ceeOeJe ceb$eer Je cee. Þeer. 

veerUkebÀþ JejsjkeÀj ¿ee meb®eeuekeÀebJ³eefleefjkeÌle meJe& meb®eeuekeÀ lemes®e 

keÀe³e&keÀejer meb®eeuekeÀ ¿ee meefceleer®es meYeemeo Deensle.

mebceerueerkeÀjCe meefceleer :

DeMekeÌle menkeÀejer yeBkeÀeb®³ee DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀleerue mebYeeJ³e 

mebceerueerkeÀjCeeyeÎue®es efveCe&³e ¿ee meefceleerceO³es Iesleues peeleele. 
³eeyejesyej®e iebOekeÀes<e efJeYeeiee®³ee keÀe³ee&Jej osKejsKe þsJeCes Je 

ceeie&oMe&ve keÀjCes nsner ¿ee meefceleer®es cenÊJee®es keÀe³e& Deens. 

DenJeeueJe<eea ¿ee meefceleer®³ee leerve meYee Peeu³ee.

23) meYeemeo :

³ee Je<ee&Kesjerme DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es HeVeeme efkeÀbJee DeefOekeÀ meceYeeie 
DemeCeeN³ee meYeemeoeb®eer mebK³ee 1,72,282 FlekeÀer Peeueer. lemes®e 
veececee$e meYeemeoeb®eer mebK³ee 5,78,363 FlekeÀer nesleer.

24) JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeeHejer#ekeÀe®eer efve³egkeÌleer :

2013-14 ¿ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&meeþer ces. kegÀuekeÀCeea De@C[ 
KeeveesuekeÀj, ®eeì&[& DekeÀeTbìbìdme, 13/14, yesue efyeefu[bie, 
mej Heer. Sced. ceeie&, HeÀesì&, cegbyeF& - 400 001 ³eeb®eer JewOeeefvekeÀ 
uesKeeHejer#ekeÀ cnCetve vesceCetkeÀ keÀjC³eemeeþer ns meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U 
efMeHeÀejme keÀjerle Deens.

25) peenerj efveJesove :

DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves yeBkesÀ®³ee þsJeebrJejerue efJec³ee®³ee 31 cee®e& 2013 
He³e¥le®ee efÒeefce³ece®ee nHlee ef[Hee@efPeì FvMegjvme De@C[ ¬esÀ[erì ie@
jbìer keÀe@HeexjsMevekeÀ[s pecee kesÀuesuee Deens DeeefCe meoj efÒeefce³eceHeesìer 

keÀesCeleerner jkeÌkeÀce osCes yeekeÀer veener.

26) meejmJele FvHeÀesìskeÀ efue. (efmeue) :

mJeceeuekeÀer®eer GHekebÀHeveer meejmJele FvHeÀesìskeÀ efue. (efmeue)ves ¿ee 

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le ³eMemJeerHeCes meele Je<ex HetCe& kesÀueer. ³eeJe<eer&meg×e ¿ee 
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GHekebÀHeveerves DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀuee leb$e%eeve mesJee GHeueyOe keÀªve efoueer.

meejmJele FvHeÀesìskeÀ efue. ¿ee GHekebÀHeveer®ee 31 cee®e& 2013 

jespeer®ee DenJeeue, leeUsyebo Je veHeÀe-leesìe He$ekeÀ yeBkesÀ®³ee ¿ee 

DenJeeueemeesyele osC³eele Deeuee Deens.

yeBkesÀle ceeefnleer leb$e%eeve efJeYeeiee®eer HegvemLee&Hevee :

ceeieerue Je<eea®³ee DenJeeueele efJeefole kesÀu³eeÒeceeCess DeeHeCeeme 

%eele Demesue®e keÀer, Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves meejmJele FvHeÀesìskeÀ 

meboYee&le keÀejCes oeKeJee veesìerme yepeeJeueer nesleer. meoj veesìerMeer®³ee 

Heefjceepe&veemeeþer Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀme efmeueHeemetve 

J³eeJeneefjkeÀ mebyebOeele leer JesieUer GHekebÀHeveer Demeu³eeves DeeJeM³ekeÀ 

Deblej þsJeC³ee®ee lemes®e efmeue ner GHekebÀHeveer yeBkesÀJej Deefle DeJeuebyetve 

jent ve³es, ³eekeÀefjlee yeBkesÀ®ee JesieUe ceeefnleer leb$e%eeve efJeYeeie mLeeHeve 

keÀjC³ee®es efveoxMe efouess.

efmeue ner l³eeb®eer keÀesDej yeBefkebÀie megefJeOee Yeejleeleu³ee keÀener ueneve 

DeekeÀeje®³ee menkeÀejer yeBkeÀevee HegjefJeles. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves 

menkeÀejer #es$eeleerue meJe& yeBkeÀebvee l³ee yeBkeÀe `keÀesDej yeBefkebÀie' 

ÒeCeeueerJej DeeCeC³ee®es yebOevekeÀejkeÀ kesÀues Deens. l³eevegmeej ve@Meveue 

DemeesefmeSMeve Dee@HeÀ HesÀ[jsMeve Dee@HeÀ Deye&ve keÀes-Dee@HejsìerJn yeBkeÌme 

cnCepes®e ve@HeÀkeÀye (NAFCUB)ves cee®e& 2010 ceO³es veeiejer 

menkeÀejer yeBkesÀ®³ee Jeleerves keÀesDej yeBefkebÀie ÒeCeeueer®es mesJee cetu³e 

efveef½ele keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee ner megefJeOee HegjefJeCeeN³ee kebÀHev³eekeÀ[tve SkeÀ 

ìW[j ceeieefJeues nesles. keÀesDej yeBefkebÀie megefJeOee osCeeN³ee kebÀHev³eeceOeerue 

Òe®eb[ mHeOee& ue#eele Ieslee l³ee ìW[j®³ee Òeef¬eÀ³esletve ¿ee mesJeeb®es cetu³e 

HeÀej®e ceesþîee ÒeceeCeeJej Keeueer iesues. efmeue®³ee celes ns efveOee&efjle 

cetu³e ¿ee mesJee osC³eemeeþer ueeieCeeje Ke®e& YeeieefJeC³eemener Hegjsmes 

veener. keÀesDej yeBefkebÀie ÒeCeeueer HegjefJeCeeN³ee kebÀHev³eebceO³es, p³eeceO³es 

efmeuener ³esles, ìW[jceOetve efveOee&efjle Peeuesues oj Deelee ceeHeob[ 

yeveues Deensle. ³eecegUs efmeueueener ³ee®e ojeves mesJee HegjJeeJ³ee ueeiele 

Deensle. ns oj Del³eble keÀceer Deensle®e, Hejbleg ¿ee mesJee HegjefJeleevee 
³esCeeN³ee peyeeyeoeN³ee cee$e Òe®eb[ ceesþîee Deensle. ³eeceOes ûeenkeÀ 
yeBkeÀe®ee leHeMeerue ([sìe) ne cegK³e [sìe meWìj lemes®e DeeHelkeÀeueerve 
J³eJemLeeHeve keWÀêeceO³es meebYeeUtve þsJeCes, leaseline lemes®e 
standby leaseline ®eer pees[Ceer, vesnceer®es J³eJenej lemes®e 

MeeKeebvee Dee@veueeF&ve (24/7) menkeÀe³e& keÀjCes, DeeHeu³eekeÀ[s 
Flej yeBkeÀeb®³ee leb$e%eevee®³ee ceeO³eceeletve Deeuesu³ee ¿ee ceeefnleer®eer 
DeeHeu³ee GHekebÀHeveerves efkebÀJee keÀesCel³eener keÀce&®eeN³eeves og©He³eesie 
ve keÀjCes, lemee Peeu³eeme l³ee®eer mebHetCe& peyeeyeoejer mJeerkeÀejCes 
Fl³eeoerb®ee meceeJesMe neslees.

³ee Heeée&YetceerJej DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves Yeejleer³e efjPeJe& yeBkesÀves efveoxMe 
efou³eeÒeceeCes DeeHeuee mJele:®ee ceeefnleer leb$e%eeve efJeYeeie 
mLeeHeC³ee®es þjefJeues. l³eevegmeej 1 peguew 2013 jespeer efmeueyejesyej 
mesJeeMeleer¥yeeyele kesÀuesuee keÀjej jÎ keÀjC³eele Deeuee. ¿ee efveCe&³eeÒeceeCes 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves meejmJele yeBkesÀ®³ee ÒeCeeueerJej keÀece keÀjC³eeN³ee 
efmeue®³ee keÀener keÀce&®eeN³eebvee - p³eeleerue yengleebMeer keÀce&®eejer ns 
meejmJele yeBkesÀ®es YetleHetJe& keÀce&®eejer nesles l³eebvee - meejmJele yeBkesÀle 
efveJe[keÀ ÒeceeCeele meeceeJetve IesC³ee®es þjefJeues Deens. Hejbleg [sìemeWìj 
Je vesìJeke&À mebyebefOele mesJee efmeue yeBkesÀme osCeej Deens. ³eeefMeJee³e veJeerve 
megefJeOee Je leb$e%eeveeOeeefjle ³eespeveener efmeue HegjefJeCeej Deens. efmeueuee 
meejmJele yeBkesÀHeemetve JesieUs keÀjC³eeyeeyele®es efveCe&³e yeBkesÀ®es meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[U Je efmeue®es meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U IesF&ue. ³eeceO³es meejmJele yeBkesÀ®eer 
efmeueceOeerue iegbleJeCetkeÀ lemes®e efmeueuee efouesu³ee Hee³eeYetle megefJeOee 
Hejle IesC³ee®es efveCe&³e IesC³eele ³esleerue. ³eecegUs meejmJele yeBkeÀ Je 
efmeue ³eebceO³es J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ Deblej jenerue. efmeue®³ee GJe&efjle 
keÀce&®eeN³eebyeeyeleerle ceeveJeles®³ee ¢äerkeÀesveeletve efJe®eej keÀªve 
efmeueuee HegveIe&ìves®es mJeeleb$³e osC³ee®ee efveCe&³e IesC³eele ³esF&ue. ¿ee 
meJe& keÀe³e&Jeeneruee meYeemeoeb®ee HeeþeRyee DemeeJee, DeMeer meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[Ue®eer efJevebleer Deens.

27) Þe×ebpeueer :

³esLes meKeso veceto keÀjeJesmes Jeeìles keÀer, DenJeeueJe<ee&le keÀener 

meYeemeo, keÀce&®eejer, efveJe=Êe keÀce&®eejer ³eeb®es og:Keo efveOeve Peeues; 

l³eeb®³ee kegÀìgbyeer³eeb®³ee og:Keele meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U menYeeieer Demetve 

meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U l³ee efoJebieleebme YeeJeHetCe& Þe×ebpeueer DeHe&Ce keÀjerle 

Deens.

28) ke=Àle%elee :

DeeHeCe meJe& meYeemeoebveer meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[UeJej oeKeefJeuesu³ee 

efJeéeemeeyeÎue meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U DeeHeues meowJe $eÝCeer Deens. Yeejleer³e 

efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee keWÀêer³e Je #es$eer³e keÀe³ee&ue³eeleerue veeiejer menkeÀejer 
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yeBkeÀ efJeYeeieeleerue meJe& ÒecegKe DeefOekeÀejer Je l³eeb®es menkeÀejer lemes®e 

keWÀêer³e menkeÀej efveyebOekeÀ, veJeer efouueer Je l³eeb®es menkeÀejer lemes®e 

Dee³egkeÌle DeeefCe menkeÀejer efveyebOekeÀ, ceneje<ì^ jep³e, HegCes DeeefCe l³eeb®es 

menkeÀejer DeeefCe menkeÀej Dee³egkeÌle, keÀvee&ìkeÀ, ieesJee, iegpejele, veJeer 

efouueer DeeefCe ceO³eÒeosMe ¿ee meJee¥®es JesUesJesUer ceeie&oMe&ve, Heeefþbyee 

Je menkeÀe³e& efou³eeyeÎue meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U $eÝCeer Deens. JewOeeefvekeÀ 

Hejer#ekeÀ DeeefCe meJe& Dev³e uesKeeHejer#ekeÀeb®es l³ee®eÒeceeCes yeBkesÀ®es 

meJe& meuueeieej efJeefOe%e ¿ee meJee¥®es meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U $eÝCeer Deens. 

yeBkesÀ®es DeefOekeÀejer Je keÀce&®eejer l³eeb®³ee ÒeeefleefveefOekeÀ mebIeìvee ³eebveer 

meceHe&Cee®³ee YeeJevesletve kesÀuesu³ee DeefJejle HeefjÞeceebyeÎue meb®eeuekeÀ 

ceb[U l³eeb®es DeeYeej ceeveerle Deens. 
meYeemeo, þsJeeroej Je efnleef®eblekeÀ ³eebveer oMe&efJeuesuee efJeéeeme Je 
DeeHeCee meJee¥veer efouesues menkeÀe³e& ³eecegUs®e DenJeeueJe<ee&le meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[U DeefJeÞeeble keÀe³e& keÀª MekeÀues. meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U DeeHeCee 
meJee¥®es $eÝCeer Deens.

meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U meJe& meYeemeoebme Kee$eerHetJe&keÀ meebiet Feq®íles keÀer, 
DeeHeCee meJee¥®³ee menkeÀe³ee&ves [e@. Dee[ejkeÀj efceMeve Debleie&le 
þjefJeuesues ue#³e meeO³e keÀjC³eemeeþer Deecner meJe& DeefJejle HeefjÞece 
keÀªve J³eJemee³eele ®eebieueer keÀeceefiejer keÀªve oeKeJet. Oev³eJeeo !

yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee Jeleerves

		         SkeÀveeLe kesÀMeJe þeketÀj
DeO³e#e

cegbyeF&, 5 meHìbsyej, 2013

leUìerHe: 

meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®ee mebHetCe& DenJeeue FbûepeerceO³es meesyele efouee Deens. 
ne HeÀkeÌle iees<eJeeje Deens.


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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’  REPORT
To,
The Members of The Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd.

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of THE SARASWAT CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD, which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at  March 31, 2013 and also the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, 
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial statements 
subject to our comments and observations contained in Audit Memorandum, give the information required by The Multi-State  
Co-operative Societies Act,2002 and Rules made thereunder in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:
(a)	 In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2013;
(b)	 In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
(c)	 In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Report On Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We report that:
a.	 We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 

purpose of our audit;
b.	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as appears from our examination 

of those books and proper returns adequate for the purpose of our audit have been received from the branches not visited by 
us;

c.	 The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with 
the books of account and returns.

d.	 In our opinion and according to information given to us, there has been no material impropriety or irregularity in the expenditure 
or in the realisation of money due to the bank;

e.	 In our opinion and according to information given to us, the transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been 
within the competence of the Bank. 

For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105407W

	 sd/-
(P.M. PARULEKAR)
Partner
Membership No. 36362

Place	: Mumbai
Date	 : April 25,2013
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CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES Schedule CURRENT YEAR
31-03-2013

PREVIOUS YEAR
31-03-2012

(1)	 CAPITAL 1 1,26,90,92,940 1,16,91,66,480

(2) 	 RESERVE FUND & OTHER RESERVES 2 23,03,34,50,027 18,55,81,33,882

(3) 	 DEPOSITS & OTHER ACCOUNTS 3 2,11,44,33,16,405 1,92,52,70,98,201

(4) 	 BORROWINGS 4 4,06,90,02,725 4,14,04,98,094

(5) 	 BILLS FOR COLLECTION BEING BILLS
 	 RECEIVABLE AS PER CONTRA

19,96,03,98,665 18,37,57,60,889

(6) 	 BRANCH ADJUSTMENTS 67,29,808 0

(7)	 OVERDUE INTEREST RESERVE AS PER CONTRA

	 i) 	 ON INVESTMENTS 0 86,56,644

	 ii) 	 ON LOANS AND ADVANCES 1,15,86,20,288 1,17,21,20,360

(8) 	 INTEREST PAYABLE 69,70,90,244 69,12,64,891

(9) 	 OTHER LIABILITIES 5 9,28,20,25,823 8,01,43,99,102

(10) 	 PROFIT & LOSS 6 1,12,85,83,070 2,36,30,89,970

TOTAL 2,72,04,83,09,995 2,47,02,01,88,513

Contingent Liabilities: 13 18,32,65,45,395 23,45,19,18,326

As per our report of even date attached
For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.105407W

 	 sd/-
P.M. PARULEKAR
Partner
Membership No.36362
Mumbai: April 25, 2013

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2013

(Amount in `)
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(Amount in `)

 PROPERTY AND ASSETS Schedule CURRENT YEAR
31-03-2013

PREVIOUS YEAR
31-03-2012

(1) 	 CASH 7 8,69,95,40,753 10,61,71,31,010

(2) 	 BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS 8 10,56,32,02,908 6,13,91,02,977

(3) 	 MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE 1,43,47,38,611 1,36,89,33,637

(4) 	 INVESTMENTS 9 64,44,03,06,477 56,26,98,77,669

(5) 	 ADVANCES 10 1,50,23,41,50,595 1,39,52,70,48,595

(6) 	 INTEREST RECEIVABLE AS PER CONTRA
	  i)	 ON INVESTMENTS 0 86,56,644
	 ii)	 ON LOANS AND ADVANCES 1,15,86,20,288 1,17,21,20,360

(7) 	 BILLS RECEIVABLE BEING BILLS FOR
	 COLLECTION AS PER CONTRA

19,96,03,98,665 18,37,57,60,889

(8) 	 BRANCH ADJUSTMENTS 0 4,41,24,340

(9) 	 FIXED ASSETS 11 5,53,78,25,846 5,53,85,17,005

(10) 	 OTHER ASSETS 12 10,00,21,31,283 7,93,24,20,615

(11) 	 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 4,000 14,000

(12) 	 DEFERRED AMORTISATION OF INVESTMENTS 1,73,90,569 2,42,02,372

(13) 	 NON-BANKING ASSETS ACQUIRED IN 0 22,78,400
	 SATISFACTION OF CLAIMS: (As per Banks’ Approved Valuers)
	

TOTAL 2,72,04,83,09,995 2,47,02,01,88,513

	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	
	 S.K. BANERJI	  S.N. SAWAIKAR	 P.N. JOSHI	 S.S. SANZGIRI	 E.K. THAKUR
	 Managing Director	 Director	 Director	 Vice-Chairman	 Chairman

Mumbai: April 25, 2013
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013 

EXPENDITURE CURRENT YEAR 
31-03-2013

PREVIOUS YEAR
31-03-2012

	 1.	 Interest on Deposits, Borrowings, etc. 16,16,02,64,224 13,04,58,85,339
	 2.	 Salaries and Allowances, Bonus, Gratuity, 2,16,80,93,894 1,88,27,88,388
     	 Provident Fund Contribution, etc.
	 3.	 Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Lighting, etc. 52,35,17,465 44,58,26,105
	 4.	 Law Charges 37,44,195 51,16,185
	 5.	 Postage, Telegram and Telephone charges 5,18,19,774 4,87,15,110
	 6.	 Audit fees (Statutory,Internal and Concurrent Auditors) 3,21,84,902 2,48,76,568
	 7.	 Depreciation/Amortisation of Assets 21,69,87,441 21,52,29,032
	 8.	 Printing and Stationery 4,14,55,248 4,53,13,826
	 9.	 Advertisements 6,62,18,517 11,70,39,735
	10.	 Other Expenditure :
     	 i) 	 Repairs and Maintenance of assets 6,85,76,054 4,38,48,056
     	 ii) 	 I.T. Infrastructure Maintenance 32,27,00,931 29,70,76,912
     	 iii) 	 Banker's Indemnity Insurance 29,01,178 27,04,370
     	 iv) 	 Premium paid to DICGC 19,48,32,000 16,08,45,000
     	 v) 	 Premium paid to ECGC 1,63,71,443 1,29,98,535
     	 vi) 	 Cheque Processing Charges 1,93,28,534 1,95,76,166
     	 vii) 	 Leased Line Expenditure 1,75,58,547 1,36,81,880
     	 viii) 	 Travelling and Conveyance 1,92,15,158 1,64,48,752
     	 ix) 	 Security Service Charges 11,55,46,328 10,08,37,903
	 	 x) 	 Amortisation of Investments 21,38,43,478 20,32,68,545
	     	xi) 	 Professional Fees 2,53,57,748 2,51,79,416
     	 xii) 	 Bank Charges 10,16,80,716 10,35,19,284
     	 xiii) 	 Visa Card Expenses 2,16,45,571 1,99,58,753
     	 xiv) 	 Amenities Charges 4,47,15,674 3,02,30,501
     	 xv) 	 Car Expenses 1,09,10,306 1,11,48,695
     	 xvi) 	 Housekeeping Charges 1,67,93,026 1,38,05,496
     	 xvii) 	 Service Tax paid 6,25,57,301 4,64,33,882
 	    	xviii) 	Sundries 14,89,67,369 17,79,00,613

1,42,35,01,362 1,29,94,62,759
	11. 	 Provisions :
     	 i) 	 Provision For Depreciation on Investments 0 10,48,83,722
     	 ii) 	 Bad And Doubtful Debts Reserve 3,16,31,71,368 47,93,97,423
	     	iii) 	 Provision for Restructured Assets 11,47,00,000 0
		  iv)	 Contingent Provision Against Standard Assets 1,65,30,648 13,40,00,000

3,29,44,02,016 71,82,81,145
	12.	 Income-Tax Expenses :
	 	 i)	 Current Tax 1,28,25,00,000 1,05,30,00,000
     	 ii) 	 Deferred Tax (97,06,78,798) (16,24,68,248)
     	 iii) 	 Short Provision for Tax for earlier years (Net) 0 67,66,776

31,18,21,202 89,72,98,528
13.	 Total Expenses 24,29,40,10,240 18,74,58,32,720
14.	 Net Profit after Tax and before Exceptional items 1,21,73,45,077 2,49,76,46,440
15. 	 Exceptional items 9,64,34,477 14,19,53,981
16.	 Net Profit after Tax & Exceptional items 1,12,09,10,600 2,35,56,92,459
	TOTAL 25,51,13,55,317 21,24,34,79,160

(Amount in `)

As per our report of even date attached
For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.105407W

 	 sd/-
P.M. PARULEKAR
Partner
Membership No.36362
Mumbai: April 25, 2013
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INCOME CURRENT YEAR 
31-03-2013

PREVIOUS YEAR
31-03-2012

	 1.	 Interest & Discount 22,90,50,72,170 19,21,54,43,625

	 2.	 Commission 43,58,66,525 36,93,07,002

	 3.	 Exchange 18,30,15,781 21,27,94,939

	 4.	 Profit on Sale of Securities (Net) 94,10,73,102 45,92,15,983

	 5.	 Dividend 4,76,06,497 4,73,92,557

	 6.	 Other Receipts :
		  i)	 Processing Fees      29,49,24,963 35,81,34,380
		  ii)	 Service Charges  35,18,52,996 31,84,78,422
	 	 iii)	 Recovery of Expenses 1,16,80,724 1,37,44,864
	 	 iv)	 Profit on Sale of Assets 29,50,072 12,77,398
	 	 v)	 Acquirer's Fees and ATM Charges 5,90,92,656 4,43,17,249
		  vi)	 Miscellaneous Income 2,80,70,362 3,52,86,202

74,85,71,773 77,12,38,515

	 7.	 Excess Provision of earlier years written back 12,59,164 2,65,00,615

	 8.	 Excess Provision for Depreciation on Investments reversed 9,05,37,665 0

	 9.	 Bad Debts earlier written off, now recovered 8,33,52,640 13,55,85,924
     
	10.	 Excess Provision of Restructured Assets written back 0 60,00,000

	11.	 Excess Special Reserve Reversed 7,50,00,000 0

	TOTAL 25,51,13,55,317 21,24,34,79,160

(Amount in `)

	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	
	 S.K. BANERJI	  S.N. SAWAIKAR	 P.N. JOSHI	 S.S. SANZGIRI	 E.K. THAKUR
	 Managing Director	 Director	 Director	 Vice-Chairman	 Chairman

Mumbai: April 25, 2013



84

Annual Report 2012-13

(Amount in `)

CURRENT YEAR 
31-03-2013

PREVIOUS YEAR
31-03-2012

SCHEDULE 1 -- CAPITAL
Authorised Capital :
100,00,00,000 Shares of ` 10/- each 10,00,00,00,000 10,00,00,00,000
(Previous year 100,00,00,000 shares )
Subscribed Capital : 1,26,90,92,940 1,16,91,66,480
12,69,09,294  Shares of ` 10/- each
(Previous year 11,69,16,648 shares of `  10/- each)
Amount Called up: 1,26,90,92,940 1,16,91,66,480
12,69,09,294  Shares of ` 10/- each
(Previous year 11,69,16,648 shares of `  10/- each)
Of the above held by :
a) 	 Individuals & others 1,26,90,67,940 1,16,91,41,480
b) 	 Societies 25,000 25,000

Total 1,26,90,92,940 1,16,91,66,480

SCHEDULE 2 – RESERVE FUND & OTHER RESERVES:
i) 	 Statutory Reserve 4,54,82,70,175 3,93,27,73,035
ii) 	 Building Fund 2,52,90,93,933 2,52,90,93,933
iii) 	 Bad & Doubtful Debts Reserve 6,73,75,76,701 4,12,44,93,845
iv) 	 Special Reserve for Restructured Assets 12,87,00,000 1,40,00,000
v) 	 Investment Fluctuation Reserve 80,00,00,710 71,54,50,710
vi) 	 Contingency Reserve 1,58,07,66,150 1,34,51,96,850
vii) 	 Contingent provision against
	 Standard Assets 57,89,05,159 56,23,74,511
viii) 	 Members' Welfare Fund 6,98,50,000 6,48,50,000
ix) 	 Provision for Public Charitable
	 & Co-operative Purpose 2,66,73,854 2,47,16,355
x) 	 Provision for Staff Welfare 1,22,75,566 1,14,95,566
xi) 	 Net Open Foreign Currency 
	 Position Reserve 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
xii) 	 General Reserve 2,42,72,86,329 1,62,84,87,527
xiii) 	 Revaluation Reserve 3,02,12,51,450 3,10,74,01,550
xiv) 	 Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of I.Tax Act,1961 55,28,00,000 47,78,00,000

Total 23,03,34,50,027 18,55,81,33,882

SCHEDULE 3 – DEPOSITS & OTHER ACCOUNTS:
i)	 Fixed Deposits:
	 a)	 Individuals & Others 1,29,17,97,12,447 1,16,66,89,41,645
	 b)	 Central Co-op. Banks 25,00,000 0
	 c)	 Other Societies 28,44,10,38,796 25,04,43,75,408

(a) 1,57,62,32,51,243 1,41,71,33,17,053

ii)	 Savings Bank Deposits:
	 a)	 Individuals & Others 41,73,61,67,999 38,26,49,30,071
	 b)	 Central Co-op. Banks 0 0
	 c)	 Other Societies 2,42,56,32,845 1,95,30,63,990

(b) 44,16,18,00,844 40,21,79,94,061
iii)	 Current Deposits:
	 a)	 Individuals & Others 9,20,58,15,330 10,20,50,15,400
	 b)	 Central Co-op.Banks 7,55,956 4,99,660
	 c)	 Other Societies 45,16,93,032 39,02,72,027

(c) 9,65,82,64,318 10,59,57,87,087
Total (a+b+c) 2,11,44,33,16,405 1,92,52,70,98,201
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(Amount in `)

CURRENT YEAR 
31-03-2013

PREVIOUS YEAR
31-03-2012

SCHEDULE 4 – BORROWINGS: 
a) 	 Refinance from S.I.D.B.I. 2,18,225 8,36,594
b) 	 Foreign Currency Borrowing from Banks 1,06,87,84,500 1,13,96,61,500
c) 	 Long Term (Subordinated) Deposits 3,00,00,00,000 3,00,00,00,000

Total 4,06,90,02,725 4,14,04,98,094

SCHEDULE 5 – OTHER LIABILITIES: 
a) 	 Bills Payable    71,65,45,799 62,63,36,913
b) 	 Unclaimed Dividend    8,07,30,965 6,31,96,486
c) 	 Suspense 12,72,20,590 13,02,95,557
d) 	 Provision  for  Staff Pension 31,02,71,593 32,46,42,639
e) 	 Rebate on Bills Discounted 3,43,91,841 2,74,52,484
f) 	 Credit balance in Bank Account 46,94,53,612 34,82,81,161
g) 	 Provision for Leave Encashment 56,93,55,015 54,98,03,960
h) 	 Contingent Provision against Depreciation in Investments 1,62,21,014 35,44,19,295
i) 	 Provision for Taxation 3,76,09,80,700 2,47,84,80,700
j) 	 Other items 3,19,68,54,694 3,11,14,89,907

Total 9,28,20,25,823 8,01,43,99,102

SCHEDULE 6 – PROFIT & LOSS: 
Profit as per last Balance Sheet (a) 2,36,30,89,970 2,12,59,98,811
Less :

Appropriations of profit for the year 2011-12
Reserve Fund 58,89,23,200 53,06,68,000
Dividend 21,81,58,000 18,47,16,500
Public Charitable & Co-operative Purpose 2,35,57,000 2,12,26,800
Provision for Staff Welfare 10,00,000 10,00,000
Members' Welfare Fund 50,00,000 50,00,000
Ex-gratia to Employees 23,11,03,000 19,24,96,000
Education fund 2,35,57,000 2,12,26,800
Contingency Reserve 23,55,69,300 21,22,67,200
Investment Fluctuation  Reserve 8,45,50,000 5,00,00,000
Special Reserve 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000
General  Reserve 79,40,00,000 75,00,00,000

 (b) 2,35,54,17,500 2,11,86,01,300
 (a-b) 76,72,470 73,97,511
Add : Profit for the year as per Profit & Loss Account 1,12,09,10,600 2,35,56,92,459

Total 1,12,85,83,070 2,36,30,89,970

SCHEDULE 7 – CASH:
i) 	 Cash In hand (Including Foreign Currency Notes ) 97,17,58,961 71,27,79,790
ii) 	 Balance with RBI in Current A/c 7,66,45,66,744 9,87,07,39,449
iii) 	 Balance with SBI & SBI Associates In Current A/c 6,23,80,391 2,75,61,369
iv) 	 Balance with State Co-operative Banks 10,000 10,000 
v) 	 Balance with District Central Co-operative Banks 8,24,657 60,40,402

Total 8,69,95,40,753 10,61,71,31,010
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(Amount in `)

CURRENT YEAR 
31-03-2013

PREVIOUS YEAR
31-03-2012

SCHEDULE 8 -- BALANCE WITH OTHER BANKS  :
i)	 Current Deposits 1,20,86,78,461 97,76,58,145
	 (Including ` 12.26 crore with Banks in Foreign Countries)
ii) 	 Fixed  Deposits (including ` 19.60 crore pledged for securing 9,35,45,24,447 5,16,14,44,832
         funded/non-funded facilities and treasury operations)

Total 10,56,32,02,908 6,13,91,02,977

SCHEDULE 9 – INVESTMENTS:
(I) 	 i)	 In Central & State Government Securities 50,14,47,45,778 45,53,85,68,114
		  Face Value    - ` 4911.00 crore 
		  Market Value - ` 4889.09 crore
       		  (including ` 1402.82 crore pledged for Treasury operations)
	 ii)	 Other Trustee Securities 0 1,42,44,499
	 iii)	 Shares in Co-operative Institutions 1,80,31,190 1,80,30,190
	 iv)	 PSU Bonds and Bonds of All India Financial Institutions 67,39,20,467 1,36,90,43,597
	 v)	 Shares of Limited Company (including 22,44,11,633 32,44,11,634
		  Subsidiary Company ` 20 crore)
     	 vi) 	 Certificate of Deposit 7,17,73,73,750 4,91,12,91,500
    	 vii) 	 Commercial Paper 1,58,43,31,150 9,65,25,300
    	 viii) 	 Other Investments 3,19,456 1,38,805 

(a) 59,82,31,33,424 52,27,22,53,639

(II)	 Reserve Fund Investments
	 i)  	 In Govt. Securities 4,49,71,63,018 3,88,21,31,471
          	 Face Value    - ` 446.49 crore
          	 Market Value - ` 441.30 crore
	 ii)  	 Non SLR Bonds 5,01,59,741 5,06,41,606

(b) 4,54,73,22,759 3,93,27,73,077
(III)	 Members’ Welfare Fund Investments
	 In Central / State Govt. Securities 6,98,50,294 6,48,50,953
	 Face Value    - ` 7.04 crore
	 Market Value - ` 6.93 crore

(c) 6,98,50,294 6,48,50,953
Total (a+b+c) 64,44,03,06,477 56,26,98,77,669

SCHEDULE 10 – ADVANCES:
I) 	 Short Term Loans, Cash Credit, Overdrafts & Bills Discounted
	 Of which secured against :
	 a) 	 Government & Other approved Securities 12,43,55,688 13,73,31,202
	 b) 	 Other Tangible Securities 60,44,48,33,893 55,85,97,35,400
	 c) 	 Personal Advances 4,40,93,130 5,74,41,768

(a) 60,61,32,82,711 56,05,45,08,370
           	 Of the Advances, amount due from individuals 59,92,15,20,535 55,19,49,71,659
           	 Of the Advances, amount Overdue 5,19,46,16,720 3,86,50,91,215
           	 Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for) 2,00,24,86,128 1,47,56,62,656
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(Amount in `)

CURRENT YEAR 
31-03-2013

PREVIOUS YEAR
31-03-2012

II)	 Medium Term Advances
	 Of which secured against :
	 a)	 Government & Other approved Securities 2,24,96,484 2,48,24,382
	 b)	 Other Tangible Securities 25,56,85,27,724 27,00,85,59,298
	 c)	 Personal Advances 28,93,75,974 42,77,73,957

(b) 25,88,04,00,182 27,46,11,57,637
		  Of the Advances, amount due from individuals 25,84,39,05,391 27,41,80,99,094
		  Of the Advances, amount Overdue 1,70,02,80,397 1,46,47,41,848
		  Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for) 90,47,62,103 86,76,67,993

III)	 Long Term Advances
	 Of which secured against :
	 a)	 Government & Other approved Securities 1,37,63,354 1,75,93,553
	 b)	 Other Tangible Securities 63,53,88,71,897 55,80,06,79,497
	 c)	 Personal Advances 18,78,32,451 19,31,09,538

(c) 63,74,04,67,702 56,01,13,82,588
		  Of the Advances, amount due from individuals 63,10,15,19,278 55,29,36,69,003
		  Of the Advances, amount Overdue 68,90,87,657 47,88,01,573
		  Considered Bad and Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for) 20,35,38,119 30,31,79,278

Total (a+b+c) 1,50,23,41,50,595 1,39,52,70,48,595

SCHEDULE 11 – FIXED ASSETS:
I.	 LAND
 	 LEASEHOLD LAND
	 Original Cost as on 1.4.2012 2,46,29,325 2,46,29,325

	 Amortisation
	 Amortisation upto last year 39,46,673 36,48,637
	 Amortisation  for current year 2,98,035 2,98,036

Sub-Total 42,44,708 39,46,673
Total 2,03,84,617 2,06,82,652

II	 PREMISES (including freehold land)
	 Original Cost as on 1.4.2012 5,55,08,51,482 5,38,46,81,878
	 Add :   Additions during the year 14,76,69,411 16,61,69,604
	 Less: Sales/Adjustment during the year 5,19,480 0

Sub-Total 5,69,80,01,413 5,55,08,51,482
	 Depreciation
	 Depreciation upto last year 46,30,10,601 32,88,63,531
	 Depreciation for current year 5,44,11,508 5,23,73,345
	 Depreciation on Revalued Amount 8,05,50,100 8,17,73,725

Sub-Total 59,79,72,209 46,30,10,601
Total 5,10,00,29,204 5,08,78,40,881

III.	 LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENT 
	 Book value as on 1.4.2012 4,19,54,678 2,29,79,149
	 Add :  Additions during the year 1,17,42,300 3,16,29,917

Sub-Total 5,36,96,978 5,46,09,066
	 Less : Depreciation for current year 1,18,97,370 1,26,54,388

Total 4,17,99,608 4,19,54,678
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(Amount in `)

CURRENT YEAR 
31-03-2013

PREVIOUS YEAR
31-03-2012

IV.	 PLANT AND MACHINERY:
	 Book value as on 1.4.2012 13,63,21,981 10,91,63,594
	 Add:  Additions during the year 4,88,09,217 5,33,42,065

Sub-Total 18,51,31,198 16,25,05,659
	 Add: Sales/Adjustment (Net) (9,97,940) 2,85,90,746

Sub-Total 18,41,33,258 19,10,96,405
	 Less : Depreciation for current year 5,31,40,688 5,47,74,424

Total 13,09,92,570 13,63,21,981

V. 	 FURNITURE AND FIXTURE:
	 Book value as on 1.4.2012 20,75,52,358 22,25,50,110
	 Add:  Additions during the year 8,99,52,630 9,88,56,564

Sub-Total 29,75,04,988 32,14,06,674
	 Less : Sales/Adjustment (Net) 20,22,054 3,16,11,683

Sub-Total 29,54,82,934 28,97,94,991
	 Less : Depreciation for current year 8,43,97,932 8,22,42,633

Total 21,10,85,002 20,75,52,358

VI.	 COMPUTERS:
	 Book value as on 1.4.2012 2,73,356 3,60,447
	 Add: Additions during the year 34,325 54,780

Sub-Total 3,07,681 4,15,227
	 Less : Sales/Adjustment (Net) 1,478 6,331 

Sub-Total 3,06,203 4,08,896
	 Less : Depreciation for current year 1,48,430 1,35,540

Total 1,57,773 2,73,356
VII.	 MOTOR CARS:
	 Original cost as on 1.4.2012 8,63,77,910 6,24,13,414
	 Add: Additions during the year 35,41,670 3,30,56,557
	 Less : Sold during the year (76,06,431) (90,92,061)

Sub-Total 8,23,13,149 8,63,77,910
	 Less : Depreciation upto last year 4,59,47,611 4,03,42,852
	 Depreciation for current year 1,26,83,476 1,26,90,666
	 Depreciation on sales (62,27,608) (70,85,906)

Sub-Total 5,24,03,479 4,59,47,612
Total 2,99,09,670 4,04,30,298

VIII  CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (PREMISES) 34,67,402 34,60,801
Grand Total 5,53,78,25,846 5,53,85,17,005

SCHEDULE 12 – OTHER ASSETS:
i)	 Deposit for Services 18,74,56,794 16,49,88,207
ii)	 Interest Accrued on Investments 1,04,93,09,823 1,06,47,86,200
iii)	 Rent Receivable 2,74,693 2,54,023
iv)	 Rent on Lockers in Arrears 15,47,025 12,66,516
v)	 Stamps on Hand 38,51,546 33,83,923
vi)	 Prepaid Expenses 1,40,37,092 1,24,26,361
vii)	 Deferred Tax Asset 2,79,67,54,303 1,82,60,75,505
viii)	 Income Tax paid 3,73,16,99,412 2,62,09,82,802
ix)	 Other dues 2,21,72,00,595 2,23,82,57,078

Total 10,00,21,31,283 7,93,24,20,615

SCHEDULE 13 – CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:
i)	 Letters  of Credit                    4,07,56,09,628 4,98,24,75,008
ii)	 Guarantees                          4,26,59,87,144 3,97,76,64,584
iii)	 Forward Sale/Purchase Contracts         9,98,49,48,623 14,49,17,78,734

Total 18,32,65,45,395 23,45,19,18,326
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Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2013.

(I)	 1.	 Background :

		  The Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd was incorporated in 1918 and provides a complete suite of corporate and retail 
banking products.

	 2.	 Basis of preparation :

	 	 The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of 
accounting, unless otherwise stated, and comply with generally accepted accounting principles, statutory requirements 
prescribed under the Banking Regulation Act 1949, and the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act 2002, circulars and 
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) from time to time, the Accounting Standards (‘AS’) issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) and current practices prevailing within the banking industry in India.

	 3.	 Use of estimates :

	 	 The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and 
expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent 
and reasonable. Any revision to the accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

(II)	 Significant Accounting Policies :

	 1.	 Accounting Convention :

	 	 The financial statements are drawn up in accordance with the historical cost convention (as modified by revaluation of 
premises) and on going concern basis.

	 2.	 Foreign currency transactions :

		  Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for at the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 
Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated at the Balance Sheet date at rates notified by Foreign 
Exchange Dealers Association of India (‘FEDAI’). All profits/losses resulting from year-end revaluations are recognised in 
the profit and loss account.

	 	 Outstanding forward exchange contracts and spot exchange contracts are revalued at year end exchange rates notified 
by FEDAI. The resulting gains or losses on revaluation are included in the profit and loss account in accordance with RBI/
FEDAI guidelines.

	 	 Contingent liabilities on account of foreign exchange contracts, guarantees, acceptances, endorsements and other 
obligations denominated in foreign currencies are disclosed at closing rates of exchange notified by FEDAI.

	 3.	 Investments :

	 3.1	 Categorisation of investment :

	 	 In accordance with guidelines issued by RBI, the Bank classifies its investment portfolio into the following three 
categories :

			   i)	 ‘Held to Maturity’ - Securities acquired by the Bank with the intention to hold till maturity.
			   ii)	 ‘Held for Trading’- Securities acquired by the Bank with the intention to trade.
	 	 	 iii)	 ‘Available for Sale’- Securities which do not fall within the above two categories are classified as ‘available for 

sale’.

	 3.2	 Classification of Investments :

	 	 For the purpose of disclosure in the Balance Sheet, Investments have been classified under four groups as required 
under RBI guidelines – Government Securities, Other trustee Securities, Shares in co-operative institutions and 
other Investments.

	 3.3	 Valuation of Investments :

			   (i)	 ‘Held to Maturity’ – These investments are carried at their acquisition cost. Any premium on acquisition is 
amortised over the balance period to maturity, with a debit to Profit & Loss Account. The book value of security 
is reduced to the extent of amount amortised during the relevant accounting period.

			   (ii)	 ‘Held for Trading’ – Each security in this category is valued at the market price and the net resultant 
depreciation in each classification (as mentioned in Para 3.2 above) is recognised in the profit and loss 
account. Net Appreciation, if any, is ignored.
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			   (iii)	 ‘Available for Sale’ – Each security in this category is valued at the market price and the net resultant 
depreciation in each classification (as mentioned in Para 3.2 above) is recognised in the profit and loss 
account. Net Appreciation, if any, is ignored.

				    In case of shares, bonds & other investments, the scrip wise appreciation is ignored. Market value of 
government securities (excluding treasury bills) is determined on the basis of the price list published by RBI 
or the prices periodically declared by PDAI jointly with FIMMDA for valuation at year-end. In case of unquoted 
government securities, market price or fair value is determined as per the rates published by FIMMDA.

				    Market value of other approved securities is determined based on the yield curve and spreads provided by 
FIMMDA.

	 	 	 	 Equity shares are valued at cost or the closing quotes on a recognised stock exchange, whichever is lower.

				    Treasury bills are valued at carrying cost, which includes discount amortised over the period to maturity.

				    Units of mutual funds are valued at the lower of cost and net asset value provided by the respective mutual 
funds.

			   (iv)	 Broken period interest on debt instruments is treated as a revenue item. Brokerage, commission, etc. 
pertaining to investments paid at the time of acquisition is charged to revenue.

	 	 	 (v)	 Profit in respect of investments sold / redeemed from “HTM” category is included in Profit on Sale of Investments 
and equal amount is transferred to Investment Fluctuation Reserve by way of appropriation.

	 4.	 Advances :

	 4.1	 The classification of advances into Standard, Sub-standard, Doubtful and Loss assets as well as provision on non-
performing advances has been arrived at in accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI from time to time. In 
addition to this, a general provision on standard assets has been made @ 0.40% of the outstanding amount on a 
portfolio basis except in the case of direct advances to agricultural and SME sector which has been @ 0.25%, and 
advances to Commercial Real Estate @ 1%.

	 4.2	 The overdue interest in respect of non-performing advances is provided separately under “Overdue Interest 
Reserve” as per the directives issued by RBI.

	 5.	 Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

	 5.1	 Leasehold land and Motor Cars are stated at cost less amortisation/depreciation. Furniture & Fixtures, Computers, 
Plant & Machinery & Leasehold Improvement are stated at written down value.

		  Premises (including Freehold Land): These are stated at the revalued amounts less depreciation.

	 	 Cost includes incidental expenses incurred on acquisition of assets.

	 5.2	 (i)	 Plant & Machinery, Furniture & Fixtures and Motor Cars are depreciated on written down value method 
@ 30% p.a.

	 	 (ii)	 Premises (excluding freehold land) are depreciated on straight line method @ 2.5% p.a.

		  (iii)	 Leasehold  improvement costs are depreciated over the period of lease.

		  (iv)	 Leasehold Land is amortised over the period of lease.

		  (v)	 Computers are depreciated on straight line method @ 33.33% as directed by RBI.

		  (vi)	 Depreciation on Revalued portion of Premises is adjusted against revaluation reserve.

	 5.3	 Depreciation on fixed assets purchased during the year is charged for the entire year if the asset is purchased and 
retained for 180 days or more; otherwise it is charged at 50% of the normal rate. No depreciation is charged on fixed 
assets sold during the year. All fixed assets individually costing less than ` 5,000/- are fully depreciated in the year 
of installation.

	 6.	 Revenue Recognition (AS 9) :

	 6.1	 Items of income and expenditure are accounted for on accrual basis.

	 6.2	 Income from non-performing assets is recognised to the extent realised, as per the directives issued by RBI.

	 6.3	 Interest on Government securities, debentures and other fixed income securities is recognised on accrual basis. 
Income on discounted instruments is recognised over the tenor of the instrument on a straight-line basis.

	 6.4	 Dividend income is accounted on accrual basis when the right to receive payment is established.
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	 6.5	 Commission (except for commission on Deferred Payment Guarantees which is recognised on accrual basis), 
exchange and brokerage are recognised on realisation.

	 6.6	 Income from distribution of insurance products is recognised on the basis of business booked.

	 7.	 Deposit for Services :

	 	 The Deposit for Services like Telephone, Telex, Electricity, etc. paid to the concerned authorities are written off as 
expenditure in the year in which the relevant service connection is installed.

	 8.	 Employee Benefits (AS 15) :

	 8.1	 The liability towards gratuity, leave encashment, staff pension and unavailed LTC is assessed on the basis of 
actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date and considered as a defined benefit scheme. The actuarial valuation 
is carried out as per projected unit credit method.

	 8.2	 The bank’s contribution to provident fund is accounted for on the basis of contribution to the scheme.

	 9.	 Segment Reporting (AS 17) :

		  In accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, Bank has adopted Segment Reporting as under:

	 i)	 Treasury

	 ii)	 Wholesale Banking

	 iii)	 Retail Banking

	 iv)	 Other Banking Business

	 10.	 Operating Leases (AS 19) :

	 	 Lease rental obligations in respect of assets taken on operating lease are charged to profit and loss account on straight-
line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs are charged to profit and loss account.

	 11.	 Income-tax (AS 22) :

	 11.1	 Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the year.

	 11.2	 Deferred tax is recognised, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing difference, representing the difference 
between taxable income and accounting income that originated in one period and is capable of reversal in one or 
more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

	 12.	 Impairment of Assets (AS 28) :

		  Since the bank has ascertained that there is no material impairment of any of its assets, no provision on account of 
impairment of assets is required to be made.

	 13.	 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets :

	  	 A provision is recognised when the Bank has a present obligation as a result of past event where it is probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 
Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the 
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates.

	 	 When there is a possible or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no 
provision or disclosure is made.

	 	 Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually 
and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in 
the period in which the change occurs.

(III)	 Notes to Accounts :

	 1.	 The share capital includes 7,79,365 shares of ` 10/- each in respect of the persons who have not subscribed to additional 
shares to make their shareholding minimum of 50 shares as required under Bye-law No.6C and as a result, they are not 
entitled to their membership rights.

	 2.	 During the year, Bank has paid VRS Compensation of `  9.64 crore. This amount is reflected under the head “Exceptional 
Items” in the Profit & Loss Account. (Previous year : VRS Compensation of ` 0.50 crore , arrears of salary ` 7.02 crore & 
distribution of gold coins to employees ` 6.68 crore)
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	 3.	 The Bank has charged to its Profit & Loss account, a sum of `  0.68 crore out of ‘Deferred Amortisation of Investments’ 
and balance ` 1.74 crore is deferred as permitted by RBI.

	 4.	 In terms of RBI directives, following additional disclosures are made :
(` in crore)

Sr. No. Particulars 31-03-2013 31-03-2012
1. Capital to Risk Asset Ratio 11.15% 12.37%
2. Movement in CRAR 

(i)	 Total Capital Funds 1,502.88 1,558.55
(ii)	 Risk Weighted Assets 13,473.84 12,597.72

3. Investments :
(i)	 Book Value 6,444.03 5,626.99
(ii)	 Face Value 6,341.33 5,494.34
(iii)	 Market Value 6,310.98 5,303.43

4. Advances against :
(i)	 Real Estate 658.83 793.35
(ii)	 Construction business 10.87 23.47
(iii)	 Housing 2,113.34 2,381.82

5. Advances against shares & debentures 20.23 20.82
6. Advances to directors, their relatives, companies/firms in which they are interested:  

(i)	 Fund based            Nil            Nil
(ii)	 Non-Fund based Nil Nil

7. Average cost of deposits 7.70% 7.20%
8. NPAs

(i)	 Gross NPAs 663.44 402.71
(ii)	 Net NPAs -0.04 0.00

9. Movement in NPAs
(i)	 Gross NPAs
	 Opening Balance 402.71 374.41
	 Add : Additions during the year 415.38 119.51
	 Less : Reduction during the year 154.65 91.21
	 Closing Balance 663.44 402.71
(ii)	 Net NPAs
	 Opening Balance 0.00 -0.05
	 Add : Additions during the year 260.73 28.30
	 Less : Reduction during the year 260.77 28.25
	 Closing Balance -0.04 0.00

10. Profitability : 
(i)	 Interest income as a percentage of working funds 9.24% 8.56%
(ii)	 Non-interest income as a percentage of working funds 1.05% 0.90%
(iii)	 Operating profit as a percentage of working funds 0.58% 1.45%
(iv)	 Return on average Assets 0.46% 1.12%
(v)	 Business (Deposits + Advances) per Employee 9.26 9.12
(vi)	 Operating profit per employee 0.04 0.09

 11. Provisions made towards :
(i)	 NPAs 315.53  66.47
(ii)	 Depreciation on investments (9.05) 7.57

12. Movement in Provisions :
(i)	 Towards NPAs
	 Opening Balance 402.72 374.47
	 Add : Additions during the year 339.45 66.47
	 Less : Reduction during the year 78.69 38.22
	 Closing Balance 663.48 402.72
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Sr. No. Particulars 31-03-2013 31-03-2012
(ii)	 Towards Depreciation on investments
	 Opening Balance 35.44 28.74
	 Add : Additions during the year 0.01 7.57
	 Less : Reduction during the year 33.83 0.87
	 Closing Balance 1.62 35.44
(iii)	 Towards Standard assets
	 Opening Balance 56.24 42.84
	 Add : Additions during the year 2.45 13.40
	 Less : Reduction during the year 0.80 0.00
	 Closing Balance 57.89 56.24

13. (i)	 Foreign currency assets 327.37 426.42
(ii)	 Foreign currency liabilities 226.30 294.34

	 5.	 In connection with Repo/Reverse Repo transactions :
(` in crore)

Particulars Minimum
outstanding 

during the year

Maximum 
outstanding 

during the year

Daily average 
outstanding 

during the year

Outstanding as on 
March 31, 2013

Security sold under repos
i) 	 Government Securities 0.00

(NIL)
452.99 

(627.70)
185.30

(211.23)
0.00 
(NIL)

ii)	 Corporate Debt  Securities 0.00
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

Securities purchased under reverse repos
i)	 Government Securities 0.00

(NIL)
 99.99
(NIL) 

 0.55
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

ii) 	 Corporate Debt Securities 0.00
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

	 	 Note: Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures.

	 6.	 I)	 Issuer Composition of Non-SLR investments:
(` in crore)

No. Particulars Amount EXTENT OF “BELOW 
INVESTMENT 

GRADE” SECURITIES 

EXTENT OF 
“UNRATED”
SECURITIES 

EXTENT OF 
“UNLISTED”
SECURITIES

1. PSUs 8.27
 (8.32)

3.25 
(3.25)

3.25 
(3.25)

 3.25
(3.25)

2. FIs 50.12
(105.13)

 0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

3. Public Sector Banks 9.02
 (23.53)

0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

4. Mutual Fund 0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

N.A
(N.A)

N.A
(N.A)

5. Others 187.58 
(48.80)

0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

6. Provision held towards depreciation  (1.62)   
(-2.81)

XXX
(XXX)

XXX
(XXX)

XXX
(XXX)

TOTAL 254.99 
(185.78)

 3.25
(3.25)

3.25 
(3.25)

3.25 
(3.25)

	 	 Note: Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures.
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		  II)	 Non-performing Non-SLR investments:	 (` in crore)

Particulars Amount
31-03-2013

Amount
31-03-2012

Opening Balance 1.25 1.25

Additions during the year 0.00 0.00

Reduction during the year 0.00 0.00

Closing Balance 1.25 1.25

Total provisions held 1.25 1.25

	 7.	 Details of advances restructured as on March 31, 2013 are given below.	 (` in crore)

Particulars CDR Mechanism SME Debt 
Restructuring

Others

I Standard advances 
restructured

No. of Borrowers 4
(0)

19 
(23)

 13
(22)

Amount Outstanding 107.49
(0.00)

75.19 
(112.80)

59.77 
(128.92)

Diminution in the fair value 9.26
(0.00)

0.10
 (0.65)

0.53
 (0.55)

II Sub-Standard 
advances 
restructured

No. of Borrowers -  4
(2)

3 
(0)

Amount Outstanding -  3.31
(5.84)

 12.51
(0.00)

Diminution in the fair value - 0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

III Doubtful advances 
restructured 

No. of Borrowers -  2
(3)

1
(1)

Amount Outstanding - 12.07 
(3.81)

0.13
(0.00)

Diminution in the fair value - 0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

Total No. of Borrowers 4
(0)

 25
(28)

17 
(23)

Amount Outstanding 107.49
(0.00)

90.57 
(122.45)

 72.41
(128.92)

Diminution in the fair 
value*

9.26
(0.00)

0.10 
(0.65)

    0.53
(0.55)

		  *Total provision as on March 31, 2013 stands at  ` 9.91 crore.

	 	 Note: Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures.

	 8.	 Employee Benefits- AS 15 (Revised) :

		  8.1	 Bank’s Contribution to Provident Fund – ` 15.70 crore (Previous year- ` 13.29 crore)

		  8.2	

Sr. No. Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31-03-2013 31-03-2012 31-03-2013 31-03-2012

I. Discount rate 8.50%p.a 8.50%p.a 8.50% p.a 8.50% p.a

II. Expected return on plan assets 8.70%p.a 8.60%p.a      -     -

III. Salary Escalation rate 3.50% p.a 4.00%p.a 3.50% p.a 4.00% p.a
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 		  IV.	 Table Showing Change in benefit obligation:	 (` in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31-03-2013 31-03-2012 31-03-2013 31-03-2012

Liability at the beginning of the current period 73.69 61.82 32.46 33.80

Interest cost 6.26 5.22 2.76 2.74

Current  service cost 3.43 3.39 0.10 0.10

Benefits  paid (12.80) (3.89) (1.43) (1.34)

Actuarial gain/(loss) on obligations 7.44 7.15 (2.86) (2.84)

Liability at the end of the current period 78.02 73.69 31.03 32.46

		  V.	 Table of Fair Value of Plan assets:	 (` in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31-03-2013 31-03-2012 31-03-2013 31-03-2012

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 73.69 61.82 - -

Expected return on plan assets 6.34 5.72 - -

Contributions 14.17 11.63 - -

Benefits paid (12.80) (3.89) - -

Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets (3.38) (1.59) - -

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 78.02 73.69 - -

 		  VI.	 Amount recognised in Balance Sheet:	 (` in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31-03-2013 31-03-2012 31-03-2013 31-03-2012

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 78.02 73.69 - -

Liability at the end of the period 78.02 73.69 31.03 32.46

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet - - 31.03 32.46

		  VII.	 Expenses recognised in income statement :	 (` in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31-03-2013 31-03-2012 31-03-2013 31-03-2012

Current service cost 3.43 3.39 0.10 0.10

Interest cost 6.26 5.22 2.76 2.74

Net actuarial gain/ (loss) 4.48 3.02 (2.86) (2.84)

Expenses recognised in Profit and Loss account. 14.17 11.63 - -
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	 9.	 Primary Segment Reporting (by Business Segments) AS 17:
(` in crore)

 Particulars Treasury Wholesale 
Banking

Retail 
Banking

Other 
Banking

Business

March 31, 2013
(March 31, 2012)

Revenue

Segment Revenue 661.11 
(503.54)

1,077.06
(879.81)

793.36
(729.16)

19.61
 (11.85)

 2,551.14
(2,124.34)

Result  72.11
(55.03)

118.49
(122.74)

171.09
(203.51)

5.57
(-2.95)

367.26
(378.33)

Unallocated Expenses 214.35
(38.84)

Operating Profit 152.91
(339.49)

Income Tax 31.18
(89.73)

Exceptional Items  9.64
(14.19)

Net Profit 112.09
(235.57)

OTHER 
INFORMATION

Segment assets 8,398.27
(7,372.37)

8,930.19
(8,478.33)

9,220.30
(8,404.75)

3.23
(1.86)

26,551.99
(24,257.31)

Unallocated Assets 652.85
(444.71)

Total Assets 27,204.83
(24,702.02)

Segment liabilities 269.88
(294.56)

2,141.94
(2,094.42)

23,001.31
(20,705.44) 

2.37
(6.24)

25,415.49
(23,100.65)

Unallocated 
Liabilities

 Nil
(Nil)

 Total Liabilities     25,415.49 
( 23,100.65)

		  Notes: 

		  i) 	 These segments have been reported considering the nature of products or services, the class of customers for the 
products or services, different risks and returns attributable to them, organisation structure and internal management 
information system.

		  ii)	 Types of products & services in each business segment :

	 	 	 i)	 Treasury : Dealing Operations in Forex, Money market & Fixed Income Products.
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			   ii)	 Wholesale Banking : This includes advances which are not included under retail Banking.

	 	 	 iii)	 Retail Banking : This includes exposures fulfilling the criteria of orientation, product, granularity and low value 	
	 	 of individual exposures as specified by RBI.

			   iv)	 Other Banking Business : This includes all other banking operations not covered under above three segments.

		  iii)	 Secondary Segment Information : Bank caters mainly to the needs of Indian customers; hence separate information 
regarding secondary segment i.e. Geographical segment is not given.

	 	 iv)	 Segment Liabilities exclude Capital and Reserves other than those specifically identifiable with a segment.

	 	 v)	 Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures.

	 10.	 Related Party Disclosures (AS 18):
		  10.1	 (` in crore)

Items/Related Party Saraswat Infotech Ltd 
(Subsidiary Company)

31-03-2013

Saraswat Infotech Ltd 
(Subsidiary Company)

31-03-2012

Current Accounts with Bank 0.002 0.001

Fixed deposit with Bank 18.41 8.71

Investment in Subsidiary 20.00 20.00

Interest paid by Bank on FDRs during the year 1.34 0.45

Rendering of service to Bank during the year 36.20 34.31

Secured Term Loan 0.00 0.00

Purchase of Car during the year 0.00 0.11

Charges towards Office Infrastructure maintenance paid by SIL 
during the year 

1.76 1.76

Payable to SIL 0.59 0.78

Dividend received during the year 3.05 3.82

Dividend paid during the year (` 5,000) 0.00 0.00

Shares held by SIL (` 25,000) 0.00 0.00

		  10.2	 Since Mr. S. K. Banerji, the Managing Director of the Bank is a single party under the category Key  Management 
Personnel, no further details need to be disclosed in terms of RBI circular dated March 29, 2003.

	 11.	 Operating lease comprises leasing of office premises (AS 19).
(` in crore)

Particulars 31-03-2013 31-03-2012

Future lease rental payable as at the end of the year :

- Not later than one year 28.24 23.94

- Later than one year and not later than five years 126.73 91.73

- Later than five years 31.25 28.10

Total of minimum lease payments recognised in the profit and loss account 
for the year. 

33.78 28.60

Total of future minimum sub-lease payment expected to be received under 
non-cancellable sub-lease

NIL NIL

Sub-lease payments recognised in the profit and loss account for the year NIL NIL
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	 12.	 Major components of Deferred tax (AS 22) :
(` in crore)

 Deferred Tax Asset 31-03-2013 31-03-2012
1. Section 43B                                                          19.37             17.25
2. Provision   for BDDR 208.19 127.45
3. Provision for Standard Assets                        17.89 17.38
4. Amortisation of HTM Securities                         32.01 25.60
5. VRS 4.42 4.33
6. Other 4.51 0.84

Sub-Total (A) 286.39 192.85
Deferred tax liability

1. Difference in W.D.V.                                            5.42 5.19
2. Others 1.29 5.05

Sub-Total (B) 6.71 10.24
Net Deferred Tax Asset (A)-(B) 279.68 182.61

	 	 Note: Deferred tax asset has been recognised to the extent management is reasonably certain of its realisation.

	 13.	 Details of Computer Software – other than internally generated (AS 26) :

		  a)	 Amortisation rates used @ 33.33% p.a. on straight line method.(However, if useful life of software is shorter, then 
proportionate rates are used).

(` in crore)
Particulars 31-03-2013 31-03-2012
Opening Balance (at cost) as on  April 1 4.44 4.44
Add: Additions during the year (` NIL) 0.00 0.00
Sub-Total (A) 4.44 4.44
Less : Amortisation made :
Opening Balance 4.43 4.43
Add : Amortisation during the year (` 10,000 ) 0.00 0.00
Sub-Total (B) 4.43 4.43
Net carrying amount as on March 31 (A)-(B) 0.01 0.01

		  b)	 Amount of commitments (net of advance) for the acquisition of computer software - ` Nil (Previous year Nil).

	 14.	 Suppliers / service providers covered under Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, have not furnished 
the information regarding filing of necessary memorandum with the appropriate authority. Therefore, information relating to 
cases of delays in payments to such enterprises or of interest payments due to delays in such payments, could not be given.

	 15.	 The Bank has taken Group Mediclaim Policy covering its Directors, Executives and Branch Managers. The bank has paid 
premium of ` 24,71,920/- (Previous year ` 13,78,750) on this account.

	 16.	 Market Risk in Trading Book as on 31-03-2013 :

		  a)	 Qualitative Disclosures

		  Market risk is the risk that the value of investments may undergo change over a given time period, simply because 
of economic changes or other events that impact the financial markets. In other words, market risk is calculated for 
both, adverse movement in the price of an individual security owing to factors related to the individual issuer as well 
as interest rate risk in the portfolio.

	 Scope: 	 The portfolios covered under the said approach include:

		  1.	 Securities included under the Held for Trading (HFT) category
		  2.	 Securities included under the Available for Sale (AFS) category
	 	 3.	 Open foreign exchange position limits
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		  Methodology: The Bank follows the Standardised Duration Approach for calculation of market risks. The Bank 
manages the market risk in the books on an ongoing basis and ensures that the capital requirement for market risk 
is being maintained on a continuous basis.i.e. at the close of each business day.

		  The capital charge is applied to the market value of securities in the Bank’s trading book. Market Value is determined 
as per the extant RBI guidelines on valuation of investments.

		  Minimum Capital Requirement is worked out separately for

	 1.	 ‘Specific Risk’ charge – for individual issuer related factors.

	 2.	 ‘General Market Risk’ – for interest rate risk in the portfolio.

		  Infrastructure/ MIS & Reporting: The Investment Policy as approved by the Board of Directors provides detailed 
guidelines for all operational procedure, settlements, valuations and risk controls pertaining to the investments.

	 	 A separate Middle Office is also in place which acts as an intermediary, monitoring compliance of regulatory 
guidelines and of the Bank’s Investment Policy and undertakes reporting to higher management.

		  Parameters for risk measurement: Risk management and reporting is based on parameters such as Modified 
Duration, Net Open Position Limits, Gap Limits, Value- at- Risk ( VaR).

		  b)	 Quantitative Disclosure:
							       (` in crore)
						      31-03-2013	       31-03-2012

			   The Capital requirements for:

				    Interest Rate Risk	 :	 29.02	 31.77

				    Equity Position Risk	 :	 4.82	 5.94

	 	 	 	 Foreign Exchange Risk      	 :	 1.24	 1.24

17.	 The Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai (MCGM) has adopted the basis of charging Municipal Tax based on “Capital 
Value” of property retrospectively w.e.f. 1st April, 2010. The overall impact cannot be quantified at this stage and hence Bank 
has not made any provision on this account.  

18.	 Previous year’s figures are regrouped or rearranged, wherever necessary, to conform to the layout of the accounts of the 
current year.

As per our report of even date attached
For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.105407W

 	 sd/-
P.M. PARULEKAR
Partner
Membership No.36362
Mumbai: April 25, 2013

	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-
	 S.K. BANERJI	  S.N. SAWAIKAR	 P.N. JOSHI	 S.S. SANZGIRI	 E.K. THAKUR
	 Managing Director	 Director	 Director	 Vice-Chairman	 Chairman



100

Annual Report 2012-13

CASH FLOW  STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
(` in lac)

31-03-2013 31-03-2012
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Profit as per P/L account 11,209.11 23,556.92
Add: Adjustments for
Depreciation on Assets 2,169.87 2,152.28
Fixed assets written off 5.19 6.33
Amortisation of Investment 2,138.43 2,032.69
Depreciation of Investment (905.38) 1,048.84
Provision for Tax   12,825.00 10,295.52
Provision for BDDR 31,631.71 4,793.97 
Provision for Standard Assets  165.31 48,030.13  1,340.00 21,669.63

59,239.24 45,226.55
Less : Profit on Sale of Assets 29.50 12.77 
Profit on Sale of Securities 9,410.73 4,592.16
Dividend received from subsidiary SIL 305.26 381.58
Deferred tax Asset 9,706.79 (19,452.28) 1,624.68 (6,611.19)

39,786.96 38,615.36
Adjustments for
Increase in Investments (1,15,457.41) (73,151.42)
Increase in Advances (1,07,071.02) (2,44,071.26)
Increase in Other Assets 116.85 (529.14)
Increase in Funds (5,064.35) (1,687.52)
Increase in Deposits 1,89,162.18 3,45,174.91 
Increase in Other Liabilities (2,303.88) 1,018.09 
Deferred Amortisation of Investments 68.12 (40,549.51) 68.12 26,821.78 
Net cash generated from Operating Activities before tax (762.55) 65,437.14 
Income tax paid (Net) (11,107.17) (10,988.48)
Net cash generated from Operating Activities after tax (A) (11,869.72) 54,448.66 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Fixed Assets (3,017.56) (3,831.29)
Dividend received from subsidiary SIL 305.26 381.58 
Sale Proceeds of Fixed Assets 96.29 56.78
Net Cash generated from Investing Activities (B) (2,616.01) (3,392.93)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in Share Capital 999.27 1,408.42
Decrease in Borrowing (714.95) (43,156.56)
Dividend Paid (2,006.24) (1,863.60)
Net Cash generated from Financing Activities (C) (1,721.92) (43,611.74)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (16,207.65) 7,443.99 
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,29,637.23 1,22,193.24
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 1,13,429.58 1,29,637.23

Cash and cash Equivalents 31-03-2013 31-03-2012
Cash 86,995.41 1,06,171.31
Balance with other banks (excluding Term Deposit) 12,086.78 9,776.58
Money at call & short notice 14,347.39 13,689.34

1,13,429.58 1,29,637.23

As per our report of even date attached
For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.105407W

 	 sd/-
P.M. PARULEKAR
Partner
Membership No. 36362
Mumbai: April 25, 2013

	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-
	 S.K. BANERJI	  S.N. SAWAIKAR	 P.N. JOSHI	 S.S. SANZGIRI	 E.K. THAKUR
	 Managing Director	 Director	 Director	 Vice-Chairman	 Chairman



101

Annual Report 2012-13

INVOLVEMENT OF THE SMALL MAN

OUR MEMBERS

No. of Shares Held No. of Members Percentage

50	 -  51 49,337 28.64

52	 -  250 35,520 20.62

251	 -  1500 56,016 32.51

1501	 -  2500 31,409 18.23

1,72,282 100.00

OUR DEPOSITORS

No. of Accounts Percentage

Upto	 ` 1000/- 8,36,399 26.25

	 ` 1001/- to ` 5000/- 5,55,753 17.44

	 ` 5001/- to ` 10000/- 2,46,133 7.73

	 ` 10001/- to ` 20000/- 2,61,796 8.22

	 ` 20001/- to ` 30000/- 2,15,657 6.77

Above ` 30000/- 10,70,382 33.59

31,86,120 100.00

OUR BORROWERS

No. of Accounts Percentage

Upto	 ` 5000/- 10,398 9.91

	 ` 5001/- to ` 10000/- 2,130 2.03

	 ` 10001/- to ` 25000/- 8,333 7.94

Above ` 25000/- 84,062 80.12

1,04,923 100.00

ADVANCES TO PRIORITY SECTOR

No. of Accounts (` in Crore)

Small Scale Industries 3,666 2,241.60

Small Businessmen & Traders 6,954 2,131.73

Other Priority Sector 45,861 2,092.45

56,481 6,465.78
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PROGRESS - AT A GLANCE (YEAR 1920-2013) FACTS - AT A GLANCE (YEAR 1920-2013)

(` in lac) (` in lac)
Year No. of Paid-up Reserve & DEPOSITS ADVANCES Total 

Business 
Year Investments Working Net Profit Dividend Dividend No. of 

Members Capital Other Funds No. of A/cs Amount No. of A/cs Amount Capital Amount (%) Branches
1920 190 0.06 - - 0.01 - 0.06  0.07 1920 - 0.07 0.02 - - 1
Silver Jubilee Silver Jubilee
1943 1,698 1.25 *1.00 4,293 23.48 - 3.23  26.71 1943 19.95 26.15 0.15 0.07 6.25 2
Golden Jubilee Golden Jubilee
1968 15,207 14.43 *18.82 41,703 565.33 2,718 247.80  813.13 1968 290.37 623.05 2.52 1.30 9.00 9
1974 27,150 38.40 *35.68 77,487 1,412.82 4,888 880.61  2,293.43 1974 550.42 1,610.63 6.76 3.25 9.00 19
1975 29,978 44.88 *44.43 87,912 1,527.06 5,323 893.11  2,420.17 1975 675.50 1,763.27 9.01 3.80 9.00 20
1976 32,830 51.52 *54.78 1,04,025 1,961.57 6,081 1,006.99  2,968.56 1976 1,005.92 2,222.87 15.47 5.80 12.00 20
Diamond Jubilee Diamond Jubilee
1978 39,104 76.91 130.40 1,44,520 3,189.41 10,557 1,373.30  4,562.71 1978 1,951.06 3,611.75 26.09 8.30 12.00 24
1979 44,049 94.12 194.92 1,67,198 3,989.92 13,712 1,969.00  5,958.92 1979 2,188.60 4,535.81 30.52 10.25 12.00 26
1980 50,694 120.60 261.94 1,93,033 4,911.84 18,603 3,025.17  7,937.01 1980 2,188.62 5,901.83 35.11 12.40 12.00 30
1981 57,489 156.79 387.94 2,32,317 6,194.37 22,235 3,381.47  9,575.84 1981 3,182.74 7,728.06 51.16 16.50 12.00 34
1982 64,240 192.63 488.99 2,75,121 8,106.71 24,591 5,106.81  13,213.52 1982 3,434.15 9,991.28 65.09 20.75 12.00 35
1983 69,042 223.24 567.46 3,19,602 10,445.95 25,090 6,508.41  16,954.36 1983 4,275.89 15,767.14 70.57 24.75 12.00 37
1984 75,977 262.24 624.58 3,58,366 12,991.46 26,728 7,676.78  20,668.24 1984 5,640.36 15,581.07 59.79 28.50 12.00 39
1985 83,162 312.79 693.10 3,19,528 15,849.76 29,922 8,971.03  24,820.79 1985 7,040.29 19,311.54 69.94 33.90 12.00 41
1986 90,606 366.09 840.96 4,18,708 19,373.40 33,177 11,322.06  30,695.46 1986 8,796.67 24,213.61 118.76 40.00 12.00 41
1987 97,071 409.37 974.48 4,49,286 22,914.72 36,379 13,550.34  36,465.06 1987 10,231.78 26,570.23 145.47 46.02 12.00 42
1988 1,02,384 462.70 1,184.18 4,75,335 28,451.01 37,747 16,163.43  44,614.44 1988 13,120.54 32,802.00 165.75 51.19 12.00 42
1989 1,10,269 531.51 1,446.63 5,02,284 31,038.07 43,484 19,233.62  50,271.69 1989 9,231.86 36,532.31 196.01 58.07 12.00 42
1990 1,21,740 630.21 1,952.28 5,44,548 37,447.63 51,428 23,709.05  61,156.68 1990 10,119.16 44,464.08 301.40 69.25 12.00 45
1991 1,27,646 706.07 2,893.61 5,97,496 45,541.01 54,405 26,051.59  71,592.60 1991 13,092.37 55,242.28 430.46 78.90 12.00 47
1992# 1,30,074 760.90 4,120.52 6,48,424 51,451.77 53,226 28,473.76  79,925.53 1992# 17,560.62 64,032.95 468.33 81.75 15.00 50
Platinum Jubilee Platinum Jubilee
1993 1,29,284 820.94 4,778.02 7,11,219 63,211.46 54,151 34,424.40  97,635.86 1993 31,022.23 84,821.62 633.50 116.45 18.00 50
1994 1,30,758 902.32 4,924.41 7,79,212 79,233.15 61,263 45,837.00 1,25,070.15 1994 34,974.74 1,06,411.84 679.96 126.40 15.00 52
1995 1,31,569 986.22 6,295.41 8,45,341 91,120.13 73,138 59,682.67 1,50,802.80 1995 35,185.80 1,30,031.69 742.66 140.00 15.00 56
1996 1,32,046 1,049.29 9,145.06 8,97,713 1,08,930.40 77,154 71,324.70 1,80,255.10 1996 42,042.27 1,61,866.40 865.54 151.00 15.00 58
1997 1,32,909 1,157.12 12,575.32 9,14,713 1,38,141.97 79,654 88,087.80 2,26,229.77 1997 53,534.87 1,96,927.69 1,100.00 204.00 18.00 59
1998 1,34,061 1,291.49 15,810.05 9,47,833 1,68,035.59 82,429 1,13,907.47 2,81,943.06 1998 63,459.20 2,47,374.86 1,239.01 185.00 15.00 61
1999 1,36,007 1,519.43 19,458.27 10,00,141 2,03,181.86 84,531 1,38,380.24 3,41,562.10 1999 85,431.42 3,12,590.57 1,423.97 228.00 15.00 63
2000 1,42,031 2,035.28 24,410.99 10,84,261 2,37,951.84 87,642 1,70,310.76 4,08,262.60 2000 95,639.19 2,95,608.33 1,734.09 314.90 18.00 69
2001 **83,272 2,443.81 31,236.00 11,09,969 2,81,776.31 75,006 1,80,542.56 4,62,318.87 2001 1,25,554.41 3,41,061.54 2,341.54 390.00 20.00 72
2002 **85,636 2,709.00 39,795.96 12,17,662 3,37,767.21 75,381 2,04,339.78 5,42,106.99 2002 1,65,198.50 4,06,281.05 2,600.00 492.05 20.00 75
2003 **89,117 3,044.44 47,841.14 12,99,736 3,66,059.68 73,308 2,22,359.50 5,88,419.18 2003 1,77,262.65 4,38,696.89 2,935.85 408.03 18.00 76
2004 **94,044 3,457.77 55,587.75 12,29,976 4,05,270.26 77,917 2,61,675.60 6,66,945.86 2004 1,56,615.16 4,93,749.72 6,225.26 553.47 18.00 75
2005 **1,00,581 4,156.48 70,162.39 11,80,900 4,78,614.38 85,312 3,24,722.93 8,03,337.31 2005 2,05,289.40 5,90,348.41 7,037.88 659.52 18.00 75
2006 **1,06,264 4,896.57 82,198.60 14,00,757 6,20,428.65 1,00,115 4,60,898.62 10,81,327.27 2006 1,98,977.97 7,63,100.74 10,120.29 789.99 18.00 86
2007 **1,23,169 6,877.24 97,362.05 18,11,635 8,92,494.33 1,16,687 6,37,045.87 15,29,540.20 2007 2,60,989.72 10,74,547.13 15,517.92 1,138.42 18.00 105
2008 **1,26,174 7,120.97 1,05,973.67 21,92,673 11,43,081.93 1,22,626 7,44,830.67 18,87,912.60 2008 4,35,006.22 13,87,410.43 20,226.06 1,285.00 20.00 153
2009 **1,29,741 7,749.67 1,09,671.08 25,02,655 12,91,884.64 1,27,769 8,11,040.59 21,02,925.23 2009 4,79,150.75 15,62,281.73 21,079.23 1,489.13 20.00 175
2010 **1,34,417 8,623.11 1,18,413.65 24,39,699 14,26,672.86 2,75,479 9,25,035.47 23,51,708.33 2010 5,32,139.11 17,07,105.88 11,967.42 1,590.62 20.00 200
2011 **1,62,560 10,283.24 1,37,375.92 25,59,939 15,80,096.07 1,11,991 11,51,199.23 27,31,295.30 2011 5,25,376.69 19,18,937.24 21,226.72 1,847.16 20.00 216

2012 **1,68,529 11,691.66 1,59,877.47 29,32,606 19,25,270.98 1,12,196 13,95,270.49 33,20,541.47 2012 5,62,698.78 22,43,562.49 23,556.92 2,181.58  20.00 226

2013 **1,72,282 12,690.93 1,83,440.27 31,86,120 21,14,433.16 1,04,923 15,02,341.51 36,16,774.67 2013 6,44,403.06 24,79,080.40 11,209.11 1,213.10* 10.00* 229
*	 Including Interest Reserve
**	 Shareholders holding shares 50 and above
# 	 Financial Year : Change of Bank’s accounting year since 1992 (April-March)

*  Recommended
# Financial Year : Change of Bank’s accounting year since 1992 (April-March)
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PROGRESS - AT A GLANCE (YEAR 1920-2013) FACTS - AT A GLANCE (YEAR 1920-2013)

(` in lac) (` in lac)
Year No. of Paid-up Reserve & DEPOSITS ADVANCES Total 

Business 
Year Investments Working Net Profit Dividend Dividend No. of 

Members Capital Other Funds No. of A/cs Amount No. of A/cs Amount Capital Amount (%) Branches
1920 190 0.06 - - 0.01 - 0.06  0.07 1920 - 0.07 0.02 - - 1
Silver Jubilee Silver Jubilee
1943 1,698 1.25 *1.00 4,293 23.48 - 3.23  26.71 1943 19.95 26.15 0.15 0.07 6.25 2
Golden Jubilee Golden Jubilee
1968 15,207 14.43 *18.82 41,703 565.33 2,718 247.80  813.13 1968 290.37 623.05 2.52 1.30 9.00 9
1974 27,150 38.40 *35.68 77,487 1,412.82 4,888 880.61  2,293.43 1974 550.42 1,610.63 6.76 3.25 9.00 19
1975 29,978 44.88 *44.43 87,912 1,527.06 5,323 893.11  2,420.17 1975 675.50 1,763.27 9.01 3.80 9.00 20
1976 32,830 51.52 *54.78 1,04,025 1,961.57 6,081 1,006.99  2,968.56 1976 1,005.92 2,222.87 15.47 5.80 12.00 20
Diamond Jubilee Diamond Jubilee
1978 39,104 76.91 130.40 1,44,520 3,189.41 10,557 1,373.30  4,562.71 1978 1,951.06 3,611.75 26.09 8.30 12.00 24
1979 44,049 94.12 194.92 1,67,198 3,989.92 13,712 1,969.00  5,958.92 1979 2,188.60 4,535.81 30.52 10.25 12.00 26
1980 50,694 120.60 261.94 1,93,033 4,911.84 18,603 3,025.17  7,937.01 1980 2,188.62 5,901.83 35.11 12.40 12.00 30
1981 57,489 156.79 387.94 2,32,317 6,194.37 22,235 3,381.47  9,575.84 1981 3,182.74 7,728.06 51.16 16.50 12.00 34
1982 64,240 192.63 488.99 2,75,121 8,106.71 24,591 5,106.81  13,213.52 1982 3,434.15 9,991.28 65.09 20.75 12.00 35
1983 69,042 223.24 567.46 3,19,602 10,445.95 25,090 6,508.41  16,954.36 1983 4,275.89 15,767.14 70.57 24.75 12.00 37
1984 75,977 262.24 624.58 3,58,366 12,991.46 26,728 7,676.78  20,668.24 1984 5,640.36 15,581.07 59.79 28.50 12.00 39
1985 83,162 312.79 693.10 3,19,528 15,849.76 29,922 8,971.03  24,820.79 1985 7,040.29 19,311.54 69.94 33.90 12.00 41
1986 90,606 366.09 840.96 4,18,708 19,373.40 33,177 11,322.06  30,695.46 1986 8,796.67 24,213.61 118.76 40.00 12.00 41
1987 97,071 409.37 974.48 4,49,286 22,914.72 36,379 13,550.34  36,465.06 1987 10,231.78 26,570.23 145.47 46.02 12.00 42
1988 1,02,384 462.70 1,184.18 4,75,335 28,451.01 37,747 16,163.43  44,614.44 1988 13,120.54 32,802.00 165.75 51.19 12.00 42
1989 1,10,269 531.51 1,446.63 5,02,284 31,038.07 43,484 19,233.62  50,271.69 1989 9,231.86 36,532.31 196.01 58.07 12.00 42
1990 1,21,740 630.21 1,952.28 5,44,548 37,447.63 51,428 23,709.05  61,156.68 1990 10,119.16 44,464.08 301.40 69.25 12.00 45
1991 1,27,646 706.07 2,893.61 5,97,496 45,541.01 54,405 26,051.59  71,592.60 1991 13,092.37 55,242.28 430.46 78.90 12.00 47
1992# 1,30,074 760.90 4,120.52 6,48,424 51,451.77 53,226 28,473.76  79,925.53 1992# 17,560.62 64,032.95 468.33 81.75 15.00 50
Platinum Jubilee Platinum Jubilee
1993 1,29,284 820.94 4,778.02 7,11,219 63,211.46 54,151 34,424.40  97,635.86 1993 31,022.23 84,821.62 633.50 116.45 18.00 50
1994 1,30,758 902.32 4,924.41 7,79,212 79,233.15 61,263 45,837.00 1,25,070.15 1994 34,974.74 1,06,411.84 679.96 126.40 15.00 52
1995 1,31,569 986.22 6,295.41 8,45,341 91,120.13 73,138 59,682.67 1,50,802.80 1995 35,185.80 1,30,031.69 742.66 140.00 15.00 56
1996 1,32,046 1,049.29 9,145.06 8,97,713 1,08,930.40 77,154 71,324.70 1,80,255.10 1996 42,042.27 1,61,866.40 865.54 151.00 15.00 58
1997 1,32,909 1,157.12 12,575.32 9,14,713 1,38,141.97 79,654 88,087.80 2,26,229.77 1997 53,534.87 1,96,927.69 1,100.00 204.00 18.00 59
1998 1,34,061 1,291.49 15,810.05 9,47,833 1,68,035.59 82,429 1,13,907.47 2,81,943.06 1998 63,459.20 2,47,374.86 1,239.01 185.00 15.00 61
1999 1,36,007 1,519.43 19,458.27 10,00,141 2,03,181.86 84,531 1,38,380.24 3,41,562.10 1999 85,431.42 3,12,590.57 1,423.97 228.00 15.00 63
2000 1,42,031 2,035.28 24,410.99 10,84,261 2,37,951.84 87,642 1,70,310.76 4,08,262.60 2000 95,639.19 2,95,608.33 1,734.09 314.90 18.00 69
2001 **83,272 2,443.81 31,236.00 11,09,969 2,81,776.31 75,006 1,80,542.56 4,62,318.87 2001 1,25,554.41 3,41,061.54 2,341.54 390.00 20.00 72
2002 **85,636 2,709.00 39,795.96 12,17,662 3,37,767.21 75,381 2,04,339.78 5,42,106.99 2002 1,65,198.50 4,06,281.05 2,600.00 492.05 20.00 75
2003 **89,117 3,044.44 47,841.14 12,99,736 3,66,059.68 73,308 2,22,359.50 5,88,419.18 2003 1,77,262.65 4,38,696.89 2,935.85 408.03 18.00 76
2004 **94,044 3,457.77 55,587.75 12,29,976 4,05,270.26 77,917 2,61,675.60 6,66,945.86 2004 1,56,615.16 4,93,749.72 6,225.26 553.47 18.00 75
2005 **1,00,581 4,156.48 70,162.39 11,80,900 4,78,614.38 85,312 3,24,722.93 8,03,337.31 2005 2,05,289.40 5,90,348.41 7,037.88 659.52 18.00 75
2006 **1,06,264 4,896.57 82,198.60 14,00,757 6,20,428.65 1,00,115 4,60,898.62 10,81,327.27 2006 1,98,977.97 7,63,100.74 10,120.29 789.99 18.00 86
2007 **1,23,169 6,877.24 97,362.05 18,11,635 8,92,494.33 1,16,687 6,37,045.87 15,29,540.20 2007 2,60,989.72 10,74,547.13 15,517.92 1,138.42 18.00 105
2008 **1,26,174 7,120.97 1,05,973.67 21,92,673 11,43,081.93 1,22,626 7,44,830.67 18,87,912.60 2008 4,35,006.22 13,87,410.43 20,226.06 1,285.00 20.00 153
2009 **1,29,741 7,749.67 1,09,671.08 25,02,655 12,91,884.64 1,27,769 8,11,040.59 21,02,925.23 2009 4,79,150.75 15,62,281.73 21,079.23 1,489.13 20.00 175
2010 **1,34,417 8,623.11 1,18,413.65 24,39,699 14,26,672.86 2,75,479 9,25,035.47 23,51,708.33 2010 5,32,139.11 17,07,105.88 11,967.42 1,590.62 20.00 200
2011 **1,62,560 10,283.24 1,37,375.92 25,59,939 15,80,096.07 1,11,991 11,51,199.23 27,31,295.30 2011 5,25,376.69 19,18,937.24 21,226.72 1,847.16 20.00 216

2012 **1,68,529 11,691.66 1,59,877.47 29,32,606 19,25,270.98 1,12,196 13,95,270.49 33,20,541.47 2012 5,62,698.78 22,43,562.49 23,556.92 2,181.58  20.00 226

2013 **1,72,282 12,690.93 1,83,440.27 31,86,120 21,14,433.16 1,04,923 15,02,341.51 36,16,774.67 2013 6,44,403.06 24,79,080.40 11,209.11 1,213.10* 10.00* 229
*	 Including Interest Reserve
**	 Shareholders holding shares 50 and above
# 	 Financial Year : Change of Bank’s accounting year since 1992 (April-March)

*  Recommended
# Financial Year : Change of Bank’s accounting year since 1992 (April-March)
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SARASWAT INFOTECH LIMITED

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

To the Members,
Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting the Seventh 
Annual Report of your Company together with the Audited Fi-
nancial Results for the year ended 31st March, 2013.

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

 (` in Crore)

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 

2013

Year ended 
31st March, 

2012
Total Income: 

i)	 Operational Income 

ii)	 Other Income 

41.23

1.40

37.63

0.66
42.63 38.29

Profit before Interest, Deprecia-
tion & Tax

23.51 19.31

Less: i)		 Interest

		  ii)	 Depreciation

- 

14.84

0.10

17.07
Profit before Tax 8.67 2.14
Less: Provision for Taxes:

	 i)	 Current Tax

	 	 ii)	Deferred Tax 

6.00

(2.79)

1.50

(2.28)
Profit after Tax 5.46 2.92
Add: Balance Profit & Loss A/c b/f 5.03 7.25
Profit available for Appropriation 10.49 10.17
Profit Appropriation:

i)	 Transfer to General Reserves 

ii)	 Dividend 

iii)	 Corporate Dividend Tax

iv)	 Profit & Loss Balance c/f

0.75

3.05

0.50

6.19

0.70

3.82

0.62

5.03

ANALYSIS OF OPERATING RESULTS AND BUSINESS:

During the year under review, the operating performance of 
your Company shows a rise in revenue from ` 37.63 crore in 
the previous year to ` 41.23 crore.   Net profit after tax has 
increased from ` 2.92 crore in 2011-12 to ` 5.46 crore in 2012-
13.  The Cash profits (i.e., Profit after adding back deprecia-
tion) stood at ` 20.30 crore as against ` 19.99 crore in the 
previous year.

Your Company continues to be a debt free Company during 

the year under review.   In fact, the Company could earn inter-
est revenue of ` 1.40  crore  on its surplus funds. 

The net worth of your Company has increased to ` 30.19 crore 
as of 31st March, 2013 from `  28.28   crore as on 31st March, 
2012.  The book value and earnings per share has increased 
to ` 19.78 from `18.53 and to ` 3.58 per share from ` 1.91 per 
share respectively.

During the year under review, your Company continued to fo-
cus on SaaS business activity.  Your Company could get 12 
new Co-operative Banks located in different parts of the coun-
try.  In addition to the Core Banking Solution, your Company 
has been providing connectivity to nationwide ATM network of 
National Payment Corporation of India Ltd (NPCI) under the 
sub-membership model to the small Co-operative Banks.  Un-
der the arrangement, the Saraswat Bank acts as the Spon-
sor Bank and the respective Co-operative Bank is admitted 
as the sub-member.  Technical assistance is provided by your 
Company.  Three banks have been made live under the ar-
rangement during the year under review.  In addition, five other 
banks are in the pipeline.     

National Payment Corporation of India has felicitated your 
Company for its effective performance in managing NFS net-
work in the Co-operative sector.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

The Company proposes to transfer ` 0.75 crore (FY 2011-12 
` 0.70 crore) to the General Reserve out of the amount avail-
able for appropriations.  

DIVIDEND:

Last year, your Company had declared a total dividend of 25%.  
In view of the Company’s profitable performance during the 
year, your Board of Directors had approved and paid an Interim 
Dividend at the rate of ` 2/- per share, i.e., 20% per equity 
share of ` 10/- each during the whole year, on existing paid-up 
capital.  Total outflow on this account is ` 3.55 crore including 
Corporate Dividend Tax (FY 2011-12 ` 4.44 crore).  Your Board 
of Directors has decided to treat the Interim Dividend as final 
Dividend.

DEVELOPMENT OF WEB-BASED CORE BANKING
SOLUTION ‘SwiftCore’:

Your Company has developed web based core banking prod-
uct 'SwiftCore'.  The product has been launched at five branch-
es of the Saraswat Bank.  The product would now be rolled 
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over to other branches of the Bank in this financial year.  After 
due customization, the product would be ready for other small 
co-op Banks who have been with us on SaaS model. The web 
based product being database independent would provide an 
edge over the competitors in the market.  You would be happy 
to note that the Benchmarking exercise carried out to know the 
performance of the product in terms of scalability and avail-
ability has given desired results and hence would be additional 
selling point for your Company. 

CMM & PCI DSS CERTIFICATION: 

Your Company has undertaken the initiative of garnering the 
CMM Certification, much needed to vouch the best practices 
and processes followed in development of software. Your com-
pany has ISO 9001 and ISO 27001 certification.   PCI DSS 
certification too is in process to adhere to the card standards 
globally accepted by the banks.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

Your Company has put in place adequate systems of internal 
control commensurate with its size and the nature of its op-
erations.  These have been designed to provide reasonable 
assurance with regard to recording and providing reliable fi-
nancial and operational information, complying with applicable 
statutes, safeguarding assets from unauthorized use or losses, 
executing transactions with proper authorization and ensuring 
compliance of corporate policies.

As a part of our continuous effort to improve the quality and 
consistency in our deliverables, we have implemented ISO 
compliant processes.  During the year we have also imple-
mented security processes in line with ISO 27001 standards.  
The Company has been certified as ISO 9001-2008 and ISO 
27001 compliant. 

INDUSTRY AND COMPANY PROSPECTS:

Following the slowdown induced by the global financial crisis 
in 2008-09, the Indian economy responded strongly to fiscal 
and monetary stimulus and achieved a growth rate of 8.6 per 
cent and 9.3 per cent respectively in 2009-10 and 2010-11. 
However, with the economy exhibiting inflationary tendencies, 
the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) started raising policy rates in 
March 2010.  High rates as well as policy constraints adversely 
impacted investment, and in the subsequent two years, viz., 
2011-12 and 2012-13, the growth rate slowed to 6.2 per cent 
and 5.0 per cent respectively.

The Current Account Deficit is expected to improve, supported 
by greater income flows from software services (US$ 6065 bn 
in FY14) in the wake of global recovery boosting services im-

ports from India as well as greater transfers / remittances (both 
personal and corporate, together expected to be around US$ 
65-70 bn in FY14). 

FUTURE OUTLOOK FOR YOUR COMPANY:

During the year under review, your Company has successfully 
upgraded the switch to have it complied for EMV standards 
both for Rupay and for VISA. While we have been successful 
in handling issuer transactions on POS, development of switch 
to handle acquirer POS business is underway. The switching 
of transactions has opened new line of business to your Com-
pany and would be an extension to the existing SaaS business.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

A. 	 DIRECTORS:
 	 Shri K V Rangnekar, Shri Amit A Pandit and Shri S D 

Panse, Directors would retire by rotation during the 
financial year.  Since all the directors are eligible have 
offered themselves for reappointment.

B. 	 AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
	 The Audit committee of the Company is constituted by 

the Board of Directors in line with the section 292A of the 
Companies Act, 1956. The Audit Committee consists of 
four Independent Non-Executive Directors, viz,        Shri 
Amit A Pandit Chairman of the Committee, Shri S S 
Sanzgiri, Shri K V Rangnekar and Shri S K Banerji.  
The Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Audit 
Committee.

	 During the financial year, the Audit Committee met four 
times to review the financial results and adequacy of the 
processes adopted by your Company.

	 The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include 
review of financial statements to ensure they reflect 
true and fair position of the affairs of the Company and 
recommending the appointment and fees of Internal and 
Statutory Auditors.

C. 	 PERSONNEL:
	 As regards information as per Section 217 (2A) of the 

Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies (Particulars of 
Employee) Rules, 1975 and forming part of the Directors 
Report for the year ended March 31, 2013, during the 
year under review, your Company had no employee who 
was in receipt of remuneration of more than ̀  60,00,000/- 
during the year ended 31st March, 2013 or more than 
` 5,00,000/- per month during any part of the said year. 

D. 	 SHARE CAPITAL:
	 Your Company’s current Share Capital stands at ` 15.26 
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crore.  There is no further infusion of equity during the 
year.  

E. 	 PUBLIC DEPOSITS:
	 The Company has not invited and/ or accepted any 

deposits, within the meaning of Section 58-A of the 
Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975 and made there 
under.

F. 	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO:

	 Pursuant to the requirements of Section 217 (1) (e) of the 
Companies Act, 1956 (“Act”) read with the Companies 
(Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board of 
Directors) Rules, 1988 disclosures are as under:

	 The operations of the Company involve low energy 
consumption.  Adequate measures have, however, been 
taken to conserve energy.  The Company continues to 
use the latest technologies for improving the productivity 
and quality of its services, products and offerings.  The 
Company has no Foreign Exchange Earnings. However 
foreign exchange outgo was to the extent of `13.39 lakh 
during the year ended March 31, 2013.

AUDITORS:

The Statutory Auditors M/s Kulkarni & Khanolkar, Chartered 
Accountants, Mumbai, retire at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting.  The Board of Directors recommends their 
reappointment for the financial year 2013-14 as Statutory 
Auditors.   They have furnished a certificate confirming 
their eligibility for re-appointment under Section 224 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and have expressed their willingness to 
be re-appointed.  The appointed Auditor will hold office until 
the conclusion of the next annual general meeting and their 
appointment shall be governed by section 224 and 224 (1B) of 
the Companies Act, 1956.

COMMENTS ON AUDITORS' REPORT:

Since auditors have not given any qualification in their report 
no comments are offered.

HUMAN RESOURCES:

Employees are our vital and most valuable assets.  We have 
created a favourable work environment that encourages 
innovation.

The relations with the employees during the year were cordial 
and the Board of Directors wishes to express its appreciation 
for the co-operation and dedication of all employees of the 
Company.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 217(2AA) of the 
Companies Act, 1956 (“Act”) and based on the representations 
received from the operating management, the Directors hereby 
confirm that:

a) 	 In the preparation of the Annual accounts for the year 
2012-13, the applicable Accounting Standards have 
been followed and there are no material departures;

b) 	 We have selected such accounting policies in consultation 
with the Statutory Auditors and applied them consistently, 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 
and of the profit of the Company for the financial year;

c) 	 We have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
1956. They confirm that there are adequate systems and 
controls for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
and

d) 	 We have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going 
concern basis.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT & APPRECIATION:

Your Board of Directors takes this opportunity to thank 
the customers, suppliers, Bankers, Auditors, Advisers and 
business partners / associates for their unstinted support and 
encouragement to the Company.   Your Board of Directors also 
wishes to thank the Shareholders, Directors, Executives and 
Employees at all levels of The Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd, 
for their continued support and guidance.  

We place on record our appreciation of the contribution made by 
our employees at all levels.  Our consistent growth was made 
possible by their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and support 
and we look forward to their continued support in the future.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

				    sd/-	
S K SAKHALKAR

Mumbai, July 6, 2013	 Managing Director & CEO  
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INDEPENDENT  AUDITORS’  REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF SARASWAT INFOTECH LTD.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SARASWAT INFOTECH LTD., which comprise the Balance Sheet as 
at 31st March, 2013, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of 
section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial statements give the 
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India:

(a)	 In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2013;

(b)	 In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

(c)	 In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report On Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section 
(4A) of section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in Paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2.	 As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.	 We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purpose of our audit;

b.	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our 
examination of those books;

c.	 The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with 
the books of account;
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d.	 In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement comply with the Accounting 
Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

e.	 On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on 31st March, 2013, and taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2013 from being appointed as a Director in terms 
of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956;

f.	 Since the Central Government has not issued any notification as to the rate at which the cess is to be paid under section 
441A of the Companies Act, 1956 nor has it issued any Rules under the said section, prescribing the manner in which 
such cess is to be paid, no cess is due and payable by the Company.

For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.105407W

	 sd/-

(P.M. PARULEKAR)

Partner

Membership No. 36362

Place: Mumbai

Date : July 6, 2013
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’  REPORT  

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date)
(i)	 (a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.
	 (b)	 As informed to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. No material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
	 (c)	 As explained to us, substantial part of fixed assets has not been disposed off during the year.
(ii)	 Since the company is a service company, it is not required to maintain any inventory.
(iii)	 According to the information given to us, the company has not granted / taken any loan, secured or unsecured to/ from 

companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.
(iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control procedure 

commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase of hardware, consumables 
and fixed assets. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in 
internal control.

(v)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no particulars of contracts or arrangements 
referred to in Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 which are required to be entered in the register maintained under that Section.

(vi) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits from public.
(vii) 	 In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and nature of its business.
(viii) 	 In our opinion and according to the information given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost 

records under section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956 for any of the products of the Company.
(ix)	 (a)	 The Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor education and protection fund, employees' state 

insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess etc. whichever applicable have 
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. Undisputed Statutory dues outstanding for more than six 
months as on the date of Balance Sheet - NIL

	 (b)	 Particulars of dues of sales tax, income tax, service tax, custom duty, wealth tax, excise duty, cess not deposited on 
account of dispute as on the date of Balance sheet are as follows –

Particulars Amount (` in crore) Forum where pending
Income Tax A.Y. 2010-11 0.17 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)

(x)	 In our opinion, the Company does not have accumulated losses at the end of the financial year. The Company has not incurred 
cash losses during the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xi)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of 
dues to any financial institution, bank or debenture holders.

(xii)	 As informed to us, the Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, 
debentures and other securities.

(xiii)	 In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4(xiii) 
of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the company.

(xiv)	 In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the company.

(xv)	 As explained to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institution. 
(xvi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not borrowed funds in the nature of term loan. 
(xvii)	According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, 

we report that there are no funds raised on short term basis which are used for long term investment.
(xviii)	According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares. 

Hence, we are not required to report in terms of clause 4(xviii) of the said Order. 
(xix) 	The Company has not issued any debentures. 
(xx) 	 The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue.
(xxi) 	According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during 

the year under audit.

For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.105407W
	 sd/-
(P.M. PARULEKAR)
Partner
Membership No. 36362
Place: Mumbai
Date : July 6, 2013
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH,  2013

As per our report of even date attached           	 For and on behalf of the Board
For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR		  Saraswat Infotech Ltd.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105407W

	 sd/-			   sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-
P.M. PARULEKAR	 E.K. THAKUR	 A.A. PANDIT	 S.K. BANERJI	 S.K. SAKHALKAR
Partner			   Chairman	   Director	 Director 	 Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 36362	
Place: Mumbai		
Date : July 6, 2013

(Amount in `)

Particulars Note No.  31-03-2013  31-03-2012

I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) SHARE HOLDERS'  FUNDS

(a) Share Capital 1  152,631,570.00  152,631,570.00 

(b) Reserves and Surplus 2  149,253,692.37  130,152,883.00 

2) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities 3  7,425,692.00  35,326,052.00 

3) CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Trade payables  1,803,265.00  1,632,182.00 

(b) Other current liabilities 4  13,669,474.98  6,799,567.98 

(c) Short-term provisions 5  139,330,065.00  72,112,089.00 

Total  464,113,759.35  398,654,343.98 

II. ASSETS
1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Fixed assets 6

(i)  Tangible assets  86,695,376.24  124,821,488.24 

(ii)  Intangible assets  6,890,850.08  70,656,082.08 

(iii) Capital WIP  62,418,556.00  38,425,984.00 

(b) Non-current investments 7  25,000.00  25,000.00 

(c) Long term loans and advances 8  89,381,326.00  47,546,540.55 

2) CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Trade receivables 9  15,147,525.44  14,615,128.54 

(b) Cash and bank balances 10  181,301,441.40  85,225,983.86 

(c) Short-term loans and advances 11  16,444,883.19  13,391,070.71 

(d) Other current assets 12  5,808,801.00  3,947,066.00 

Total  464,113,759.35  398,654,343.98 
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As per our report of even date attached           	 For and on behalf of the Board
For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR		  Saraswat Infotech Ltd.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105407W

	 sd/-			   sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-
P.M. PARULEKAR	 E.K. THAKUR	 A.A. PANDIT	 S.K. BANERJI	 S.K. SAKHALKAR
Partner			   Chairman	   Director	 Director 	 Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 36362	
Place: Mumbai		
Date : July 6, 2013

PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013

(Amount in `)

Particulars Note No.  31-03-2013  31-03-2012

I Revenue from Operations 13  412,329,941.00  376,281,996.58 

II Other Income 14  13,992,472.80  6,629,242.35 

III Total Revenue  426,322,413.80  382,911,238.93 

IV Expenses:

i Employees Benefit Expense 15  66,712,942.00  58,735,896.42 

ii Finance Costs 16  -    1,037,197.00 

iii Depreciation and Amortization Expense 17  148,420,450.00  170,666,199.44 

iv Other Expenses 18  122,587,064.43  127,060,776.23 

V Total Expenses  337,720,456.43  357,500,069.09 

Less: Prior Period Expenses 21  1,923,062.00  3,963,409.68 

VI. Profit Before Tax  86,678,895.37  21,447,760.16 

VII Tax Expense:

Current Tax  60,000,000.00  15,000,000.00 

Deferred Tax  (27,900,360.00)  (22,741,211.00)

VIII. Profit  for the Year  54,579,255.37  29,188,971.16 

Earnings Per Equity Share of ` 10/- each

Basic  3.58  1.91 

Diluted  3.58  1.91 
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NOTES ANNEXED TO & FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS AS ON 31ST MARCH 2013

(Amount in `)

	 Particulars  31-03-2013  31-03-2012
NOTE 1 – SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:
25,000,000 Equity Shares of ` 10 Each  250,000,000.00  250,000,000.00 

Total  250,000,000.00  250,000,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Up:
15,263,157 Equity Shares of ` 10/-  each fully paid  152,631,570.00  152,631,570.00 

(Previous Year: 15,263,157 Equity Shares of  ` 10/-  each fully paid)

Total  152,631,570.00  152,631,570.00 

RECONCILIATION OF NUMBER OF SHARES :	
Particulars  31-03-2013 

 Equity Shares 
31-03-2012

Equity Shares
 Number  `  Number `

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  15,263,157  152,631,570  15,263,157  152,631,570 

Shares issued during the year  -    -    -    -   

Shares bought back during the year  -    -    -    -   

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  15,263,157  152,631,570  15,263,157  152,631,570 

Disclosure pursuant to Note no. 6(A)(f) of Part I of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956
15,263,157  Equity Shares  (Previous year No 15,263,157)  are held by  The Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd.,  the holding Co-operative Society.

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5 % SHARE CAPITAL :				  
Name of Shareholder  31-03-2013  31-03-2012

 No. of Shares 
held 

 % of Holding   No. of Shares 
held

% of Holding 

The Saraswat Co-Op. Bank Ltd.  15,263,157 100%  15,263,157 100%

Terms/Rights/Restrictions:-

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of `10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one 
vote per share.
The company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by board of directors, if any is subject to the 
approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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(Amount in `)
Particulars  31-03-2013  31-03-2012

NOTE 2 – RESERVES & SURPLUS
a. Securities Premium Account

Opening Balance  47,368,413.00  47,368,413.00 
Closing Balance  47,368,413.00  47,368,413.00 

b. General Reserve
Opening Balance  32,516,000.00  25,516,000.00 
(+) Current Year Transfer  7,500,000.00  7,000,000.00 
Closing Balance  40,016,000.00  32,516,000.00 

c. Surplus, i.e. balance in statement of Profit & Loss
Opening balance  50,268,470.00  72,461,019.09 
(+) Net Profit For the current year  54,579,255.37  29,188,971.16 
(-)Short Provision of Income Tax for earlier years  -    33,463.25 
(-) Transfer to General Reserve  7,500,000.00  7,000,000.00 
(-) Interim Dividend  30,526,314.00  38,157,893.00 
(-) Corporate Dividend Tax  4,952,132.00  6,190,164.00 
Closing Balance  61,869,279.37  50,268,470.00 

 Total  149,253,692.37  130,152,883.00 

NOTE 3 - DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Deferred tax Liability:
Depreciation  10,547,440.00  36,899,839.00 

Deferred Tax Asset:
Section 43 B  3,121,748.00  1,573,787.00 

 Total   7,425,692.00  35,326,052.00 

NOTE 4 – OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance Received from Customers  8,484,008.00  1,589,062.00 
VAT Payable  222,968.00  -   
Service Tax Payable  617,737.00 -
TDS Payable  2,250,401.00  1,498,922.00 
Retention Money Payable  1,564,022.98  1,407,272.98 
Income Received in Advance  497,213.00  -   
Others  33,125.00  2,304,311.00 

 Total  13,669,474.98  6,799,567.98 

NOTE 5 – SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
(a) Provision for Employee Benefits

Bonus Payable  220,073.00  203,337.00 
Leave Encashment  13,506,293.00  8,751,997.00 
PLI  Payable  5,729,854.00  5,584,609.00 
Others  975,898.00  -   

(b) Others
Provision for Taxation  105,000,000.00  45,000,000.00 
Provision for Others  13,897,947.00  12,572,146.00 

 Total  139,330,065.00  72,112,089.00 
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(Amount in `)
Particulars  31-03-2013  31-03-2012

NOTE 7 – NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Other Investments ( Unquoted)

Other non-current investments - SCB Shares 
(Holding Co-operative Society)
2500 Shares of ` 10/- each
(Previous Year: 2500 Shares of ` 10/- each)

 25,000.00  25,000.00 

 Total  25,000.00  25,000.00 

NOTE 8 - LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES  

Other Loans and Advances

Advance Tax  89,381,326.00  47,546,540.55 

 Total  89,381,326.00  47,546,540.55 

Note 9 – TRADE RECEIVABLES   

Trade Receivables outstanding for a period upto six months from the date they are due 
for payment

Unsecured, considered good  12,685,136.00  11,366,582.00 

Trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they 
are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good  2,462,389.44  3,248,546.54 

Total  15,147,525.44  14,615,128.54 

Note:
Debt due by Directors or other officers or by firms or by private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director 
or a member -NIL ( Previous Year -NIL)		

(Amount in `)
NOTE 6 - TANGIBLE ASSETS & INTANGIBLE ASSETS:	

Sr. 
No.

Fixed  
Assets 

 GROSS BLOCK  ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  NET BLOCK 

 Rate of 
Dep. 

 Balance as at 
1-04-2012 

 Additions  Sales  Balance as at 
31-03-2013 

 Balance as at 
1-04-2012 

 Depreciation  
for the year 

 On sales  Balance as at 
31-03-2013 

 Balance as at 
31-03-2013 

 Balance as at 
31-03-2012

Tangible 
Assets 

1 Furniture 
and Fixtures 

 0.06  2,373,857.50  198,684.00  -    2,572,541.50  755,383.70  158,196.00  -    913,579.70  1,658,961.80  1,618,473.80 

2 Office 
Equipment  

 0.07  2,872,611.45  1,129,026.00  -    4,001,637.45  380,946.18  278,989.00  -    659,935.18  3,341,702.27  2,491,665.27 

3 Motor Car  0.10  1,844,537.64  1,160,642.00  -    3,005,179.64  379,242.43  225,679.00  -    604,921.43  2,400,258.21  1,465,295.21 

4 Computers   0.33  299,278,062.10  47,208,318.00 26,242,960.00  320,243,420.10  180,032,008.14  83,742,354.00 22,825,396.00  240,948,966.14  79,294,453.96  119,246,053.96 

Total ( A )  306,369,068.69  49,696,670.00  26,242,960.00  329,822,778.69  181,547,580.45  84,405,218.00 22,825,396.00  243,127,402.45  86,695,376.24  124,821,488.24 

Intangible 
Assets 

Computer 
Software  

 0.33  263,781,448.97  250,000.00  -    264,031,448.97  193,125,366.89  64,015,232.00  -    257,140,598.89  6,890,850.08  70,656,082.08 

TOTAL ( B)  263,781,448.97  250,000.00  -    264,031,448.97  193,125,366.89  64,015,232.00  -    257,140,598.89  6,890,850.08  70,656,082.08 

Grand Total
(A+B)  

 570,150,517.66  49,946,670.00 26,242,960.00  593,854,227.66  374,672,947.34  148,420,450.00 22,825,396.00  500,268,001.34  93,586,226.32  195,477,570.32 

Previous 
Year : Total 

 509,593,837.30  68,595,497.00  8,038,816.64  570,150,517.66  208,261,645.97  170,666,199.44 4,254,898.07  374,672,947.34 195,477,570.32  301,332,191.33 
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(Amount in `)
Particulars  31-03-2013  31-03-2012

Note 10 – CASH AND BANK BALANCES
I Cash and Cash equivalents

a) Cash on hand  1,563.00  276.50 
b) Balances with Banks:

The Saraswat Co.op. Bank Ltd.  (10,425,251.88)  (5,860,206.50)
HDFC Bank Ltd.  -    4,244.13 
Axis Bank Ltd.  7,641,085.10  3,973,101.10 
Bank Deposits with Less than 3 months maturity  28,750,000.00  29,080,000.00 

II Other Bank Balances:
 Unpaid Dividend Bank Account  9,534.18  9,674.63 

Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity  155,324,511.00  58,018,894.00 
 Total  181,301,441.40  85,225,983.86 

NOTE 11 – SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES (unsecured, considered good)
Creditors Advances  8,497,228.19  9,899,488.19 
Advance to Employee  421,104.00  111,951.00 
Prepaid Expenses  5,171,449.00  1,869,409.50 
Service Tax Credit Receivable  2,355,102.00  1,510,222.02 

 Total  16,444,883.19  13,391,070.71 

NOTE 12 – OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
EMD Paid  700,000.00  1,200,000.00 
Income WIP  5,107,500.00  2,455,833.00 
Interest Receivable on Investment  1,301.00  291,233.00 

 Total  5,808,801.00  3,947,066.00 

NOTE 13 – REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS    
Sale of Services  407,222,441.00  373,826,163.58 
Income WIP  5,107,500.00  2,455,833.00 

 Total  412,329,941.00  376,281,996.58 

NOTE 14 – OTHER INCOME
Interest Received on Bank Fixed Deposits  13,426,996.00  4,541,024.00 
Interest Received on Income Tax Refund  -    219,351.00 
Dividend Received  5,000.00  5,833.00 
Other Non Operating Income  560,476.80  1,863,034.35 

 Total  13,992,472.80  6,629,242.35 

NOTE 15 -  EMPLOYEE   BENEFIT  EXPENSES
Salaries & Wages  63,086,836.00  55,920,989.42 
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds  2,810,291.00  2,057,865.00 
Staff Welfare Expenses  815,815.00  757,042.00 

 Total  66,712,942.00  58,735,896.42 

NOTE 16 – FINANCE COSTS
Borrowing costs
Interest Expense  -    1,037,197.00 

Total  -    1,037,197.00 
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(Amount in `)
Particulars  31- 03-2013  31-03-2012
NOTE 17 – DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Depreciation on Tangible Assets  84,405,218.00  90,651,030.41 
Amortisation of Intangible Assets  64,015,232.00  80,015,169.03 

 Total  148,420,450.00  170,666,199.44 

NOTE 18 – OTHER EXPENSES
Bank Charges  26,893.29  77,150.53 
Audit Fees  374,000.00  365,000.00 
Electricity Expenses  11,231,152.16  9,546,839.23 
Electrical Goods  425,677.00  796,915.48 
Maintenance of Office Infrastructure  17,580,000.00  26,160,347.00 
Telephone Expenses  469,257.80  1,054,530.40 
Loss on Sale of Assets (Net)  1,595,324.00  1,919,425.93 
Computer Consumables  4,162,838.00  1,545,479.00 
System Integration Outsourcing for Project Delivery  7,995,527.00  7,535,130.54 
IT Facility Maintenance Expenses  2,658,000.00  5,166,453.00 
AMC Expenses  16,728,219.50  17,098,602.50 
Leased / ISDN Line Expenses  10,081,227.81  8,168,305.00 
Traveling & Conveyance  3,795,964.00  3,096,050.67 
Repairs & Maintenance  82,200.00  279,237.50 
Outsourced Expenses for Data Processing etc.  8,721,421.00  6,216,669.00 
Director's Sitting Fees  256,500.00  148,000.00 
Other Expenses  12,341,563.07  8,647,216.88 
Software Upgradation & Renewal  4,089,922.00  10,633,543.45 
Visa Expenses  11,851,069.00  8,931,118.06 
Printing and Stationery  984,558.00  1,335,240.00 
Professional Fees  6,386,637.00  6,321,730.00 
Training Charges  37,030.00  9,000.00 
Bad Debts written off                           712,083.80  2,008,792.06 

 Total  122,587,064.43  127,060,776.23 

NOTE 19 – PAYMENTS TO AUDITOR AS:
Auditor  350,000.00  350,000.00 
For Taxation Matters  18,000.00  15,000.00 
Out of Pocket Expenses  6,000.00  -   

 Total  374,000.00  365,000.00 

NOTE 20 – SERVICES RENDERED
Information Technology & Consultancy Services  322,700,931.00  297,076,912.00 
System Integration Sales & Services  18,000.00  5,171,063.00 
Professional Fees  7,380,810.00  6,126,018.00 
Other Services  77,122,700.00  65,452,170.58 

 Total  407,222,441.00  373,826,163.58 
 

NOTE 21 –  PRIOR PERIOD EXPENSES
AMC Charges  -    2,814,731.68 
Leased Line Charges  743,694.00  650,038.00 
Visa Charges  1,179,368.00  -   
IT Facility Maintenance Expenses  -    498,640.00 

 Total  1,923,062.00  3,963,409.68 
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NOTE – 22 Significant accounting policies:-

i)	 Basis of preparation of financial statements

	 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the 
historical cost convention on the accrual basis. GAAP comprises accounting standards notified by the Central Government 
of India under Section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act,1956 and pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India.

ii)	 Use of estimates

	 The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenditure.

iii)	 Fixed Assets

	 Fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Cost comprises the purchase price & any attributable cost of bringing the 
asset to its working condition for its intended use.

iv)	 Depreciation

	 a.	 Computers are depreciated on straight line basis @ 33.33%

	 b.	 Depreciation on all other tangible assets has been provided on straight line basis at the rates and in the manner specified 
in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

v)	 Intangible Assets

	 Intangible Assets are amortised over 3 years.

vi)	 Impairment of assets

	 No provision is required to be made in terms of AS-28 viz. "Impairment of Assets".

vii)	 Taxation

	 a)	 Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income 
Tax Act, 1961.

	 b)	 Deferred tax is recognised, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing differences, representing the difference 
between taxable income and accounting income that originated in one period and are capable of reversal in one or 
more subsequent periods. Deferred tax  assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

viii)	 Employee Benefits

	 a)	 Provision for gratuity is made based on the actuarial valuation statement as per Accounting Standard – 15 (Revised).

	  b)	 The Leave Encashment has been fully provided for based on the Acturial Valuation.

	 c)	 Company's contribution to provident fund is accounted for on the basis of contribution to the scheme.

ix)	 Provisions and Contingencies

	 The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of an obligating event that probably requires 
an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the outflow.

x)	 Revenue Recognition

	 a)	 Revenue from SaaS Services is recognized on accrual basis in cases where the first branch is made live as per the terms 
of the contract.

	 b)	 In following cases, where implementation of the contract gets spilled over more than one accounting period, work in 
process is accounted for the efforts and expenses incurred pending bills raised as per the terms of the contract :-

	 1)	 Where services are rendered on SaaS basis;

	 2)	 Where software license is sold;

	 c)	 For the purposes of work-in-process, staff cost incurred for the pre-implementation efforts is accounted for based on the 
man-days involved, skill sets required and activities carried out.

	 d)	 Revenue from customer training, support and other services is recognised as & when the related services are performed.

	 e)	 Provision for estimated losses, if any, on incomplete contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become 
probable based on the current contract estimates.

	 f) Revenue from licensing of software is recognised as per the terms of license.
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NOTE – 23
(Amount in `)

Particulars As on 
31-03-2013

As on 
31-03-2012

i) Value of Imports on CIF basis           NIL  NIL 
ii) Expenditure in foreign currency Other Matters  1,339,065  1,514,177 
iii) Amount remitted during the year in foreign currency on account of dividend           NIL           NIL
iv) Earnings in foreign exchange           NIL           NIL

NOTE – 24
As per information available with the Company, there are no dues payable as on 31st March, 2013 to entities covered under Micro, 
Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.   

NOTE – 25

Capital Commitments :-

Capital commitments (Net of Advance) in respect of 

	 i)	 Tangible Assets - ` 65,095,830/- (Previous year ` 5,418,604/-)  

	 ii)	 Intangible Assets - ` 400,000/-  (Previous year NIL). 

	 iii)	 Others - ` 6,860,618/- (Previous year NIL).

NOTE – 26

Related party and their relationship
Holding Entity
The Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd.

Related Party Disclosures (AS-18) (` in Crore)

Items / Related Party The Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd.
31-03-2013

The Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd.
31-03-2012

Fixed Deposit with Bank 18.41  8.71

Share Capital held 15.26 15.26

Interest received from Bank on FDR during the year 1.34 0.45

Received from Bank towards Services rendered 
during the year

36.20 34.31

Sale of Car during the year 0 0.11

Dividend paid during the year 3.05 3.82

Paid towards Office Infrastructure Maintenance 
during the year

1.76 1.76

Current account with bank (A/c No.2781) -1.04 -0.59

Current account with bank (A/c No.3309)  
(` 9534.18 in actual)

0 0.01

Dividend Received From Bank (` 5000/- in actual) 0 0

SCB Share Held (` 25000/- in actual) 0 0

Receivable from Bank 0.59 0.78

NOTE – 27

	 The assessing officer has raised demand of ` 0.17 Crore for A.Y. 2010-11, which is contested by Company in appeal. Based on 
the judicial pronouncements, company is confident of favourable order from appellate authorities. Hence, no provision for the 
aforesaid demand is made.				  
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NOTE – 28
Segment Reporting (AS 17)				  
Since the Company has only one 'Business Segment' as well as only one 'Geographical Segment' as defined under AS-17, separate 
disclosures under these two segments are not given.

NOTE – 29

Employee Benefits

1.	 Company Contribution to Provident Fund  - ` 19.16 Lac (Previous year  ` 17.57 Lac)

2.	 Gratuity expenses represent ` 665,661/- (` 84,315/-) paid to L.I.C. pursuant to Company subscribing to its Group Gratuity 
Scheme.

(Amount in `)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Gratuity Funded
31-03-2013 31-03-2012

1. Assumption
i) 	 Discount rate (per annum) 8% 8%
ii) 	 Salary Escalation rate (per annum) 5% 5%

2. Changes in present value of Obligation As on 
Present value of obligation as at beginning of year 4,568,769 4,096,695
Interest cost 365,502 327,736
Current  service cost 485,771 415,557
Benefits  paid -112,212 -187,442
Actuarial gain/(loss) on obligations 37,368 -83,777
Present  value of obligation as at the end of year 5,345,198 4,568,769

3. Fair value of plan assets as at beginning of year 5,351,881 5,042,772
Expected return on plan assets 490,256 460,264
Contributions 616,403 36,287
Benefits paid -112,212 -187,442
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets NIL NIL
Fair  value of obligation as at the end of year 6,346,328 5,351,881

4. Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 5,351,881 5,042,772
Actual return on plan assets 490,256 460,264
Contributions 616,403 36,287
Benefits paid -112,212 -187,442
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of year 6,346,328 5,351,881
Funded Status 1,001,130 783,112
Excess of Actual over estimated return on plan assets NIL NIL

5. Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized       
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations -37,368 83,777
Actuarial (gain) / loss for the year - plan assets NIL NIL
Actuarial (gain) / loss for the year 37,368 -83,777
Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year 37,368 -83,777

6. Amount recognized in the Balance sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss 
Present value of obligation as at the end of year 5,345,198 4,568,769
Fair value of plan assets as at end of year 6,346,328 5,351,881
Funded Status 1,001,130 783,112
Net Assets/ (Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet 1,001,130 -783,112
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(Amount in `)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Gratuity Funded
31-03-2013 31-03-2012

7. Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 
Current service cost 485,771 415,557
Interest cost 365,502 327,736
Expected return on plan assets -490,256 -460,264
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the year 37,368 -83,777
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss account. 398,385 199,252

NOTE – 30

Figures of the previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to layout of the accounts of the current year.

As per our report of even date attached           	 For and on behalf of the Board

For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR		  Saraswat Infotech Ltd.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105407W

	 sd/-			   sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-
P.M. PARULEKAR	 E.K. THAKUR	 A.A. PANDIT	 S.K. BANERJI	 S.K. SAKHALKAR
Partner			   Chairman	   Director	 Director 	 Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 36362	

Place: Mumbai		
Date : July 6, 2013
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013

(Amount in `)

Particulars 31-03-2013 31-03-2012 
A	 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit for the year  54,579,255.00  29,188,971.00 
Adjustments For :
Current Tax  60,000,000.00  15,000,000.00 
Deferred Tax  (27,900,360.00)  (22,741,211.00)
Depreciation  148,420,450.00  170,666,199.00 
(Profit)/Loss on sale of assets  1,595,324.00  1,919,425.00 
Interest and other borrowing costs Paid  -    1,037,197.00 
Interest Received  (13,426,996.00)  (4,541,024.00)
Dividend Received  (5,000.00)  (5,833.00)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Current Assets  (102,753,420.00)  (6,097,409.00)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Current Liabilities  14,258,966.00  (17,348,790.00)
Income Tax Paid  (41,834,786.00)  (11,705,338.00)
Cash from operating  Activities  (A)  92,933,433.00  155,372,187.00 

B.	 CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets  (49,946,670.00)  (52,851,844.00)
Increase in Capital WIP  (23,992,572.00)  (38,425,984.00)
Sale of Fixed Assets  1,822,240.00  1,864,493.00 
Interest Received  13,426,996.00  4,541,024.00 
Dividend Received  5,000.00  5,833.00 
Net Cash from Investing  Activities (B)  (58,685,006.00)  (84,866,478.00)

C.	 CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings  -    (30,304,320.00)
Dividend  Paid  (30,526,314.00)  (38,157,893.00)
Corporate Dividend Tax Paid  (4,952,132.00)  (6,190,164.00)
Interest and Other Borrowing Costs Paid  -    (1,037,197.00)
Net Cash from Financing  Activities (C)  (35,478,446.00)  (75,689,574.00)

	 Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and
	 Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (1,230,019.00)  (5,183,865.00)

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents  27,197,415.00  32,381,280.00 
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents  25,967,396.00  27,197,415.00 

As per our report of even date attached           	 For and on behalf of the Board

For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR		  Saraswat Infotech Ltd.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105407W

	 sd/-			   sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-
P.M. PARULEKAR	 E.K. THAKUR	 A.A. PANDIT	 S.K. BANERJI	 S.K. SAKHALKAR
Partner			   Chairman	   Director	 Director 	 Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 36362	

Place: Mumbai		
Date :  July 6, 2013
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Maharashtra
Mumbai

1 Andheri (E), New Nagardas Road 51 Mahim, Sitaladevi Temple Road 98 Boisar
2 Andheri (E), Old Nagardas Road 52 Malad, Mamlatdar Wadi 99 Dombivali (E)
3 Andheri (E), Marol 53 Malad (W), Orlem 100 Dombivali (W)
4 Andheri (E), MIDC 54 Malad (W), Link Road 101 Kalwa 
5 Andheri (E), Saki Naka 55 Masjid Bunder 102 Kalyan, Murbad Road 
6 Andheri (W), Lokhandwala 56 Matunga (E),Telang Road 103 Kalyan, Khadakpada 
7 Andheri (W), Barfiwala Road 57 Mulund (E), Lokmanya Tilak Road 104 Mira Road
8 Andheri (W, Veera Desai Road 58 Mulund (W), M.G.Road 105 Palghar
9 Ballard Estate 59 Mulund (W), RRT Road 106 Thane (E), Kopri Colony

10 Bandra (E), Chetana College 60 Mulund (W), Veena Nagar 107 Thane (W), Hiranandani 
11 Bandra (W), National Library 61 Mulund (W), Sarvodaya Nagar 108 Thane (W), Jambhli Naka 
12 Bhandup (W), L. B. S. Marg 62 Mumbai Central 109 Thane (W), Khopat 
13 Borivali (W), I C Colony 63 Overseas, Marine Lines 110 Thane (W), Naupada 
14 Borivili (E), Carter Road 64 Parel, M.D. College 111 Thane (W), Vartak Nagar 
15 Borivili (W), Chandavarkar Lane 65 Powai, I.I.T. 112 Thane (W), Vijay Nagari 
16 Borivili (W), Shimpoli 66 Powai, Hiranandani 113 Ulhasnagar 
17 Carnac Bunder 67 Prabhadevi 114 Vasai (E)
18 Chembur (W), Sion Trombay Road 68 Santacruz (E), Kalina 115 Virar (E) 
19 Chembur (W), Collectors' Colony 69 Santacruz (E), Nehru Road 116 Virar (W) 
20 Chembur (W), Tilak Nagar 70 Santracruz (W), Station Road Pune
21 CST 71 Sion (W), Swami Vallabhadas Road 117 Akurdi 
22 Dadar (E), Dadasaheb Phalke Rd 72 SME - Dadar 118 Aundh 
23 Dadar (E), Hindu Colony 73 SME - Nariman Point 119 Baner Road 
24 Dadar (W), Gadkari Chowk 74 SME - Vikhroli 120 Bavdhan 
25 Dadar (W), Madhukendra 75 SME - Vile Parle 121 Bibwewadi 
26 Dahisar (E), Maratha Colony 76 Thakurdwar 122 Budhwar Peth 
27 Dahisar (W) 77 Vikhroli (E) 123 Chakan 
28 Dharavi 78 Vikhroli (W) 124 Chinchwad
29 Fort, D.N.Road 79 Vile Parle (E) 125 Dahanukar Colony 
30 Ghatkopar (E), Opp Rly Stn 80 Vile Parle (W) 126 Fergusson College Road 
31 Ghatkopar (W), L.B.S. Marg 81 Wadala 127 Fatima Nagar
32 Ghatkopar (W), Barve Nagar 82 Wadala, Antop Hill 128 Ganesh Khind Road 
33 Girgaum, S.V. Sovani Path 83 Worli 129 Ganesh Nagar 
34 Goregaon (E), Walawalkar Wadi 130 Hadapsar 
35 Goregaon (E), Nagari Niwara Navi Mumbai 131 Hinjewadi 
36 Goregaon (W), S.V. Road 84 Airoli, Sector 7 132 Karve Road 
37 Goregaon (W), Link Road 85 CBD Belapur, Sector 11 133 Katraj 
38 Grant Road, Dr. D.B.Marg 86 Kamothe, Sector 7 134 Kharadi 
39 Jogeshwari (E), Majaswadi 87 Kharghar, Sector 7 135 Kondhwa 
40 Juhu 88 Koparkhairane, Sector 20 136 Narayan Peth 
41 Kandivali, Charkop 89 Nerul (E), Sector 21 137 Pashan
42 Kandivali (E), Thakur Complex 90 Nerul (W), Sector 4 138 Paud Road 
43 Kandivali (E), Thakur Village 91 Sanpada, Sector 4 139 Pimple Nilakh 
44 Kandivali (W), S.V.Road 92 Seawood 140 Pimple Saudagar
45 Kandivali (W), Dahanukarwadi 93 Uran 141 Pimpri 
46 Kandivali (W), M.G.Road 94 Vashi, Sector 17 142 Rajguru Nagar
47 Kandivali (W) GIE Thane District 143 Sinhagad Road
48 Khar (W), Pali Hill 95 Ambarnath (E) 144 SME - Pune 
49 Khar, Linking Road 96 Bhayander (W) 145 Somwar Peth 
50 Lower Parel, N.M.Joshi Marg 97 Bhivandi 146 Talegaon 

STATEWISE / REGIONWISE BRANCH NETWORK
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Maharashtra
147 Tilak Road Sindhudurga 191 Kupwad 
148 Vamnicom 169 Devgad 192 Mahaveer Nagar 
149 Viman Nagar 170 Kankavli, Bajarpeth 193 Miraj Laxmi Market 
150 Vishrantwadi 171 Kankavli, Rameshwar Plaza 194 Shastri Chowk 

Nashik 172 Kudal 195 Shivaji Nagar 
151 CIDCO 173 Malvan 196 Tasgaon 
152 Gangapur Road 174 Sawantwadi 197 Vita 
153 Jail Road 175 Vaibhavwadi Satara 
154 Mahatma Nagar 176 Vengurla 198 Karad 
155 Main Road Jalgaon 199 Satara 
156 Musalgaon 177 Baliram Peth Kolhapur 
157 Sharanpur 178 Gandhi Nagar 200 Mahapalika Bhausinghaji Road

Ahmednagar Aurangabad 201 Mangalwar Peth 
158 MIDC 179 CIDCO 202 New Shahupuri 
159 Savedi Road 180 Gajanan Maharaj Mandir 203 Rajarampuri

Raigad 181 Khadkeshwar Nagpur 
160 Alibaug 182 MGM - Medical College 204 Chhapru Nagar
161 Mahad 183 MIT - Hospital 205 Gandhi Baug
162 Panvel, M.C.C.H. Road 184 Station Road 206 Hingana Road
163 Panvel, S.N.Road 185 T V Centre 207 Kalamana Market
164 Pen 186 Waluj 208 Pratap Nagar

Ratnagiri Sangli 209 Wardha Road
165 Chiplun 187 Ankali Akola 
166 Lanja 188 Ichalkaranji 210 Akola
167 Rajapur 189 Kavthe Mahankal Solapur
168 Ratnagiri 190 Khanapur 211 Solapur 

	 Gujarat Karnataka 	 Goa
Ahmedabad Belgaum 240 Bicholim 

212 Anand Nagar 226 Samadevi 241 Curchorem Sanvordem 
213 Bapu Nagar 227 Tilakwadi 242 Mapusa                 
214 C.G.Road Hubli 243 Margao                 
215 Ghatlodia 228 Hubli 244 Panaji                    
216 Isanpur Bengaluru 245 Ponda                     
217 Maninagar 229 Banashankari 246 Porvorim 
218 Naranpura Wadaj 230 Chamrajpeth 247 SME - Goa 

Vadodara 231 Gandhinagar 248 Vasco                    
219 Fatehganj 232 Jayanagar Madhya Pradesh
220 Karelibaug 233 Koramangala 249 Indore                    
221 Manjalpur 234 Malleswaram Delhi

Surat Mangalore 250 Connaught Place
222 Adajan 235 Bhavanthi Street 251 Lajpat Nagar                             
223 Ring Road 236 Chilimbi
224 Surat 237 M.G.Road

Vapi 238 Mannagudda
225 Vapi Udupi                

239 Udupi                
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FORM - A

	 Date: 

To,
The Chief Manager,
Share Department,
The Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd,
Madhushree, 5th Floor,Plot  No. 85,
District Business Centre, Sector 17,
Vashi, Navi Mumbai - 400 703.

Sir/Madam,
Re: Annual Report

I furnish here below the required details for receipt of Annual Report for the financial year 2013-14 
onwards:

Name of Shareholder	 :	 ______________________________________________________

Address	 :	 ______________________________________________________

		  ______________________________________________________

		  ______________________________________________________

Membership No	 :	 ______________________________________________________

Mode (Receipt of Report)	 :	 Physical / Electronic                     

E-mail ID 	 :	 ______________________________________________________

Mobile No.	 :	 ______________________________________________________

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

(Signature)
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THE SARASWAT CO-OPERATIVE BANK LIMITED
(A SCHEDULED BANK)

:Registered Office:
Saraswat Bank Bhavan, 953, Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400 025.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

95th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Regd. Folio No:_____________

I certify that I am a registered member of The Saraswat Co-operative Bank Limited. I hereby 
record my presence at the 95th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Bank at 4.00 p.m. on 
Monday, September 30, 2013 at Pracharya B. N. Vaidya Sabhagruha, 2nd Floor, Raja Shivaji 
Vidya Sankul, Patkar Guruji Chowk, Hindu Colony, Dadar (East), Mumbai 400 014.

	 Member’s Name in BLOCK Letters				    Member’s Signature

Note : Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the ENTRANCE OF THE HALL
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Customer Service Centre : Tel.: 022 - 26464013 / 26464019 / 26464022  |  Toll free No.: 1800229999  |  customersevicecentre@saraswatbank.com



Registered Office : Saraswat Bank Bhavan, Plot No. 953, Appasaheb Marathe Marg,
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Customer Service Centre

customersevicecentre@saraswatbank.com

Collect Welcome Kit and get registered 
at your home branch
(Mobile pin to be collected after registration)


